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JUDGES

OF THE

UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURTS OF APPEALS

AND THE DISTRICT COURTS

) FIRST CIRCUIT

Hon, OLIVER WENDELL HOLMES, Circuit Justice..... PP veesves...Washington, D. C.
Hon. WILLIAM L. PUTNAM, Circuit Judge.......covvereoennns ...Portland, Me.

Hon. FREDERIC DODGE, Circuit Judge....

...Boston, Mass.

Hon. GEO. H. BINGHAM, Clircuit Judge....... .Concord, N. H.
Hon. CLARENCE HALE, District Judge, Maine.........cc.ccovvniiiniennas PPN Portland, Me.
Hon. JAS. M. MORTON, Jr., District Judge, Massachusetts.............. ...Boston, Mass.
Hon. EDGAR ALDRICH, District Judge, New Hampshire... ...Littleton, N, H.
Hon. ARTHUR L. BROWN, District Judge, Rhode Island................. Providence, R. I.
SECOND CIRCUIT
Hon. CHARLES E. HUGHES, Circuit Justice®............... vereessssss.Washington, D. C.
Hon. ALFRED C. COXE, Circuit JUdge......oiviveiiveiereiriracnsrocenronnans New York, N. Y.
Hon. HENRY G. WARD, Circuit Judge........ ...New York, N. Y.
Hon. HENRY WADE ROGERS, Circuit Judge........... .. ..New Haven, Conn.
Hon. EDWIN S. THOMAS, District Judge, Connecticut............. .New Haven, Conn.
Hon. THOMAS I. CHATFIELD, District Judge, E. D. New York.......... Brooklyn, N. Y.
Hon. VAN VECHTEN VEEDER, District Judge, E. D. New York........ .Brooklyn, N. Y,
Hon. GEORGE W. RAY, District Judge, N. D. New YorK............ ...Norwich, N. Y.
Hon. CHARLES M. HOUGH, District Judge, S. D. New York. N. Y.
Hon. LEARNED HAND, District Judge, S. D. New York..... N. Y.
Hon. JULIUS M. MAYER, District Judge, S. D. New York .............. N. Y.
Hon. AUGUSTUS N. HAND, District Judge, S. D. New York. . N. Y.
Hon. JOHN R. HAZEL, District Judge, W. D. New York....... . N. Y.
Hon. HARLAND B. HOWE, District Judge, Vermont............ vevee..St. Johnsbury, Vt.

THIRD CIRCUIT

Hon. MAHLON PITNEY, Circuit Justice........ veserees Cereenennas veeess.. Washington, D. C.
Hon. JOSEPH BUFFINGTON, Circuit Judge...c.cveimereriiriiiiciarnnnnnsens Pittsburg, Pa.
Hon. JOHN B. McPHERSON, Circuit Judge. veee.....Philadelphia, Pa.
Hon. VICTOR B. WOOLLEY, Circuit Judge........covieiiioiivrinnaannnss Wilmington, Del.
Hon. EDWARD G. BRADFORD, District Judge, Delaware........ccooevenens Wilmington, Del.
Hon. JOHN RELLSTAB, District Judge, New Jersey...... RN Trenton, N. J.
Hon. THOS. G. HAIGHT, District Judge, New Jersey....... ...Jersey City, N. J.
Hon. J. WARREN DAVIS, District Judge, New Jersey .....c...coovvueeiianies Trenton, N. J.
Hon. J. WHITAKER THOMPSON, District Judge, E. D. Pennsylvania...Philadelphia, Pa.
Hon. OLIVER B. DICKINSON, District Judge, E. D. Pennsylvania...... Philadelphia, Pa.
Hon. CHAS. B. WITMER, District Judge, M. D. Pennsylvania............... Sunbury, Pa,
Hon. CHARLES P. ORR, District Judge, W. D. Pennsylvania........... .Pittsburg, Pa.
Hon. W. H. SEWARD THOMSON, District Judge, W. D. Pennsylvania.. ....Pittsburg, Pa.

1 Resigned June 10, 1916.
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FOURTH CIRCUIT

Hon. EDWARD D. WHITE, Circuit Justice....oiovvenerninennns vesssns.. Washington, D. C.
Hon. JETER C. PRITCHARD, Circuit Judge.......ovvoviiiieionennnnnenn, Asheville, N. C.
Hon. MARTIN A. KNAPP, Circuit Judge.....c.coeiiviriiiiinirencnnannes ‘Washington, D. C.
Hon. CHAS. A. WOODS, Circuit Judge.....covviriiiiiiiienenroniaacens PPN Marion, S. C.
Hon. JOHN C. ROSE, District Judge, Maryland ..................... veeerse..Baltimore, Md.
Hon. HENRY G. CONNOR, District Judge, E. D. North Carolina.............. Wilson, N. C.
Hon. JAMES E. BOYD, District Judge, W. D. North Carolina..... .Greensboro, N. C.
Hon, HENRY A, MIDDLETON SMITH, District Judge, E. D. S. C.....Charleston, S. C.
Hon. JOSEPH T. JOHNSON, District Judge, W. D. 8. C. ....... . Greenville, S. C.
Hon. EDMUND WADDILL, Jr., District Judge, E. D. Virginia.... ...Richmond, Va.
Hon, HENRY CLAY McDOWELL, District Judge, W. D. Virginia........Lynchburg, Va.
Hon., ALSTON G. DAYTON, District Judge, N. D. West Virginia........ Philippi, W. Va.
Hon. BENJAMIN F. KELLER, Distriet Judge, S. D. West Virginia....Charleston, W, Va.

FIFTH CIRCUIT

Hon. LOUIS D. BRANDEIS, Circuit Justice?....coeeveiniiiiiiiiiiienannes Washington, D. C.
Hon., DON A. PARDEE, Circuit Judge......cooeiiuiiiiriienninrarierieriecennenss Atlanta, Ga.
Hon. A. P. McCORMICK, Circuit Judge,......oovviiiiiieneeienieneciatanenaenass Waco, 'Tex.
Hon. RICHARD W. WALKER, Circuit Judge...........cocovveeneen ..Huntsville, Ala.

Hon. HENRY D. CLAYTON, District Judge, N. and M. D. Alabama....Montgomery, Ala.
Hon. WM. I. GRUBB, District Judge, N. D. Alabama............eoneeainaan Birmingham, Ala.
Hon. HARRY T. TOULMIN, District Judge, S. D. Alabama..........couoenen Mobile, Ala.
Hon. WM. B. SHEPPARD, District Judge, N. D. Florida..... ..Pensacola, Fla.
Hon. RHYDON M. CALL, District Judge, 8. D. Florida........... .Jacksonville, Fla.
Hon, WILLIAM T. NEWMAN, District Judge, N. D. Georgia................ Atlanta, Ga.
Hon. EMORY SPEER, District Judge, S. D. Georgia......cocoiviviirivaiiciianan, Macon, Ga.
Hon, WM. WALLACE LAMBDIN, District Judge, S. D. Georgia............ Savannah, Ga.
Hon. RUFUS E. FOSTER, District Judge, BE. D. Louisiana..... ...New Orleans, La.

..Shreveport, La.

Hon. ALECK BOARMAN, District Judge, W. D. Louisiana. ..
.Kosciusko, Miss.

Hon. HENRY C. NILES, District Judge, N. and S. D. Mississippl..

Hon. GORDON RUSSELL, District Judge, E. D. Texas.......... ..Sherman, Tex.
Hon. EDWARD R. MEEK, District Judge, N. D. TeXas....ccocierriiicincancanes Dallas, Tex.
Hon. WALLER T. BURNS, District Judge, S. D. TeXas.....cievvrveccensss ..Houston, Tex.
Hon. THOMAS 8. MAXEY, District Judge, W. D. Texas..... teeueseneesins ...Austin, Tex.

SIXTH CIRCUIT

Hon. WILLIAM R. DAY, Circuit Justice...........ccoeveee. teserensess.. Washington, D. C.
Hon. JOHN W. WARRINGTON, Circuit Judge.....cccoviiiiiriiennrncannnsns Cincinnati, Ohlio.
Hon. LOYAL E. KNAPPEN, Circuit Judge..... ...Grand Rapids, Mich,
Hon. ARTHUR C. DENISON, Circuit Judge....... Grand Rapids, Mich.
Hon. ANDREW M. J. COCHRAN, District Judge, E. D. Kentucky.......... Maysville, Ky.
Hon, WALTER EVANS, District Judge, W. D. Kentucky.................. Louisville, Ky.

Hon. ARTHUR J. TUTTLE, District Judge, E. D. Michigan Detroit, Mich,
Hon. CLARENCE W. SESSIONS, District Judge, W. D. Michigan....Grand Rapids, Mich.
Hon. JOHN M. KILLITS, District Judge, N. D. Ohio........ fereerieaareeeaaan, Toledo, Ohio.
Hon. JOHN H. CLARKE, District Judge, N. D. Ohio...... .Cleveland, Ohio.
Hon. JOHN E. SATER, District Judge, S. D. Ohio........... ...Coluinbus, Ohijo.
Hon. HOWARD C. HOLLISTER, District Judge, S. D. Ohio.............. Cincinnati, Ohio.
Hon. EDWARD T. SANFORD, District Judge, E. and M. D. Tennessee..Knoxville, Tenn.
Hon. JOHN E. McCALL, District Judge, W. D. Tennesse€................Memphis, Tenn.

SEVENTH CIRCUIT

Hon. JAMES CLARK McREYNOLDS, Circuit Justice ......... vevesre..Washington, D. C.
Hon. FRANCIS E. BAKER, Circuit Judge.....occvviiinriirairnvnecarneeaanans (Goshen, Ind.
Hon. CHRISTIAN C. KOHLSAAT, Circuit Judge... .Chicago, Ill.
Hon. JULIAN W. MACK, Circuit Judge.....coonveiennnnnn Ceriiieaa. veviseeas..Chicago, IIL

2 Appointed June 1, 1916,



Hon.
Hon,
Hon.
Hon.
Houn.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.

Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon,
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.

Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.
Hon.

JUDGES OF THE COURTS vii

SAMUEL ALSCHULER, Circuit Judge .. vervesssaneesss Chicago, TIL

EVAN A. EVANS, Circuit Judge ................ .....Baraboo, Wis.
KENESAW M. LANDIS, District Judge, N. D. Illinois... PPN Chicago, Il

GEORGE A. CARPENTER, District Judge, N. D. Iliinois. PP Chicago, Ill.
FRANCIS M. WRIGHT, District Judge, E. D. Illinols......ccceenvnnennt Urbana, IlL
J. OTIS HUMPHREY, District Judge, 8. D. Iilinois..... ..Spriogfield, Il
ALBERT B. ANDERSON, District Judge, Indiana............ .Indianapolis, Ind.
FERDINAND A. GEIGER, District Judge, E. .D. Wisconsin ..Milwaukee, Wis.
ARTHUR L. SANBORN, District Judge, W. D. Wisconsin............>Madison, Wis.

EIGHTH CIRCUIT

WILLIS VAN DEVANTER, Circuft Justice......... vessaraserennenen Washington, D. C.
WALTER H. SANBORN, Circuit Judge........... feeeerraneeaaee St. Paul, Minn.
WILLIAM C. HOOK, Circuit Judge............... .Leavenworth, Kan.
ELMER B. ADAMS, Circuit Judge....ccoviruieriinireerenerocsnnsnecnens St. Louis, Mo.
WALTER I. SMITH, Circuit Judge.......cccoviviiiaiiiaiee Council Bluffs, Iowa.
JOHN E. CARLAND, Circuit Judge........c.oeovvnininen. cenreenenens Washington, D. C.
JACOB TRIEBER, District Judge, E. D. Arkansas......... ereaens Little Rock, Ark.
F. A. YOUMANS, District Judge, W. D. Arkansas ...Ft. Smith, Ark.
ROBERT E. LEWIS, District Judge, Colorado.......... ....Denver, Colo.
HENRY THOMAS REED, District Judge, N. D. Iowa. ....Cresco, Iowa."

MARTIN J. WADE, District Judge, S. D. Iowa... ..Jowa City, Iowa.
JOHN C. POLLOCK, District Judge, Kansas........ Kansas City, Kan.
PAGE MORRIS, District Judge, Minnesota......ccoviiiiiannniniienennn Duluth, Minn.
WILBUR F. BOOTH, District Judge, Minnesota.......... .Minneapolis, Mion.
DAVID -P. DYER, District Judge, E. D, Missouri....o.oucnieiinceenene St. Louis, Mo.
ARBA S. VAN VALKENBURGH, District Judge, W. D. Missouri...Kansas City, Mo.
THOMAS C. MUNGER, District Judge, Nebraska......c.oeovvavnieenns Lincoln, Neb.
JOSEPH W, WOODROUGH, District Judge, Nebraska ....ccovvesceinnenens Omaha, Neb.
WM. H. POPE, District Judge, New Mexico............. .Santa Fé, N. M.
CHARLES F. AMIDON, District Judge, North Dakota... .es...Fargo, N. D.
RALPH E. CAMPBELL, District Judge, E. D. Oklahoma.....cc.......Muskogee, Okl
JOHN H. COTTERAL, District Judge, W. D. Oklahoma. preeannaes Guthrie, Okl
JAMES D. ELLIOTT, District Judge, South Dakota.... ....Stoux Falls, S. D.
TILLMAN D. JOHNSON, District Judge, Utah ,.......covieveneirnceness Ogden, Utah
JOHN A. RINER, District Judge, Wyoming......... vessesmessssrsesss.Cheyenne, Wyo.
v
NINTH CIRCUIT
JOSEPH McKENNA, Circuit Justice... .. tevsrossencsnsess.. Washington, D. C.
WILLIAM B. GILBERT, Circuit Judge. cereeresacenians Portland, Or.
ERSKINE M. ROSS, Circuit Judge....... Los Angeles, Cal.
WM. W. MORROW, Circuit Judge.. bereeaas San Francisco, Cal.
WM. H. HUNT, Circuit Judge......ocovieviiniinninnnnns ..Washington, D. C.
WM. H. SAWTELLE, District Judge, Arizona......... ...Tucson, Ariz.
BENJ. F. BLEDSOE, District Judge, S8. D. California. .. ...Los Angeles, Cal.
OSCAR A. TRIPPET, District Judge, S. D. California.............. Los Angeles, Cal.

WM. C. VAN FLEET, District Judge, N. D. California....
MAURICE T. DOOLING, District Judge, N. D. California..

..San Francisco, Cal.
..San Francisco, Cal.

FRANK 8. DIETRICH, District Judge, Idaho.......... Ceresesereniiiesaas Boise, Idaho.
GEO. M. BOURQUIN, District Judge, Montana ..... Ceenees Butte, AMont.
EDWARD 8. FARRINGTON, District Judge, Nevada.....,.........Carron City, Nev.
CHARLES E. WOLVERTON, District Judge, Oregon. bevseneneiaans Portland, Or,
ROBERT S. BEAN, District Judge, Oregon.................. eseesesesss..Portland, Or.
FRANK H. RUDKIN, District Judge, E. D. Washington..... vreeeres . Spokane, Wash,

EDWARD E. CUSHMAN, District Judge, W. D. Washington.. ...Seattle, Wash,
JEREMIAH NETERER, District Judge, W, D. Washington..........Seattle, Wash.
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CASES

ARGUED AND DETERMINED

IN THE

UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURTS OF APPEALS
AND THE DISTRICT COURTS

B. F. STURTEVANT CO. v. CHAMPION FIBRE CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. April 12, 1916.)
No. 2712,

1. SALES &445(4)—BREACH OF WARRANTY—SUFFICIENCY OF EVIDENCE.

In an action on a written warranty of a draft-inducing apparatus, evi-
dence as to the tests of the apparatus held not to show that its failure to
produce the guaranteed power was due to the insufficient supply of coal,
instead of the insufficient draft, so conclusively as to require a directed
verdict for defendant. .
Mé}?d.lNote.—For other cases, see Sales, Cent. Dig. § 1306; Dec. Dig. &=

4).

2. SALES @=0445(4)—BREACH OF WARRANTY—DEFENSES—MISREPRESENTATION BY
BUYER.

The inaccuracy of information furnished to a seller, who installed a
draft-inducing apparatus, does not authorize a directed verdict for it in
an action on the warranty, where its manager admitted that it did not pre-
vent making an gpparatus of the warranted power.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Sales, Cent. Dig. § 1306; Dec. Dig.
&=4454).]

8. SALES ¢=>442(3)—BREACH OF WARRANTY—MEASURE OF DAMAGES.

The measure of damages applicable to actions for fraud in inducing
sales of personal property, which allows recovery of the difference between
the purchase price and the actual value, does not apply to an action for
breach of an express warranty.

[Bd. Note—For other cases, see Sales, Cent. Dig. § 1286; Dec. Dig.
&=442(3).] ’

4. APPEAL AND ERROR @&==882(13)—PRESENTING QUESTIONS BELOW—INSTRUC-
TIONS—MEASURE OF DAMAGES.

In an action for the breach of an express warranty of a draft-inducing
apparatus, where defendant offered no evidence as to the cost of making
the apparatus conform to the warranty, and objected to evidence on that
issue offered by plaintiff, which evidence showed that such cost would
exceed the damages allowed defendant by the jury, and defendant’s only
theory as to the measure of damages was the erroneous one that it was
the difference between the purchase price and the actual value,-defendant
cannot complain that the court instructed the jury that the measure of

@=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexas
232 F.—1
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damages was the difference between the value if it had been as warranted
and the actual value.

[Ed. Note.—¥For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. § 3603;
Dec. Dig. &=882(13).]

5. EVIDENCE €&=543(4)—OPINION EVIDENCE—COMPETENCY OF IXPERT—VALUE
OF MACHINERY.

In an action for the breach of an express warranty of a draft-inducing
apparatus, a ‘consulting engineer of education and experience, who had
bought 16 induced-draft apparatuses, including one of the type made by
defendant, one of which he bought within 60 days of the trial, and the
others within one year of the purchase by plaintiff, is competent to testify
as to the actual value of the apparatus, and as to its value if it had been
as warranted, though he had not bought an apparatus with that particu-
lar type of engine, and did not know how many pounds of structural steel
were in it, nor what parts were to be put up by defendant and what_ by
plaintiff, which facts were stated in the contract. :

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Evidence, Cent. Dig. § 2358; Dec. Dig.
&=543(4).]

6. SALES €=442(10)—BREACH OF WARRANTY—DAMAGES—INTEREST.

Interest does not as a matter of law follow a claim for unliquidated
damages for breach of warranty of machinery to be installed by defendant.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Sales, Cent. Dig. § 1293; Dec. Dig. &=
442(10).]

7. ABPEAL AND ERROR &=1140(5)—DIsSPOSITION OF CASE—MODIFICATION OF
JUDGMENT—REMISSION OF INTEREST.

Where the only evidence as to the damages under the measure submitted
by the court fixed it at about $5,000, and the verdict was for an amount
which would be $5,005, with interest to the time the jury were instructed
to allow interest on defendant’s counterciaim, it was reasonably clear that
the verdict was for that amount and interest, and plaintiff, who was not
entitled to interest, can remit the amount of it to avoid a reversal of the
judgment. :

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. § 4467;
Dec. Dig. €=1140(5).]

8. ApPPEAL AND ERROR ¢&=1052(5)—HARMLESS ERROR—ADMISSION OF EVIDENCE
—CURE BY VERDICT.

Error, if any, in admitting, in an action for breach of warranty, evidence
as to the breakdowns of the draft-inducing apparatus, which evidence was
restricted by the court to how it affected the power of the apparatus, and
was not referred to in the charge, except in connection with claims for
damages which were not allowed by the jury, was not so prejudicial as to
require a reversal, especially where the verdict was for the amount es-
tablished by the only evidence on the claim for damages allowed by the
jury.

[Ed. Note-—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. § 4175;
Dec. Dig. €&1052(5).]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Southern
District of Ohio; John E. Sater, Judge. :

Action by the Champion Fibre Company against the B. F. Sturtevant
Company to recover damages for breach of warranty. Judgment for
plaintiff, and defendant brings error. Reversed, and new trial or-
dered, unless the plaintiff shall remit a portion of the judgment.

Cobb, Howard & Bailey and Henry L. Rockel, all of Cincinnati,
Ohio, for plaintiff in error.

C. D. Robertson and C. B. Matthews, both of Cincinnati, Ohio, for
defendant in error.

@&=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER iu all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Before KNAPPEN and DENISON, Circuit Judges, and KILLITS,
District Judge.

KNAPPEN, Circuit Judge. Plaintiff below (defendant in error
here) sued for alleged breach of guaranty in a contract for installa-
tion of certain mechanical apparatus. There was trial by jury, result-
ing in verdict for plaintiff and judgment thereon.

Plaintiff was engaged, at Canton, N. C., in manufacturing wood
pulp and paper. Its plant contained 20 boilers, each of 316 rated H.
P., thus aggregating 6,320 B. H. P. The boilers were arranged in two
series of 10 each, each furnace having V-shaped grates whose pro-
jected area was 8 feet by 7 feet, fed by automatic stokers. To aid
in producing power and to save fuel, the hot gases from the furnace
passed through "economizers (of which there were four). Each econ-
omizer consisted of an inclosure containing a series of feed water
pipes, arranged in sections, through which inclosure the hot gases
from the furnaces passed, thereby considerably heating the water
before it entered the boilers. These economizers had been supplied,
but not installed, by defendant. The plant had but one stack. An
enlargement of the plant requiring increased power and thus increased
draft, plaintiff contracted with defendant for delivery and installa-
tion, at a price of $9,995, of a specified induced-draft apparatus, to
work in connection with plaintiff’s boilers, grates, stokers, and econ-
omizers. This draft-inducing apparatus consisted of four engines of
specified type and dimensions, having a normal speed of 400 R. -P.
M., each engine operating a fan of given type and size for delivering
~ the gases to and operating in connection with the stack, there being
one upper fan and one lower fan for each of the two series of fur-
naces and boilers. ‘The guaranty was in this language:

“We guarantee this apparatus under the above working conditions, to furnish

sufficient draft to develop 10,000 B. H. P,, it being understood that 1 B. H. P.
will require not over 41 pounds of coal.”

The draft-inducing apparatus was installed in June, 1909, before
the enlargement of the plant. About October, 1910 (after the plant
was enlarged), plaintiff, believing that the guaranteed 10,000 B. H.
P. was not furnished, made a test of the plant, at which defendant
was not represented. On November 30th and December 1st following,
a two days’ test was had, at which defendant was represented by a
mechanical expert; at this test less than 8,000 H. P. seems to have
been developed. Defendant did not accept this as a convincing test,
and on July 1, 1911, a ten-hour test was had, at which defendant
was represented by another mechanical expert. ® It is undisputed that
at this last test only about 7,800 B. H. P. was developed.

Upon the trial plaintiff gave evidence regarding the first test, and
both parties presented testimony as to the second and third tests. The
first two tests seem not to have been regarded by either party as en-
tirely adequate, and the conflict centered generally upon the conclu-
siveness of the test of July 1, 1911, the ultimate meritorious question
being reduced to this: Whether defendant furnished draft enough
to burn coal enough to produce the required power, or whether the
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failure to produce more power was due to the delivery of insufficient
coal upon the furnace grates. Plaintiff insisted that it delivered upon
the grates all or substantially all the coal the draft supplied. would
burn; defendant insisted that it furnished more than enough draft
to consume the coal required to develop the 10,000 B. H. P.

At the conclusion of the testimony defendant moved for directed
verdict in its favor, which was denied, and the question of fact whether
the guaranty was fulfilled was submitted to the jury, with instruc-
tions that the measure of plaintiff’s general damages (in case of breach
of the guaranty) was the difference between what the induced-draft
apparatus was worth as actually delivered and what it would have been
worth if as guaranteed. Such difference was found by the jury to be
$6,080, and the general verdict was for this amount less an established
counterclaim. Judgment was entered for the differen¢e between these
sums, after correction by the addition of interest upon the counter-
claim. Plaintiff’s claims for special damages for loss of power in
the engines and for fuel and heat loss were submitted to the jury, but
wholly disallowed.

[1] 1. The most prominent ground of the miotion to direct ver- °
dict was that the evidence did not reasonably tend to show that the
failure to develop the required boiler horse power was due to the
insufficiency of the induced-draft apparatus. Disregarding the first
two tests, if it be assumed that the test of July, 1911, was suitable for
developing the maximum capacity of the plant, the fact that the guar-
anteed 10,000 B. H. P. was not developed has a tendency to show the
ineffectiveness of the apparatus. There was express and direct tes-
timony that the test was suitable for developing the maximum capacity,
and that, although the fans were run at a speed in excess of 400 R.
P. M., they produced insufficient suction, due to the obstruction to
the draft by the economizers, and loss in draft in the flues through
collision of the gases owing to alleged improper pitch of the fans.
True, there was testimony on defendant’s part that the test in ques-
tion was insufficient; that a satisfactory test would require a much
fonger preparation than was had; and that the conditions under which
the test was made were unfavorable to accuracy in several respects,
including failure to “blank” the valves of certain pipes leading into
the boilers, an inaccurate meter, an improper pump, and exposure to
the weather of steam pipes leading from the boilers to the engines
operating the fans. But these criticisms of the conditions surround-
ing the test presented only questions of fact for the jury, in view not
only of the express testimony by experts that the conditions were
suitable to develop maximum capacity, and that the exposure of the
steam pipes to the weather (the out-door temperature being 100 de-
grees) caused a drop in pressure of no more than 4 to 6 pounds be-
tween the boilers and the fan engines, but also of testimony that de-
fendant’s expert approved everything that was done. :

Defendant denies that the “collision of gases” impaired the draft,
and insists, moreover, that its contention that the failure to develop
the required power was due to the feeding of an insufficient amount
of coal is shown to a demonstration by undisputed tests, and that the
verdict is thus opposed to established physical facts. The amount of



8. F. STORTEVANT CO. V. CHAMPION FIBRE CO. B

coal actually burned during the test was between 21 and 23 pounds
per square foot of grate surface per hour, or about 3'/10 pounds per
boiler horse power developed. There was testimony on defendant’s
part that the carbon dioxide test of the flue gases showed that there
was furnished about 25 pounds of air per pound of coal burned, and
that in practice 15 pounds of air per pound of coal is enough; that
the amount of air so furnished would have burned 30 pounds or more
of coal per square foot, producing more than 10,000 B. H. P., the
amount keeping within the maximum of coal consumption recognized
by the guaranty; that the draft furnished (about '®/100 of an inch)
was sufficient to burn this required amount of coal; that the burning
of an insufficient amount of coal was shown by the small percentage
" of coal in the ash, as well as by the alleged fact that during the test
the coal was completely burned out by the time it reached seven-eighths
or less of the full travel of the grates; and that the automatic stokers
employed were incapable, without coarser gearing, of supplying more
coal than actually delivered to the grates. But the testimony that the
coal was consumed before completing its travel was disputed; there
was testimony tending to show that the carbon dioxide test indicated
no greater excess of air than accorded with actual everyday practice,
made necessary to prevent loss of heat energy through the formation
of carbon monoxide; that the ®/100 inches of draft produced was not
ordinarily enough to burn 30 pounds of coal per square foot of “fair
grade of coal”’—that at least ?2/100 inches was required to produce
the rated boiler horse power (6,320), and more in proportion to meet
the “overload”—it appearing that defendant’s published table of the
“relation of draft and rate of combustion” gave 2°/100 inches of fur-
nace draft as “required to burn 22 pounds of dry coal per hour per
square foot of grate,” and that the feeding of the coal, which was
shovelled by hand into the magazines (instead of being automatically
delivered from the bunkers), was accelerated by hand-cranking. It
also appeared that defendant’s expert made no claim during the test
of an insufficient feeding of coal. And while one or more of plain-
tiff’s witnesses admitted that there was draft sufficient to have burned
some more coal than was burned, the testimony taken together was
sufficient to support a finding that the draft was insufficient to burn coal
enough to produce the guaranteed horse power; and upon the motion
to direct verdict, the testimony must be viewed most favorably to
plaintiff. ’ .

The proposition that plaintiff failed to show that its boiler system
produced 6,320 B. H. P. before the draft-inducing apparatus was in-
stalled needs no special consideration. Some evidence of the fact is
found in the undisputed testimony that the accepted rate of boiler horse
power is based upon an allowance of one horse power for each square
foot of heating surface in the boiler, and defendant presumably so
understood in making its guaranty.

. [2] The alleged inaccuracy of certain information as to the exist-
ing draft, furnished by plaintiff, did not justify a direction of verdict
for defendant, especially in view of the admission of defendant’s man-
ager that it did not influence the making of a plant of the required
power.
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The motion for directed verdict was properly denied.

[3,4] 2. Defendant contends that the measure of plaintiff’s gen-
eral damages for breach of the guaranty is not as the jury was in-
structed, viz.: The difference between the value of the machinery as
delivered and its value if as warranted, but the difference between the
purchase price and the actual value. The latter is the measure or-
dinarily applied in actions for fraud and deceit in inducing sales of
personal property.! »

The measure adopted by the trial court is accepted by the leading
text-writers as generally applied in actions by the vendee of personal
property which has been paid for in full (as is the case here) for breach
of an express warranty of capacity or quality. 3 Sutherland on Dam-
ages (3d Ed.) § 670; 2 Mechem on Sales, § 1817; Williston on Sales,
§ 613; Benjamin on Sales (7th Ed.) p. 962: The rule stated is sup-
ported by numerous decisions of state courts generally.

The Supreme Court of the United States has not, so far as we have
found, in terms either adopted or rejected the rule as applied in the
instant case. In several cases, however, the measure applied “as the
only one accomplishing full and exact justice to both parties” has been
held to be “the reasonable cost of altering the construction and setting
of the machinery so as to make it conform to the contract.” Benjamin
v. Hillard, 23 How. 149, 167, 16 L. Ed. 518; Marsh v. McPherson,
105 U. S. 709, 717, 718, 26 L. Ed. 1139; Stillwell & Bierce Mfg. Co.
v. Phelps, 130 U. S. 520, 526,527, 9 Sup. Ct. 601, 32 L. Ed. 1035;
Pullman Car Co. v. Metropolitan Ry. Co., 157 U. S. 94, 111, 15 Sup.
Ct. 503, 39 L. Ed. 632.

In the United States Courts of Appeals the rule is not uniform.
For example: In the Circuit Courts of Appeals of the Fifth, Seventh,
Eighth, and Ninth Circuits the measure has been held to be the dif-
ference between the value as delivered and the value as warranted.?

On the other hand, in the Circuit Court of Appeals for the First
Circuit the applicable measure has been held to be the actual cost of
supplying the defects. Nashua Iron & Steel Co. v. Brush, 91 Fed.
213, 215, 33 C. C. A. 456. In that case, however, there was no express
warranty, and the rule adopted was not in terms declared exclusive.
We have not attempted a complete examination of the decisions in the
various circuits. In this court the question has not been definitely
passed-upon. The nearest approach is in Thomas China Co. v. Ray-

1 Smith v. Bolles, 132 U. S. 125, 10 Sup. Ct. 39, 33 L. Ed. 279; Sigafus v.
Porter, 179 U. S. 116, 21 Sup. Ct. 34, 45 L. Ed. 113; Simon v. Goodyear Co.
(C. C. A. 6th Cir.) 105 Fed. 573, 579, 44 C. C. A. 612, 52 L. R. A. 745; Hindman
v. Bank (C. C. A. 6th Cir)) 112 Fed. 931, 50 C. C. A. 623, 57 L. R. A. 108;
Chesbrough v. Woodworth (C. C. A. 6th Cir.) 195 Fed. 875, 885, 116 C. C. A. 465.

2 English v. Spokane Commission Co. (C. C. A. Uth Cir.) 57 Fed. 451, 456, 6
C. C. A. 416; McDonald v. Kansas City Bolt & Nut Co. (C. C. A. 8th Cir.) 149
Fed. 3C0, 365, 79 C. C. A. 298, 8 .. R. A. (N. 8.) 1110; Crane Co. v. Columbus
Construction Co. (C. C. A. 7th Cir.) 73 Fed. 984, 991, 20 C. C. A. 233; The
Nimrod (D. C.) 141 Fed. 215, 217 and (C. C. A. 5th Cir.) 141 Fed. 834, 72 C. C.
A. 300 (but see Vulcan Iron Works v. Roquemore [C. C. A. 5th Cir.] 175 Fed.
11, 16, 99 C. C. A. 77). See, also, Boiler & Tank Co. v. Columbus Mach. Co. (C.
C. A. 3d Cir.)) 55 Fed. 451, 453, 5 C. C. A. 190; Cleveland Co. v. Buchapan &
Sons (C. C. A. 24 Cir.) 120 Fed. 906, 910, 911, 57 C. C. A. 498,
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mond Co., 135 Fed. 25, 28, 67 C. C. A. 629, where a recovery by the
vendee of the expense incurred in putting the machinery in condition
called for by the contract (and for which amount only it sued) was
approved.

We do not think the record such as to require us to decide whether
the rule adopted by the District Court is generally applicable to suits
by a vendee for breach of a guaranty of quality or capacity of ma-
chinery. There was no testimony that the alleged defective apparatus
could be readily made good, as was the case in Pullman Car Co. v.
Metropolitan Ry. Co., supra. On the contrary, one of plaintiff’s wit-
nesses testified that the plant could be changed so as to produce 10,-
000 H. P. only by the installation of new equipment, and (under de-
fendant’s objection of irrelevancy) that the cost thereof would be $13,-
000. Later, another of plaintiff’s witnesses testified that nothing could
be done with the apparatus to make it accomplish the guaranteed re-
sult and (under defendant’s objection) an offer to show that it would
cost “with that boiler plant” $13,000 to produce 10,000 H. P. was re-
jected.

There was no other testimgny as to the cost of making the apparatus
conform to the guaranty, except that defendant, while offering no
proof of such cost, gave testimony that no changes in the apparatus
were necessary, and that changes not connected therewith (as in the
stoker feed) were alone needed to develop the guaranteed capacity. The
court called on defendant’s counsel to suggest some rule of damages
other than the one announced on the trial and afterwards applied in
the charge. Defendant contended for no rule except that embodied in
its request and urged here, viz.: The difference between the purchase
price and the actual value. In this court, again, the latter is the only
rule advocated by defendant, its brief admitting that the rule applied
below is the “usual rule,” although it is said not to be applicable to con-
ditions presented here. The rule applicable to deceit cases manifestly
does not apply to actions for breach of express warranty. In the form-
er class of cases, as said in Smith v. Bolles, supra, “what the plaintiff
might have gained is not the question; but what he had lost by be-
ing deceived into the purchase.” In the latter class of cases the ven-
dee is entitled to the benefit of a profitable contract. “The amount that
would have been received, if the contract had been kept, is the measure
of damages if the contract is broken.” ® Full compensation to the in-
jured vendee is what is aimed at. It is enough to hold, as we do, that
defendant’s requested measure of damages was properly rejected, and
that as the case stood defendant is not in position to complain of the
measure adopted.

[6] The objection to the competency of plaintiff’s sole witness as
to the respective values of the apparatus as furnished and as warranted
is not well taken. The witness was a consulting engineer of education
and experience; he had bought 16 induced-draft apparatus, including
one or more of the Sturtevant type. " He had bought one outfit within
60 days of the trial below, and had bought others in 1909. He was

s Expression in Alder v. Keightly, 15 M. & W, 117, quoted in Benjamin v.
Hillard, supra. See, also, Benjamin on Sales (7th Ed.) p. 962,
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not rendered incompetent to testify from the fact that he had never
bought a Sturtevant outfit with a compound engine, nor from the fact
that he did not know exactly how many pounds of structural steel there
were in the apparatus in question, nor precisely what parts of the
structure were to be put up by defendant and what parts by plaintiff.
He had general knowledge and experience on the subject; the con-
tract provided generally what was to be furnished by each of the par-
ties, and the testimony was not subject to the objection that it was
based upon mere conjecture. He had seen the figures, and “that is
all any engineer goes by.”

[6] 3. The jury found the difference between the value of the ap-
paratus as delivered and its value if as represented, to be $6,080. De-
fendant assails this verdict as excessive. The only testimony upon
the subject by way of definite figures gives the value as delivered as
about $10,000, and if as represented about $15,000, a difference of
about $5,000. The verdict is thus excessive unless it may be thought
properly to include either plaintiff’s expense incurred in making the
test of the apparatus or interest upon the damages measured by the
difference in value stated. While the court submitted the question of
expenses of the test, we think the language of the jury’s verdict neg-
atives its inclusion. The damages being unliquidated interest did not
follow as matter of law. Illinois Surety Co. v. United States (C. C.
A. 4th Cir.) 215 Fed. 334, 340, 131 C. C. A. 476; Stephens v. Phocnix
Bridge Co. (C. C. A. 2d Cir.) 139 Fed. 248, 250, 71 C. C. A. 374. The
question of interest was not submitted to the jury’s discretion as part
of the damages, and the natural inference is that the jury supposed
interest followed as matter of law, and so improperly included it.

[7] The question is whether, as defendant contends, the judgment
should be-reversed on this account, or whether the case is a proper one
for allowing plaintiff to remit. The test is whether it is reasonably
clear what the jury intended to find as the measure of plaintiff’s
damages without interest. If this is clear, the case is a proper one for
allowing remittitur (in case no other reversible error is found); other-
wise not. See decisions of this court cited in the margin.*

We think it apparent that the award was intended to be $5,000 (or
possibly $5,005), as the difference between the purchase price of the
apparatus and its value if as represented, plus interest thereon. There
was no testimony of value except as just stated, and the jury presum-
ably found accordingly. $1,080 is 3 years 7 months and 6 days’ in-
terest at 6 per cent. on $5,000, and $1,075 is exactly 3 years and 7
months’ interest on $5,000. The undisputed testimony is that the en-
largement of plaintiff’s plant was completed in May or June, 1910.
The trial below occurred in February, 1914. The court instructed the
jury to allow interest on defendant’s counterclaim to February 3,
1914. From July 1, 1910, to February 3, 1914, is 3 years 7 months and
2 days. We have no reasonable doubt that the jury intended to find

¢ Huebel & Co. v. Leaper, 18S Fed. 769, 774, 110 C. C. A. 475; Mosby v.
United States, 194 Fed. 346, 851,116 C. C. A. 74; N. Y. C. & St. L. R. R. Co. v.
Niebel, 214 I'ed. 952, 957, 131 C. C. A. 248 ; Pennsylvania Co. v. Sheeley, 221
Fed. 901, 906, 137 C. C. A. 471; Chesbrough v. Woodworth, 195 Fed. 873, 116
C. C. A, 465; 1d., 221 Fed. 912, 916, 137 C. C. A. 482.
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the value without interest as either $5,000 or $5,005, and included the
balance for interest.

(8] 4. The trial court admitted, against defendant’s objection, cer-
tain testimony that the engines operating the fans had in their earlier
use more or less breakdowns calling for repairs, and that one of the
engines became completely demolished; also a photograph of one of
the engines in a brokendown condition ; also testimony that defendant’s
employ€ in charge of the installation of the fan system on the occasion
of a little breakdown, in answer to a question whether they “usually
gave that much trouble,” said that “under the conditions here” he
thought they would; and on another occasion that “he didn’t think
they would ever give satisfaction the way they was put up.”

Assuming, for thre purposes of this opinion (but without so deciding),
that none of this testimony was admissible, the question is—is it to
be presumed to have been so far prejudicial as to require reversal of
the judgment? The trial court seems to have had doubts of the com-
petency of the testimony under the pleadings, and expressed the view
that it should be “restricted to how it affected the power of the ap-
paratus.” The most definite theory on which it seems to have been
offered was that the breakages were due to vibration. Although de-
fendant moved at the close of the evidence to strike out considerable
testimony, the testimony now in question was not included in the mo-
tion. It was not referred to in the charge, except as the subject of
breakages was mentioned in connection with instructions on the sub-
ject of damages for expenses incurred by way of loss from operation,
and by reason of loss in fuel by keeping the by-passes open; both of
which elements of damage were rejected by the jury. Upon the ques-
tion of general damages found by the jury, measured by the differ-
ence between the value of the plant as furnished and what it would
have been if as warranted, the relevancy of the testimony in question
would have been quite remote, especially in view of the fact that the
only testimony as to such difference placed the value of the apparatus
as delivered at about $10,000, which was in fact $5 more than the con-
tract price. In view of the jury’s rejection of the two classes of special
damages mentioned, and its express confining of the damages to the
difference in value stated; the fact that when the test of July, 1911,
was made the fans were running at a speed exceeding that specified in
the contract, and that the court in commenting upon the evidence of
breakages before referred to stated that the “evidence shows that all
four of the fans and the engines were running at that time:” the fact
that the case practically turned at the last upon the question whether
the failure to produce the required power was due to insufficient fuel
or to lack of draft, we think a presumption that the testimony men-
tioned affected the verdict would unwarrantably discredit the jury’s
intelligence, and that the error in receiving the testimony (if there was
error) is not so vital as to justify reversal.

Questions of evidence and instructions relating to the two classes
of special damages rejected by the jury are of course out of the case.

There was no error in the charge on the subject of plaintiff’s al-
leged acceptance of the apparatus. Other errors are alleged, and while
we have not discussed all of them, we have considered all argued by
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defendant’s counsel, and find no prejudicial error except as respects
the excess in the verdict.

For this error the judgment will be reversed and a new trial or-
dered, unless the plaintiff bélow sees fit to remit from its judgment
$1,080 as of the date of the judgment. If within 30 days plaintiff
files here the certificate of the clerk of the district court that such re-
mittitur has been there filed, the judgment as so reduced will be af-
firmed. In either event, plaintiff in error will recover costs of this
court,

HIGHLAND PARK MFG. CO. v. STEELE et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit. March 4 1916)
No. 1276.

1. COURTS &=367T—FEDERAL COURTS—FOLLOWING DeoisioNs oF STATE COURTS
—RULES OF PROPERTY.

J. S. conveyed land to his son, J. A. 8., in trust as to one-half thereof
for a grandson, J. G. 8., for life, and at his death to transfer and convey
it to such persons as J. G. 8. might by his will direct, or in defauilt of
such will and direetion to his heirs at law in fee. J. A. S. died intestate,
and J. G. S. thereafter attempted to convey the land in fee. The Supreme
Court of South Carolina held that the trust created was executed as to
the life estate, but executory as to the remainder, because of the duty im-
posed on the trustee to convey the land to the remaindermen, and that
the rule in Shelley’s Case therefore did not apply. Held, that an exXecu-
tory trust was created, and the trustee was required to hold the legal
title for the purpose of effectuating the trust, and, on the death of J. G.
S. intestate, his heirs were entitled to a conveyance of the fee; the
question being balanced with doubt, so as to require a federal court to
follow the state court.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. §§ 958, 959; Dec.
Dig. €=367.] :

2, DEEDS ¢=128—RULE IN SHELLEY'S CASE—ISTATES OF DIFFERENT QUALITY.
While the rule in Shelley’s Case applies to equitable as well as legal
estates, it does so only when the life estate and the remainder are of the
same quality.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Deeds, Cent. Dig. §§ 413415, 419421,
427; Dec. Dig. ¢=128] .

3. REMOVAL OF CAUSES &=116—EFFECT—LEGAL OR EQUITABLE ACTIONS.
A proceeding for partition, when removed into a federal court, was
properly transferred to the equity calendar.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Removal of Causes, Cent. Dig. § 246;
Dec. Dig. ¢&=116.]

4, TRUSTS ¢&=»112—CONSTRUCTION—INTENTION.

Courts of equity, having sole cognizance of the interpretation and ad-
ministration of executory trusts, have regard to and effectuate the in-
tention of the maker of the instrument.

{EBd. Note.—For other cases, see Trusts, Cent. Dig. § 162; Dec. Dig.
e==112.]

5. CoURTS @&=367—UNITED STATES CoURTS—STATE Laws as RULES oF DEcI-
s1oN—RULES OF PROPERTY.

In determining whether the question as to the construction and opera-

tion of a deed is balanced with doubt, so as to require a federal court to

@&==For other cases see same toplic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes.
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lean to an agreement with the state court, the law of the state where
the land is situated is the question for determination, and not the law
as declared in other states or elsewhere. )

(I2d. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. §§ 958, 959; Dec.
Dig. ¢=367.)

6. Trrsts C=154—)LIERGER OF ESTATES.

A grantor conveyed land to J. A. S., in trust as to one-half thereof for
J. G. 8. for life, and at his death to transfer and convey it to such per-
sons as J. G. 8. might by will direct, or in default of such will or direc-
tion to his heirs at law. J. A. S. died intestate, and J. G. 8. subsequently
attempted to convey the land in fee, and thereafter died intestate. Held
that, while in South Carolina the rule of primogeniture still applies to the
title of a trustee, and the legal title therefore descended upon the death of
J. A, 8. to J. G. S, his oldest son, there was no merger of the legal and
equitable titles, since, when a valid trust has been created, the court en-
forces it according to the intention of the maker, and, if for any reascn
the trustee named cannot execute it, or if no trustee can be named, it
appoints a trustee, and so molds its decree that the rights of the beneficial
owners are preserved.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Trusts, Cent. Dig. § 199; Deec. Dig.
&>154.]

7. PARTITION @&=83—SUITS FOR PARTITION—ENFORCEMENT OF TRUSTS.

In a suit for partition by the heirs of J. G. 8. after his death without
exercising the power of appointment, the intention of the grantor could
be effectuated by treating the heirs as the owners in fee of a one-half un-
divided interest in the land; the legal title having descended upon ‘the
death of J. G. 8. to his oldest son, who was a party to the record and
would be bound by the decree.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Partition, Cent. Dig. §§ 228, 229; Dec.
Dig. ¢=83.]

8. REMAINDERS €&=10—DESTRUCTION OF REMAINDER BY LIFE TENANT'S CoON-
VEYANCE.

Assuming that the conveyance by J. G. 8. estopped him from afterwards
exercising the power of appointment, it did not destroy the rights of
the remaindermen, his heirs, or bring about any other result than a
failure to exercise the power of appointment would do; it being con-
ceded that the deed was not a valid execution of the power.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Remainders, Cent. Dig. § 7; Deec. Dig.
&=10.]

9. TENANCY IN COMMON &=43—CONVEYANCE BY ONE TENANT—IFFECT.
Though one tenant in common executes a deed to a stranger to the
title, describing and, purporting to convey the entire tract, the deed is
effectual to convey only his undivided interest, and does not in any
degree disturb the rights of the other tenants.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Tenancy in Common, Cent. Dig. §§
130-132, 136, 137; Dec. Dig. ¢=43.] .

10. PARTITION €=83, 85—BETTERMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS—ADJUSTMENT OF
EQUITIES.

If one tenant in common makes a deed purporting to convey the entire
tract, and the grantee, in the bona fide belief that he has acquired a good
and valid title to the entire tract, places improvements upon it, the
court, in directing partition, while preserving the rights of the other ten-
ants, will direct the partition to be so made as to conserve the equities
of all parties, both by providing for compensation for the betterments, and
if practicable, and without prejudicing the rights of other tenants, direct-
ing the allotment of the part upon which improvements have been made to
the tenant who made them.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Partition, Cent. Dig. §§ 228, 229, 236
245; Dee. Dig. &=83, 85.]

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER 1n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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11, PARTITION €=63 —RELIEF OBTAINABLE—RELIEF INVoLvVING OrHER LaAND
AND PARTIES.

Where land in which plaintiffs owned an undivided half interest in
remainder had been divided and subdivided, and conveyances had been
made between those holding fractional parts, under some of whom defend-
ant claimed, in a suit for partition of the only part of the tract owned in
common by plaintiffs and defendants, relief would not be granted, necessi-
tating the presence of other parties and involving collateral questions
foreign to those properly cognizable in such suit.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Partition, Cent. Dig. § 188; Dec. Dig.
&65.]

" 12, LIMITATION OF ACTIONS €=19(4)—PARTITION—SUITS BY REMAINDERMEN,

‘Where land was conveyed in trust as to one-half thereof for J. G. S. for
life, and at his death to convey it to his dappointees by will, or in default
of such will to his heirs, and J. G. S. died in 1903, without making such
appointment, a suit brought by his heirs in 1910 for partition was not
barred by limitations.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Limitation of Actions, Cent. Dig. § 17;
Dec. Dig. ¢19(4).]

13, PARTITION @&=260—PLEADING—AMENDMENT—DISCRETION.

In a suit for partition, the refusal to permit an amendment to a cross-
bill was a matter of discretion in the District Court.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Partition, Cent. Dig. §§ 166-173; Dec.
Dig. &=60.]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the West-
ern District of South Carolina, at Greenville; Henry A. Middleton
Smith, Judge.

Suit by E. G. Steele and others against the Highland Park Manu-
facturing Company. From a decree in favor of plaintiffs (212 Fed.
972) defendant appeals. Affirmed. .

Charles W. Tillett, of Charlotte, N. C., and C. E. Spencer, of Rock
Hill, S. C. (Tillett & Guthrie, of Charlotte, N. C,, on the brief), for
appellant. )

J. A. Marion and D. E. Finley, both of Yorkville, S. C., and E. M.
Blythe, of Greenville, S. C., for appellees.

Before PRITCHARD and KNAPP, Circuit Judges, and CONNOR,
District Judge.

CONNOR, District Judge. For the purpose of presenting the
questions raised by the assignments of error, the transcript discloses
the following facts: .

On November 16, 1860, John Steele, of the county of York, in
South Carolina, executed a deed whereby he conveyed to his son,
Joseph A. Steele, in consideration of love and affection, a tract of
land in York county, containing 494 acres, to have and to hold to
Joseph A. Steele, his heirs and assigns:

“In trust, as to the one-half of the said piece, parcel or tract of land, to
stand seised and possessed of the same for the use and benefit of my grandson
the above named John G. Steele, for, and during, the term of his natural
life, and at his death, to transfer and convey the same to such persoa, Or
persons, as he, the said John G. Steele, may by his will direct, or in default
of such will and direction to the heirs at law of the said John G. Steele, in
fee.”

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Joseph A. Steele died intestate, leaving as his heirs at law his wid-
ow, Eliza Jane Steele, his son, John G. Steele, and five daughters.

On August 3, 1868, and after the death of his father, John G. Steele
executed a deed of statutory form, sufficient to convey in fee, with gen-
eral warranty, the entire tract to James Pagan. Appellant, Highland
Park Manufacturing Company, by successive conveyances, acquired
all of the title which passed to, and vested in, Pagan by virtue of the
deed of John G. Steele, to that portion of the original tract described
in the pleadings herein. Appellant, and those under whom it claims,
have been in possession of the land in controversy, since October 13,
1884. Improvements, alleged to have cost $250,000, have been placed
upon the land, by appellant and its immediate grantor. John G. Steele
died July 5, 1905, without having published a last will. Plaintiffs
are his widow and children, and, under the canons of descent of South
Carolina, his heirs at law. This proceeding was instituted on June
6, 1910, in the court of common pleas of York county, for the purpose
of having partition of the portion of the land, described in the bill,
and removed into the District Court of the United States for the
Western District of South Carolina, upon petition of appellant, a North
Carolina corporation. Appellant denies that appellees have any title
to, or interest in, the land, and avers that it is sole seised thereof, in
fee. Other facts, pertinent to other phases of the controversy, will
be noted later. The cause was referred to Hon. Ernest Moore, spe-
cial master, who, after hearing the testimony, reported as his conclu-
sion of fact and law that the appellant and appellees were seised of the
land in controversy as tenants in common—each being entitled to one-
half undivided interest therein. He also passed upon, and made re-
port in regard to, the claim for betterments and rents and profits, with
his conclusion as to the value of the interests of the respective par-
ties, and the equitable method of making partition. Upon the com-
ing in of the report, appellant filed exceptions thereto, which were
heard and, after argument and consideration, overruled, and a decree
entered, by the District Judge, to which appellants assigned error and
appealed. '

[1] We are confronted, at the threshold, with the contention that
the questions presented upon appellant’s assignments of error, are not
open to an exercise, or expression, of the independent judgment of
this court, for that the same questions have been litigated in, and de-
cided by, the Supreme Court of South Carolina; that by the decisions
of that court, a rule of property has been established in the jurispru-
dence of that state, in accordance with the contention of appellees and
the decision of the District Court. Our attention is called to the de-
cision rendered in the case of Steele v. Smith (on November 30, 1909)
84 S. C. 464, 66 S. E. 200, 29 L. R. A. (N. S.) 939, and the cases cited
by the court in the opinion therein.

Before proceeding to an examination of the decision made by the
court in that case, we pause to ascertain the principle, or rule, by which
this court should be governed in disposing of this contention. The
question, in different phases, and under different aspects, has been
frequently before the Supreme Court. In Kuhn v. Fairmount Coal
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Co., 215 U. S. 349, 30 Sup. Ct. 140, 54 L. Ed. 228, Mr. Justice Harlan
reviewed the decisions and, writing for the majority of the court,
said:

“We take it, then, that it is no longer to be questioned that the federal
courts, in determining cases before them, are to be guided by the following
rules: (1) When administering state laws and determining rights accruing un-
der those laws, the jurisdiction of the federal courts is an independent one, not
subordinate to, but co-ordinate and concurrent with, the jurisdiction of the
state courts. (2) Where, before the rights of the parties accrued, certain
rules relating to real estate have been so established by state decisions as to
become rules of property and action in the state, those rules are accepted by
the federal courts as authoritative declarations of the law of the state. (3)
But where the law of the state has not been thus settled, it is not only the
right, but the duty of the federal court to exercise its own judgment, as it also
always does, * * * ypon the doctrine of commercial law and general juris-
prudence. (4) So, when contracts and transactions are entered into and rights
have accrued under a particular state of the local decisions, or when there has.
been no decision by the state court on the particular question involved, then
the federal courts properly claim the right to give effect to their own judg-
ment as to what is the law of the state, applicable to the case, even where a
different view has been expressed by the state court after the rights of par-
ties acerued. But even in such cases, for the sake of comity and to avoid con-
fusion, the federal court should always lean to an agreement with the state
court, if the question is balanced with doubt.”

The doctrine is discussed, and applied, in Burgess v. Seligman, 107
U. S. 20, 2 Sup. Ct. 10, 27 L. Ed. 359, and numerous other cases cited
in the opinion. :

In Swift v. Tyson, 16 Pet. 1, 10 L. Ed. 865, Mr. Justice Story, con-
struing the thirty-fourth section of the Judiciary Act (Act Sept. 24,
1789, ¢. 20, 1 Stat. 92 [Comp. St. 1913, § 1538]), says that:

It is limited in “its application to state laws, strictly local, that is to say,
to the positive statutes of the state, and the construction thereof adopted by
the local tribunals, and to rights and titles to things having a permanent lo-

cality, such as the rights and titles to real estate, and other matters immov-
able and intraterritorial in their nature and character.”

So, in McGoon v. Scales, 9 Wall, 23, 19 L. Ed. 545, Mr. Justice
Miller said: '

“It is a principle too firmly established to admit of dispute at this day
that to the law of the state in which ldind is situated must we look for the
rules which govern its descent, alienation, and transfer, and for the effect
and construction of conveyances.”

The same learned justice in Brine v. Insurance Co., 96 U. S. 627,
24 1,. Ed. 858, discussing the suggestion that the federal court should
exercise its independent judgment upon a question affecting the title
to real property, there an equity of redemption, in regard to which
there was in force a state statute, said: _

“To do so is at once to introduce into the jurisprudence of the state of Illi-
nois the discordant elements of a substantial right which is protected in one
set of courts and denied in the other, with no superior to decide which is
right.”

While we do not deem it of importance, we note the fact, pressed
upon our attention, that the statute of uses, 27 Henry VIII, is in force
in South Carolina, by virtue of an enactment of the Legislature of
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that state. Code 1912, vol. 1, § 3673. It is manifest, therefore, that
we must endeavor to ascertain and declare the law of the state of
South Carolina in regard to the determinative question involved.

In Steele v. Smith, 84 S. C. 464, 66 S. E. 200,29 L. R. A. (N. S)
939, it appears that plaintiffs were the same persons as appellees in this
case, and claimed title to a portion of the same tract of land con-
veyed by John Steele to Joseph A. Steele, in the same right as they
claim in this record. Defendants, in that case, claimed under the
same right as appellant does here, and had such title as was conveyed
by John G. Steele to Pagan. The case so far is, therefore, on all
fours with that presented in this record. The opinion of the court
was written by Chief Justice Jones. Several of the counsel appear-
ing here were of counsel in that case and many of the authorities cited
and relied upon in this court were cited upon the argument of that
case. The Chief Justice states the contention made by the parties:

“Plaintiffs claim that John G. Steele had only a life estate, and having died
without executing the power * * = by will, they are entitled to partition
* * * ag heirs of John G. Steele, and remaindermen under the deed of
John Steele, Sr. The court sustained this contention. The defendants appel-

lants contend that under the rule in Shelley’s Case John G. Steele had a fee-
simple estate, * * * which they acquired.”

The Chief. Justice, after stating the rule in Shelley’s Case, as laid
down by Mr. Preston, proceeds to say:

“The case of Porter v. Doby, 2 Rich. Eq. (S. C.) 53, shows that executory
trusts are exempt from the operation of the rule in Shelley’s Case, and that
the test of an executory trust is whether the trustee has some duty to per-
form, for the performance of which it is necessary that the title be regarded
as abiding in him.” .

Referring to the argument made by defendant’s counsel, in which
it was sought to bring the case within the rule, by showing that the
trust is executed, the Chief Justice says:

“The argument to this point is keen and forceful, and there is some high
authority for the view. But we think it is clear that the trust in this case
is such an executory trust as will prevent the application of the rule in Shel-
ley’s Case. In order to convey the fee to the appointee of the life tenant, it
was essential to the performance of his duty that the trustee retain the titla
in fee until it was ascertained that there was default of such appointment at
the termination of the life estate. The trust was not a perfect trust, as it
involves for its full execution the exercise or failure to exercise discretionary
power of appointment by the life tenant. * * * Hence the case clearly fallg
within the definition of an executory trust in Perry on Trusts, relied upon
by appellant.”

He quotes, at length, the language of Mr. Perry (section 359), and
continues the discussion, saying:

“The trust in the case at bar would be executory with respect to the stat-
ute of uses. The test whether the trust is active or passive is: Has the trus-
tee any duty to do, the performance of which requires that the legal title

shall remain in him? If so, the trust is active and executory under the stat-
ute; if not, it is passive and executed under the statute.”

The principle upon which the decision is to be placed is thus clearly
stated. It was strongly urged that, applying the principle, the words
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used by the grantor in the deed, do not create an executory trust—
that it is executed. The Chief Justice says:

“The duty of the trustee to convey to the appointee by the will of the life
tenant required that the trustee hold the legal estate until,it was ascertained
that there was default of appointment.”

Referring to the argument of the counsel for appellants, he says:

«While there are authorities elsewhere that a simple direction to ‘convey’
in a trust fully and plainly declared does not make the trust executory, the
authorities in this state warrant the conclusion that the duty to ‘convey’ in
a case like this will prevent the execution of the trust in the remainderman
* * * yuntil after the death of the life tenant.”

He cités several cases—

“which recognize the duty to convey as an active duty, requiring that the le-
gal title shall remain in the trustee, at least, for the performance of the duty
to convey the fee upon the termination of the life estate. It may be conceded
that the statute executed the use * * * in the life tepant, and his equi-
table estate was thereby, immediately on the execution of deed, transformed
into a legal estate for life with general power of appointment by will, but it
was necessary for the fee to remain in the trustee to execute the trust, depend-
ent on the contingency of the life tenant designating the beneficiary by his
will. As the trust would be executory under the statute of uses, we see no
good reason for holding it not executory when considering the application of
the rule in Shelley’s Case.”

He concedes that the case of Cushing v. Blake, 30 N. J. Eq. 689,
cited by counsel for appellants, strongly supports their contention,
and says:

“But in New Jersey, as well as in some other jurisdictions, it is held that
the duty of the trustee to convey is not sufficient to render the trust execu-
tory in the true sense; whereas, in this state, such duty is regarded as active
and executory, and the trend of our cases is to regard that which is execu-
tory under the statute as executory when considering the applicability of the
rule in Shelley’s Case. Further, in order for the rule in Shelley’s Case to ap-
ply, the estate for life and the estate in remainder must be of the same quali-
ty, both legal or equitable; otherwise they cannot coalesce. Our cases show
that the statute may execute the use in either the life tenant for life, or the
remainderman in remainder, according as it may be determined whether the
trustee has any active duty to perform with respect to either, rendering it nec-
essary that the life estate shall remain in the trustee.”

The Chief Justice reaches the conclusion that:

«“The trustee having no duty to perform with respect to,the life tenant in
this case, immediately on the execution of the deed the equitable estate of the
life tenant becomes legal by the ‘potential magic’ of the statute, but it being
necessary for the trustee to retain the legal fee in remainder during the life-
time of the life tenant to carry out the purpose of the trust, the estate in re-
mainder, not being executed, remained executory and equitable; hence the
rule in Shelley’s Case could not apply when the deed was delivered because
of the difference in the quality of the two estates. If we consider whether
the rule should apply on the death of the life tenant without exercising the
power of appointment, and should hold that the statute then executed the use
in those who answered the description of the heirs at law of John G. Steele,
it would only follow that such beirs then became vested with the fee in re-
mainder as a légal estate, which had not previously coalesced with the estate
for life, and could not then coalesce with an extinct estate. In such case the
intention of the settlor is not defeated by the rule, but those answering
the description of heirs of John G. Steele at his death take, not by inheritance
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from the ancestor, but as purchasers under the grant of John Steele, Sr., in
accordance with the manifest intention of the grantor.”

Several decisions of the Supreme Court of South Carolina, made
prior to and since August 3, 1868, are cited in support of the conclu-
sion reached by the court. It is, we think, manifest that, with one ex-
ception to be hereafter noted, the court in Steele v. Smith, decided
every question raised and argued before us in this appeal. If the
decision had been rendered before the rights of appellant, under the
deed of John G. Steele to James Pagan, August, 3, 1863, accrued, we
should not find it necessary, being controlled by the second resolution
in Kuhn v. Fairmount Coal Co., supra, to further discuss the assign-
ments of error, notwithstanding the very “keen and forceful,” able,
and interesting argument of the learned counsel for appellant. We
should deem it our duty, as this court did, in regard to the decision of
the Supreme Court of West Virginia, in Kuhn v. Fairmount Coal Co,,
179 Fed. 191, 102 C. C. A. 457, 66 W. Va. 711, to regard the decision
as the “law of the state,” applicable to and controlling the rights of
the parties in this appeal.

For the purpose of avoiding this result, the learned counsel for
appellant vigorously insist that the decision is not in accordance with
principle or authority, that it is erroneous in its conclusion, and that
either it is in conflict with the decisions of the Supreme Court of South
Carolina, made prior to August 3, 1868, or that there were no au-
thoritative decisions of that court prior to that date, upon the ques-
tions involved in this case—that they are res integra and that, there-
fore, this court must, in reaching its conclusion, exercise its independ-
ent judgment. The special master, in a very able and carefully con-
sidered report, reached the conclusion that the judgment in Steele
v. Smith was correct and that the decisions cited were “ample to sus-
tain the conclusion not merely of the present, but of the pre-existent,
rule of property in South Carolina.” The learned District Judge,
after a careful consideration of the questions involved and review of
the authorities, came to the conclusion that:

“While he was doubtful of the conclusion reached by the Supreme Court of
South Carolina, in its construction of this will [deed], and might, if the case
were res integra, reach a different conclusion, yet the court finds that it can-
not be said that the conclusion reached by the Supreme Court of South Caro-
lina, in its construction of this will [deed] is clearly at variance with the
announcement as to the law made by the courts of highest jurisdiction in
South Carolina prior to 1868, and it is therefore the duty of this court, when

the question is doubtful, to lean to an agreement with the state court for the
sake of comity and to avoid confusion”—citing Brine v. Insurance Co., supra.

Appellant draws into controversy almost every essential element in
this conclusion and the process by which it is reached by the District
Judge. The case has been twice argued in this court and a number
of elaborate and exhaustive briefs filed by counsel. The value of
the property, together with the improvements put upon it, is large,
and the questions upon which the rights of the parties depend are,
as said by the District Judge, not free from doubt, either in respect
to the extent to which we are authorized to deal with them, as res in-

232 F.—2
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tegra, or their solution, if open to us. As said by Mr. Justice Ashe, in
Patrick v. Morehead, 85 N. C. 62, 39 Am. Rep. 684:

“There perhaps is no branch of‘ the law that has given rise to more con-
flicting decisions, or a greater display of legal learning, than the application
of the rule in Shelley’s Case to the construction of deeds and wills.”

The zeal of counsel in this case, evidenced by their very thoroughly
considered arguments and exhaustive briefs and the decision in the
Supreme Court of South Carolina, followed by a petition for rehearing,
recall the sharp and long drawn out controversy in Perrin v. Blake,
which Lord Campbell says “divided the profession of the law into bit-
ter factions for many years and which is still famous in the traditions
of Westminster Hall,” and which before the conclusion of the war
of pamphlets waged around it drew such eminent judges and au-
thors as Lord Mansfield and Mr. Fearne into an acrimonious contro-
versy. Campbell’s Chief Justices, vol. 3, p. 329.

The learned counsel for appellant strongly insist that, until the deci-
sion of Steele v. Smith, it was never held for law in South Carolina
that the duty imposed upon a trustee to “convey” the legal estate,
in the absence of any other duty, or of inability on the part of the
cestui que trust to take and hold the legal title, such as a feme covert,
or other disability, created an executory trust. Counsel for the ap-
pellee, with equal confidence, insist that the decision in Steele v.
Smith is sustained by the current of authority in that state.

As we have seen, the learned District Judge was in doubt in re-
spect to the state of the law. It is clear that, in Steele v. Smith, the
court held that the duty imposed upon the trustee, to convey the le- -
gal title to the appointee of the life tenant, or upon his failure to
exercise the power of appointment to his heirs, created an executory
trust, and that the legal title remained in the trustee, for the purpose
of enabling him to convey it to those who were entitled in remainder,
upon failure of the life tenant to exercise the power of appointment.
It is equally certain that the court intended to decide the question
in accordance with what it construed to be the law of the state as de-
clared by former decisions of that court—that it did not intend to or
suppose that it was declaring a new rule of property in South Carolina,
in regard to the distinction between executory and executed trusts
or the application of the rule in Shelley’s Case to such cases. This,
however, does not relieve us of the duty, in disposing of this appeal,
to examine the former decisions of that court.

The first proposition upon which the contention of the appellee is
based is that, by the decisions of the South Carolina court prior to
and since August 3, 1868, it is held that, when by the terms of the
deed creating the trust the duty was imposed upon the trustee to hold
and to convey the legal title to the cestui que trust, either for life or
in remainder, the statute of uses did not execute the use and that the
legal title remained in the trustee. It appears, from a careful exami-
nation of the cases decided by that court, that it recognizes and en-
forces the rule that, when by the express terms of the deed, or will, or
by reasonable implication from its language, the intention of the maker
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appears that the trustee has something to do, some duty to perform,
with respect to the property, or the title, the trust is executory. ‘When
the trustee is to hold for the use and benefit of a feme covert, cer-
tainly prior to the radical changes in the law, enlarging her power
in regard to her separate estate, or to preserve contingent remainders,
or to exercise a discretion in regard to the use of the property or to the
ultimate conveyance of the title, there is but little difficulty in apply-
ing the test. While it would extend this discussion beyond proper
limits to set forth, at length, the facts and discussion by the court in
each case, yet, on account of the insistence, with manifest confidence,
of divergent opinion of counsel, and of language used in some of the
opinions of the Supreme Court of South Carolina, we deem it proper
to analyze some of the cases cited by counsel.

The first in order of time is Wilson v. Cheshire, 1 McCord’s Eq.
(S. C.) 233 (1826). The language of the deed creating the trust in that
case clearly imposed duties upon the trustee. ‘The trust was exccutory
and the legal title remained in the trustee. The court said that:

“Where the trustee was required to act, and not merely to hold the estate,
* * % the use is not executed, and when, therefore, there is a conveyance
to trustees in trust fo conwey [italics ours], or to sell, or to pay the profits

to a feme covert, * * * the legal estate remains in the trustees, unexecuted.
by the statute.”

In Posey v. Cook, 1 Hill’s Law (S. C.) 413 (1833), duties were im-
posed upon the trustee which required that the legal title remain in
him. He was to hold the title until the youngest of the cestui que trust-
ent arrived at full age, with a provision to meet certain contingen-
cies, which might happen prior to that period. When the youngest
child arrived at full age, the land was to be equally divided between the
persons named, who were to have and hold their shares in fee. It was
held that the trust was executory. Chancellor Harper, after notic-
ing the language of the note to 2 Blackstone, said:

“Perhaps the rule might be more accurately expressed to say that, where
the intention is that the estate shall not Le executed in the cestui que trust,
and any object is to be effected by its remaining in the trustees, then it shall
not be executed.”

Here we find the recognition of two elements preventing the opera-
tion of the statute—the intention of the maker of the deed, or will,
and the existence of an object to be effected. This language is in har-
mony with decisions of the courts in other jurisdictions, both English
and American. It expresses, accurately, the opinion of a very learned
chancellor.

The next case in order is Jenney v. Laurens, 1 Speers’ Law (S. C.)
365 (1843), and here counsel for appellant insists is found a departure
from the rule as laid down in the other two cases. In that case the
trust declared in the will was “to hold to the use and benefit, and to ap-
ply the rents, issues, and profits to and for,” etc. The court, by Judge
Evans, expressed no doubt that under the rule, which distinguished
executory from executed trusts, the words “to hold to the use and ben-
efit” did not create an executory trust; the doubt arose upon the duty
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imposed “to apply the rents.” The justice, writing the opinion, notes
two English cases, and says:

“I have quoted these two cases to show that it is not sufficient to prevent
the estate from being executed that there may be something for the trustgae
to do. I would rather think the rule may be laid down that the trust will
be executed, unless the object of creating it would be defeated, as in the cases
of trusts for married women, and to preserve contingent remainders, or where
the trustee has some discretion to be exercised in relation to the estate or the
manner of applying the proceeds.”

If the justice had stopped at this point, it would seem that he had
adopted a test or rule differing, to some extent, from that announced
by the same court in former cases—that it is not sufficient to prevent
the “estate” from being executed “that the trustee have something
to do,” but that the trust would be executed “unless the object of
creating it would be defeated,” etc., and in the illustrations which he
makes, except in the two specific instances named, the necessity that
the trustee have “some discretion to be exercised.” He goes on to
say, however:

“Or, as said by Chancellor Harper, in Posey v. Cook, 1 Hill’s Law (8. C.)
414, there must be some object to be effected by the estate remaining in the
trustee.” .

He reaches the conclusion that “in this case no discretion is to be
exercised by the trustee”; hence, the trust was executed. The point
decided therefore is that the duty to “apply the rents to and for the
use of” the cestui que trust did not prevent the operation of the statute,
and that, therefore, the trust was executed. We concur with the
learned District Judge that “there is some conflict between the reason-
ing in Jenney v. Laurens and that in the other cases.”

Passing, at this time, the next case decided, in order of time, for the
purpose of ascertaining the authoritative value which has been given
to the reasoning of Judge Evans in Jenney v. Laurens, we proceed to
examine the opinion of Mr, Justice Mclver in Ayer v. Ritter, 29 S,
C. 135, 7 S. E. 53 (1888). After stating the question, he says:

“This question has been considered by this court in several recent cases,
and it has been uniformly held ‘that the statute will not execute the use as
long as there is anything remaining for the trustee to do, which renders it

necessary that he should retain the legal title in order fully to perform the
duties imposed upon him by the trust.’”

After reviewing a number of cases, decided since 1868, and distin-
guishing several of them, he says:

“The older cases also, with perhaps one exception, recognize the same doc-
trine.”

He proceeds to examine “the older cases” and says:

“It is true that the case of Jenney v. Laurens, 1 Speers’ Law (8. C.) 356,
appears to be an exception to the current of authority above cited, for in that
case Evans, J., does say” (quoting the language quoted by us herein).

Judge Mclver says:

“On turning to that case (Posey v. Cook, 1 Hill's Law [S. C.] 414), it will
be seen that Chancellor Harper, after indicating some dissatisfaction with
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one of the modes of creating a trust not executed by the statute, laid down
in Ramsay v. Marsh, 2 McCord’s Law (8. C) 252, 13 Am. Dec. 717, to wit,
‘Where the feoffees to a use were directed to receive the profits and pay them
over to the person intended to be benefited,’ expresses a preference for the
rule laid down in Ramsay v. Marsh, in the following quotation from Lord
Hardwicke: ‘Where particular things are to be done by the trustees, it is nec-
essary that the estate should remain in them, so long, at least, as those par-
ticular purposes require it.” So that it would seem that the authority upon
which Judge Evans relies lends support to the view which we have adopted,
and has the sanction of the great name of Chancellor Harper. # & % Put,
even if that case [Jenney v. Laurens] should be regarded as an apparent ex-
ception to the rule above stated, we do not think it sufficient to overthrow the
numerous cases in which it has been recognized and followed.”

While the decision in Ayer v. Ritter was made subsequent to 1868,
the language quoted from the opinion is of value in aiding us to ascer-
tain the extent to which the language used by Judge Evans in Jenney
v. Laurens, was regarded by Judge Mclver as correctly expressing the
rule or test applied by the court of South Carolina.

In McCaw v. Galbraith, 7 Rich. (S. C.) 74 (1853), the legal title was
devised to the trustee to hold for the use of the testator’s brother, an
alien, until he should become naturalized, and then to execute to him a
conveyance of the land; the rents and profits to go to the brother from
the death of the testator. The alien was not entitled to take the legal
title. The court, after noting the fact that more indulgence is ex-
tended to wills than to deeds, in ascertaining the intention, states the
controlling principle by which the instrument will be construed:

“Where he simply gives to one in wust for another, or to one in trust to
permit another to take the profits, or otherwise uses technical terms, whose
sense is well fixed, his words will, without explanation given by himself in
the instrument, be understood in their technical sense; but where, by a plain
expression, or a necessary implication arising from the duties which he impos-
es upon the trustee, he shows he intends a legal estate to abide in the trustee,
his intention will be respected. * * * The will contains a plain expression
of the testator’s intention to give to Robert G. McCaw a fee simple in trust;
and to give it in such way that the use should not be executed by the statute
97 Henry VIII, ¢. 10. Not only is there a declaration that the legal estate
shall be vested in the trustee, but there is the requirement of an act to be
done by him, the conveyance of the estate in fee [italics ours]l, which neces-
sarily presupposes the fee to be in him.”

The fact that in that case the court was construing a will does not
affect the value to be given the language used in the inquiry which
we are now pursuing. It is conceded that the foregoing are the only
decisions of the South Carolina Court, rendered prior to 1868, bearing
upon the question. The decisions in Bristow v. McCall, 16 S. C. 543,
Huckabee v. Newton, 23 S. C. 291, and Bowen v. Humphreys, 24 S.
C. 452, subsequent to that date, are cited by Judge Mclver in Ayer v.
Ritter, supra, as being in harmony with the “older cases.” He cites
Wieters v. Timmons, 25 S. C. 488, 1 S. E. 1, in which it was held that
the trust was executed, the court saying of the trustee:

“He was not required to convey [italics ours] such share to the issue, nor
to divide the same amongst them, and, there being nothing for him to do,
there was no reason why the legal title should remain in him, and hence, by

the operation of the statute of uses, it passed” to the cestui que trust. How-
ard v. Henderson, 18 S. C. 184.
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In Huckabee v. Newton, supra (1885), citing and quoting from
Bristow v. McCall and McCaw v. Galbraith, it is said:

“In the case before the court there is the requirement of a similar act to be
done by the trustee after the death of Lucy, the life tenant. He is required to

convey land to her children [italics ours], * * * or the children of such
as inay be dead.”

The judge cites Jenney v. Laurens, and, by way of distinguishing it
from the instant case, says:

“Here the remainders were contingent, and it was necessary that the legal
title should remain in the trustee until the contingency should happen, which
was to determine who should take, which being determined, the trustee was
directed to convey.”

The extent to which the Supreme Court of South Carolina has ad-
hered to the rule that the duty imposed upon the trustee to hold and
convey the legal title will prevent the operation of the statute is illus-
trated in Ayer v. Ritter, supra. There Lewis M. Ayer devised to his
executors, his Campfield plantation, together with articles of personal
property, in trust to apply the income to the support of his son, Zac-
<heus, and his family, during his natural life, and at his death to con-
vey to William H. Ayer “the said plantation in fee.” The action was
brought, at law, by William H. Ayer, after the death of the life tenant,
for recovery of possession of a part of Campfield. It did not appear
that defendant Ritter had any title. He moved for judgment of non-
suit because plaintiff failed to show any conveyance from the executors
—trustees—for the land. Plaintiff was nonsuited and appealed. Mec-
Iver, Justice, as we have seen, reviewed the authorities and discussed
the case of Jenney v. Laurens, concluding:

“The trust here was to convey and deliver to the plaintiff the plantation
and personal property designed for his benefit, and to perform those duties
thus required of them it was necessary that the legal estate should remain
in them. Indeed, to say nothing of the case of McCaw v. Galbraith, supra,
or of the remark made by Glover, J., in Harley v. Platts {6 Rich. (S. C.) 3101,
it seems to us that the case of Huckabee v. Newton, supra, is directly in point,
and is absolutely conclusive of this case. We do not see how the fact that
the remainders in that case were originally contingent, while here the re-
mainder was a vested remainder, can affect the question. Upon the death of
the life tenant in that case the remainders were no longer contingent, and
there was nothing for the trustee to do but make the conveyance to those who
then became entitled, just as here, upon the death of the life tenant, there
was nothing for the trustees to do but ‘to convey and deliver’ to the plain-
tiff the property to which he then became entitled. It seems to us, therefore,
that in any view of the case, while there is much force in the argument of
appellant’s counsel, the authorities require us to hold that the statute did
not execute the use, and the legal title still remains in the trustees.”

The case of Uzzell v. Horn, 71 S. C. 426 (1905), 51 S. E. 253, is
cited by appellant as approving and following Jenney v. Laurens. In
that case plaintiffs sued in an action at law for possession of a tract
of land, claiming under a deed in which the land was conveyed to Rob-
ert Peel, Sr.,'to hold for the use and benefit of Robert Peel, Jr., during
his life—he was to have the right to take possession and use the land
as his own. After his death the trustee was to hold for the use and
benefit of his wife, Martha W. Peel for and during the term of her
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life and after her death, to hold for any child or children which
Robert Peel, Jr., “may have living at the time of his death,” to be de-
livered up to such child or children, and if more than one to be equal-
ly divided among them, share and share alike, to hold to them and
their heirs forever. In the event the said Robert Peel, Jr., died leav-
ing no child or children, nor the issue of such living at the time of his
death, “then and in that event, the said Robert Peel, Sr. (after the
death of said Martha W. Peel), shall convey the said tract of land to
‘the brother and sisters of the said Robert Peel, Jr., to be divided
equally between them, to have and to hold to their heirs and assigns, .
free and clear from any trusts,” etc. Robert Peel, Jr., died without
leaving a child, or the issue thereof. Plaintiffs, children and grand-
children of Robert Peel, Sr., after the death of Martha Peel, brought
the action at law against defendant Martha Horn, a daughter of
Martha Peel, by her first husband. It appears that Robert Peel, Sr.,
the trustee, died prior to the bringing of the suit, leaving two sons,
Robert Peel, Jr., and William Peel, who survived his brother and was
a party plaintiff. Defendants moved for judgment of nonsuit, “on .
the ground that the plaintiffs had not received a title from the trustee
named in the deed of trust.” The motion was refused by the circuit
judge, who, upon the entire evidence, directed a verdict for plaintiffs.
It would seem that the ruling of the court was clearly correct, for that
the legal title which vested in John Peel, Sr., trustee, descended to
his only son living at the time of his death, William Peel, who was one
of the plaintiffs. He was entitled to recover the possession upon his
legal title, without regard to the question whether his coplaintiffs,
who with himself were entitled to the beneficial interest, could main-
tain the action. With all deference to the learned Justices of the Su-
preme Court, it would seem that this fact was sufficient to sustain the
ruling of the circuit judge and is substantially so stated in the opinion.
The Chief Justice, in the opinion, says:

«phis deed shows that the trustee had no services marked out to be per-
formed to the plaintiffs. It looks to us, therefore, that these parties were
vested with the title, the uses having been executed by the statute, and the

estate vested in the grantes’—citing Jenney v. Laurens, supra, Howard v.
Henderson, 18 S. C. 189, and Reeves v. Tappan, 218.C. 1.

He also cites Wieters v. Timmons, 25 S. C. 488, 1 S. E. 1, which is
distinguished from the other cases by Justice Mclver in Ayer v. Rit-
ter, supra. It is quite difficult to reconcile the language quoted from
the opinion of the Chief Justice with the language of Judge Mclver
in Ayer v. Ritter. It is equally difficult to reconcile it with what is
said and decided in Steele v. Smith, supra. Neither Jenney v. Laurens
nor Uzzell v. Horn are cited in the opinion in Steele v. Smith. Mr.
Perry places South Carolina in the class of states in which it is held
that the duty imposed upon the trustee to convey the legal title makes
the trust executory, citing Garner v. Garner, 1 Desaus. (8. C) 43
(1795), and Porter v. Doby, supra. 2 Trusts, 370.

In regard to the next proposition, upon which the conclusion in
Steele v. Smith is reached, the Chief Justice says:

“Qur cases show that the statute may execute the use in either the life
tenant for life, or the remainderman in remainder, according as it may be
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determined whether the trustee has any active duty to perform with respect
to either, rendering it necessary that the life estate or the fee should remain
in the trustee. Howard v. Henderson, 18 S. C. 184 ; Young v. McNeill, 78 S.
C. 150, 59 8. E. 986; Breeden v. Moore, 8 S. C. 539, 64 S. E. 604. The trustee
having no duty to perform with respect to the life tenant in this case, im-
mediately on the execution of the deed the equitable estate of the life ten-
ant becomes legal by the ‘potential magic’ of the statute; but, it being neces-
sary for the trustee to retain the legal fee in remainder during the life time
of the life tenant to carry out the purpose of the trust, the estate in remain-
der, not being executed, remained executory and equitable.”

It appears to be settled law in South Carolina that:

“When estates are conveyed to trustees for the benefit of parties taking
different interests, the statute may execute the use in one and not in the
other.” Mr, Chief Justice Gary, in Young v. McNeill, supra.

The learned Chief Justice cited Howard v. Henderson, supra, which
he says “fully sustains the proposition,” and Faber v. Police, 10 S. C.
376, from which he makes liberal quotation, concluding:

“When C. H. Faber devised the land to trustees for the benefit of his son
for life, and after his death to his issue living at that time, he thereby creat-
ed two equitable estates—one for life and the other in contingent remainder.
When the statute executed the use in John Lewis Faber, the life tenant, it
could not clothe him with the legal title to a larger estate than was conferred
upon him by the will,”

[2] In Breeden v. Moore, supra, Mr. Justice Woods quotes from
the decision in Howard v. Henderson, supra. In that case the devise
was to a trustee for the benefit of W. S. H. for life, remainder at
his death to Geo. V. H. for life, and at her death to the children,
then living, of said W. S. H. and Geo. V. H. “It was held that the
statute executed the use as to the life estate.” Judge Woods, after
quoting the language of the court, in that case, says:

“The same principle was applied conversely in Williman v. Holmes, 4 Rich.
Eq. (8. C.) 475, and Wieters v. Timmons, 25 S. C. 488, 1 S. B * * * These
adjudications rest on the rule, of universal application, that a trustee will
not be held to take any larger estate than is necessary to enable him to per-

form the duty imposed by the instrument creating the trust’——citing Ayer v.
Ritter, supra; Young v. McNeill, supra. ’

Our attention is not directed to any decision of the South Carolina
court to the contrary, either before or since 1868. We see no reason
to doubt that the law of South Carolina is as declared by those deci-
sions. Reading the deed from this viewpoint, the estate would vest
in John G. Steele for life, remainder to Joseph A. Steele, in trust to
hold and convey to such person as the said John G. Steele may by will
appoint, and in default of such appointment to convey to the heirs of
said John G. Steele, in fee. The conclusion reached by the court upon
this condition of the title is thus stated :

“Hence the rule in Shelley’s Case could not apply when the deed was de-
livered because of the difference in the quality of the two estates.”

It is, we think, settled as a rule of universal application that, while
the rule in Shelley’s Case applies to equitable as well as to legal es-
tates, it does so only when both the life estate and the remainder are
of the same quality.
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“The legal effect of the union of the estates, as declared by that rule, does
not occur where the life estate is of an equitable character and the remainder
is a legal estate, or vice versa. Both estates must be of the same character.”
Green v. Green, 23 Wall. 486, 23 L. Ed. 75.

This case affords an interesting iilustration of the application of the
principle. There a conveyance was made to trustees for the sole and
separate use of C., a feme covert, for her life, and to hold and convey
the premises to such persons as the life tenant might, by her last-will
and testament, direct, and, upon failure of the life tenant to appoint
by will, to her heirs at law. The trustee and the life tenant joined
in a deed of trust in fee to secure the payment of a note. The question
presented for decision was whether the life tenant could appoint the
fee otherwise than by will, and whether, under the rule in Shelley’s
Case, she was invested with the fee, which passed by her deed. The
court, by Mr. Justice Hunt, held that the estate which vested in her
for life was equitable, whereas the estate limited over to her heirs, in
default of an execution of the power of appointment by will, to which
mode she was restricted, was legal, and therefore the two estates did
not coalesce and vest the fee in her under the rule in Shelley’s Case.
Of course, the converse of the proposition is true; hence, we find it is
held:

“If the estate given to a person be a legal estate for life, with a limitation
of an equitable estate to his heirs, they will not incorporate into an estate
of inheritance in the first taker.” Crosby v. Davis, 2 Clark (Pa.) 408; Vena-
bles v. Morris, 7 Term Rep. 342.

[3,4] An examination of a large number of decided cases shows
that, in very many of them, when the rule in Shelley’s Case was not
permitted to operate, the life estate was by reason of the character of
the trusts declared equitable, and the remainder legal. This result
would probably have followed in Steele v. Smith, except for the hold-
ing that, by reason of the duty imposed upon the trustee to convey to
the appointee, or, in default of appointment, to the heirs, of John
G. Steele, the trust, quoad the remaindermen, was executory, and
herein the law of South Carolina, as declared by the Supreme Court,
differs from that of some other jurisdictions. Ii, as held in Steele v.
Smith, the statute of uses operates to execute the use, and thereby
vests the legal title in John G. Steele for life, and the duty imposed upon
the trustee to hold and convey the property to the appointee by will of
John G. Steele, or in default of such appointment, to convey to his
heirs in fee, is an executory trust as to the fee, the conclusion reached
in that case is logical and in accordance with well settled legal princi-
ples. If this was an action at law for the recovery of possession, the
plaintiffs would encounter the same difficulty which prevented a re-
covery in Ayer v. Ritter, supra, unless, under the authority of Uzzell
v. Horn, supra, the legal title, which remained outstanding in Joseph
A. Steele, descended to his son, John G. Steele, and from him to the
plaintiff, John Atkinson Steele, the eldest son of John G. Steele, who
is a party to this record. However this may be, the proceeding for
partition, when removed into the federal court, was properly trans-
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ferred to the equity calendar. To meet this suggestion, the Chief Jus-
tice, in Steele v. Smith, says:

“Jf we consider whether the rule should apply on the death of the life ten-
ant without exercising the power of appointment, and should hold that the
statute then executed the use in those who then answered the description of
the heirs at law of John G. Steele, it would only follow that such heirs then
became vested with the fee in remainder as a legal estate which had not pre-
viously coalesced with * * * an extinct estate.”

In conclusion he says that:

“In this way the intention of the grantor is not defeated by the rule, but
those answering the description of the heirs of John G. Steele; at his death,
take, not by inheritance from the ancestor, but as purchasers under the grant
of John Steele, Sr., in accordance with the manifest intention of the grantor.”

The court was impressed with the conviction that it was the in-
tention of John Steele, Sr., to make a settlement of his property
through the medium of a trustee, by giving the land to the trustee to
hold for the life of the son, with a restricted power of appointment,
vesting in the trustee the legal title to be conveyed by him to the ap-
pointee, and upon failure thereof to convey to the heirs of the son—
using the word “heirs” as descriptio personarum. The language used
in the deed, indicates that the draftsman was a lawyer who under-
stood that the trust created was executory, or at least so held by the
court in South Carolina. That courts of equity, having sole cogni-
zance of the interpretation and administration of executory trusts, have
regard to, and effectuate, the intention of the maker of the instru-
ment, is well settled. Mr. Justice Hunt in Green v. Green, supra,
says:

«There is a distinction between a trust in equity and a mere legal estate,
and that in the latter class the words must be taken as they stand according
to their legal determination, while a different rule prevailed in regard to
trusts. * * * Trusts are the mere creatures of confidence between party
and party, totally distinet in almost every quality from those legal estates
which are the subjects of tenure, * * * and therefore not the object of
those laws which are founded in the nature of tenure. They are rights aris-

ing solely out of the intent of the party who created them, and therefore such
intent should be the only guide in the execution of them.”

The first inquiry here is whether the decision in Steele v. Smith
is a declaration of a rule of property, recognized and in force in
South Carolina, when John G. Steele conveyed the land to Pagan. In
view of the vigor with which that decision is attacked, we have ex-
tended our investigation somewhat into other jurisdictions. The ques-
tion has been very fully discussed in the notes to Lord Glenorchy v.
Bosville, 1 L. C. Eq. 1 (3d Am. Ed. 1). The author of the American
note says:

«The distinction between executed and executory trusts here has gone to the
extent of arresting the application of the rule in Shelley’s Case in regard to
executory trusts, and causing the person answering the description of issue,
heirs of the body, or heirs to take as purchasers according to the language
of the will as it stands. For this purpose, a trust will, in the American courts,
be considered as executory, whenever a conveyance is to be made by the-
trustees, or in case of personal property whenever a delivery is to be made
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by the trustees at successive periods of time to the persons respectively en-
titled under the will or articles.”

We are not inadvertent to the fact that the learned editor of the note
is referring to executory trusts created by wills or articles of settle-
ment. Itis, we think, quite clear that the deed executed by John Steele
to Joseph A. Steele was in the nature of a settlement of the property.
We are not able to perceive why his intention should not be eftectuated,
if he has manifested it in the manner recognized by the courts, as it
would have been if he had done so by will. It appears that the question
received very careful consideration by the court of Georgia. Itis said
that:

“The principles and distinctions have Leen accurately defined and estab-
lished, after great discussion by that court.”

In Edmondson v. Dyson, 2 Ga. (2 Kelly) 307, it appears that Mrs.
R. devised her estate to D. in trust for the sole and exclusive use
of her husband during his life, and directed that at his death the trus-
tee should convey the property to such persons as her husband should
be willing to appoint, and if he should die intestate then the trustee
should convey the property to the heir or heirs at law of the
husband absolutely. The husband died intestate and the question was
whether the child of the husband took as purchaser under the will, or
whether the whole estate vested in the husband, and his child took as
his heir, in the regular course of the law. The case was admitted
to depend entirely upon the question whether the trust was executory
or executed. The Supreme Court held that the trust was executory
on the ground that a conveyance was to be made by the trustee. In
the discussion, Mr. Justice Nisbet declared the rule in Shelley’s Case
to be an established principle of law in Georgia but that it applies to
legal estates and executed trusts and does not apply to executory
trusts when the testator plainly implies an intention that it shall not
apply. He says: :

“It is argued with great force that if the limitations are perfect, if the char-
acter of the estates is ascertained, the trust is executed; that the something
left to be done has no reference to any mere act of conveyancing which might
be necessary to effectuate limitations which the testator has fully declared,
but the trust is executory only where the limitations themselves are not de-
fined, where the estates are not ascertained, and in cases where the testator
only leaves loose statements, or notes of his intention, requiring eareful and
responsible deeds, or other instruments, to be by the trustee executed, which
in themselves create and define estates, or which require a decree of chancery
to mould the estates according to such loose memoranda; that it is imma-
terial whether the limitations are legal or equitable; that is whether the
estate * * * may be asserted at law, or a decree in chancery be necessa-
ry to its perfect enjoyment, if the limitations are complete, and there is no
doubt about the quantity or gquality of the estate. I do not deny, but upon
principle it is hard to escape from, the conclusiveness of this reasoning. It
is difiicult to see any reason why an estate to A. in trust to B. for life with
remainder to the heirs of B. is an executed trust, and an estate to A. in trust
to B. for life with remainder in fee to be conveyed to the heirs of B. is an
executory trust. In both cases the intention of the testator is the same; the
estates limited are the same. The only difference is found in the fact that
« % # the testator is his own conveyancer, and the heirs take directly.
and in the second he malkes his trustee his conveyancer, and the heirs take
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through his deed. The thing to be done in the last case, to wit, convey, nei-
ther restricts por enlarges the estate to the heirs. And yet the authorities,
as we shall see, make this very act of conveyancing, the test, or one of the
principal tests, of an executory trust.”

The learned judge concludes his very exhaustive examination of the
authorities, saying:

“T have not found, in the laborious investigation which I have been com-
pelled to give this subject, a single case where a conveyance was required to
be made, bowever merely formal it might appear to be, which bhas been de-
termined to be an executed trust.” '

In discussing the questions presented in that case, and involved in
this appeal, he says:
“The questions * * * involve the application or not to that instrument

[the will of Mrs. Rakestraw] of the celebrated rule of property, known to the
profession as the rule in Shelley’s Case, and the intricate and greatly vexed

jnquiry: What is an executory in contradistinction to an executed trust?
These inquiries are among, if not the most, abstruse, complicated, and least
understood of all that belong to a science abounding in subtle distinctions.
The most brilliant genius, the most profound learning, and the most patient
and continuous labour, have been for centuries applied to their elucidation,
with no very decidedly satisfactory result.”

. He reached the conclusion, concurred in by all of the judges, that
the husband took only a life estate, and his daughter, who was his heir
at law, took as a purchaser in remainder. The opinion is both inter-
esting and enlightening. We have not quoted the language used by
Judge Nisbet for the purpose of expressing either concurrence with, or
dissent from, the conclusion reached, nor for the purpose of invoking
it in aid of the conclusion reached by the Supreme Court of South
Carolina. We do not doubt that the case of Steele v. Smith received
the careful and anxious consideration of that court. This is no less
our duty than our conviction.

[6] If it be conceded that no case exactly on all fours with Steele
v. Smith was decided by the South Carolina Supreme Court prior
to 1868, which are authoritative declarations of the law of the state,
it becomes our duty to ascertain to what extent we should, “for the
sake of comity and to avoid confusion, lean to an agreement with the
state court,” assuming that the “question is balanced with doubt.”
This “question” is, not what the law of this case has been declared in
other American states, or elsewhere, but what is the law of the state
of South Carolina. In Kuhn v. Fairmount Coal Co., supra, the court
did not intend to declare any new rule or principle for the guidance of
the federal courts, but to formulate and restate the rule theretofore
announced, and followed, with respect to the manner in which these
courts should deal with questions of local, or state, law in the exer-
cise of their co-ordinate jurisdiction, based upon diversity of citizen-
ship. The language of the court, in several cases, illustrates the extent
to which the principle has been applied. In Hinde v. Valtiers’ Les-
sees, 5 Pet. 398, 8 L. Ed. 168, it is said:

“There is no principle better established, or more uniformly adhered to in
this court, than that the Circuit Courts, in deciding on titles to real property
in the different states, are bound to decide precisely as the state courts ought
to do.”
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So in Olcott v. Bynum, 17 Wall, 44, 21 L. Ed. 570, the question was
as to the admissibility in evidence of an unregistered deed, under the
North Carolina statute and the adjudications of the Supreme Court of
that state. Mr. Justice Swayne said:

“It is to be considered solely in the light of the statutes and adjudica-
tions in North Carolina. This court must hold and administer the law up-
on the subject as if it were sitting as a local court of that state.” Slaughter
v. Glenn, 98 U. S. 242, 25 L. Ed. 122,

As indicating the authoritative force given to the decision of a case
under somewhat similar conditions, Mr. Justice Brewer, in Halsted v.
Buster, 140 U. S. 273, 11 Sup. Ct. 782, 35 L. Ed. 484, after stating the
question, says:

“This question must be answered in the negative. It might be sufficient to
refer to the case of Bryan v. Willard, 21 W, Va. 65. In that case the pre-
cise question was before the Supreme Court of Appeals of that state, and de-
cided against those claiming under the Martin grant. * # * The cases are
therefore identical. The same points were made and the same questions pre-
sented, with one exception, to be hereafter noticed; and as the title to real
estate, and the construction of deeds and statutes in respect thereto, is a
matter of local law, this court, while exercising an independent jurisdiction,
follows as a rule the decision of the highest court of the state.”

In a well-considered and amply sustained opinion in Southern Rail-
way Co. v. N. C. Corp. Com. (C. C.) 99 Fed. 165, Judge Simonton re-
versed his decree, based upon the construction given by him of a
* North Carolina statute, because, pending the cause in the Circuit
Court, and after filing his decree, the Supreme Court of the state
placed a different construction upon the statute. In re Floyd & Hayes
(E. D. 8. C) 225 Fed. 262, affirmed by Circuit Court of Appeals at
this term, 232 Fed. 119, — C. C. A. —.

As said by the court in Jackson v. Chew, 12 Wheat. 167, 3 L. Ed.
583: :

“This court adopts the state decisions, because they settle the law applica-
ble to the case; and the reasons assigned for this course apply as well to
rules of construction growing out of the common law, as the statute law of
the state, when applied to the title of lands. And such a course is indispensa-
ble, in order to preserve uniformity; otherwise, the peculiar constitution of
the judicial tribunals of the states and of the United States, would be pro-
ductive of the greatest mischief and confusion.”

The reasons upon which this well-settled principle is based are
strongly stated, and the confusion which would result from a failure
to enforce it pointed out by Judge Dayton in Kuhn v. Fairmount Coal
Co. (C. C.) 152 Fed. 1013. ‘

[6,7] Whether the decision of the Supreme Court.of South Caro-
lina in Steele v. Smith was the declaration of a rule of property, based
upon decisions of that court prior to 1868, and therefore an authorita-
tive declaration of the law of the state at that time, or whether, upon
the examination of the decided cases, both before and since 1868,
the question is “balanced with doubt,” we are constrained “to an agree-
ment with the state court,” unless there be some other questions, not
considered or settled by the decision of the state-court, which should
control our decision here. It is strongly urged that such questions are
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presented. It is conceded that in South Carolina, upon the death of a
trustee, the legal title, subject to the trusts imposed upon the ancestor,
vests in his eldest son; that the statute abolishing the law of primo-
geniture does not apply to estates held in trust. Breeden v. Moore,
supra. Therefore, upon the death of Joseph A. Steele, the legal title
to the land conveyed to Joseph A. Steele, trustee, descended to and
vested in his son, John G. Steele. Appellant contends that this re-
sulted in a merger of the legal and equitable estates in John G. Steele,
thereby vesting in him the absolute legal estate in fee discharged of
the trust. This position is based upon the doctrine that:

“Where a greater and a less legal estate, held in the same right, meet in
the same person, without any intermediate estate, a merger necessarily takes
place. The lesser estate ceases to exist, being merged in the greater, which
alone remains, * * * Wherever, in like manner, a legal and coextensive
cquitable estate meet in the same person, in either instance, the equitable es-
tate is merged at law, for the law regards the legal estate as the superior.”
Pomeroy, Eq. 787. :

Chancellor Kent says:

“If the estates are held in different legal rights, there will be no merger,
provided one of the estates be an accession to the other, merely by the act of
law, as by marriage, by descent, by executorship or intestacy. * * * At
law, the doctrine of merger will operate, even though one of the estates be
held in trust and the other beneficially, by the same person, or on the same
or different trusts. But a court of equity will interpose and support the in-
terests of the cestui que trust, and not suffer the trust to merge in the legal
estate, if the justice of the case require it.” 4 Kent, 101.

In an able and exhaustive discussion of the subject, containing a care-
ful review of the decisions of the Supreme Court of South Carolina,
upon the subject ‘of merger of estates, Mr. Justice Woods, in Mc-

Creary v. Coggeshall, 74 S. C. 42, 53 S. E. 978, 7 L. R. A. (N. S.) 433,
7 Ann, Cas. 693, says:

“We think it clear the later cases in this state establish the proposition,
which as we have seen is in accord with the doctrine universally recognized
in other jurisdictions, that in equity at least merger will not take place if op-
posed to the intention of the parties, affirmatively proved or to be implied
from the fact that merger would be opposed to the interest of the person in
whom the different estates or interests become united.”

Judge Woods, in answer to the contention that, in enforcing the
doctrine of merger, courts of law took no account of the intention of
the parties, that this was only done by courts of equity, says:

“We conclude there is not controlling authority that the intention is not te
be regarded in an issue of law, or as to legal estates, but on the contrary the
tendency of modern authority is to regard the intention controlling at law as
well as in equity. There is certainly no reason to be found for any distinc-
tion.”

The equitable doctrine has superseded the legal. 20 Am. & Eng. Enc.
391.
“Where the purpose for which the trust was created required the legal es-

tate to remain distinet, equity will require the carrying into effect of this
purpose and prevent merger.” 39 Cyc. 246.
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Mr. Hill, after defining the doctrine of merger of estates, at law,
says:

“In such cases, however, equity will interpose, and will preserve the equi-
table interests from destruction, either by decreeing possession to the cestui

que trust, during the period of the estate so merged, or by decreeing a convey-
ance to revive the legal estate.” Hill, Trustees, § 252.

Mr. Perry says:

“If A. should convey lands to B. in trust for C. and her heirs, and C. should
be the heir of B., upon the death of B. the legal title would descend to C.,
and thus both the legal and equitable title would meet in C.; but if C. was
a married woman, and it was plainly the intention of the grantor or settlor,
to be gathered from the whole instrument, that the trust should not cease,
but continue an active trust, the couvrt would not allow the equitable estate to
merge in the legal, but, a new trustee would be appointed to take the legal
title.” Perry on 'Crusts, § 347; Donalds v. Plum, 8 Conn. 447%.

In Thorm v. Newman, 3 Swans, 603 (36 Eng. Rep. Reprint, 991),
Lord Nottingham, in reply to the contention that, upon the facts be-
fore him, there was a merger, said:

“Whatever the law may be, it ought to be no merger in equity.”

In Hunt v. Hunt, 14 Pick. (31 Mass.) 374, 384, 25 Am. Dec. 400,
Shaw, Chief Justice, said;

“In order to effect a merger at law, the right previously existing in an in-
dividual, and the right subsequently acquired, in order to coalesce and merge,
must be precisely coextensive, must be acquired and -held in the same right,
and there must be no right outstanding in a third person, to intervene be-
tween the right held and the right acquired. If any of these requisites are
wanting, the two rights do not merge, but both may well stand together.”

In Donalds v. Plum, supra, the court, citing Phillips v. Brydges,
3 Ves, Jr. 126, said:

“The legal and equitable estates must be coextensive, be commensurate, or
there must be the same estate in law as in equity. A court of equity will
always prevent a merger to preserve any beneficial interest of the parties, to
promote the purposes of justice, or effect the intention of the donor. Such
equitable estates are to be held perfectly distinct and separate from the le-
gal.”

A careful examination of the opinion in Wills v. Cooper, 25 N. J.
Law, 137, relied upon by appellant, does not disclose any divergence
from the current of authority in regard to the doctrine of merger and
its application. The learned judge quotes with approval the language
found in Hill on Trustees, 252. He says:

“Here the legal estate cast upon R. by descent was undoubtedly broad
enough to cover his equitable interest; and * * * hig equitable beneficial

interest and the absolute legal estate which he took by the descent clear of
the trust were precisely coextensive and commensurate”

—<learly recognizing the essential requisites to a merger of estates.
No rights of third parties, either legal or equitable, intervened.

In Mangum v. Piester, 16 S. C. 317, both estates were legal; hence
the lesser merged into the larger, when vested in the same person. In
Lipscomb v. Goode, 57 S. C. 182, 35 S. E. 493, the court would not
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permit a merger because to do so would destroy the rights of a third
party. Here Joseph A. Steele held the legal title in trust to convey
to such person as, according to the terms of the deed, upon the death
of John G. Steele, were entitled to call for its conveyance. The legal
title, with this executory trust impressed upon it, vested in John G.
Steele, by operation of law. Itis said, however, that he could not hold
as trustee for himself, or execute the trust. It is the peculiar office of
a court of equity to prevent the failure of an executory trust, effectuate
the intention of the person who created it, and preserve the rights
of the cestui que trust. When it is ascertained that a valid trust has
been created, the court enforces it according to the intention of the
maker, and, if for any reason the trusteeé named cannot execute it, or if
no trustee be named, appoints a trustee, and so molds its decree that
the rights of the beneficial owners are preserved. ‘The maxim of
equity that “a trust shall never fail for want of trustee” is elementary.
In this case, as upon the death of John G. Steele, without having ex-
ercised the power of appointment, the plaintiffs are entitled, under
the terms of the deed, to both the legal and equitable title, we see
no reason why, as was held by the Supreme Court in Steele v. Smith,
the intention of John Steele should not be effectuated by treating them
as the owners in fee of the one-half undivided interest in the land.
1f there was no merger of the legal and equitable title by reason of
the descent of the legal title upon John G. Steele, the legal and
equitable estates remained separate and distinct, and upon his death
the legal title, in the same plight, descended to his eldest son. If the
trust is not executed in the plaintiffs, upon the death of John G.
Steele, it vested in his son, John A. Steele, who is a party to this rec-
ord and represents the legal title. With the other appellees, every
person who, under any possible aspect, can have any interest in or title,
either legal or equitable, to the land, are in the record, and will be
bound by the decree.

[8] Appellant insists that, when John G. Steele executed a deed to
Pagan, sufficient in form, and with warranty, for a valuable consid-
eration, to convey the fee, he extinguished the power to appoint the
estate by will— “that he was estopped from thereafter exercising,
by will; the power of appointment.” If it be conceded that this con-
tention is sound, we do not perceive how it affects the rights of ap-
pellees. It may be that if, after executing the deed to Pagan, he had
executed a will appointing the estate, the contingent remainder would
have been destroyed, and, further that his appointee may have been de-
creed to hold the legal title in trust for Pagan. These questions, how-
ever interesting, are entirely academic here, because there are no facts
to make them of practical interest. Counsel frankly concede that the
deed to Pagan was not a valid execution of the power—it could have
no other legal effect than to vest in Pagan the life estate of John G.
Steele. In the case which the record presents, so far as the rights
of the appellees are concerned, John G. Steele simply failed to exer-
cise the power of appointment. In that respect it is on all fours with
Edmondson v. Dyson, supra. The opinion of Judge Nisbet, in deal-
ing with this aspect of the case, is interesting. Referring to the fail-



HIGHLAND PARK MFQ@. CO. V. STEELE 33

ure of the husband of Mrs. R. to exercise the power to appoint the
fee by will, he says:

“He died intestate, and of course without having exercised the power. The
power, therefore, falls to the ground, or rather it is as though it had never
been, or as a void power. He had the abllity, during life, to defeat the re-
mainder to his heirs at law, by appointing the fee to convey to others. Not
having done so, the property takes just that direction which the testatrix, an-
ticipating such a contingency, willed it to take. By the provisions then of
the will itself, upon the death of G. L. R., intestate, the power of appointment
becomes a nullity, for she further directs the trustee, upon his death intes-
tate, to convey the property absolutely to his heirs at law. * * *- We there-
fore abstract it, for the future, wholly from the will, except in so far as the
clause in relation to it may be used as an indicium of intention.” s

The learned and resourceful counsel for appellant draws the con-
clusion that, by conveying the fee to Pagan, John G. Steele extin-
guished the power—that is, as he puts it, estopped himself from
exercising it—and therefore the case “must be considered just as
though the power of appointment had never existed, and being con-
sidered in this light it must be held that the deed conveyed a fee
simple.” Without pausing to examine the validity of the proposition
that the execution of the deed to Pagan extinguished the power, we
are unable to adopt the conclusion reached by counsel assuming the
premise to be correct. We do not think that, by attempting to execute
the power in an unauthorized manner, he could destroy the rights of
the remaindermen, or bring about any other result than a failure to
exercise it would do.

Without further extending the discussion, leaning to an agreement
with the decisions of the Supreme Court of South Carolina, as declar-
ing the law of the state, in respect to the character of the trust created
by the deed, and the construction given to it, we conclude that, when
the deed of John Stezle was delivered, an executory trust was created
and imposed upon the legal title, that the trustee was required to hold
the legal title in fee for the purpose of effectuating the trusts declared,
and that, upon the death of John G. Steele intestate, appellants, his
widow and children, being his heirs, were entitled to a conveyance of
the fee. The other questions argued in this court were not discussed
or specifically decided, because so far as appears they were not raised
by counsel in Steele v. Smith. We therefore pro hac vice treated
them as open for our consideration. An examination of the authon-
ties cited in the briefs brings us to the conclusion that there was no
merger of the legal and equitable estates in John G. Steele upon the
death of his father, Joseph A. Steele, and that the execution of the
deed to Pagan did not affect the rights of the appellees. While we
have, at probably greater length than was necessary, discussed the
several phases of the case presented upon the argument, we are of
the opinion that the controlling factor is found in the character of the
trust created by the deed executed by John Steele to Joseph A. Steele.
When it is found, by adopting the South Carolina decisions, that it
was executory, it follows that a court of equity will, in its interpreta-
tion, seek to effectuate the intention of the maker of the deed. Mr.
Adams says that a court of equity in enforcing an executory trust will

232 F—3
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give to the language used its legal meaning, unless an intention to the
contrary is found in the instrument, and that:

“The intention so to modify them may be collected from slighter indica-
tions than would be sufficient, if an executed one, e. g. * * #* from an ex-
press limitation to the first taker for life followed by a remainder to the heirs
of his body.” Ad. Eq. 42,

The editor of the third Am. edition cites Garner v. Garner, 1 Desaus.
(S.C.) 444. See, also, Patrick v. Morehead, 85 N C. 62, 39 Am. Rep.
684. .

[9-13] It appears, from the cross-bill filed by appellant, that the
origmal tract, one-half of which was conveyed in trust, has been divid-
ed and subdivided, and that certain conveyances have been made
between those holding fractional parts, under some of whom appel-
lant claims. Eliminating a number of complications not relevant to
this controversy, it appears that Wilson and Smith and Watson became
the owners of an undivided interest in 99 acres of the original tract.
They made partition of this portion of the land between themselves,
by executing deeds of exchange, and by this arrangement that part
known as “tract A,” 27 acres, was conveyed to Smith and Wilson,
and the other tracts to Watson. The 27 acres, by successive convey-
ances, came to appellant and is the subject-matter of this controversy.
It is conceded by appellees that appellant owns one-half undivided
interest in the 27 acres, and they seek to have partition. Of course
the partition made between Smith and Wilson and Watson does not
affect the rights of appellees; but it is claimed that, in making the
partition, appellants are entitled to certain equities, which will be en-
forced by the court. They are set up in the cross-bill. It is true that,
although one tenant in common executes a deed to a stranger to the
- title, describing and purporting to convey the entire tract by metes
and bounds, the deed is effectual to convey only his undivided interest.
This does not, in any degree, disturb the rights of the other tenant.
This may be regarded as elementary, and is not controverted here.
If, however, by reason of the fact that the grantee, in the bona fide
belief that he has, by his deed, acquired a good and valid title to the
entire tract of land conveyed, places improvements upon it, the court,
in its decree directing partition, while preserving the rights of the co-
. tenant, will direct the partition to be so made as to conserve the equi-
_ties of all parties, both by providing for compensation for the better-
ments, and, if practicable, and without prejudicing the rights of the
other cotenants, directing the allotment of the part upon which im-
provements have been made to the tenant who made them.

In this case it is difficult to see how the equity invoked can be admin-
istered. The parties to this record do not own in common any other
land than that described in the bill. To bring into the decree the ques-
tions involved in the cross-bill would necessitate making other parties
and involve collateral questions which are foreign to those properly
cognizable in this cause. The decree protects the interests of appel-
lants in regard to the betterments. With the findings of the special |
master, upon which the decree is made, we do not find any just cause
of complaint, in respect to the method directed of making partition.
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The appellees’ right to have partition is not barred by the statute of
limitations. The refusal to permit an amendment to the cross-bill
was a matter of discretion in the District Court, nor do we perceive
any necessity for the cross-bill. The rights of the parties are pro-
tected by the decree in the original bill Upon a careful considera-
tion of the record, we do not find any error.

The decree is affirmed.

PRITCHARD, Circuit Judge (concurring). I am of opinion that
the question whether a rule of property in South Carolina decisive of
this case was established prior to 1868 is balanced in doubt; there-
fore in pursuance of the principle announced by the Supreme Court
of the United States in the case of Kuhn v. Fairmount Coal Company,
215 U. S. 349, 30 Sup. Ct. 140, 54 L. Ed. 228, T concur in following
the decision of the Supreme Court of South Carolina in the case of
Steele v. Smith, 84 S. C. 464, 66 S. E. 200, 29 L. R. A. (N. S.) 939.

HOWLAND v. CORN et al.

EMPIRE TRUST GO. v. IMPROVED PROPERTY HOLDING CO. OF NEW
YORK et al.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. February 15, 1916.)
Nos. 71, 72.

1. CONSPIRACY &=22—JUDGMENT~—PLEADING—SURPLUSAGE—ALLEGATIONS AS
170 CONSPIRACY. .

An averment that acts were done in pursuance of a conspiracy does
not change the nature of a civil action, or add anything to.its legal force
and effect; and if the conspiracy is not made out, the allegation may be
disregarded as surplusage, and damages recovered against such of the
defendants as are shown to be guilty of the tort without such agreement.

{Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Conspiracy, Cent. Dig. § 24; Dec. Dig.
E&=222.]

2. CONSPIRACY ~»24—CRIMINAL PROSECUTIONS—IELEMENTS OF OFFENSE.

In a criminal prosecution for conspiracy, the unlawful combination and
confederacy, rather than the overt acts done in pursuance of it, consti--
tute the essential element of the offense.

[Ed. Note—Tor other cases, see Conspiracy, Cent, Dig. §§ 33, 34; Dec.
Dig. ¢=24.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Conspiracy.]}

8. APPEAL AND ERROR C=21029—HARMLESS ERROR—THEORY OF CASE.

In an action by the receiver of a corporation against its directors for
an accounting and damages, on the theory that they conspired to sell prop-
erty to the corporation, which they owned and in which they had an in-
terest, at an excessive price, it was immaterial, if true, that the trial
judge misconceived the nature of the action, and erroneously took the
position that proof of the alleged conspiracy was necessary, where the
court not only found that there was no conspiracy, but also found that
there was no fraud, and no intent to inflict a wrong, or to get an undue or

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes

5 ~



36

232 FEDERAL REPORTER

fllegal profit, as its conclusions expressly negatived the facts upon which
complainant would have had to rely to sustain a judgment in his favor
ander a correct understanding of the true nature of the action.

{Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. §§ 4035,
4036; Dec. Dig. €=1020.] .

4. "CORPORATIONS &=317(6)—IaABILITY OF DIRECTORS—PERSONS ENTITLED TO

ENFORCE LIABILITY.

The general creditors of a corporation have as much right as stockhold-
ers or mortgage bondholders to be protected against the fraud and negli-
gence of the directors, and have a right through a receiver to compel the
directors to make good any loss resulting from the corporation’s purchase
of valueless parcels of real estate, if occasioned by the fraud or negli-
gence of the directors.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 1413, 1414;
Dec. Dig. €=317(6).]1

5. CORPORATIONS_ &=316(1)—DIRECTORS—PERSONAL TRANSACTIONS WITH Cor-

PORATION.,

While, strictly speaking, the directors of a corporation are not trustees,
they are the agents of the corporation, and because of this fiduciary rela- -
tionship the dealings of a_director in his own right with the corporation
are regarded with great jealousy and subjected to close scrutiny.

" [Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. §§ 1401, 1402,
1405, 1406, 1409; Dec. Dig. ¢&==316(1).]

6. CORPORATIONS &=2314(1)—DIRECTORS—PERSONAL TRANSACTIONS WITH CoOR-

PORATION. \

The position of directors of a corporation which had only five directors .
was one of great trust, and their character as agents did not permit them
to exercise their powers against the interests of the corporation, its
stockholders, or creditors, and they were bound to exercise good faith,
and not to permit their official conduct to be swayed by their private in-
terest, and they could not derive any individual advantage at the expense
of the corporation and to the injury of its interests.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. §§ 1393-1395;
Dec. Dig. &=314(1).1

7. CORPORATIONS &:0316(1)—DIRECTORS—PERSONAL TRANSACTIONS WITH CORB-

PORATION.

A director is not disabled from selling his own property to his corpora-
tion, provided there are enough directors present who have no personal
interest in the property, and the sale is open, fair, and honest.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, seé Corporations, Cent. Dig. §§ 1401, 1402,
1405, 1406, 1409; Dec. Dig. &=316(1).]

8. CORPORATIONS &=316(1)—DIRECTORS—PERSONAL TRANSACTIONS WITH COR-

PORATION.

If a director’s sale of his own property to his corporation is not open,
fair, and honest, the transaction can be set aside, and the director called
upon to make good any loss infiicted upon the corporation.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. §§ 1401, 1402,
1405, 1406, 1409; Dec. Dig. €=316(1).]

9, CORPORATIONS €&=320(11)—DIRECTORS—ACTIONS FOR FRAUD OB NEGLIGENCE

—SUFFICIENCY OF EVIDENCE.

In an action against directors of a corporation for an accounting and
damages, evidence held insufficient to show that the price at which real
estate owned by one of them and other real estate in which others of
them had a beneficial interest was sold to the corporation was grossly
excessive, or that they acted fraudulently or negligently, notwithstanding
a large difference between the income which the sellers were obtaining

@&—»For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes



HOWLAND V. CORN 37

from such property and the interest on bonds of the corporation delivered
in payment for the property.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 1437; Dec.
Dig. ¢=320(11).]

10. CORPORATIONS &=316(1)—DTRECTORS—PERSONAL TRANSACTIONS WITH COR-
PORATION.

Directors of a corporation, when dealing with themselves, must be
scrupulous to see that they do not involve the corporation in a transac-
tion unfair or not advantageous to it, and are bound to look out for the
interests of the corporation.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. §§ 1401, 1402,
14035, 1406, 1409; Dec. Dig. €=316(1).]

11. CORPORATIONS €&=320(11)—DIRECTORS—DEALINGS WITH COBPORATION—
BURDEN ‘'0F PROOF.
The burden is on directors of a corporation, dealing with themselves,
to show that the transaction was perfectly fair to the corporation.
[Bd. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent, Dig. § 1437; Dec.
Dig. &=320(11).]

Appeals from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of New York.

Suits by Silas W. Howland, as receiver of the Improved Property
Holding Company of New York, against Henry Corn and others, and
by the Empire Trust Company, as trustee under a mortgage of the Im-
proved Property Holding Company of New York, against the Improv-
ed Property Holding Company of New York and others. From a de-
cree dismissing the bill of complaint in the first suit, the complainant
appeals; and from a decree for the complainant in the second suit the
defendants the Improved Property Holding Company of New York
and Silas W. Howland, receiver, appeal. Affirmed.

The first cause is a suit brought by a receiver against the directors of the
corporation of which he has been appointed receiver, to establish a personal
liability on the part of the defendants for reasons which are hereinafter more
fully stated. The second cause is a sult for the foreclosure of a mortgage
in which the same receiver appeared and answered, setting up the invalidity
of certain bonds issued under-the mortgage in foreclosure. In the first suit
the receiver alleges as a portion of his cause of action the same facts asserted
to show invalidity of the bonds in the second and which are relied upon to
establish a personal liability of the defendants in the first suit. The two ac-
tions were tried together in the court below and were disposed of in a single
opinion.

Separate decrees were entered—in the first suit, on January 11, 1915; in
the second suit, on August 6, 1914; and on February 4, 1915, a supplemental
decree was filed. The trial court dismissed the bill of complaint in the first
suit, having found that the directors, the defendants, had been honest in their
dealings with the corporation. In the second suit the mortgage made by the
Improved Property Holding Company to the Empire Trust Company as trustee,
dated May 24, 1909, was adjudged valid, coupon bonds to the face value of
$1,000,000 were adjudged duly issued, and $223,000 face value of these bonds
were adjudged duly redeemed by payment in cash, and $777,000 face value
of the bonds were adjudged outstanding, legal, and unpaid obligations of the
company secured by the mortgage. And the prayers contained in the answer
of the receiver were denied. An appeal has been taken in each suit. The
two cases were argued together in this court. - .

The Improved Property Holding Company is a corporation organized an
existing under the laws of the state of New York. It was organized to ac-
quire and hold improved business properties in the borough of Manhattan.

G=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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The complainant in the first suit was appointed by the District Court for the
Southern District the receiver of the Improved Property Holding Company,
and of all the property and assets of that company not covered by its mort-
gages dated June 1, 1906, and May 24, 1909. The General Realty & Mortgage
Company is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state
of New York, having its principal office in the city of New York. The defend-
ants in the first suit, with the exception of the General Realty & Mortgage
Company, constituted the board of directors of the Improved Property Holding
Company ; -Corn being president of the company, Ball and Dowling vice-presi-
dents, and O’Donohue treasurer and secretary.

At all the times mentioned in the complaint in the first suit, Ball and O’Dono-
hue are alleged to have been officers and directors of the General Realty & Mort-
gage Company and are said to have controlled its affairs, holding a majority
of the stock. Out of 10,000 shares of the stock Ball, it is alleged, held 4,800
shares, O’Donohue more than 1,000 shares, and O’Donohue’s wife, brother,
and brother's wife owned in the aggregate 3,000 shares. It is alleged that
prior to May 24, 1909, Corn, Ball, O’Donohue and the General Realty & Mort-
gage Company, through its officers and directors, entered into a combination
and conspiracy to cause the Improved Property Holding Company to issue
and deliver its negotiable 6 per cent. coupon bonds, secured by a mortgage
.on its property, in the aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000, without re-
ceiving fair or adequate consideration therefor; to obtain for themselves
$555,000 face value of said bonds, without giving any fair or adequate consid-
eration therefor, and upon terms grossly inequitable, burdensome and uncon-
scionable as to said Improved Property Holding Company and greatly to the
advantage of said Corn, Ball, and O’Donohue, and said General Realty & Mort-
- gage Company; to obtain for themselves large sums as interest on said bonds;
to transfer from said General Realty & Mortgage Company and said Corn to
the Improved Property Holding Company certain unprofitable and rapidly
-deteriorating parcels of real property, known as No. 476 Broadway and
No. 395 Broadway, respectively, in the borough of Manhattan, city of
New York, and to shift from the General Realty & Mortgage Company and
said Corn to the Improved Property Holding Company the burdens and obli-
gations incident to the operation and ownership of said properties; and to
obtain for themselves large sums of money through the ownership of the bonds
to be issued, both by selling or otherwise disposing of some of the bonds, and
by causing many of the bonds to be redeemed at a premium and otherwise.
Pursuant to the combination and conspiracy and with such purpose and in-
tent as aforesaid, the said Corn, Ball, and O’Donohue, and the General Realty
& Mortgage Company through its officers and directors, are said to have de-
vised and consummated the wrongful and illegal scheme and schemes herein-
after set forth.

It is alleged that pursuant to this illegal conspiracy the defendants caused
a meeting to be held of the directors of the Improved Property Holding Com-
pany to authorize the execution of a mortgage dated May 24, 1909, by the
Improved Property Holding Company to the Empire Trust Company as trus-
tee, covering all the property then owned by said Improved Property Holding
Company, and also to authorize the issue, ostensibly for the purpose of se-
curing capital for the transaction of the business of the Improved Property
Holding Company and also for other lawful purposes of its incorporation, of
$1,000,000 face value of 6 per cent. coupon bonds of the Improved Property
Holding Company, secured by said mortgage, and that they further and in
like manner and with such purpose and intent as aforesaid caused the board
of directors of the Improved Property Holding Company to authorize and
direct the purchase by the Improved Property Holding Company from the
General Realty & Mortgage Company and from Henry Corn, respectively, of
the premises known as No. 395 Broadway and No. 476 Broadway, respective-
1y,. both situated in the borough of Manhattan, city of New York, for $555,000
face value of said bonds, $450,000 face value of said bonds to be issued to the
General Realty & Mortgage Company for premises No. 395 Broadway, sub-
ject to a mortgage to secure the principal sum of $750,000 and interest, and
$105,000 face value of said bonds to be issued to Henry Corn for premises
known as No. 476 Broadway, subject to mortgage to secure principal sums ag-



HOWLAND V. CORN 39

gregating $545,000 and interest. It is alleged that defendants Dowling and
Barlow were negligent and remiss in the discharge of their duty as directors
of the Improved Property Holding Company and that they failed to exercise
the degree of care which an ordinarily prudent and diligent man would have
exercised under like circumstances in voting for the purchase of premises 395
and 476 Broadway. :

The various acts set forth in the complaint are alleged to have been wrong-
ful and illegal, and it is averred were all parts of and constituted a wrong-
ful and illegal conspiracy and scheme on the part of the defendants Corn,
Ball, O’Donchue, and the General Realty & Mortgage Company to derive
benefit and profit for themselves at the expense, regardless of the rights and
interests, and in violation of the rights and interests, of said Improved Prop-
erty Holding Company of New York, and in violation of the trust and con-
fidence reposed in said Corn, Ball, and O’'Donohue, as officers and directors of
the Improved Property Holding Company. The defendant General Realty &
Mortgage Company is alleged to have participated in the conspiracy, and
as the tool and dummy of the defendants Ball and O’'Donohue to have had no
independent object and interest, but to have been completely subservient, at
all the times and with respect to all the acts mentioned, to the said Ball and
O’Donohue. It is also alleged that each of the defendants became liable to
account for all moneys and property received by him or it by reason of the
unlawful acts complained of, and that all of the defendants became jointly
and severally accountable and liable to pay to the complainant as receiver of
the Improved Property Holding Company full compensation for all loss and
damages incurred by the Improved Property Holding Company and its cred-
itors, by reason of the wrongful and illegal acts charged.

The complainant asks that it be adjudged that none of the $555,000 face
value of the bonds, and none of the interest coupons thereto appertaining,
issued for the acquisition of the premises No. 395 Broadway and No. 476
Broadway, are valid or enforceable oblizations of the Improved Property
Holding Company, or entitled to any part of the security of the lien of its
mortgage dated May 24, 1909, except such of said bonds and coupons as have

come into the hands of purchasers for a valuable consideration without no-
tice. The complainant also asks that the defendants be compelled to account
before a master and that each of them be decreed to pay to complainant all
moneys paid to them by the Improved Property Holding Company as interest
upon any of said $555,000 face valite of the bonds alleged to have been wrong-
fully and illegally issued, and of all moneys paid to them for the redemption
of any of the bonds, and of all moneys and property received by them, or
any of them, in return for the transfer, hypothecation or other disposition by
them, or any of them, of any of the bonds. Damages and an injunction are
also asked.

The defendants deny various material allegations of the complaint and
ask a decree establishing the validity of the bonds, $555,000 face value, issued
by the Improved Property Holding Company to Corn and the General Realty
& Mortgage Company.

William M. Chadbourne, of New York City (Henry I. Stimson,
William M. Chadbourne, and Minturn De S. Verdi, all of New York
City, of counsel), for appellant receiver.

Rosenthal & Heermance, of New York City (Clayton J. Heermance,
of New York City, of counsel), for appellee Corn.

Guy Van Amringe, of New York City (George E. Hargrave, of
New York City, of counsel), for appellee Barlow.

Lyttleton Fox, of New York City, for appellees Ball and others.

Roger Foster, of New York City, for appellee Dowling.

Before LACOMBE, COXE, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

ROGERS, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). The re-
ceiver of an insolvent corporation sues to recover for the injury he
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claims the defendants inflicted upon the Improved Property Holding
Company of New York, hereinafter called the company, by their
fraudulent and negligent conduct while acting as directors thereof.
This is the first of the two suits and will be the first considered. The
second suit is substantially between the same parties and substantially
raises the same issues, so that the conclusion reached in the first suit
will enable us readily to dispose of the questions involved in the sec-
ond.

In the first suit the bill was dismissed because the court below did
not believe that any conspiracy to defraud the company had been enter-
ed into by those of the defendants who were alleged to have conspired
to bring about the unlawful result, and also because the court did not
believe that defendants Dowling and Barlow (who were not charged
with conspiracy or fraud) had not been guilty of a failure -to exercise
that reasonable degree of care which as directors of the company they
were bound to give in the dlscharge of their duties.

The counsel for appellant argued in this court that the court below
had misapprehended the nature of the suit and mistakenly assumed
that conspiracy meant the same in civil suits as in the criminal law, and
that this misconception of the District Judge as to the nature of the
action pervaded his whole opinion. This error, it was said, went to the
very root of the decision, and it was claimed that the court did not
recognize the fact that the suit was based, not upon a conspiracy, but
upon the action of the directors in selling to the company, upon terms
unfair to it, properties in which they were personally interested. It is
true the court below said:

“It cannot be too strongly insisted that this bill as against these defendants
counts only upon a conspiracy.”

It was also said:

“Taking the whole bill, it is impossible to say that its prayers can prevail
against the defendants other than Dowling and Barlow, unless a conspiracy
be shown.”

[1,2] There can be no question, we take it, but that an averment
that acts were done in pursuance of a conspiracy does not change the
nature of the civil action or add anything to its legal force and effect.
In a criminal prosecution for conspiracy the unlawful combination and
confederacy constitute the essential element of the offense rather than
the overt acts done in pursuance of it. But that doctrine does not ap-
ply to civil suits for actionable torts. ‘Green v. Davies, 182 N. Y. 499,
503, 75 N. E.. 536, 3 Ann. Cas. 310. In the civil action, if the conspir-
acy is not made out, the allegation may be disregarded as surplusage.
Perry v. Hayes, 215 Mass, 296, 102 N. E. 318. The rule is correctly
stated in 8 Cyc. 647

“If a plaintiff fail in the proof of a conspiracy or concerted design, he may
yet recover damages against such of the defendants as are shown to be guilty
of the tort without such agreement. The charge of conspiracy, where unsup-

ported by evidence, will be considered mere surplusage, not necessary to be
proved to support the action.”

[8] If the court below misconceived the action, the opinion rendered
distinctly makes it evident that, if it had apprehended the true nature
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of the action, the decision would have been exactly the same as that
which it in fact rendered; for the conclusions which the court reached
expressly negatived the facts upon which the complainant would have
had to rely to sustain a judgment in his favor under a correct under-
standing of the true nature of the action. The court below not only
found that there was no conspiracy, but it found that there was no
fraud, no intent to inflict a wrong, or to get an undue or an illegal
profit. The court was convinced that the defendants honestly believed
that the properties involved were worth the values which justified them
in the action taken. The court also found that they exercised as di-
rectors the degree of care and caution which the law required. In
view of these respective findings it is altogether beside the case to
claim that the District Judge fell into an error which affected the judg-
ment to the appellant’s prejudice.

This brings us to a more particular consideration of the facts as we
find them upon the record. The company over which the receiver was
appointed is a hopelessly insolvent concern. It was organized in 1906
to acquire and hold improved business properties in the borough of
Manbhattan in the city of New York and to collect the rents therefrom.
The defendants, Corn, Ball, Dowling, O’Donohue, and Barlow con-
stituted its board of directors. Corn was made president. The com-
pany, immediately upon its organization, acquired from Corn nine
leaseholds of office and loft buildings. These on June 1, 1906, it mort-
gaged to the Colonial Trust Company as trustee to secure an issue of
$1,000,000. This mortgage is known as the “A” mortgage. All of
these bonds were issued between June 1, 1906, and January 1, 1908.
The amount of these bonds still outstanding is stated to be $637,000,
the remainder of the issue having been redeemed. The company sub-
sequently acquired four additional leaseholds. The thirteen leaseholds
thus held were carried on the books of the company on May 1, 1909,
at a total valuation of $3,582,232.55, subject to underlying mortgages
aggregating $1,080,000 and to the “A” bonds, of which $910,000 were
then outstanding. The directors believed that there was a considerable
equity in the “A” leaseholds over the “A” mortgage. The “A” lease-
holds, acquired from Corn, were prosperous and were operated by
him under a contract with the Holding Company whereby he agreed
to turn over to the latter a net sum therefrom of $250,000.

On May 26, 1909, the directors held a board meeting and adopted
two resolutions. The first related to the purchase of the property
known as 395 Broadway, in the borough of Mahhattan and it reads
as follows:

“Resplved, that this company purchase the premises No. 395 Broadway from
General Realty & Mortgage Company, subject to an existing mortgage of
$350,000 and interest for $450,000, payable in its proposed new issue of bonds,
and that in addition thereto it sell to General Realty & Mortgage Company
$300,000, par value, of sald issue of bonds, at 80 per cent. of the face value
of which $250,000 par value shall be purchased as soon as the interim cer-
iiﬁfgé:gi therefor are ready for delivery, and the balance on or before August

The second related to the purchase of the property known as 476
Broadway, also in the borough of Manhattan, and it reads as follows:
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“Resolved, that this company purchase the premises known as No. 474476
Broadway, from Henry Corn, subject to $545,000 of mortgage and interest
thereon for the sim of $105,000 payable in said bonds, and that Henry Corn
be offered the option of purchasing $100,000 additional of said bonds at 80 per
cent. of the face value, within one year, unless the company require the mon-
ey sooner, in which case it may require Henry Corn to exercise the option on
30 days’ notice.”

On these two resolutions these suits are based. At the meeting at
which the above resolutions were adopted it was also voted to author-
ize the execution of a mortgage dated May 24, 1909, and known as the
“B” mortgage. This mortgage was given to secure the payment of.
bonds to the amount of $1,000,000, dated June 1, 1909, and payable
June 1, 1924, and bearing interest at the rate of 6 per cent. The mort-
gage ran to the Empire Trust Company as trustee. And at the same
meeting the board authorized the sale to the General Realty & Mort-
gage Company of $300,000 face value of “B” bonds at 80.

The theory of the bill of complaint is that the defendants Corn,
Ball, and O’Donohue and the General Realty & Mortgage Company en-
tered into a combination and conspiracy to defraud the company and
to unload on the latter certain real estate alleged to have been unprofit-
able and rapidly deteriorating property; that the General Realty &
Mortgage Company owned No. 395 Broadway, and that Ball and
O’Donohue owned the majority of the stock of the company and con-
trolled its affairs; that No. 395 Broadway produced in 1909 a net in-
come of only $11,757.47, with no allowance for depreciation; that in
exchanging it for $450,000 face value of “B” bonds the General Real-
ty & Mortgage Company (which was Ball and O’Donohue) obtained
an annual interest charge of 6 per cent. on that amount, or $27,000;
that the defendant Corn owned No. 476 Broadway, and that it was pro-
ducing a net income of about $2,326.68 a year; that in exchanging it
for $105,000 of the bonds bearing 6 per cent. interest Corn obtained
$6,300 a year. The bill charges that the loss suffered by the company
by the taking over of these two properties is in excess of $300,000.
At the time these properties were purchased the board-of directors con-
sisted of five persons, and Corn, Ball, and O’Donohue were three of
the five and voted for the resolutions, and in doing so sold their own
property to the company at grossly excessive prices, to their own great
private advantage and with disastrous results to the corporation.

The theory of the complaint as respects the other two defendants,
Dowling and Barlow, is materially different. They also were present
at the meeting of the board of directors when these two properties
were purchased by the company and they voted in favor of that action.
It is not, however, claimed that either of the two was guilty of any
fraud, or was engaged in or cognizant of any alleged conspiracy, or
that their personal interests were adverse to or in conflict with those of
the corporation of which they were directors, or that they were at-
tempting to derive an individual benefit at the expense of their cor-
poration. The charge against them is that they were negligent in the
discharge of their duties as directors, that they voted to take over
those properties without ascertaining the assessed value of the prop-
erties for the purpose of taxation, and that they failed to obtain an in-



HOWLAND V. CORN 43

dependent appraisal of each of them, and also failed to ascertain the
net income of each for the period preceding the date of the resolution
for their purchase.

[4] The acts of which the receiver complains have never been com-
plained of by any of the stockholders of the insolvent company; nei-
ther have any of the bondholders complained, although the wrongs, if
wrongs they were, were committed in May, 1909. The only com-
plaint ever made is that made by the receiver representing the general
creditors. The general creditors, however, have as much right as the
stockholders or the bondholders to be protected against the fraud and
negligence of the directors, and they have a right through the receiver
to compel the directors to make good any loss which resulted from
the purchase by the company of valueless parcels of real estate, if it
appears that the loss was occasioned either by the fraud or the negli-
gence of the defendants.

[5] In Koehler v. Black River Falls Iron Co., 2 Black, 715, 721, 17
L. Ed. 339 (1862), the Supreme Court of the United States laid down
the principle that the directors of a corporation are trustees for the
stockholders, and that if they secure to themselves advantages which
are not common to all the stockholders they are guilty of a breach of
trust which the courts of equity will remedy. While strictly speaking-
the directors are not trustees, not being clothed with legal title to the
property which is vested in the corporation, they are the agents of the
corporation, and because of that fiduciary relationship the dealings of
a director in his own right with the corporation are regarded with
great jealousy and subjected to close scrutiny. In Twin-Lick Oil Co.
v. Marbury, 91 U. S. 587, 590, 23 L. Ed. 328 (1875), the Supreme
Court, speaking through Mr. Justice Miller and referring to the neces-
sity in all such cases of candor and fair dealing, says:

“If he should be a sole director, or one of a smaller number vested with cer-
tain powers, this obligation would be still stronger, and his acts subject to

more severe scrutiny, and their validity determined by more rigid principles
of morality and freedom from motives of selfishness.”

[8] In the case at bar, with a board of directors limited to five, the
position which the defendants held was one of great trust. They were
clothed with power to manage the affairs of the corporation for the
benefit of its stockholders and creditors. Their character as agents
did not permit them to exercise their powers as directors against the
interests of the corporation, its stockholders, or its creditors. In com-
mon with all directors, the defendants were bound to exercise good
faith, and not to permit their official conduct to be swayed by their pri-
vate interest. They could not derive any individual advantage at the
expense of the corporation and to the injury of its interests.

[7,8] The defendant Corn was the owner of No. 476 Broadway,
and sold it to the Holding Company, although he was one of its di-
rectors. The General Realty Company was the owner of No. 395
Broadway, and sold it to the Holding Company, although two of the

"directors of the latter, defendants Ball and O’Donohue, were large
stockholders in the General Realty Company. O’Donohue was a di-
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rector of the latter company, and he and his family owned a little less
than a half of its capital stock at the time of this sale; and Ball testified
that he owned nearly half of the stock of the same company. Ball
and O’Donohue were selling a property which they in part beneficially
owned, and Corn was selling a property which he legally owned, to a
corporation of which they were directors. Whether they had the right
to do what they did depends on the circumstances of the case. A di-
rector is not disabled from selling his own property to his corporation,
provided there are enough directors present who have no personal in-
terest in the property and the sale is open, fair, and honest. See
Broughton v. Jones, 120 Mich. 462, 79 N. W. 691. If it is not open,
fair, and honest, the transaction can be set aside, and a director can
be called upon to make good a loss inflicted upon the corporation by
his breach of trust. There was in the case at bar, however, no con-
cealment as to the real ownership of either of these properties. And
we have not found any fraudulent conduct on the part of Corn, Ball,
or O’Donochue, in respect to the sale. Ball testified that the result of
the transaction, the sale of these properties to the company, was a very
serious loss to himself ; that his individual loss was in excess of $100,-
000. O’Donohue testified that the transaction had been a very heavy
loss to him; and Corn testified that the transaction cost him about
$600,000.

[9] We think upon the record that the complainant has failed to
establish the fact which he alleged that the defendants sold their prop-
erties to the company at what could be regarded at the time as grossly
excessive prices. Upon this question it is necessary to refer to the tes-
timony of the experts, although we do not deem it necessary to con-
sider their testimony at any great length. There were six of these wit-
nesses, and one of them, Coleman, testified that he had bought and sold
for his own account more real estate in the city of New York than any
other private individual that he knew of, and mortgage loans running
up into hundreds of millions of dollars had been made on his appraisals.
He had been for years general appraiser for the Mutual and Equitable
Life Insurance Companies, as well as real estate examiner for the state
superintendent of insurance, and appraiser at large for the city of New
York. It is quite unlikely that the opinion of any one else as to the
value of the properties sold to the company could be more valuable, or
that he would express upon the witness stand anything but his mature,
deliberate, and honest opinion. This witness testified that on May- 16,
1909, the date these properties were taken over by the company, he
valued No. 395 Broadway as worth $1,113,000, and No. 476 Broadway
at from $600,000 to $610,000. The valuation which the defendants
had put upon the properties at the time of the transfer were for No.
395 Broadway $1,110,000, and for No. 476 Broadway $629,000. An-
other of the experts had placed an estimate of $1,200,000 upon one of
the properties, and $650,000 upon the other. Another estimated one
at $1,138,745, and the other at $636,625. It is true that the experts
for the complainant place a much lower estimate upon the properties;
but we see no reason why their opinions should be preferred over the
opinions of the experts called by the defendants, and who had had a
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wider experience, and whose fairness and impartiality we see no rea-
son to suspect.

In this connection the fact is not to be overlooked that the Equitable
Life Insurance Company had loaned on No. 395 Broadway the sum of
$750,000, and had in 1906 renewed the loan for five years at 4 per cent.
The Mutual Life Insurance Company had loaned $420,000 on No.
476 Broadway. These companies were as a matter of law permitted
to loan up to and not exceeding two-thirds of the values of the prop-
erties upon which they loaned. If we assume that these mortgages
were as large as the lenders could legally make them, the properties
must, in the opinion of the insurance companies, have been worth at
least $1,125,000 and $630,000 at the time the loans were made. The
panic of 1907 led to a fall in the value of real estate, and these com-
panies might not have loaned in 1909 the same ambunt on these prop-
erties they had loaned a few years before. But whether they would
or not is not disclosed by the record.

In this connection it is observed that in 1902 when the General Real-
ty & Mortgage Company acquired No. 395 Broadway, it paid for it
$1,200,000, by taking it subject to a mortgage of $850,000, paying
$250,000 in cash, and trading in the equity of the property No. 598
Broadway at a valuation of $100,000.

The complainant’s counsel has laid great stress in the argument in
this court upon the fact that according to the figures produced by the
defendant’s accountant the net income from No. 395 Broadway for
the year ending January 31, 1909, after paying interest on the mort-
gage on the property, was only $11,757.47, and for the six years from
January 31, 1903, to January 31, 1909, the average yearly income was
$15,959.75. The average yearly income during the same period, com-
puted from the tables of the accountant called by the complainant, was
$13,145.75. The total rent roll for the year 1909 from that property
was $84,330. The gross annual rentals from No. 476 Broadway were
between $45,000 and $46,000 in 1909, and complainant asserts that the
yearly net income was $2,326.68. The argument then is that there
must have been fraud in this transaction because the company gave its
bonds in exchange for No. 395 Broadway, the interest charge on the
bonds being $27,000 per annum, while the net income the property re-
turned was less than $12,000 for the year 1909; and that the company
in like manner gave its bonds for No. 476 Broadway, obligating itself
to pay an interest charge of $6,300 per annum, while the net income
the property returned was something less than $2,400. We concede
the force of the argument, although we do not accept it as conclusive.
The testimony of the experts shows that it is not conclusive, and that
the relation between the income of these properties and the interest
on the bonds given in exchange for them is not decisive of the ques-
tion of the real value of the properties, or of the good faith of the par-
ties to the transaction.

The sale by Corn of No. 476 Broadway was not the only sale made by
him to the company. Indeed, that company had been organized to take
over his holdings.  The nine leaseholds already mentioned, and which
the “A” mortgages covered, originally belonged to Corn and were sold
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by him to the company. He originally owned all the stock of the com-
pany, although subsequently dividing some portion of it among the
other directors and bond purchasers. There is no allegation that there
was anything irregular or fraudulent in the conduct of Corn as to the
sale of the “A” leaseholds. It appears that shortly after the incorpora-
tion of the company in 1906 there was an issue of what is known as
the “A” bonds, amounting to $1,000,000, to which reference has al-
ready been made. In 1909 funds were needed to pay off $100,000 of
these bonds, which matured on June 1st of that year, and money was
also needed in the construction of the buildings being erected on cer-
tain properties of the company. This bond issue was authorized to
provide the necessary funds, and it was agreed to take over No. 395
and No. 476 Broadway, as the fee of these properties could be obtain-
ed and Mr. O’Donohue was not willing to go ahead and invest in bonds
secured only by leaseholds. Mr. O’Donochue was not then in the com-
pany, but had expressed a willingness to go in if some fee properties
were acquired; and upon its being agreed that such properties should
be acquired he became a director and took a large issue of the bonds.
On becoming a director he voted with the other directors for the issue
of the “B” bonds and the purchase of the fee properties complained
of in this suit. As he had agreed to take a large amount of the bonds,
he became a director, so that he could look after his interests and “see
how things were going to go.”” The fee properties then purchased
were the only fee properties the company possessed.

At the time these transactions occurred Corn was known as about
the most successful real estate operator in New York City. At the
same time Dowling had the reputation of being one of the best inform-
ed real estate men in the city. Ball had a similar reputation. Dowl-
ing testified that: :

‘Ball did the largest business in loft buildings, in big deals, of any man in
New York City; “he did more, sold more, and represented more purchasers

than any other man” he knew, and he considered him “the best posted real
estate broker in New York City on Broadway and the loft district.”

He also testified that Ball was a man of the higheét personal habits
and character. He testified that:

He thought “Corn was the best man on that class of property, of loft build-
ings, in the dry goods district; he built more of them, and had sold more of
them, and had rented more of them, and knew more about renting conditions,
than any other man in New York City. I went in and put my money in this
company on the strength of his ability to rent those properties, as well as his
ability to build them and handle them.”

He stated that he‘had known O’Donohue for a great many years-
and that his reputation was first class.

Corn’s testimony as to his own opinion concerning those transac-
tions was as follows:

#“Q. Was there any doubt in your mind, at the time of the transfer of 395
and 476 Broadway, that the amount at which the company took these prop-
erties in was a fair valuation for the properties? A. No, sir. Q. Did you
have any reason to believe that there was anything the matter with these
properties, or the neighborhood in which they were located? A. Absolutely
not. Q. Did you have any notice of any so-called exodus or migration? A.
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Never. To the contrary, we had a lease made in 1909, which your books will
show expired in the beginning of 1910, for that store in the basement, which
was then leased for $9,000, and a new lease was made at an advance of $1,000
a year: $10,000. Q. Where was that? A. 474476 Broadway. Q. When was
that made? A. 1909, to take effect in 1910, and thereafter for five years. Q.
Was that after the transfer of the properties to the company? A. Yes, sir.
Q. At the time of the transfer of the properties to the company, was the build-
ing fully occupied? A. Absolutely complete; full tenancy. Q. Have you ever
had vacancies there? A. Never had a vacancy there. Q. Can you tell us
about what the net return was from the rents in that building? A. I think
they were, as near as I can remember, somewhere between $45,000 gross and
$46,000 per annum. Q. What were the net returns? A. About $7,000 to $S,-
000 a year; somewhere in between $7,000 and $8,000 a year net.”

He was also asked:

“Q. At the time that you made this transfer to the company, Mr. Corn, did
you consider that you were defrauding the company? A. It cost me about
8600,000. Q. Is your answer ‘No'? A. No. Q. At the time of this transfer
did you conspire with any one to take any benefit from the Improved Property
Holding Company? A. No, sir. Q. At the time of this transfer, Mr. Corn,
did you have any intention of defrauding the Improved Property Holding Com-
pany, or any one? A. No.”

Corn was asked whether he thought the building at No. 395 Broad-
way was a proper improvement for the neighborhood and answered
in the affirmative:

«] think,” he said, “that it is the finest structure to-day on Broadway, from
Fourteenth street south to this building.”

And at that time Corn bought some 1,500 or 1,600 additional shares
of the stock of the company, paying $65,000 in cash for them, which
brought his holdings of the stock of the company to nearly 9,000
shares. His faith in the “B” bond issue is shown by the fact that he
exchanged at that time $100,000 “A” bonds for “B” bonds, although
the “A” bonds were selling in the open market for 108, and at the time
of this trial he still held every one of his bonds.

Barlow testified that he relied in part on what Corn, Dowling, and
Ball told him. He relied particularly upon the judgment of Dowling,
believing him to be a disinterested party. Barlow had personal knowl-
edge of the construction of the building at No. 395 Broadway and after
he knew that-the purchase of that property was contemplated he made
a special visit to the building to acquaint himself more fully as to its
character. He made a like inspection of the property at No. 476
Broadway. His testimony shows that he believed at the time he voted
for the resolutions of purchase that the buildings would within a rea-
sonable time earn enough rentals to carry the charges; and it appears
that before voting for the purchase he inquired as to the rentals that
were being paid at that time. The idea was in his mind, as it was in
the mind of the others, that No. 395 Broadway could be used as an of-
fice building, and that, so used, it would produce higher rentals than it
was then bringing in. He thought it could be converted into an office
building and that this would greatly raise the square foot rental.

Dowling has very extensive real estate holdings in the borough of
Manhattan and has acted in numerous proceedings as an appraiser.
He was familiar with No. 395 Broadway before it was proposed to
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purchase it. He testified that he thought it one of the best-looking and
best-built store and loft buildings he had ever seen, and believed it at
the time to be worth somewhere from $1,125,000 to $1,150,000. He
was thoroughly familiar with the property at No. 476 Broadway and
thought it worth all the company paid for it.

Ball was interested in the company from its inception. He testified
he believed the valuations at which No. 395 and No. 476 Broadway
were taken over were very fair valuations, and that at the several
meetings of the board that were held to consider the purchase of the
properties the value to be placed upon them had been the subject of
discussion, and that at the time of the purchase he knew of the ap-
praisement of $1,155,000 placed by Coleman on No. 395 Broadway.

. He was asked if he ever had any idea of defrauding anybody, and re-
plied he had not. As he was a director in both the company and the
General Realty & Mortgage Company, he felt that he had special re-
sponsibilities resting on him. He testified that he had not expected at
that time that there was going to be any dropping off of values on low-
er Broadway in the neighborhood of these properties. :

O’Donohue testified that he believed the price of $1,110,000 for
which No. 395 Broadway was to be taken over by the company was a
fair valuation, and that he had taken steps at the time to inform him-
self respecting the matter, and that he had gone to Coleman, regarded
by him as the best-qualified real estate expert in New York, and asked
him to appraise the property personally for him, and that he was to a
very large extent influenced by his appraisement of it at $1,155,000.
He also testified, as respects No. 476 Broadway, he was influenced by
the opinion entertained by Corn and Dowling as to its value. He
thought the taking over of these properties was as fair and honest an
arrangement as could be made, and that he had no idea that by enter-
ing into it he would be taking advantage of any of the stockholders.

The testimony also shows that the defendants believed the price at
which the bonds were taken over was a very good price for the com-
pany. They were taken over at 80, and the company had been trying
to sell them for that in the market, but without success.

We have read the voluminous record with care, and we are unable
to discover that these defendants have acted fraudulently or negligent-
ly. Throughout they appear to us to have acted in these various trans-
actions in good faith and with honest intentions. The fact that they
were mistaken in some of their judgments and that losses resulted to
the company from such mistaken judgment, does not, under the cir-
cumstances disclosed in the record, entitle the trustee to maintain this
suit.

[10, 11] The rule is of course well established that directors of a
corporation, when dealing with themselves, must be scrupulous to see
that they do not involve the corporation in a transaction which is un-
fair or disadvantageous to it. They are certainly bound to look out for
the interests of the corporation, and the burden is on them to show
that the transaction was perfectly fair. In this case we think these de-
fendants have sustained the burden which the law imposes upon them.
In what they did they were not seeking to secure to themselves as in-
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dividuals undue advantages at the expense of this company. If they
had sought such private advantages, it would be the duty of this court
to see that they made good the injury which they had caused.

This brings us to a consideration of the second suit. That was
brought by the Empire Trust Company, as trustee under the mortgage
made by the company (Improved Property Holding Company) on May
24, 1909, to which reference has already been made in this opinion.
The receiver of the company, the mortgagor, appeared and answered,
setting up the invalidity of certain of the bonds issued under the mort-
gage. The receiver relies upon the same facts to show the invalidity
of the bonds that he relied upon in the first suit to show the personal
liability on the part of the defendants in that suit. For reasons al-
ready stated, and which caused the receiver’s failure to recover from
the defendants in the first suit, his attempt to establish in the second
suit the invalidity of certain of the bonds must also fail.

The decrees in both cases are affirmed.

UNITED THACKER COAL CO. v. RED JACKET, JR., COAL CO. et al.*
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit. March 4, 1916)
No. 1403.

1. BoUNDARIES €=1—DISPUTED BOUNDARIES—LOCATION—CONFLICTING CALLS,
It is the duty of the court in case of conflicting calls to reconcile them,
if possible, to establish the true location of the lands in controversy;
and where the lands were granted by the state as containing a specified
number of acres, the intention of the state to convey such acreage should
be considered.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Boundaries, Cent. Dig. § 1; Dec. Dig.
&==1.]

2. BOUNDARIES ¢&=3(3)—MONUMENTS—COURSES AND DISTANCES.
A call for a monument will control a call for courses and distances.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Boundaries, Cent. Dig. §§ 6-19; Dec.
Dig. ¢=3(3).1 .

8. BOUNDARIES ¢=37(2)—Di1sPUTED BOUNDARIES—ACTIONS—EVIDENCE.
In a disputed boundary case, evidence held insufficient to show that a
call for a survey of land belonging to a third person was a call for a
monument, which would control the courses and distances and give de-
fendants lands afterwards patented to complainant.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Boundaries, Cent. Dig. §§ 186-189;
Dec. Dig. €=37(2).]

4. BOUNDARIES €&==9—DISPUTED BOUNDARIES—ACREAGE.
Where the calls for grants of land were confused, the acreage is an
important factor.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Boundaries, Cent. Dig. §§ 77-89; Dec.
Dig. &9.]
5. DEEDS &=>90—PuUBL1c LANDS €&=>186—CONSTRUCTION—GRANTS,
While a grant in case of individuals will be construed against the
grantor, the rule is otherwise as regards a grant by the state.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Deeds, Cent. Dig. §§ 234-237, 247, 248;
Dec. Dig. @=90; Public Lands, Cent. Dig. § 599; Dec. Dig. ¢&=186.]

@=>For other cases see same toplc & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
232 F.—4 sRehearing denied May 9, 1916,
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6. BounDARIES €=47(1)—DISPUTED BOUNDARIES—WARNING OF DISPUTE.
That' defendants, before plaintiffs purchased the lands in contro-
versy, warned them that they claimed an overlap on such lands, will
not defeat complainants’ rights, or entitle defendants to their construc-
tion of the conveyances, the boundaries being in dispute.
[BEd. Note.—For other cases, see Boundaries, Cent. Dig. § 227; Dec.
Dig. &=47(1).] ’

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
}rrél District of West Virginia, at Charleston; Benjamin F. Keller,

udge.

Bill by the United Thacker Coal Company, a corporation, against the
Red Jacket, Jr.,, Coal Company, a corporation, and others. From de-
cree for defendants, complainant appeals. Reversed and remanded,
with directions.

This is an appeal from a decree of the District Court of the United States
for the Southern District of West Virginia, entered on the 6th day of Febru-
ary, 1915, in a suit in equity in which the United Thacker Coal Company, a
corporation, was complainant, and the Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company, a
corporation, and Richard Torpin, George Wharton Pepper, and Richard H.
Harte were defendants. The appellant will hereinafter be referred to as
complainant, and the appellees as defendants, such being the respective posi-
tions occupied by the parties in the court below.

The complainant, being in the actual possession of the tract of land which it
claims, filed its bill to quiet its title against the claims of the trustees and
their lessee, the Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company, to any part of the tract.
The bill avers that it is seised in fee simple and in the actual possession of the
land in question. It states the grant of the same to the plaintiff by the state
of West Virginia; avers that the trustees are claiming to own in fee simple
a large part of said tract, containing by estimation about 250 acres; states
that the claim of the trustees is derived under the grant of 44034 acres to
J. D. Sargeant, and that they claim said tract interlocks with said 3821%-acre
tract; sets out the said mining lease of January 1, 1909, from the trustees to
the Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company, and avers said lessee claims the right un-
der said lease to enter upon and mine the coal in said interlock; states that
the trustees caused to be made what they claim to be a survey of said
440%s-acre tract in such manner as to embrace about 250 acres of said 38214-
acre tract, and caused to be marked the lines of such purported survey by
painting trees along the same; avers that there is in fact no interlock between
said 44024 acres and said 382%4-acre tract; avers that the claims made by the
defendants of the existence of said interlock, their survey of such an interlock
by painting the trees on the ground, and their claim of title by the execution
of said mining lease have cast a cloud upon the title of the plaintiff; and
avers that said land is valuable alone for its coal and timber. The prayer of
the bill is that the plaintiff be decreed to have title to its said tract of 3821
acres and be quieted in the possession thereof.

The trustees and the Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company united in the answer
filed to the bill. In paragraph 5 of the answer a motion is made to dismiss
the bill for want of jurisdiction, and in paragraph 6 an alternative motion was
made to transfer the cause to the law side of the court, if the motion to dis-
miss should be overruled. The defendants filed@ their joint and several an-
swer, wherein they admitted the pendency of the suit of the state of West
Virginia against the unknown heirs of John Green et al., the decree of sale
therein on the 23d day of February, 1912, the sale thereunder and the pur-
chase of the land in question by the complainant, the confirmation thereof by
decree of April 20, 1912, and the conveyance pursuant thereto by S. B. Robert-
son, commissioner, to the complainant, but denied that the state of West
Virginia had any authority, power, or jurisdiction to sell said land so claim-
ed by the complainant, because she had at a fprmer date and in a like proceed-

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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ing parted with all her right, title, and interest therein to one J. D. Sargeant,
from and through whom the trustee defendants had acquired title thereto, and
were still the owners thereof.

The owner alleged that on the 3d day of July, 1888, in a certain proceeding
then pending in the circuit court of Logan county (of which Mingo county
was then a part), having for its object the sale of certain lands for the benefit
of the school fund, a decree was entered directing the commissioner of school
lands to sell a tract of 44024 acres of land situate on Mate and Pigeon creeks;
that, pursuant to said decree of sale, one L. D. Chambers, then the commis-
sioner of school lands for Logan county, on the 2d of October, 1888, sold said
land, and J. D. Sargeant became the purchaser thereof; that afterwards—
that is to say, on the 3d day of October, 1888—a decree was entered in said
cause confirming the sale so made to J. D. Sargeant, and directing the com-
missioner of school lands to execute to Sargeant a deed therefor by metes and
bounds, conveying all the right, title, and interest of the state in and to said
tract of land; that subsequently, and pursuant to said decree of confirma-
tion, the said L. D. Chambers, commissioner of school lands as aforesaid, did,
on the 5th day of October, 1888, grant said land by metes and bounds unto
the said J. D. Sargeant by deed regularly executed, delivered, and recorded,
and that the said Sargeant subsequently conveyed said land to Richard Tor-
pin et al., trustees, which said trustees, by subsequent conveyances, transfer-
red to the present trustees, who are now vested with the title to said land and
are the owners thereof; and that they were the owners of said land at the
time of the decree of sale entered on the 23d day of February, 1912, in the
suit of the state of West Virginia against the unknown heirs of John Green et
al., as well as on the 20th day of April, 1912, when the decree of confirmation
was entered in said suit, and also upon the 2d day of May, 1912, when S. B.
Robertson, commissioner of school lands, conveyed said 38214-acre tract unto
the plaintiff. .

The owner further alleged that the complainant, the United Thacker Coal
Company, which purchased under the decree of February 23, 1912, its agent
and attorney, Edward C. Lyon, the special commissioner making the sale, and
the commissioner of school lands, S. B. Robertson, who conveyed the same
unto the complainant, one and all knew that the state of West Virginia bhad
theretofore sold said land, and that the same, or so much thereof as con-
flicted or interlocked with the land now claimed by the complainant, had been
regularly conveyed by L. D. Chambers, commissioner of school lands of the
county of Logan, unto the said Sargeant, and that the title so vested in him
had been transferred to the trustee defendants in this cause, and notice of said
prior sale and the present ownership of the land in question was given by the
trustee defendants to the said court commissioner, the commissioner of school
lands, the United Thacker Coal Company, and its agents, on the day of sale
under the decree of February 23, 1912, and before said sale was made, and
that the United Thacker Coal Company purchased said land with full
knowledge of the claim and ownership of the defendant trustees.

The defendants further answered that they had entered upon said lands
and caused the same to be surveyed, and had leased the same to their code-
fendant, the Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company, and that they had leased the
same to said company in conjunction with another and adjoining tract of
land, upon which the Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company had already entered and
was mining coal, and that said Red Jacket, Jr., Coal Company, by virtue of said
lease, has the right to mine and remove all the coal from the land in con-
troversy.

A general replication was entered, and evidence, both oral and documentary,
was introduced. The regularity of the proceedings by the state in both cases
leading to the school land commissioner’s deed, in the one case to the
complainant, and in_the other to the defendants, was admitted, and the loca-
tion of the tract of land claimed by the defendants and described in the deed
of October 5, 1888, from Chambers, school land commissioner, to J. D. Sar-
geant, became the sole issue.

The court below located the land of the defendants embraced in the Sar-
geant deed as contended for by the defendants, and entered a decree declaring



52 . 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

that the complainant had no title to or interest in any portion of the 44035-acre
tract of land claimed by the trustee defendants, except a small portion there-
of where the line of the Chambers deed crosses the Pat Hatfield tract, claimed
by plaintiff under another and undisputed title, which portion was excepted in
the decree by metes and bounds.

‘While, among other things, it is stated in the motion to transfer the case to
the law side of the court that the bill does not show the plaintiff to be in pos-
session of the land in controversy, yet there is no denial in the answer to the
allegation in the bill that the complainant is in the actual possession of the
38214-acre tract.

Malcolm Jackson, of Charleston, W. Va., and C. W. Campbell, of
Huntington, W. Va. (Edward C. Lyon, of New York City, Brown,
Jackson & Knight, of Charleston, W. Va., and Campbell, Brown &
Davis, of Huntington, W. Va., on the brief), for appellant.

John H. Holt, of Huntington, W. Va. (E. L. Greever, of Tazewell,
Va., Maurice G. Belknap, of Philadelphia, Pa., Greever, Gillespie &
Divine, of Welch, W. Va,, and Holt, Duncan & Holt, of Huntington,
W. Va,, on the brief), for appellees.

Before PRITCHARD, KNAPP, and WOODS, Circuit Judges.

PRITCHARD, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). At
the trial the complainant introduced the original survey and plat of the
440%4-acre tract, which are referred to and made a part of the grant of
this tract from Chambers, commissioner, to J. D. Sargeant. This sur-
vey commenced at the white oak corner of the Preston Smith survey,
and thence runs with three lines of that survey; then runs eight inde-
pendent lines until it reaches the Richard Tiller survey; thence with
that survey until it calls for “a stake on the line of a survey made for
Ephraim Hatfield”; thence runs with one line of the Hatfield survey
south 65° west 118 poles to a sugar tree; thence south 89° east 396
poles to the beginning One of the Tiller corners called for is a
“double lynn,” being the corner from which the next call is “north
40° west 55 poles to a stake on a line of survey made for Ephraim
Hatfield.” By stipulation it was agreed that there was no controversy
as to the location of the beginning corner, and none as to the location
of the line for the beginning corner to around the double lynn corner.

Therefore the controversy as to the location of this tract begins at
the double lynn corner. It was shown by the defendants that no sur-
vey made for Ephraim Hatfield could be reached by running from the
double lynn on the bearing of north 40° west. This testimony is not
controverted by the complainant. The defendants, therefore, insisted
that the call “north 40° west 55 poles” should be rejected as a mistake;
that the quadrant should be changed and the call made to read south
40° west, and the distance extended until it reached the Ephraim Hat-
field survey of 215 acres. To adopt this contention would increase
the distance from 55 poles to about 255 poles.

It is also insisted that the call to run with the Ephraim Hatfield sur-
vey “south 65° west 118 poles to a sugar tree” should be likewise treat-
ed as a mistake, and that after reaching the Ephraim Hatfield survey
of 215 acres the line should run with this survey south 63° east 118
poles to a point, and thence to the beginning corner. It was shown
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that there were a number of Ephraim Hatfield surveys in the vicinity
of this tract, and also that the Ephraim Hatfield 304-acre survey had
a line 65° west to a sugar tree. The complainant insisted that the
Ephraim Hatfield 215-acre tract was not a monument call for any sur-
vey of this tract, and that there was nothing to change the calls and
distances so as to reach and run with the Hatfield survey ; that the line
from the double lynn should continue to run with the Tiller survey
“north 40° west 55 poles” as called for; that the next line should be
south 65° west 118 poles as called for, and thence to the beginning
corner. If this contention be correct it would locate the closing line
of the 44024-acre survey in exact accordance with its location as shown
in the grant to the plaintiff of the 38124-acre tract.

Maps were used by both parties at the trial which show the location
of the Ephraim Hatfield 215-acre, 20-acre, 24-acre, and 304-acre sur-
veys; also the Smith 103-acre survey and such lines of the Richard
Tiller survey as relate to this controversy. The following map will
show the contentions of the respective parties:

Note~ 4 13 THE SDACRES BXCEPTED OUT OF THE TRACT
DELREED BY THE COURT SELOW TO BELONG T2 THE LocanN
Coal AND TimBER Assm

This map shows the 44024 acres in controversy, the 38214 acres
south of and adjoining the 44024 acres, and the Ephraim Hatfield 215-
acre, Ephraim Hatfield 24. and Ephraim Hatfield 304-acre surveys.
The contention of the complainant is indicated by the solid lines around
the 44024-acre tract. The contention of the defendants as to the lo-
cation of this tract is indicated by the broken line, commencing at the
“double lynn,” at the northwest corner of the map, thence by tweo
lines to the beginning. The first fifteen lines from the beginning corner
above Horse Road fork to the double lynn corner are not in dispute.

While it appears that more than one survey was made for Ephraim
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Hatfield in that community, and also that the calls in the deed from
Chambers, commissioner, to Sargeant, do not specify the date of the
deed of the Hatfield tract to which reference is made, nor the number
of acres contained therein, nevertheless it is insisted by defendant that
: the testimony offered in their behalf affords a satisfactory explanation
as to these points and tends strongly to fix the Ephraim Hatfield 215-
acre home place as being the tract which is referred to in the deed
from Chambers, commissioner, to Sargeant.

The defendants further insist that they have shown by the register
of the land office of Virginia that prior to the separation of the state
of West Virginia from Virginia only seven tracts had been granted
to Ephraim Hatfield by the state of Virginia, to wit: 84 acres on
Beech creek; 45 acres on Camp fork of Mate creek; 215 acres on
Beech creek; 24 acres on Straight fork of Mate creek; 125 acres on
waters of Mate creek; 215 acres on Mate creek; 70 acres on water
of Mate creek. It was also shown by the witness Mannakee, a civil
and mining engineer, that the 84 acres on Beech creek “was approxi-
mately three miles from the double lynn”; that the 45 acres on Camp
fork ‘of Mate creek “lies across the latter creek, from and to the south
of the land in controversy”; that Murphy’s branch, called for in the
Ephraim Hatfield patent for 70 acres, “is in a southwesterly direction
from the land in controversy, and about two miles distant”; that
Meadow branch, referred to in the 125-acre patent to Ephraim Hat-
field, “is southeast of the land in controversy and across Mate creek.”
This, according to defendants’ contention, leaves only the 20 (not
shown on the foregoing map), 24, and 215 acre tracts, which, by stip-
ulation, were properly located on. defendants’ trial map, and from
which it appears that the location of the 20 and 24 acre tracts is such
that neither of them could be treated as the Hatfield survey mentioned -
in the Chambers deed, and therefore defendants insist that there is but
one survey left, to wit, the 215-acre tract.

It is further insisted on behalf of defendants that the foregoing are
the only surveys made for Hatfield prior to the separation of West Vir-
ginia from Virginia, except a 304-acre tract, which was never carried
into grant; that the testimony of James French Strother covered all
surveys and deeds made to Ephraim Hatfield for lands in the county
of Logan, West Virginia, prior to the deed of Chambers, commissioner,
to Sargeant; that his testimony shows surveys to. Ephraim Hatfield
for four other tracts, one being for 304 acres, which by stipulation
between counsel is properly located on defendants’ trial map, and it is
insisted that the lands in controversy could not be located by adopting
this tract as the monument called for; that one tract by Chambers,
commissioner, to Ephraim Hatfield, containing 114 acres situate on
Beech creek, which, according to the evidence of witness Mannakee,
is not even a tributary of Mate creek, and is three miles distant from
the double lynn, and two other tracts, one conveyed by Floyd Hatfield
to Ephraim Hatfield, containing 50 acres, and one by Ephraim Hat-
field, son of Wall Hatfield, containing 25 acres, are situated on Double
Camp branch, which, according to the testimony of Mannakee, is across
Mate creek and south of the lands in controversy; and that, therefore,
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these tracts could not be employed for the purpose of locating the line
in dispute. '

It is therefore contended by the defendants that the Ephraim Hat-
field 215-acre tract is the only one that can be properly located as the
tract called for in the deed from Chambers, commissioner, to Sargeant;
that this is the only survey made for Ephraim Hatfield to which the
line from the double lynn could be run, so as to use all the calls in
the Chambers deed and close the survey; that to run the Chambers
deed as plaintiff contends no Ephraim Hatfield survey could be reached,
and no running with any line thereof for 118 poles, as required by
the next to the last call in the Chambers deed, is done, while, on the
“other hand, when the survey is made as contended by the defendants,
changing the quadrant from the double lynn, the Hatfield survey is
reached, and the next call thereafter of 118 poles along one of its
lines is met and the line is closed, so as to meet the calls contained in
the Sargeant deed.

It is admitted that by adhering strictly to the calls of its deed it
would be impossible to locate the defendants’ tract. That the surveyor
was mistaken as to the course and distance of the lines that were obvi-
ously made by projection is shown by an examination of the plat as
well as the map made by him at the time the land was conveyed by
the state. Many of the calls, if taken literally, could not be employed
so as to locate with anything like certainty the 44023-acre tract. This
is due, no doubt, to a misconception of the surveyor as to the location
of the adjacent tracts. These calls, if literally followed, could never
be run so as to connect with the beginning corner.

[1-3] It is well settled that in a case like the one at bar it is the
duty of the court, if possible, to reconcile any conflicting calls, so as to
establish the true location of the lands in controversy. In view of the
facts and circumstances of this case we deem it important to ascer-
tain the intention of the grantor at the time these respective tracts were
conveyed. The determination of this point will aid us materially in
reaching a correct conclusion as to the true location of the same.

It appears that it was the purpose of the grantor to convey to the
defendants and those under whom it claims a tract containing 44024-
acres, and that it was also its purpose to convey to the complainant
and those under whom it claims 38214 acres. It further appears that
the state received pay for the number of acres contained in the re-
spective grants. Under these circumstances, it becomes highly impor-
tant in determining the true location of the lines in dispute to construe
the calls of these deeds so as to conform, if possible, to the respective
contracts for the sale of the same, and thus effectuate the purpose
the grantor had it mind at the time.

It is fair to assume that the surveyor had copies of the respective
Hatfield surveys at the time the survey of this tract was prepared.
No evidence was offered as to what transpired at the time this sur-
vey was made, nor was there any evidence offered to show that the
party who made the same ran the lines from the double lynn corner
so as to reach the Ephraim Hatfield 215-acre survey. The testimony
of the surveyor, chain carriers, or other parties present, would have
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aided the court below very much in determining this question, but
for some reason these parties were not called to testify, and there is
nothing in the record to show why this evidence was not offered.

It also appears from the evidence of the surveyors and engineers
who surveyed these tracts that no marks had ever been made on the
double lynn as the corner of the 44024-acre survey to indicate that a
line ran from.that corner so as to connect with the Ephraim Hatfield
215-acre tract, and it further appears that after diligent search no evi-
dence could be found of any line leading from the double lynn to the
Hatfield survey in question, nor was there any evidence offered for
the purpose of showing that a sugar tree had ever stood upon or along
the Hatfield 215-acre survey. By an examination of the plat of the
4402%4-acre survey it is apparent that a mistake was made in platting
the calls. For instance, the two calls “north 55° west 80 poles to a
double Iynn,” and “north 40° west 55 poles to a stake in the line of a
survey made for Ephraim Hatfield,” should have been platted north-
west instead of southwest.

The following is a map showing the original plat:
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This pla shows the connection of the two southwest lines. Thus
it appears that if the surveyor had correctly platted the calls of his
survey the closing line would have been altogether different. It also
appears that the surveyor made other mistakes in copying the Tiller sur-
vey, one of which is “north 7314° west 84 to a double chestnut and
locust.” This was copied in running the line of the 44024-acre tract
so as to read south 7314° west 180 poles to the double chestnut and °
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locust,” and shows as a southwest line. It is but natural that these
mistakes should have misled the surveyor as to where he was, when
by protraction he was on the Tiller line north 40° west 55 poles from
the double lynn corner, and caused him to believe that he could con-
nect with the south 65° west line of the Ephraim Hatfield 304-acre
survey.

As we have stated, the location of this tract depends upon the loca-
tion of a single line of the call of the survey. Upon the testimony as
introduced in the court below it is contended by defendants that (a)
“the Hatfield survey, being identified and its lines established, becomes
a monument, to which course and distance must yield;” that (b) “in
order to reach a monument or the line of another survey called for,
the quadrant may not only be changed, but such is the practice in sur-
veying.”

In support of these propositions the defendants insist that it is
shown by a preponderance of the evidence that the 215-acre Ephraim
Hatfield tract was the one the surveyor had in mind at the time he
wrote the call contained in the deed from Chambers, commissioner, to
Sargeant, and, this tract being identified as the monument called for in
the deed, the action of the court below in holding that the quadrant
should be changed at the double lynn so as to reach the 215-acre
Ephraim Hatfield tract was correct. It is well settled that, “in deter-
mining the boundaries of lands, ascertained objects, natural landmarks,
and reputed boundaries control mere course and distance.” Indeed,
this is conceded to be the rule by counsel for the complainant.

However, counsel for complainant insist () that, if located as de-
fendants contend, the land in controversy would not lie “on the ridge
between Mate creek and Pigeon creek,” as described by the surveyor
who made the survey upon which the Sargeant deed is based, and (b)
that there is no sugar tree corner in the Ephraim Hatfield survey of
215 acres, and that no line in that survey has a bearing of “south 65°
west 118 poles to a sugar tree,” and that in consequence no such line
in that survey can be followed for a distance of 118 poles and bring
the surveyor.to a sugar tree therein, but that there is such a line in
the Ephraim Hatfield survey of 304 acres, and, therefore, it must have
been the survey intended; (c) that the true construction of the deed
from Chambers commissioner to Sargeant is that the call running from
the double lynn “north 40° west 55 poles” continues to run with the
Tiller survey, because a few calls back the survey was made to run
“with the same,” and no indication prior to the call of the double lynn
had been given that there was to be any departure therefrom.

From what we have said it will be seen that the one question to be
determined is as to whether the 215-acre Hatfield tract is the boundary
line or monument called for in the deed to Sargeant. If the evidence
offered in the court below established this fact, then that court was
justified in entering a decree in accordance with defendants’ conten-
tion. However, to warrant a finding upon this point in favor of the
defendants it must appear by a preponderance of the evidence that
the 215-acre tract was the monument called for in the deed in questjon.
Tn view of the fact that the surveyor failed to give the number of
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acres, as well as the date of conveyance, when considered together with
the fact that the “call” specified as being in the line with this tract was
not found, and the further fact that the call did not terminate at the
sugar tree, the adoption of this tract as the monument called for could
only be done by conjecture. While, as we have stated, a monument,
such as a line or natural object, will control course and distance, this
is only true where the monument called for is capable of being defi-
.nitely located. ~

In considering this question it should be borne in mind that the sur-
veyor did this work by protraction, and it is admitted that he was mis-
taken as to many of the .calls before he reached the double lynn. If,
as insisted by counsel for defendants, the other tracts owned by Eph-
raim Hatfield are incapable of being located as the one the surveyor
had in mind (which is apparently true), except as to the 304-acre tract,
even this would not justify the court in adopting the line of the 215-
acre tract solely because it happened to be nearer the double lynn than
the other tracts. This is especially true inasmuch as this construc-
tion of the deed would necessarily result in depriving complainant of
250 acres of land which the school commissioner undertook to con-
vey to it, and at the same time give the defendants 289 acres of land
in excess of the amount which the school commissioner undertook to
convey to Sargeant. :

We are at a loss to know upon what theory this identification of the
Ephraim Hatfield survey to which reference is made in the grant can
be ignored and an entirely different survey substituted in its place for
the purpose of locating this tract. In other words, if on account of the
mistake of the surveyor the Tiller survey could not be connected with
the Ephraim Hatfield 304-acre survey it could not be reasonably in-
sisted that it should be run to the 215-acre Hatfield survey, with no
means of identifying the same other than the fact that it happens to
be situated near where the line in dispute begins. Even if it had ap-
peared from the evidence that the surveyor made a mistake in attempt-
ing to connect the Tiller survey with the Ephraim Hatfield 304-acre
survey, we know of no rule which would justify making a new survey
by the adoption of a monument which could be identified as the one
called for in the original survey, and this is especially true in view of
the fact that there is a line in the 304-acre Hatfield tract which literally
fulfills the terms of the only specific declaration as to the particular
Hatfield tract which the surveyor had in mind at that time.

Whilst it is true, as contended by the defendants, that the conten-
tions of neither of the parties can be sustained by a literal compliance
with the calls of the grant from Chambers, commissioner, to Sargeant,
nevertheless it is the duty of the court to adopt that theory which
appears to be most reasonable, and at the same time give to each party,
as near as may be, the amount of acreage purported to be conveyed in
the respective grants.

[4,5] Where, as in this instance, the calls of a deed are so vague
and conflicting as to render it difficult to locate the same definitely, the
acreage purported to be conveyed to the respective parties becomes an
important, if not controlling, factor to be considered in determining
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the true location of the lands in controversy. In the case of Ficld v.
Columbet, 4 Sawy. (U. S. Cir. Ct.) 523, Fed. Cas. No. 4,764, Mr. Jus-
tice Field says:

“The designation of quantity, it is true, will not control the boundaries

" where they are clearly indicated. Yet, where there is doubt as to the true
description, it may be properly considered.”

Also in the case of Peebles v. Graham, 128 N. C. 227, 39 S. E. 25,
the court says:

“The general rule is that the quantity of land stated to be conveyed will not
be considered in determining location or boundaries. But there is a well-
known exception to this rule that is as firmly established as the rule itself,
and that is that, when the location or boundary is doubtful, quantity becomes
important.”

The Supreme Court of West Virginia, in the case of State v. Hicks,
85 S. E. 665, in referring to this question, said:

“Where the description of land by monuments, distances, or otherwise is
vague and indefinite, by reason of conflicting lines, or omission of a line, or

from any other cause, the statement of the acreage is an essential part of the
description.”

In the case of Kirkland v. Way, 3 Rich. (S. C.) 4, 45 Am. Dec. 752,
the syllabus is in the following language:
Syl. 2: “Where the other terms of the description, contained in a convey-

ance of land, are not sufficiently certain and demonstrative, the number of
acres is an essential part of the description.”

The following West Virginia cases are also very much in point:
Smith v. Owens, 63 W. Va. 60, 59 S. E. 762; Lovett v. West Virginia
Central Gas Company, 73 W. Va. 40, 79 S. E.. 1007.

In further support of complainant’s contention it is insisted that in
a suit like the one at bar the grant, having been made by the state,
should be construed strictly against the grantee. It is the policy of the
law in construing a deed as between individuals to construe the same
strictly against the grantor, but in a suit like this, where the state is
the grantor, the grant is to be construed strictly against the grantee.
This policy is based upon the theory that the state is the trustee or
guardian of the rights, emoluments, and prerogatives of the people
as respects the public domain, the same being conferred upon the
state by the people to be exercised and used for their benefit. There-
fore, in a grant from the state, the rights and emoluments thus con-
ferred should be safeguarded in construing the calls of the same s0 as
to avoid the possibility of passing title to a greater number of acres
than are specified in the grant, and to accomplish this it is the policy
of the courts to hold the grantee strictly to the calls contained in the

rant.
g In the case of Shively v. Bowlby, 152 U. S. 1, 14 Sup. Ct. 548, 38
1. Ed. 331, the Supreme Court, among other things, said:

“It was argued for the defendanfs in error that the question presented

was a mere question of construction of a grant bounded by tide water, and

would have been the same as it is if the grantor had been a private person.
But this is not so. The rule of comstruction in the case of such a grant
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from the sovereign is quite different ffom that which governs private grants.
The familiar rule and its chief foundation were felicitously expressed by Sir
William Scott: °All grants of the crown are to be strictly construed against
the grantee, contrary to the usual policy of the law in the consideration of
grants; and upon this just ground, that the prerogatives and rights and
emoluments of the crown being conferred upon it for great purposes, and for -
the public use, it shall not be intended that such prerogatives, rights, and
emoluments are diminished by any grant, beyond what such grant by neces-
sary and unavoidable construction shall take away.” The Rebeckah, 1 C. Rob.
227, 230. Many judgments of this court are to the same effect. Martin v.
Waddell, 16 Pet. 367, 411 [10 L. Ed. 997]; Central Transportation Co. v.
Pullman’s Car Co., 189 U. S. 24, 4% [11 Sup. Ct. 478, 35 L. Ed. 55].”

In the case of Charles River Bridge v. Warren Bridge et al.,, 11 Pet.
420, 9 1. Ed. 773, the Supreme Court also said:

“But we are not now left to determine, for the first time, the rules by
which public grants are to be construed in this country. The subject has al-
ready been considered in this court, and the rule of construction, above stated,
fully established. In the case of United States v. Arredondo, 6 Pet. 738 [8 L.

.Ed. 547], the leading cases upon this subject are collected together by the
learned judge who delivered the opinion of the court, and the principle recog-
nized that in grants by the publlc nothing passes by implication.”

To the same effect is the case of Dubuque & Pacific Railroad Com-
pany v. Edwin C. Litchfield, 23 How. (64 U. S.) 66, 16 L. Ed. 500.

[6] Itis also insisted by defendants that at the time this land was
sold to complainant a notice signed by Torpin, Pepper, and Harte,
.trustees, by counsel, addressed to John W. Mason, Jr., special com-
missioner, and S. B. Robertson, commissioner of school lands of Logan
county, and to all bidders and purchasers, which purported to give
warning by stating that the tract of 38214 acres then about to be sold
under decree was covered in whole or in part by the 44024-acre tract
claimed by such -trustees, and is the tract involved in this suit.

This notice could not in any way affect the question now be-
fore us. It certainly could have no bearing as to the true loca-
tion of the tract claimed by defendants. These grants must be con-
strued in the light of the calls contained therein, and a notice of this
character could be of no value in construing the same.

When we consider the real point in this controversy, in the Lght
of the facts and circumstances, and apply the rules of construction as
announced by the courts, we are impelled to the conclusion that the
court below erred in construing the calls of defendants’ deed, and that
the calls of the same should be construed so as to conform to the
contention of the complainant as indicated on the map that is made a
part of this opinion. As a result of this conclusion the acreage pro-
posed to be conveyed to the respective parties is increased, rather than
diminished, thus resulting, as we think, in no injustice to either party.

For the reasons stated, the decree of the court below is' reversed,
and the cause will be remanded for further proceedings in accordance
with the views herein expressed.-

Reversed. -~
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RATCLIFF v. CLENDENIN.

(Circult Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. February 24, 1916. On Motion
for Rebearing, May 1, 1916.)

. No. 4466. ‘

(Syllabus by the Court.)

1., BANKRUPTCY ¢&=302(1)—ADMINISTRATION OF ESTATE—ACTIONS BY TRUSTEE—
PLEADING.

Averments, in a suit in equity by the trustee in bankruptey of a corpora-
tion against a stockholder to recover dividends paid to the latter, that the
creditors represented by the trustee held claims incurred by the corpora-
tion when the funds of the company were paid over to the stockholder
‘without any consideration, that the corporation was insolvent when those
‘payments were made, and the stockholder knew it, that the insolvency
was unknown to the creditors, and that other unknown sums bhad been
misappropriated to the benefit of the stockholder in the same way, stated
a complete cause of action in equity for the enforcempent of the trust, the
discovery of the unknown amounts, and the recovery by the trustee of
both the known and the unknown sums.

[Ed. Note.~For other cases, see Bankruptey, Cent. Dig. § 456; Dec. Dig.
€&»302(1).1

2. CORPORATIONS &=80(10)—STOCKHOLDERS—SUBSCRIPTIONS—RESCISSION OF
PURCHASE.
A stogkholder who is induced by fraud to purchase the stock of a cor-
poration, and who for years, while the corporation is a going concern and
is incurring debts to creditors which still remain unpaid, receives divi-
dends or income from his purchase of the stock, is estopped, after the cor-
poration becomes insolvent and is adjudged a bankrupt, from rescinding
bis purchase.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 262; Dec. Dig.
&=80(10).]

8. CORPORATIONS @&=153—STOCKHOLDERS—RECOVERY OF DIVIDENDS—SUBSE-
QUENT CREDITORS.

Creditors whose claims were incurred by the corporation subsequent to
the payment of dividends sought to be recovered of a stockholder have no
equity therein superior to the equity of the stockholder who received the
payment in good faith, and they may not recover of him.

[Ed. Note.—TFor other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. §§ 579, 580;
Dec. Dig. €=153.]

4. CORPORATIONS &=037—“SOLVENCY ’—TEST—ABILITY TO PAY PAR VALUE oF
STOCK IMMATERIAL. '

The test of the “solvency’” of a corporation is the sufficiency of its as-
sets and its ability to pay its liabilities therewith, and the sufficiency of
its assets and its ability to pay its stockholders the par value of their
stock in addition to the payment of its debts are irrelevant to the issue
of its solvency.

[Ed. Note.—Tor other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 2150; Dec.
Dig. ¢=5317.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Solvency.]

5. CORPORATIONS €&=544(2)—TRUST rOR CREDITORS AND STOCKHOLDERS WIHEN
INSOLVENT—NONE WHILE SOLVENT.

A. solvent corporation, like a solvent individual, holds its property free

from any enforceable trust or equitable lien in favor of its creditors. It

@==For other cases see same toplc & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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is only when It becomes insolvent that such a trust or lien in favor, first
of creditors, and second of stockholders, attaches to its property.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 2162; Dec.
Dig. &==544(2).]

6. CORPORATIONS ©&=2425(5)—POWERS AND LIABILITIES—REPRESENTATION BY
OFFICER—ACQUIESCENCE IN THE APPARENT AUTHORITY OF SINGLE OFFICER.
‘Where, without challenge by officers or stockholders of a corporation, an
officer thereof has been permitted by the common consent of all other of-
ficers and stockholders, and by their acquiescence, to exercise, at his will,
all the powers of the corporation, and to conduct all its business for years,
they and the corporation are estopped from denying, to the prejudice or
injury of innocent parties who have relied on the apparent authority of
such an officer to act for and as the corporation, that he had the actual
authority so to do.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 1700; Dec.

Dig. ¢&=425(5).] ) \
7. CORPORATIONS @&=153—DI1VIDENDS WRONGLY PAID-—RIGHT OF ACTION BY
TRUSTEE.

A trustee in bankruptcy cannot recover dividends or income paid by a
corporation, noﬂt all out of profits, but entirely out of capital, to a stock-
holder as income on his investment in the stock when the corporation was
not insolvent, was a going concern when the payments were made, and
the stockholder. received them in good faith in the full belief that the
corporation was solvent and prosperous and that he was lawfully entitled
to the payments.

[Ed. Note—TFor other cases, see Corporations, Cent, Dig. §§ 579, 580;
Dec. Dig. ¢&=153.] :

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the Dis-
trict of Kansas; John C. Pollock, Judge.

Suit in equity by John W. Clendenin, trustee in bankruptcy for the
Nevling Elevator Company, against J. M. Ratcliff. From a decree for
complainant, defendant appeals. Reversed and remanded, with in--
structions to render decree of dismissal.

T. A. Noftzger, of Wichita, Kan. (George L. Hay, of Kingman,
Kan., on the brief), for appellant.

Charles G. Yankey, of Wichita, Kan. (R. R. Vermilion, Earle W.
Evans, J. G. Carey, R. L. Holmes, and W. E. Holmes, all of Wichita,
Kan., on the brief), for appellee. :

Before SANBORN and CARLAND, Circuit Judges, and TRIE-
BER, District Judge.

SANBORN, Circuit Judge. John.W. Clendenin, trustee in bank-
ruptcy of the Nevling Elevator Company, which was adjudged bank-
rupt on August 6, 1912, brought a suit in equity and recovered a de-
cree for $4,500, interest thereon, and costs against J. M. Ratcliff for
amounts paid to him as one of its stockholders by the Elevator Com-
pany in 1909, 1910, and 1911. | .

[1] The first specification of error is that the court overruled Rat-
cliff’s demurrer to the complaint on the ground that it disclosed the
fact that he had an adequate remedy at law. But the suit was brought
against Nevling, the president and manager of the corporation, and
also against Ratcliff. The trustee alleged that some of the creditors

@ For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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who have claims against the estate of the bankrupt were continuously
its creditors during the years 1909, 1910, and 1911, that the corpora-
tion was continuously indebted durmg those years to an amount in
excess of $35,000 and was continuously impairing its capital, that the
creditors were ignorant of these facts and believed it to be sclvent
and prosperous, while it was in truth insolvent for years prior to 1912,
that Nevling and Ratcliff, who were stockholders and directors of
the corporation with knowledge of its insolvency, conspired together
to take the funds of the corporation and to pay them to Ratcliff with-
out any consideration, that pursuant to that conspiracy they paid over
to him out of the funds of the corporation $4,500 during the ygars
1909, 1910, and 1911, and that at other times they paid out of -the
funds of the corporation to Ratcliff additional and further sums the
amounts of which were unknown to the plaintiff, and the trustee prayed
that the defendants might be required to set forth what sums be-
longing to the corporation had been transferred to Ratcliff, and to
account for and pay over these sums to the trustee. The property of
an insolvent corporation constitutes a trust fund held by its officers,
first for its creditors, and second for its stockholders, and the execu-
tion of a trust and the following and administering of trust funds are
immemorial heads of equity jurisprudence. The allegations that the
existing creditors still hold claims which were owing to them when
the funds of the corporation were paid over to Ratcliff without con-
sideration, that the corporation was insolvent when these payments
were made and Ratcliff knew it, that the insolvency was unknown to
the creditors, and that other unknown sums had been misappropriated
to the benefit of Ratcliff in the same way, stated a complete cause of
action in equity for the enforcement of the trust, the discovery of the
unknown sums, and the recovery by the trustee of both the known and
the unknown sums. There was no error in overruling the demurrer to
this complaint. Hayden v. Thompson, 71 Fed. 60, 62, 63, 17 C. C. A.
592, 594, 593.

[2] The second specification is that the court erroneously struck out
the counterclaim of the defendant Ratcliff. Ratcliff made a separate
answer. He denied the alleged conspiracy, denied the averments of
the complaint as to the existence and continuance of the claims of the
creditors of the corporation, denied that he was ever a director or
officer of the Elevator Company, denied that he knew anything about
its msolvency, or the impairment of its capital, or its financtal con-
dition, prior to March, 1912, and alleged that he always supposed and
believed it to be solvent and prosperous; and he alleged in his answer
that this was his relation to the corporation. Nevling was its president
and general manager; Ratcliff was a farmer and stockman, who knew
nothing about the financial condition of this or other corporations, and
who did not know how to examine their financial condition. Nevling
told him. that the Elevator Company was solvent and prosperous;
that if he would put $25,000 into it he (Nevling) and the Elevator
Company would guarantee him interest on it at 10 per cent. per annum
that in reliance upon these representations he paid into the corpo-
ration, on or about July, 1908, $25,000, and received for it certificates
for 250 shares of its stock, of the par value of $100 per share; and
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that he received the sums alleged in the complaint, aggregating $4,-
500, during the years 1909, 1910, and 1911, in payment of the interest
or income on his investment in good faith, in the belief that the Ele-
vator Company was solvent and prosperous, and that in law and
equity he was entitled to receive these payments.

His counterclaim consisted of a restatement of his investment of
his $25,000 in reliance upon the statements and representations of
Nevling, an averment that he first learned of the insolvency of ‘the
Elevator Company in ‘March, 1912, an offer to bring into court and
surrender his cerfificates of stock and his interest in the capital stock
of the company, and a prayer for an equitable lien on the assets of
the ‘Elevator Company for the difference between the $4,500 which he
received from it and the $25,000 he paid to it. But he bought his stock
in July, 1908, he first discovered the insolvency of the Elevator Com-
pany in March 1912, that company was adjudged bankrupt on August
6, 1912, and the first appearance of his attempt to rescind his pur-
chase of his stock in July, 1908, was in March, 1913, about 4%, years
after his purchase. Meanwhile the Elevator Company had incurred
many of the claims now represented by the trustee. Ratcliff’s attempt
to rescind his purchase of his stock, though induced by the fraud of
the Elevator Company, or of its president, comes too late, and there
was no error in striking his counterclaim from his answer. A stock-
holder who is induced by fraud to purchase the stock of a corporation,
and who for years, while the corporation is a going concern and is
incurring debts to creditors, which still exist, receives dividends or
income from his purchase of the stock, is estopped, after the corpora-
tion becomes insolvent, has ceased to be a going concern, and is ad-
judged a bankrupt, from rescinding his purchase of the stock against
a protest of its creditors. Upton v. Tribilcock, 91 U, S. 45, 23 L. Ed.
203; Webster v. Upton, 91 U. S. 65, 23 L. Ed. 384; Sanger v. Upton,
91 U. S. 56, 23 L. Ed. 220; Chubb v. Upton, 95 U. S. 665, 667, 24 L.
Ed. 523; Scott v. Deweese, 181 U. S. 202, 213, 21 Sup. Ct. 585, 45
L. Ed. 822; Lantry v. Wallace, 182 U. S. 536, 548, 549, 554, 21 Sup,
Ct. 878, 45 L. Ed. 1218; Rand v. Columbia National Bank, 94 Fed.
349, 351, 36 C. C. A. 292; Scott v. Latimer, 8 Fed. 843,33 C. C. A. 1.

[3] Finally, it is specified as error that the court rendered a decree
against Ratcliff for the $4,500 which he received from the Elevator
Company, interest upon it, and the costs of the suit. This was a suit
in equity by the trustee in bankruptcy of the Elevator Company to
recover this $4,500 of Ratcliff, a stockholder, in the right of creditors
of the corporation who held claims against the corporation which
were incurred before that $4,500 was paid out, on the theory that
this $4,500 was money of the insolvent corporation which was held
by its officers in trust for .its creditors when it was paid to Ratcliff,
and that Ratcliff knew this fact and procured the payment of this
money to him without giving any consideration therefor. Facts es-
sential to this cause of action which the trustee pleaded were, first,
that there were creditors of the Elevator Company represented by the
trustee who held claims allowed against the estate of the bankrupt
which were incurred by the corporation before at least some of this
$4,500 was paid over to Ratcliff, for creditors having claims which

’
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accrued after those payments have no equity in any of this $4,500
superior to the equity of Ratcliff. Hamilton v. Menominee Falls
Quarry Co., 106 Wis. 352, 81 N. W. 876, 879. But the answer of
Ratcliff denied that there were any claims of any creditors which ac-
crued before all of the $4,500 was paid over to him by alleging that
he had no knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief on
that subject. The burden, therefore, was on the plaintiff to prove its
averment of this essential fact and it made no proof thereof whatever.
In the second place, the trustee averred that the Elevator Company
was insolvent when this $4,500 was paid, and that this money was a
fund held in trust for the creditors of the corporation; that Ratcliff
knew this fact and obtained the money without any consideration.
Ratcliff denied these averments in his answer, and the burden was on
the plaintiff to prove them, and there is no substantial proof of any
of them. On the other hand, the evidence established these facts:
The Nevling Elevator Company was a corporation owned and op-
erated by a single man, Nevling, who was the president and manager
thereof, and who conducted all its affairs without any action of any
board of directors, or of any other person, except those persons whose
action he directed. He continued in absolute control and management
of its affairs from the inception of the transaction related in this suit
in July, 1908, until the adjudication in bankruptcy in August, 1912.
About July 7, 1908, he induced Ratcliff to pay into the corporation
$25,000 and to take 250 shares of its stock by representing to him
that the corporation was solvent and prosperous, and by either stating,
as Nevling testifies, or by guaranteeing by the corporation and by
Nevling, as Ratcliff testifies, that Ratcliff should receive from this in-
vestment interest at 10 per cent. per annum on his $25,000. In pay-
ment of this interest or income on Ratcliff’s investment Nevling paid
over to him out of the funds of the corporation the $4,500 here in issue
in the following amounts: On October 13, 1909, $1,500; on January
24, 1910, $1,000; on July 3, 1911, $1,000; on July 21, 1911, $500; on
August 26, 1911, $500. During the time of these payments the capital
of the corporation varied from about $31,000 to $41,000 On June
30, 1907, the assets of the company were $58,675, its labilities $38,-
908.73, its assets exceeded its debts $19,766.33, and its capital was
impaired $11,933.67; on June 30, 1908, its assets were $47,257.99,
its liabilities $33,165.87, its assets exceeded its debts $14,092.12, and
its capital was impaired $21,107.88; on July 6, 1909, its assets were
$48,142.63, its debts were $27,557.07, its assets exceeded its debts
$20,585.56, and its capital was impaired $20,414.14; on June 30, 1910,
its assets were $57,922.79, its liabilities $45,368.71, its assets exceeded
its liabilities $12,554.08, and its capital was impaired $28,445.92; on
June 30, 1911, its assets were $58,454.28, its liabilities were $54,362.25,
its assets exceeded its liabilities $4,092.03, and its capital was impaired
$36,907.97. During all the time until its adjudication in bankruptcy
the corporation was a going concern. At the first annual meeting of
the corporation after Ratcliff made his investment Nevling made him
a director of the corporation, but Ratcliff was not present, did not
know that he was made a director until late in the year 1912, and never
232 F—6 ’
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accepted the office, or acted as a director or other officer of the cor-
"poration. During all the time he was receiving the $4,500 he believed
the Elevator Company to be solvent and that he was lawfully entitled
to the payments he received. He never received any notice or knowl-
edge to the contrary until months after the last payment to him,.and
he received all the payments in good faith,

[4] The result of these established facts is that, as the presumption
was that the company, which was a going concern, was solvent, the
plaintiff failed to prove that it was insolvent when any part of the
$4,500 was paid over to Ratcliff, for the test of the insolvency of a cor-
poration is the sufficiency of its assets.and its ability to pay its debts,
and-the sufficiency of its assets and its ability to pay its stockholders
the par value of their stock in addition to the payment of the debts
of the corporation are irrelevant to the issue of insolvency. Hamilton
v. Menominee Falls Quarry Co., 106 Wis. 352, 81 N. W. 876, 878:
Banta v. Hubbell, 16/ Mo. App. 38, 150 S. W. 1089, 1092; State of
Kansas v. Myers, 54 Kan. 206, 217, 38 Pac. 296.

[8] As the plaintiff failed to prove that the Elevator Company was
insolvent when the $4,500 was paid to Ratcliff, it failed to establish
the fact that that sum or any part of it was ever charged with any
enforceable trust or equitable lien in favor of -any creditor of the cor-
poration or in favor of the trustee in bankruptcy. A solvent corpo-
ration, like a solvent individual, holds its property free from any en-
forceable trust or equitable lien in favor of its creditors. It is only
when- it becomes insolvent that such a trust or lien in favor, first
of its creditors, and second of its stockholders, attaches to its prop-
erty. Hollins v. Brierfield Coal & Iron Co., 150 U. S. 371, 383, 385,
14 Sup. Ct. 127, 37 L. Ed. 1113; McDonald v. Williams, 174 U. S.
397, 403, 19 Sup. Ct. 743, 43 L. Ed. 1022; Lawrence v. Greenup, 97
Fed. 906, 908, 909, 38 C. C. A. 546, 549; Great Western Min. & Mfg.
Co. v. Harris, 128 Fed. 321, 331, 63 C. C. A. 51, 61; New Hampshire
Sav. Bank v. Richey, 121 Fed. 956, 960, 58 C. C. A. 294, 298. So it
was that the plaintiff failed to prove any of the essential elements of
the cause of action he pleaded, and the record discloses no equity in
his favor which entitles him to recover of the defendant.

[6] Counsel for the trustee, however, argue that there was no for-
mal declaration of a dividend, that no other stockholder had an income
like that of the defendant paid to him on his investment, that sec-
tion 1741 of the General Statutes of Kansas of 1909 provides that the
directors of a corporation shall “declare and make such dividends of
the profits from the business of the corporation as they shall deem
expedient, or as the by-laws may prescribe,” that this is in legal effect
to prohibit and the general law of the community forbids the payment
of dividends out of capital, that the capital of the Elevator Company
was impaired when the payments were made to Ratcliff, that there
were no profits, and that for these reasons the payment of the $4,500
was unlawful. The answers to this contention are many and con-
clusive. If the contention stated a cause of action, it was a cause
of action that was neither pleaded nor tried in the court below. It
does not state a cause of action in favor of any creditor whom the
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trustee represents, because it fails to plead that any such creditor
has any claim which accrued before the $4,500 was fully paid, or that
the company was insolvent when that payment was made. Hence
it discloses no injury to and raises no equity in favor of any creditor
superior to the evident and persuasive equity of the defendant. If
any injury resulted to any one interested in the property of the corpo-
ration when the payment was made it must have been to Nevling,
practically the only other stockholder, and he certainly has no equity
in this $4,500 superior to that of Ratcliff, and, if he has, the trustee
does not hold that equity and does not represent Nevling’s right to
- enforce it. Nor is it material that there was not a formal declara-
tion or resolution of dividend, because stockholders and officers of
this corporation by common consent to and acquiescence in the exer-
cise of all the powers of the corporation, and the conduct of all the
business of the corporation by Nevling for four years, had estopped
themselves from challenging his authority to make the agreement with
Ratcliff and to pay him the $4,500 pursuant thereto, whether that pay-
ment was a payment of interest on his investment or of a dividend
on his stock. Where, without challenge by officers or stockholders of a
corporation, an officer thereof has been permitted by the common
consent of all other officers and stockholders, and by their acquiescence,
to exercise all the powers of the corporation, and to conduct all its
business for years, they and the corporation are estopped from deny-
ing to the prejudice and injury of innocent parties:who have relied on
the apparent authority of such an officer to act for and as the cor-
poration, that he had the actual authority so to do. Jenson v. Toltec
Ranch Co., 174 Fed. 86, 89, 90, 98 C. C. A. 60, 63, 64; Galbraith v.
First Nat. Bank of Alexandria, Minn., 221 Fed. 386, 391, 137 C. C. A.
194, 199.

[7] And, finally, the general principles of equity jurisprudence for-
bid the recovery of this $4,500 of Ratcliff, because his equity in it
is superior to that of the trustee or of any of the creditors whom he
represents. Ratcliff invested his $25,000 in the Elevator Company
in good faith, in the justifiable belief that the corporation, which was
a going concern, was solvent and prosperous, and that he should
receive from it an income of 10 per cent. per annum on his invest-
ment. The corporation continued to be a going concern, apparently
solvent and prosperous, until more than six months after the last of
the $4,500 was paid to Ratcliff. He received the payments in good
faith, without notice that they were wrongfully made, and in the
full belief that whether they were interest or dividends he was law-
fully entitled to them. “A court of equity can act only on the con-
science of a party. If he has done nothing that taints it no demand
can attach upon it so as to give any jurisdiction.” Boone v. Chiles,
10 Pet. 177, 210, 9 L. Ed. 388. Ratcliff has done nothing that taints
his conscience and no demand attaches upon it. .

Where equities are equal the defendant prevails. Ratcliff was in-
duced by Nevling to put $25,000 into the Elevator Company, and,
in any event, can receive nothing on account of that investment but the
$4,500 which has been paid to him as income. He must lose more
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than $20,000. There is no proof that any creditor has any such
equity. A trustee in bankruptcy cannot recover dividends or in:
come paid by a corporation, not at all out of profits, but entirely
out of capital, to a stockholder as income on his purchase of the
stock, when the corporation was not insolvent and was a going con-
cern at the time of the payments, and the stockholder received them
in good faith in the full belief that the corporation was solvent and
prosperous, and that he was lawfully entitled to the moneys he ob-
tained. McDonald v. Williams, 174 U. S. 397, 398, 407, 408, 19 Sup.
Ct. 743, 43 L. Ed. 1022; Lawrence v. Greenup, 97 Fed. 906, 909, 38 C.
C. A. 546, 549; Great Western Min. & Mfg. Co. v. Harris, 128 Fed.
321, 332,63 C. C. A. 51, 62. '

Let the decree below be reversed, and let the case be remanded to
the court below, with instructions to render a decree of dismissal of
the complaint on the merits,.

On Motion for Rehearing.

Counsel for the trustee, Clendenin, present a motion for a writ of
certiorari to add to the transcript in this cause a record to the effect
that there were creditors of the Nevling Elevator Company before and
at the time that the payments were made to Ratcliff. If, however, this
evidence were produced and made a part of the record in this court,
the second ground for the decision, and that was the main ground, that
the trustee averred that the Elevator Company was insolvent when
this $4,500 was paid, and that this money was a fund held in trust for
the creditors of the corporation, that Ratcliff knew this fact and ob-
tained the money without any consideration, and that Ratcliff denied
these averments, and the evidence established the fact that the com-
pany was not insolvent, and that Ratcliff did not know its condition
when he received the statements, would still be fatal to the motion
for a rehearing in this case.

For this reason the motion for a writ of certiorari must be denied,
and because the second ground for the decision, which is stated above,
is still conclusive, the motion for a rehearing is denied.

PENINSULA BANK OF WILLIAMSBURG, VA, et al. v. WOLCOTT et al.
In re RICHARDSON et al.
! (Circuit Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit. February 2, 1916))
No. 1368.

1. BANKRUPTCY €&>166(3)—DEEDS OF TRUST--VALIDITY.

Where a new note secured by a deed of trust was taken by a bank In
part satisfaction of an old debt, the bank does not obtain priority by the
deed of trust; it having knowledge that the debtor, who was adjudged a
bankrupt in less than four months, was then in failing circumstances.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 250, 251,
255, 257; Dec. Dig. €&=166(3).1 :

@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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2. BANERUPTCY ¢=1606(3)—Bo~Na FIDE PURCHASERS—NOTICE OF INSOLVENCY
OF MAKER.

Where a bank in due course of business, without notice that the mak-
ers were insolvent, took notes secured by a deed of trust, the fact that
the makers were adjudged bankrupts within less than four months does
not impair the security.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 250, 251, 255,
257; Dec. Dig. €¢=166(3).] '

8. MoRTGAGES ¢&=258—BoNA FIDE HOLDER OF NOTES—PRIORITY.

A bona fide holder of notes secured by deed of trust takes the deed freed
from defenses which might have been urged against the original mort-
gagee and holder of the notes; the deed being treated as the notes.

|Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Mortgages, Cent. Dig. §§ 689-691; Dec.
Dig. ¢=258.]

4. BANKRUPTCY G&=209-—ACTIONS—NECESSARY PARTIES—WHO ARE.

The bankrupts, who were indebted to another firm, executed notes se-
cured by a deed of trust. These notes were indorsed by a single member
of the creditor firm, and were negotiated with two different banks, one
of which banks already held a note of the bankrupts, which the creditor
firm had indorsed to it. Held, that the court of bankruptcy had jurisdic-
tion of a proceeding to set aside the deed of trust, though all members of
the creditor firm were not parties; only that member who indorsed the
second note being a party.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 448; Dec.
Dig. ¢=299.]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Virginia, at Norfolk, in Bankruptcy; Edmund Waddill,
Jr., Judge. )

In the matter of the bankruptcy of R. H. Richardson and others,
partners trading as R. H. Richardson & Sons, and as individuals. Pro-
ceeding by Edward W. Wolcott and others, trustees of the bankrupt’s
estate, against the Peninsula Bank of Williamsburg, Va., and others,
to set aside a deed of trust as a preference. The referee found the
trust deed to be a preference, and from a decree upholding his find-
ing the defendants appeal. Modified.

Frank Armistead, of Williainsburg, Va., for appellants.

Sidney J. Dudley, of Hampton, Va., and Harry K. Wolcott, of Nor-
folk, Va. (Wolcott, Wolcott, Lankford & Kear, of Norfolk, Va., on
the brief), for appellees.

Before PRITCHARD, KNAPP, and WOODS, Circuit Judges.

WOODS, Circuit Judge. On April 2, 1913, R. H. Richardson &
Sons, were adjudged involuntary bankrupts. In the course of the
proceedings an attack was made by creditors on a deed of trust in the
nature of a mortgage of a tract of land executed by Richardson &
Son to secure notes now held by the Bank of Williamsburg for $1,-
800 and by the Peninsula Bank of Williamsburg for $1,000. The ref-
eree reported the deed of trust altogether invalid as an illegal prefer-
ence, and this finding was confirmed by the District Court.

Richardson & Sons were contractors and bought lumber from Bo-
zarth Bros., lumber dealers, for which they were indebted on December

@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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30, 1912, to the amount of $2,800. This debt was represented by an
open account of $300 and a note or notes given by Richardson & Sons
to Bozarth Bros. for $2,000, and indorsed by them to the Peninsula
Bank. At this time Richardson & Sons had become involved by reason
of the establishment in legal proceedings in a state court of a debt of
$9,000 against them in favor of William H. Hayden, Jr. This adjudi-
cation however had not been so entered on December 30, 1912, as
to become a judgment lien on the real estate of the members of the firm
of Richardson & Sons. In-this condition of its affairs, R. H. Rich-
ardson, a member of the firm, executed a deed of trust to Thos. W.
Shelton, trustee, dated December 30, 1912, covering a lot in Newport
News, to secure “the holder or holders” of three promissory notes of
the firm for $1,500, $1,000 and $300. At the same time Richardson &
Sons made the notes called for by the deed of trust, payable to their
own order. The Peninsula Bank discounted the note for $1,000 with
the indorsement of W. A. Bozarth, a member of the firm of Bozarth
Bros.; but being short of funds it requested W. A. Bozarth to have
the other notes discounted at the Bank of Williamsburg. W. A. Bo-
zarth took the two notes for $1,500 and $300 to the Bank of Williams-
burg, and, having indorsed them, received the proceeds from that
bank. All the money received was applied to the payment of the note
or notes of Richardson & Sons for $2,000 held by the Peninsula Bank
and the account of Richardson & Sons with Bozarth Bros.

{1] W. A. Bozarth testified that he had no notice of the insolvency
of Richardson & Sons. R. V. Richardson, of Richardson & Sons,
testified, on the contrary, that when the new notes and the deed of
trust were made both W. A. Bozarth and the Peninsula Bank knew
his firm was in “failing circumstances.” Under this evidence the find-
ing of the referee, concurred in by the District Judge, that Bozarth
Bros. and the Peninsula Bank had reasonable cause to believe that
Richardson & Sons were insolvent when they took the security, can-
not be disturbed. The Peninsula Bank having taken the new note and
the security, the trust deed, in part satisfaction of its old debt, with
good reason to believe that the mortgagors were insolvent, the deed
of trust capnot stand in its favor against creditors of the same class.

[2,3] The Bank of Williamsburg stands on a different footing.
There 1s no evidence that it had any notice of the insolvency of Rich-
ardson & Sons, or that it did not take the notes for $1,500 and $300 in
good faith in the usual course of business. The notes were negotiable,
and the Bank of Williamsburg took and held them as bona fide indor-
sees.- 'This indorsement carried with it the security of the deed of
trust. The authorities at one time were in serious conflict on the ques-
tion whether the indorsee of a negotiable note took the mortgage given
to secure it subject to defenses which might have been set up against
the original mortgagee; but it'is now well settled by the great weight
of authority that the indorsee of a negotiable note takes the mortgage
given to secure it, if valid on its face, as he takes the note, freed from
defenses which might have availed against the original mortgagee.
Carpenter v. Longan, 16 Wall. 271, 21 L. Ed. 313; Kenicott v. The
Supervisor, 16 Wall. 452, 21 L. Ed. 319; Sawyer v. Prickett, 19 Wall.
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146, 22 L. Ed. 105; New Orleans Co. v. Montgomery, 95 U. S. 16,
24 L. Ed. 346; Chicago Railway Equipment Co. v. Merchants’ Bank,
136 U. S. 268, 10 Sup. Ct. 999, 34 L. Ed. 349; Cudahy P. Co. v. State
Nat. Bank, 134 Fed. 546, 67 C. C. A. 662; Nashville Trust Co. v.
Smythe, 94 Tenn. 513, 29 S. W. 903, 27 L. R. A. 663, 45 Am. St.
Rep. 748, and note.

It seems that the precise point has not been decided in Virginia,
though the case of Carpenter v. Longan, supra, was cited as authority
in Stimpson v. Bishop, 82 Va. 190. The case of Evans v. Roanoke
Savings Bank, 95 Va. 294, 28 S. E. 323, has only an indirect if any
bearing on the question. There it was held that a satisfaction entered
on the record of a deed of trust by the payee of the note secured by
it was effectual against the indorsee of the note in favor of a subse-
quent encumbrancer of the property without notice that the original
payee had parted with the note. But this conclusion was reached on
the ground that section 2498 of the Code of Virginia provided that
effectual satisfaction could be so entered. In the case now before us
there was no release and the statute referred to has no application.

[4] There is no force in the position that the court cannot pass on
the validity of the deed of trust because Bozarth Bros. are not par-
ties to the proceedings. The Peninsula Bank and the Bank of Wil-
liamsburg are the sole owners of the deed of trust and the notes it was
intended to secure, and W. A. Bozarth is the indorser liable to the
banks. Hence the banks and W. A. Bozarth are the only parties nec-
essary to have before the court in determining the validity of the se-
curity. Itis true a claim may be made to require Bozarth Bros. to re-
fund the money received on their debt from the Bank of Williams-
burg, and it may have been better to have Bozarth Bros. before the
scourt to the end that all possible questions might be decided in one de-
cree. But that point was not involved in the issue of the validity of
the deed of trust. Should the creditors seek to have refunded the sum
of $1,800 received by Bozarth Bros. from the Bank of Williamsburg,
it will be time enough to bring in Bozarth Bros. as parties so that they
may be heard on the claim against them. :

The holding that the deed of trust is valid as a security for the notes
held by the Bank of Williamsburg, makes unnecessary in this pro-
ceeding consideration of the question whether there are any other cred-
itors in the same class with the preferred creditors who would be af-
fected by the preference, since the property covered by the deed of
trust has been sold and the proceeds $2,000 will not be more than suffi-
cient to pay the notes held by the Bank of Williamsburg. This conclu-
sion will exclude Wm. H. Hayden, the judgment creditor, from partic-
ipation in the fund, and we shall not anticipate -any issue that may
arise between other parties.

The result is that the deed of trust to Thos. H. Shelton is adjudged
a valid security as to the notes held by the Bank of Williamsburg, and
invalid as to the note held by the Peninsula Bank against creditors of
the same class; and the decree of the District Court is modified ac-
cordingly.

Modified.



72 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

KEYSTONE COAL & COKE CO. v. FEKETE et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. April 6, 1916.)

Nos. 2692-2695.

1. LIMITATION OF ACTIONS &=122—COMMENCEMENT OF ACTION—INEFFECTIVE
SERVICE.

In an action in which the period of limitation expired on December
24th a summons was issued, dated December 21st, and an attempted
service was made on December 27th. On motion this service was set
aside, but a motion to dismiss was denied, and defendants subsequently
appeared generally, without any further summons and service. Held
that, under Gen. CGode Ohio, § 11230, providing that an action shall be
deemed commenced as to each defendant at the date of the summons
served on him, the action was commenced on December 21st, and was not
barred, especially in view of section 11233, providing that, if plaintiff
fails otherwise than upon the. merits in an action commenced or attempt-
ed to be commenced in due time, he may commence a new action within
a year after such failure.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Limitation of Actions, Cent. Dig. §§
527, 538; Dec. Dig. ¢=122,

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Serles
Commencement of Action.]

2. DEATH,E&=>44—PARTIES—SUBSTITUTION.

In actions by administrators to recover for deaths occurring in another
state, the petitions specified the surviving relatives, alleged that they had
been injured by the deaths, and either stated expressly or showed by im-
plication that the actions were brought for their -benefit. On it'appearing
that under the law of the state where the deaths occurred the right of
action vested in the surviving relatives, and not in the personal representa-
tives, the court permitted a substitution of such surviving relatives as
plaintiffs of record. Held, that this was not error, as the amendment
made no change, except to substitute the real parties in interest for the
plaintiff, who had supposed he was their trustee.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Death, Dec. Dig. ¢=44.]

3. PLEADING €&=430(2)—IssUES, PROOF, AND VAR.IAVCE—WAIVEB ofF OBJEC-
TIONS.

Where, though the case was submitted to the jury and a recovery was
permitted upon a theory of negligence not disclosed in the petition, de-
fendant made no objection on the ground of variance to the evidence as it
came in, or to the action of the court in submitting this theory, it waived
any objection resting upon the variance.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Pleading, Cent. Dig. §§ 1438-1441; Dec.
Dig. &430(2); Trial, Cent. Dig. §§ 219, 266.]

4, MASTER AND SERVANT &=285(1)—LIABILITY FOR INJURIES—IEXPLOSIONS.

Employés of a mining company were killed or injured by an explosion of
blasting powder, stored in a boarding house for company workmen con-
ducted by W., while a party was in progress. Though the company claim-
ed that W. was a lessee under a formal written lease, and that it, as les-
sor, had no control over the premises, and that the powder was solely
in control of miners boarding in such house and kept there for their own
convenience, there was evidence tending to show that the lease was a
mere form, that the boarding house was for the company’s benefit and
completely under its control so far as it cared to exercise control, that the
powder belonged to it and was kept there for its convenience, that the
party was assembled with the assistance of its representative as a part
of its policy of properly providing for the needs of its workmen, and

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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that its agent knew of the presence of the powder on the occasion in
giestion. There was also evidence that it was negligence to maintain
so large a store of powder in the place where it was kept under the cir-
cumstances. Held, that defendant was not entitled to an instructed ver-
dict.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Master and Servant, Cent. Dig. § 1008;
Dec. Dig. €=285(1).]

B. TRIAL =2255(11)—INSTRUCTIONS—REQUEST.

While defendant was entitled to a charge making it clear to the jury
that plaintiffs could not recover upon the theory upon which they did re-
cover if the lease represented the contract between the company and W..
and if the relations which it seemed to create were the ones actually exist-
ing, and while, if such charge had been requested, it would have been
error to dispose of this matter with only the general statement that the
jury must decide which party had the actual control and management of
the premises and of the powder, the failure to give such instruction was
not reversible error, in the absence of any request therefor.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Trial, Cent. Dig. §§ 627-629; Dec.
Dig. &=255(11).]

6. APPEAL AND ERROR &=>216(1)—RESERVATION OF GROUNDS OF REVIEW—RE-
QUESTING INSTRUCTIONS.
An exception to the failure to charge specifically as to some theory of
recovery or defense is not sufficient upon which to predicate error, when
there is no preliminary request for such instruction.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Dec. Dig. €=216(1);
Trial, Cent. Dig. §§ 627, 628, 630.]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
Division of the Northern District of Ohio; Wm. L. Day, Judge.

Four actions, by Michael Fekete, by Frank Thry, by Anna Helm-
linger, and by Adam Muller, against the Keystone Coal & Coke Com-
pany. Judgments for plaintiffs, and defendant brings error. Affirmed.

The Keystone Company operated coal mines in Pennsylvania and owned the
houses used by the men. One of these houses was occupied by Mr. and Mrs.
Wilding; he worked in the mine, and she ran the house on her own account,
as a boarding house for company workmen; a considerable quantity of blast-
ing powder was stored in a closet off the room used for cooking and eating;
Christmas eve, there was a “party” in this room; during the evening this
powder blew up, killing some and injuring others; and these four suits were
brought in a state court of Ohio (later removed to the court below because of
diversity of citizenship) to recover for the injuries or deaths. The plaintiff
in each of these cases recovered a verdict, and the Keystone Company brings
error. The questions involved in the records are substantially the same in all
four cases, except as hereinafter specified.

The meritorious questions involved were whether there was negligence in
storing this powder in that location, whether the powder belonged to the com-
pany, and it had control of the premises, so as to make it liable for their dan-
gerous condition, and whether there wus contributory negligence. The plain-
tiff in error claims that, as matter of law, it was entitled to prevail on these
issues, and also claims that the statute of limitations had run, and that a
new plaintiff was erroneously substituted during the trial, and that there were
errors in the charge to the jury. ’

Berkeley Pearce, of Cleveland, Ohio, W. S. Rial, of Greensburg, Pa.,
and James Mathers, of Cleveland, Ohio, for plaintiff in error.

C.’S. Reed and Reed, Eichelberger & Nord, all of Cleveland, Ohio,
for defendants in error. :

¢=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER {n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Jl(i%efore WARRINGTON, KNAPPEN, and DENISON, Clrculz
udges

DENISON, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). [1]
1. Statute of Limitations. The injuries happened December 24, 1910,
in Pennsylvania. The Ohio statute referring to actions for death
caused by wrongful act in another state, says:

“Every such action * * * ghall be commenced within the time prescribed

for the commencement of such action by the statute of such other state.” Gen.
Code Ohio, § 10770, as amended, 101 O. L. 198.

The Pennsylvania period of limitation for “such action” was one
year. Hence the period expired December 24, 1911 The Ohio stat-
utes further provide (G. C. § 11230) that:

“An action shall be deemed commenced, within the meaning of this chap-
ter, as'to each defendant, at the date of the summons which is served on him.”

The summons issued on each of the three death claims in the state
court was dated December 21, 1911, and, by the return of the sheriff,
purported to be served on the Keystone Company December 27, 1911.
Later this service was set aside, but a motion to dismiss the cause was
denied. This action was taken after a special appearance by the de-
fendant for the purposes of the motion, and we assume that it was
taken because the defendant corporation had not been reached by serv-
ice upon the proper representative. Still later, and without any fur-
ther summons and service, defendant appeared generally in each ac-
tion; and when these, after much delay, had reached the stage for an-
swer it relied upon the foregoing statutes of limitations.

In our judgment, each action was commenced on December 21st, and
was not barred. Certainly, defendant’s general appearance must have
been in an action then pending ; there is nothing to indicate that it ever
-was commenced over again after the first attempt; we see no way to
avoid the conclusion that defendant entered its appearance and filed its
plea in the same action which had been commenced on December 21st.

We are confirmed in this conclusion by the view that if defendant
had not thus appeared in this action, but had insisted upon an entire
«dismissal, plaintiff would have had the right to begin a new suit at any
time within one year, under the Ohio statute (G. C. § 11233), providing
that, if the plaintiff fails otherwise than upon the merits in an action
commenced or attempted to be commenced in due time, he may com-
mence a new action within a year after such failure, in spite of the
fact that the time originally limited therefor has expired. It is not to be
supposed that defendant intended to, or that it could, defeat the pur-
pose of this last statute by voluntarily appearing in an action imper-
fectly commenced, and then insisting that the action in which it ap-
peared had never been commenced at all.

[2,3) 2. The Parties Plaintiff. Each of three actions was brought
by an administrator to recover for the death of his intestate. The pe-
titions, as amended, specified the surviving relatives, and alleged that
they had been injured by the deaths in the amounts of the ad damnum
clauses. One of the petitions expressly stated that the action was
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brought for the benefit of this survivor, and the other two are open to
no other implication. The answers raised no question of the right of
the administrators to maintain these actions; but after the trials had
reached the point where the plaintiffs’ opening argument to the jury had
been made, the defendant first suggested that, by Pennsylvania law,
the right of action for wrongful death vested in the surviving, depend-
ent relative, and not in the personal representative, whereupon the court
permitted, in each action, a substitution of plaintiffs, so as to make the
surviving ‘relative the plaintiff of record, and the cases proceeded to
judgment in that form. This is said to have been error both because
the action became a different one and because the new action was, at
that date, barred by time; and to support the claim of error, defendant
relies upon Railway v. Wyler, 158 U. S. 285, 15 Sup. Ct. 877, 39 L.
Ed. 983.

In that case, as is pointed out in Railway v. Wulf, 226 U. S. 570, 577,
33 Sup. Ct. 135, 57 L. Ed. 355, Ann. Cas. 1914B, 134, the amendment
was niot merely a change in the nominal party, but presented a different
theory of the right to recover and a different state of facts; and it was
for these reasons that the amendment was not permitted. The amend-
ment in the present cases made no change, except to substitute the
real parties in interest for the plaintiff who had supposed he was their
trustee. It is true that the case was submitted to the jury and a re-
covery was permitted upon a theory of negligence not disclosed in the
original petition; but no more was it disclosed by the amended peti-
tion after the substitution of parties; and since defendant made no-
objection, on the ground of variance, to the evidence as it came in, or
to the action of the court in submitting this theory, it waived any ob--
jection resting upon that variance.

So far as concerns the propriety of the amendment, we cannot dis-
tinguish these present cases from the Wulf Case. One is the converse
of the other. There the beneficiary brought suit as plaintiff, and, when
it was learned that the right of action there involved had vested in the
personal representative, a substitution was permitted. We cannot see
that it is of any importance that the beneficiary and the personal rep-
resentative happened to be the same person. We find no error in the
action of the court below in this respect. See, also, Seaboard Ry.
v. Koennecke, 239 U. S. 352, 36 Sup. Ct. 126, 60 L. Ed. —. We
assume, as the parties do, but without deciding, that the identity
of the plaintiff in such an action is fixed by the Pennsylvania, not by
the Ohio, statute, and that the amendments named the proper parties.

[4] 3. The Merits. 'The court held that killed or injured persons
who knew that the powder was in the closet were guilty of contribu-
tory negligence and recovery was barred. This holding was fatal to
other actions, but in these four cases, it was found that such knowl-
edge did not exist. There was evidence tending to support this finding,
and so the question of contributory negligence is not here. Upon the
subject of negligence or nuisance, whichever it may be called, it is
clear enough—perhaps it is hardly disputed—that the proofs tended
to show that it was beyond the limits of prudence to maintain so large
a store of powder as some evidence indicated this was, in a place like
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this closet and at a time when the adjoining room was to be occupied
by a miners’ Christmas eve party, involving drinking and smoking,
and when some of those naturally to be expected to be present did not
know the powder was there and when no warning was given for thé
benefit of these uninformed persons. The really vital question was
whether this negligence was properly imputable to defendant, the owner
and landlord of the premises or could be imputed only to the tenants
or subtenants in the house or their invited guests. All the injured per-
sons were of these classes. We see no object in detailing the evidence
upon the issue. On one side, it was claimed that Mrs. Wilding and’
her husband were lessees under a formal written lease; that the com-
pany, as lessor, had no control over the premises and that the powder
was solely in the control of the miners to whom it had been furnished
from time to time; and that the miners boarding in the house kept this
store of powder there for their own convenience, so that they might
more easily get their daily supply. On the other hand, it was said that
the written lease was a mere form; that the boarding house was for
the company benefit and was completely under its control, so far as it
cared to exercise control; that the powder in the closet belonged to the
company, and was replenished and kept there by the company for its
convenience ; and that, on this particular occasion, the party had been
assembled in this place with the assistance of the company’s representa-
tive and as a part of its policy of properly providing for the needs of
its workmen. It is not now important where the weight of the evidence
was on this main issue. There was more than a scintilla of evidence
in plaintiffs’ favor on each link in this chain, so as to require its sub-
mission to the jury. The weakest link is with reference to the com-
pany’s knowledge that this quantity of powder was in this place at this
timel but there is testimony that it was shown to the company’s agent
just before the explosion, and he said it was all right. If this is true,
a warning from him to those present would have prevented liability,
if not injury. It was made clear by the charge that the jury must find
for plaintiffs or for defendant, according as they found this general
state of facts one way or the other, and we think defendant was not
entitled to an instructed verdict. The extended discussion in the briefs
as to the liability of a landlord, where a dangerous nuisance is main-
tained on the premises by the tenant, becomes immaterial. Each case
was submitted to the jury and each verdict stands upon the theory that
the ordinary relation of landlord and tenant did not exist, but that
the premises were, in fact, in the possession and control of the land-
lord, and that the dangerous condition was maintained by it.

[5,68] 4. Specific Errors in the Charge. Several complaints are
made, but we think they are, with one exception, sufficiently covered by
what has been said, or else that they do not require separate mention.
The written lease from defendant to Mrs. Wilding, defendant re-
garded as important, and it was presented by defendant as superseding
the earlier and rather loose arrangement under which there was more
reason for saying that defendant had actual control. Though of
course plaintiffs were not bound by the terms of the lease as the par-
ties to it were, as against dispute by parol, yet if this lease in truth
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represented the contract and the whole of it between the company.
and Mrs. Wilding, and if the relations which the lease seemed to
create were the ‘ones actually thereafter existing, plaintiffs were not
entitled to recover upon the theory upon which they did recover. De-
fendants were entitled to a charge making this clear to the jury, and if
such a charge had been requested, it would have been error to have
passed the matter by as the court did, with no reference whatever
to the lease or to that specific theory of defense, and with only
the general statement that the jury must decide which party had
the actual control and management of the premises and of the pow-
der. Stoll v. Loving (C. C. A. 6th Cir.) 120 Fed. 805, 57 C. C.
A. 173. However, no such request was made, and we have repeat-
edly held that a judgment will not be reversed because the court
did not submit specifically some theory of recovery or defense which
he was not asked to do. Erie Co. v. Schomer (C. C. A. 6th Cir.) 171
Fed. 798, 802, 96 C. C. A. 458. An exception was taken in general
terms to the failure of the court to charge upon the subject of the ef-
fect of the lease, but such an exception cannot supply the place of the
necessary preliminary request. An exception alone is sufficient to
reach an error of commission in the charge, but it may not be as to an
error of omission. In such case, it amounts only to the claim that the
court should have said something further, but the court is not told
what it is that he should have said—is not told even in substance.
Many times such an exception will be all that the trial judge thinks
necessary to inform him sufficiently, and, in his discretion, he will pro-
ceed to cover the ground omitted; but the close of the trial, when a
jury is about to retire, is not the proper time to bring to the attention
of the trial judge for the first time, and merely by exception, a mat-
ter, the proper disposition of which requires study and careful for-
mulation in connection with what has been said. Only in a clear case of
prejudice—if then—could we feel justified in reversing the judgment
for a reason based only on such an exception; and this is not such a
case. See Young v. Corrigan (C. C. A. 6th Cir.) 210 Fed. 442, and
cases cited on page 443, 127 C. C. A. 174. '
The judgment in each case will be affirmed.

MANEY BROS. & CO. v. CRANE CREEK IRRIGATION, LAND & POWER
CO. et al.

CRANE CREEK IRR. DIST. et al. v. MANEY BROS. & CO.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. March 6, 1916. Rehearing Denied
May 8, 1916.)

No. 2644.

1. WATERS AND WATER COURSES @=228—IRRIGATION—EXECUTORY CONTRACT
OF SALE—MORTGAGE BY VENDOR.

A corporation, owner of water rights, reservoir sites, and rights of way
for ditches, which contracted to construct an, irrigation system and to
convey undivided interests therein to each of two public irrigation dis-
tricts in exchange for their bonds at par, could not thereafter, as against

@=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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the districts, incumber such interests by a mortgage to a construction cop-
tractor having notice of the facts, securing an obligation for the payment
of money, and which the districts could not discharge through the medium
of payment provided for in their contracts.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Waters and Water Courses, Dec. Dig.
&=228.] . -

2, Wéﬂ'EBs AND WATER COUBSES €=2228—IRRIGATION DISTRICTS—POWERS OF

FFICERS.

In such case the action of the officers of an irrigation district in at-
tempting to recognize the validity of the mortgage was wholly ultra vires,
and not binding on the district.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Waters and Water Courses, Dec. Dig.
€=228.]

Appeal and Cross-Appeal from the District Court of the United
States for the Southern Division of the District of Idaho; Frank S.
Dietrich, Judge. ‘

Suit in equity by the Portland Wood Pipe Company, Maney Bros.
& Co., a copartnership consisting of J. W. Maney, John Maney, Her-
bert G. Wells, and E. J. Wells, and others against the Crane Creek
Irrigation, Land & Power Company, the Crane Creek Irrigation Dis-
trict, the Sunny§ide Irrigation District, and others. From a decree
entered on the cross-bill of Maney Bros. & Co., that company and the
trrigation districts appeal. Affirmed.

Richards & Haga and McKeen F. Morfow, all of Boise, Idaho, for
Maney Bros. & Co.

C. S. Varian, »f Salt Lake City, Utah (E. R. Coulter, of Weiser,
Idaho, of counsel), for Crane Creek Irrigation, Land & Power Co. and
others. :

Wilbur, Spencer & Beckett, of Portland, Or., for Portland Wood
. Pipe Co.

Before GILBERT and MORROW, Circuit Judges, and RUDKIN,
District Judge.

RUDKIN, District Judge. This is a companion case of Crane Creek
Irrigation District v. Portland Wood Pipe Co., 231 Fed. 113, — C.
C. A. — just decided. In fact, the present appeal and cross-appeal
were prosecuted from parts of the same decree. As stated in our
opinion, just referred to, the Crane Creek Irrigation, Land & Power
Company is a private corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the state of Idaho, and the Crane Creek Irrigation District and
the Sunnyside Irrigation District are public corporations organized and
existing under the laws of that state. On the 22d day of August, 1910,
the Irrigation & Power Company entered into two separate contracts
with the two irrigation districts in question under the terms of which
it agreed to construct and complete an irrigation system according
to certain plans and specifications agreed upon, and upon completion
to convey to each of the irrigation districts a certain specified un-
divided interest therein. These contracts recited that the Irrigation &
Power Company was the owner of certain water rights, reservoir sites,
and rights of way upon which some construction work had been per-
formed, and it was thereupon agreed that the reservoir, dams, pipe

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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lines, flumes, laterals, and other structures should be constructed and
completed by the 1st day of May, 1912, and that when so constructed
and completed the undivided interest should be conveyed to each of
the irrigation districts as therein provided. It was further agreed
that partial conveyances should be made from time to time on monthly
estimates as the work progressed, and that upon the completion of
the work these partial conveyances should be followed by final con-
veyances. In consideration of these conveyances the irrigation dis-
tricts agreed to deliver to the Irrigation & Power Company certain
coupon bonds of the districts at their face value. The contracts
with the two districts were identical in terms, except as to the in-
terest to be conveyed and the consideration to be paid.

On the 29th day of September, 1911, Maney Bros. & Co. entered
into a contract with the Irrigation & Power Company for the construc-
tion of a dam forming a part of the irrigation system, in which it
was agreed, among other things, that the Irrigation & Power Com-
pany should execute its promissory note in the sum of $37,000, due
November 15, 1912, with interest at the rate of 6 per cent. per annum
from November 15, 1911, secured by a mortgage on all its property,
rights, and franchises of a form satisfactory to the contractors, as
“security for the payment of the note, and any and all other sums due
or to become due under the agreement, and that the note should be
indorsed by the appellees, Ford, Butterfield, and McKinney. On the
same date a mortgage was executed by the Irrigation & Power Com-
pany to Maney Bros. to secure the payment of the sum of $87,000
. thus agreed upon. This mortgage was executed to secure a promis-
sory note for the sum of $87,000, in lawful money of the United
States, with interest at the rate of 6 per cent. per annum from Novem-
"ber 15, 1911. Thereafter the Irrigation & Power Company entered
into a further contract with the Slick Bros. Construction Company for
the construction of other parts of the system, and the Portland Wood
Pipe Company furnished materials to Slick Bros. to be used in such
construction work. Subsequently the Portland Wood Pipe Company
perfected a lien under the laws of the state of Idaho and instituted the
present suit in the court below for the foreclosure thereof. In that
suit Maney Bros. & Co. filed a cross-complaint praying for the fore-
closure of their mortgage. The court below decreed a foreclosure as
against the Crane Creek Irrigation, Land & Power Company and its
property, but denied any relief as against the irrigation districts and
their property. From this decree both Maney Bros. & Co. and the ir-
rigation districts have appealed. :

It was conceded at the trial that there was a balance due on the
Maney Bros. & Co. mortgage in the sum of $35989.10, with interest
at 6 per cent. per annum from December 27, 1913, and the decree
awarded a personal judgment in that amount against the Irrigation &
Power Company and the sureties on the note, and decreed a fore-
closure of the mortgage as against the property of the mortgagor. The
errors assigned on appeal of Maney Bros. & Co. are based on the re-
fusal of the court to decree a foreclosure against the property and
property rights conveyed by the Irrigation & Power Company to the
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two irrigation districts, or to allow an attorney’s fee in excess of $1,000
on the mortgage foreclosure. There was no error in these rulings.
No doubt the vendor under an executory contract of sale such as this
holds the legal title as security for the payment of the purchase price,
and the title so held may be conveyed, mortgaged, or devised. The
right to convey or mortgage, however, is subject to the important qual-
ification that the vendor cannot, by any subsequent act of his, restrict
or impair the rights of the purchaser under the executory contract,
or impose burdens upon the property which cannot be removed by
the purchaser without departing from the terms of his contract of
purchase. Here the irrigation districts agreed to pay for the property
in irrigation district bonds at their par or face value, whereas the
mortgage called for the payment of lawful money of the United States.
The mortgage could not be satisfied or paid through the medium of
irrigation district bonds, and this fact was well known to the parties
at the time of the execution of the mortgage.

The powers of irrigation district officers are defined and limited by
law, and parties dealing with them, or in relation to the property they
represent, are chargeable with notice of the powers conferred and of |
the mode in which these powers must be exercised. Such officers may
not purchase property subject to a mortgage where it is without their-
power to pay or discharge the mortgage lien (Voss v. Waterloo Water
Co., 163 Ind. 69, 71 N. E. 208, 66 L. R. A. 95, 106 Am. St. Rep.
201, 2 Ann. Cas. 978), and property which they have contracted to pur-
chase may not be subjected to a lien by the vendor which the irriga-
tion district cannot satisfy or discharge through the medium of pay-
ment provided for in the contract of purchase. Here it was without
the power of the irrigation districts to pay or satisfy the mortgage,
at least without departing from their contract of purchase, and this
fact was well known to the mortgagors. If the parties to this mort-
gade contemplated or intended that the mortgage should be taken up
and paid by the districts as a part of the purchase price of the prop-
erty, the mortgage should have been made payable in bonds either
directly or in the alternative, so that this might be done. The mort-
gage, however, contained no such provision. It was payable only in
lawful money of the United States, and it could not be discharged
or satisfied by a tender of irrigation district bonds. ‘The irrigation
districts assumed no obligation to pay cash by their contract of pur-
chase, and to permit a foreclosure of the mortgage against their prop-
erty at this time for failure to redeem.the mortgage in cash would
work a manifest fraud against them. Such a result must have been
contemplated, or should have been contemplated, when the mortgage
was taken. For these reasons the court committed no error in deny-
ing a foreclosure against the property conveyed to the irrigation dis-
tricts.

In this connection we have not overlooked the provision of the mort-
gage requiring the mortgagees to release the lien of the mortgage on
the property to be conveyed to the Sunnyside Irrigation District upon
the deposit as additional security with the cashier of the Boise Na-
tional Bank of $75,000 par value of the legally issued bonds of the
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district, the legality of which should first be approved by the Supreme
Court of the state of Idaho, or the like provision for the release of
the mortgage on the property to be conveyed to the Crane Creek Irri-
gation District by depositing $50,000 par value of the bonds of that
district. But these were burdens which the parties to the mortgage
could not lawfully impose on the irrigation districts.

[2] Our attention has been called to certain resolutions adopted by
the district recognizing the validity of this mortgage; but such resolu-
tions were adopted without consideration, and the attempt on the part
of the district officers to subject the property of the districts to the
lien of the mortgage is so manifestly ultra vires that it calls for no dis-
cussion. It is further claimed that the irrigation districts had no power
to contract for the payment in bonds of an irrigation system to be
thereafter constructed; but the contract has been made and executed,
and it does not lie with the mortgagors in this case to challenge or
question what has already been accomplished.

The action of the court below in fixing the amount of the attorney’s
fee was based largely on the ground that the principal services were
performed in an unwarranted attempt to subject the property of the
irrigation districts to the lien of the mortgage. In view of this fact,
and of the further fact that the foreclosure was not contested by
the mortgagor, we are unable to say that the allowance was inadequate
or improper.

The claim of the irrigation districts that the property of the Irriga-
tion & Power Company was not subject to foreclosure, because the
Irrigation & Power Company was a tenant in common with the irriga-
tion districts in a part of the property, is so utterly without merit as
to require no discussion.

The rights of the Portland Wood Pipe Company were disposed of
in our former opinion.

The decree is affirmed, without costs to either party.

COOPER v. UNITED STATES.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. March 17, 1016.)
No. 82.

1. CRIMINAL Law &=1159(2)—REVIEW—QUESTIONS OF FACT.

Whether accused devised a scheme to defraud, and whether it was car-
ried out by the use of the mails, are questions of fact, the determination
of which by the jury cannot be reviewed, where there was evidence to sus-
tain it.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. § 8075; Dec.
Dig. ¢=1159(2).] .

2. CRIMINAL Law €&=117014(1)—EVIDENCE—INCRIMINATING SELF—AGREEMENT.
The constitutional rights of accused were not infringed by his being
asked if a signature shown him was genuine, where it had been agreed
between counsel, in order to expedite the introduction of exhibits, that

«—>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indoxes
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when there was no question as to defendant’s signature the paper might
be received without proof of signature.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. § 3129; Dec.
Dig. €»117014(1).]

3. CRIMINAL LAw &=1170% (6)—HARMLESS ERROR—MISCONDUCT OF COUNSEL.

Where counsel for the government persisted in the question after it

became apparent that counsel for the defendant objected, but the court

ruled that defendant did not have to admit the signature unless he wanted

to, and that the government would have to prove it, and offered to in-

struct the jury that it was an entirely voluntary admission, there was no
prejudicial error.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cont. Dig. § 3134; Dec.
Dig. &1170%(6).]

4. CRIMINAL LAW &>720(3)—TRIAL—ARGUMENT OF COUNSEL.

In the trial of one of four defendants indicted for using the mails to
defraud, where one of the codefendants had testified without objection
that he had pleaded guilty, the prosecuting attorney could comment on
that fact.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. §§ 1670, 1671;
Dec. Dig. €&=720(3).]

5. CRIMINAL Law &=1134(1)-—REVIEW—SUSPENDED SENTENCE.

Rulings by the trial court on an indictment, sentence under which was
suspended, can be reviewed, notwithstanding the fact that imprisonment
thereunder seems remote. -

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. §§ 2986, 3056;
Dec. Dig. &=1134(1).]

6. CONSPIRACY &»45—EVIDENCE—ADMISSIBILITY—CONTINUATION OF THE OF-
FENSE.

Under an indictment which charged a conspiracy to use the mails to de-
fraud in the sale of bonds of a real estate company, and alleged that the
acts in furtherance thereof continued to a date which was within two years
of the filing of the indictment, evidence that the ofiice of the company
was kept open up to that date after a date three years before the filing
of the indictment was adwissible to show that the prosecution was not

barred.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Conspiracy, Cent. Dig. §§ 100-104; Dec.
Dig. ¢&=45.] .
7. CRIMINAL LAW &=390—EVIDENCE—ADMISSIBILITY—INTENT OF CODEFEND-
ANTS,

Where two of four defendants jointly indicted for conspiracy had plead-
ed guilty, it was proper to refuse to permit them to testify as to their
intent in doing certain acts, since their intent was not in issue, and they
could only infer the intent of the defendant on trial, which inference was
for the jury to draw.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, sece Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. § 858; Dec.
Dig. €=390.]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of New York.

William H. Cooper was convicted of using the mails in furtherance
of a scheme to defraud, and he brings error. Affirmed.

This case comes here on writ of error to review judgments of conviction on
two indictments under sections 215 and 37 of the United States Criminal Code
(Act March 4, 1909, c. 321, 35 Stat. 1130, 1096 [Comp. St. 1913, §§ 10385, 10201]).
The first indictment charges the defendant, together with Claude J. Van Slyke,
James A. Robinson and Ernest Sharp, with having devised a scheme to de-
fraud and using the mails in furtherance of such scheme. The defendants
Van Slyke and Robinson pleaded guilty and a severance was granted as to the
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defendant Ernest Sharp. The court suspended sentence on the indictment
under section 37 and the defendant Cooper was sentenced to imprisonment for
a period of three years in the penitentiary at Atlanta upon the three counts
of the indictment under section 215 of the Criminal Code.

Griggs, Baldwin & Baldwin, of New York City (Martin Conboy, of
New York City, and Worth E. Gaylor, of counsel), for plaintiff in
error.

H. Snowden Marshall, U. S. Atty.,, of New York City (Charles
H. Griffiths, of New York City, of counsel), for the United States.

Before COXE, WARD, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

COXE, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). The
controlling question in this controversy is whether the defendant,
with others, devised a scheme to defraud Margaret N. Huckill, and
other persons, by obtaining money, and property, from them by false
and fraudulent statements regarding the resources and management
of the New York Central Realty Company. Was it their purpose to
use the money so received from said persons for their own use and
benefit ?

The scheme of the defendant Cooper, as charged, was that subse-
quent to 1905, acting with the other defendants, he issued mortgage
bonds, secured by the real estate owned by the company, in sums
greatly exceeding the value of the land covered by the mortgage and
sold them to various parties by means of false statements as to their
value, made through the mails and otherwise.

The government asserts that the bonds which the Realty Company
put out and sold to the public with the representation that they were
amply secured by the mortgage on the real estate were not so secured
and that these representations of the defendant Cooper and of others
connected with the company, express and implied, that the bonds were
first class securities, were false and were made with intent to secure
for his own benefit purchasers of securities the value of which was, to
say the least, exceedingly doubtful. .

[1] The questions whether a scheme to defraud was devised by
the defendant and was carried out by the use of the mails were ques-
tions of fact with which this court is not concerned. We are to deter-
mine whether there was sufficient testimony to warrant the submission
of these questions to the jury. Clearly, the court on his proof would
not have been justified in ruling that there was no evidence on which:
the jury should pass. The questions of fact were clearly stated to
them by the trial judge with a reference to the rules which were to
determine their action and guide their deliberations. We have no
doubt that upon the evidence adduced they were justified in reaching
a verdict of guilty. If there was evidence to sustain it, this court can-
not reverse the judgment.

[2] The proposition that the defendant’s constitutional rights were
invaded by the United States attorney’s asking if a signature shown
him was his, cannot be maintained. In order to save time and ex-
pedite the introduction of exhibits it was agreed between counsel that
when there was no question regarding the signatures of the defend-
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ant and others connected with the Realty Company being genuine, the
paper in question might be received and no objection would be inter-
posed that the signature was not proved. The question, in view of
what had preceded it, was quite natural. We are convinced that the
only object of the United States attorney was to save time by the ad-
mission of a fact which was a mere matter of routine.

[3] The question was, however, persisted in by the United States
attorney after it became apparent that counsel’ for the defense ob-
jected. The situation is made sufficiently plain by a short extract from
the record: ,

“The Court: Of course the United States atterney is presuming on the
practice. I do not know of any objection prior to this time; but you don’t
have to admit it unless you want to and, therefore, he has to prove it.

“Mr. Conboy: My objection is, of course, to the request that we shall ad-
mit it. -

“The Court: I do not see any objection to that because it seems to have
been the course between you to make that request frequently, and in many
cases it has been granted.

“Mr. Conboy: We except.

“The Court: However, in this case he will have to prove the signature be-
fore it is admitted. * * * I will say to the jury that there is no reason why
you should admit it, if you don’t want to, it is entirely a voluntary admission.

‘“Mr. Conboy: My objection is to being requested.. * * #

“The Court: There is a question, they do not admit it, and you will have to
prove it.”

We cannot believe that this technical error, if it be one, produced the
slightest injurious effect upon the jury. It seems to us that the con-
tention that the defendant was prejudiced by what took place between
court and counsel is too visionary to be considered.

[4] The statement by the assistant United States attorney that
Robinson, a witness for the defense, had pleaded guilty would not
have been proper were it not for the fact that Robinson had previ-
ously testified without objection that he had so pleaded. This being a
fact in the case, we see no reversible error in referring to it. ‘The
statement was merely the iteration of a fact known to the jury and
proved in the, case.

The third indictment, found on February 4, 1914, is based upon
section 37 of the Criminal Code, which makes it an offense for two
or more persons to conspire to commit an offense against the United
States. It charges the defendants, and other persons unknown, with
a conspiracy to devise a scheme to defraud similar to that charged in
the other indictments.

[8] The court suspended sentence under this indictment, but the
defendant is entitled to have the action of the trial court reviewed, not-
withstanding the fact that imprisonment thereunder seems exceedingly
remote. We have examined the various objections to this indictment
and those taken on the trial thereof and do not find any reversible
error, either in the form of the indictment or the evidence relied on
to sustain it.

[6] The indictment in question alleged that the conspiracy charged
was carried on up to the 1st of March, 1912. The proof showed that
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the indictment was found on February 4, 1914, and to avoid the statute
of limitations it was necessary to show that the office of the Realty
Company on Broadway was maintained after February 4, 1911, and
prior to March 1, 1912, as charged. The court took great care to in-
struct the jury upon this question. As was said by the Supreme Court
in United States v. Kissel, 218 U. S. 601, 31 Sup. Ct. 124, 54 L. Ed.
1168:

“The overt acts relied upon coming down to within three years of the in-
dictment are alleged to have been done in pursuance of the conspiracy.”

[7] The court correctly ruled that it was not competent for the
defendants Van Slyke and Robinson to testify as to their intent in
doing certain acts. They had pleaded guilty and their intent was not
an issue in the case. Cooper’s intent was an issue in the case, but these
witnesses did not know what it was except as it could be inferred from
his acts and this inference was for the jury to draw.

The trial of this action occupied nearly 4 weeks; the printed record
contains 1,788 pages, the charge, covers 74 pages and the jury delib-
erated over 10 hours.

It is rarely the case that the record of a trial of such magnitude
and importance does not show that events occurred and rulings were
made which, in the light of deliberate examination, might better have
been omitted. In the present case, however, there are few such in-
stances. We cannot avoid the conclusion that the defendant has had
a perfectly fair and impartial trial and that no error occurred which
would justify a reversal of the judgment. The issue was one of
fact and the jury were fully justified in rendering a verdict of guilty.

The judgment is affirmed.

DANA v. MORGANXN et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. March 14, 1916.)
No. 178.

1. JUDGMENT &=701—CONCLUSIVENESS—STOCKHOLDER'S SUIT.

A judgment of a state court, dismissing a suit, brought by a stockhold-
er, on behalf of himself and ‘all other stockholders similarly situated
who cared to join, against the corporation and an officer, to set aside a
contract for the compensation of the officer as ultra vires, and to compel
a return of the moneys received by the officer, is conclusive, in the ab-
sence of fraud or collusion, against a subsequent suit by another stock-
holder, on behalf of himself and others, to have the same contract set
aside as a fraud on the corporation, and to have the moneys received
thereunder returned, where the second stockholder knew of the pendency
of the first suit, but did not intervene therein, since the rights sought to
be enforced were the rights of the corporation, and not directly the rights
of the stockholder, and, the corporation having been a party to the first
suit, its rights were thereby concluded.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, sev Judgment, Cent. Dig. § 1226; Dec. Dig.
&=701.]

@&=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered D!geéts & Indexes
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2. JUDGMENT &=701—CONCLUSIVENESS—STOCKHOLDER'S SUIT—ISSUES.

The fact that the objection of fraud was not raised in the first suit
does not affect the conclusiveness of the judgment, since .the same relief
was asked, and if the plaintiff in the second suit had intervened in the
first, as he had a right to do, he could have advanced any ground that
might exist for holding the contract invalid.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Judgment, Cent. Dig. § 1226; Dec.
Dig. &=701.]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of New York.

Suit by Charles A. Dana, in behalf of himself and other stockholders,
against Edwin D. Morgan and another. From a decree dismissing the
bill (219 Fed. 313), plaintiff appeals. Affirmed.

This cause comes here on an appeal from a decree of. the District
Court of the United States for the Southern District of New York,
filed on January 14, 1915. The defendant company is a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the state of Colorado. It
was formed for the purpose of raising and selling live stock and for
purchasing, leasing and working gold and silver and other mines in the
republic of Mexico. The company has a capital stock of $1,500,000
and the incorporators were men of means, and among them were
George Bliss, Theodore K. Gibbs and Edwin D. Morgan, at one time
Governor of New York and grandfather of the defendant Morgan.

The plaintiff, as the executor of Charles Dana, is the owner of about
4,000 shares of the stock of the defendant company, and is a cifizen
and resident of New York. The defendant Morgan is a citizen of
Rhode Island. It is alleged that he represents, in himself and on be-
half of his father’s estate or other relatives, about 19,000 shares of the
stock of the defendant company. He became president of the compa-
ny, serving in that capacity without salary. In 1910 he resigned as
president, and subsequent to his resignation and on December 7, 1910,
entered into a contract with the company whereby it was agreed that
he should act as the general agent of the company for a period of 10
years beginning with the year 1911. The contract provided the amount
of compensation which Morgan was to receive for his services. But
as the provision relating to that subject is complicated and lengthy it
is not set forth in detail in this connection. The original contract of
December 7, 1910, was modified on May 8, 1911, in respect to the com-
pensation which Morgan was to receive for his services. But it is not
necessary to state the terms as changed. Under each contract he was
to receive his compensation through commissions. And it is alleged
that during the years 1911 and 1912 the defendant Morgan received
under the contracts more than the sum of $32,000.

The contract of December, 1910, and the subsequent contract of
May, 1911, were each submitted by the directors to a stockholders’
meeting, at which they were ratified and confirmed. The first contract
was ratified by a vote of 81,489 shares in the affirmative as against
19,810 shares in the negative ; the Morgan stock not being voted. Ata
subsequent meeting of the stockholders the contract of 1911 received,

@=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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along with other matters submitted for approval, a ratifying vote of
99,033 for as against 38,714 in the negative.

Parson, Clossom & Mcllvaine, of New York City (Herbert Parsons,
of New York City, of counsel), for appeliant.

William W. Cook, of New York City, for appellee Morgan.

Boothby, Baldwin & Hardy, of New York City (Charles F. Brown,
of New York City, of counsel), for appellee Corralitos Co.

Before COXE, WARD, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

ROGERS, Circuit Judge (after stating the facts as above). This is
a stockholder’s suit. ‘The plaintiff sues on behalf of himself and all
other stockholders who did not consent to the making of the contracts
. complained of and who are willing to contribute to the expense of the
action. The complaint states that the commissions which the defend-
ant company agreed to pay defendant Morgan under the contracts were
excessive and beyond what the earnings of the company warranted and
that they were more than the fair and reasonable value of his services.
The bill alleges:

“The excessive compensation thereby sought to be secured to the defendant
Morgan has been and will have to be paid out of moneys which of right and
in the exercise of sound discretion should be distributed to the stockholders
of the said corporation as dividends or used for the development of its prop-
erty or in the satisfaction of the mortgage or the retirement of its preferred
stock; and such’ sums as have been paid have been so paid and such sums
as the said pretended contracts contemplate shall be paid are to be so paid in
fraud of the rights of the defendant company and of its stockholders. Each
of the said pretended contracts was made in bad faith, was in fraud of and
was oppressive and unfair to the defendant company and the stockholders
thereof and contemplates a dissipation of the profits and assets of the said
corporation and the waste of its capital.”

The bill also alleges that the plaintiff did not consent to the making
of either of the contracts and that he has not consented to the making
of any payment to the defendant Morgan under the contracts. The
bill also alleges that it is impossible to get the corporation to bring the
action and that it is therefore made a party defendant. A decree is
sought directing repayment to the defendant company by the defend-
ant Morgan of the excess of compensation which the defendant com-
pany has paid to him under the contracts.

This suit was commenced in November, 1913, and it appears that in
November, 1912, a stockholder in the same company, James Harold
Warner, commenced a suit against these same defendants in the Su-
preme Court of the state of New York on these same contracts. The
suit was brought by Warner in the words of the complaint “on behalf
of himself and all the stockholders of the Corralitos Company who did
not consent to the making of either of the two contracts.” The bill
in that suit alleged:

“Phat the amount of the salary fixed by each of the said contracts is gross-
ly disproportionate.to the reasonable value of the services which defendant
Edwin D. Morgan bound himself in the said contract to render; that the rea-
sonable value of the salid services is not more than $2,500 per year. On in-
formation and belief that the sum of $32,000 has been paid to defendant Ed-
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win D. Morgan under the said contracts. That the plaintiff did not consent
to the payment thereof or any part thereof.

“Wherefore the plaintiff demands judgment against the defendants that
the said contracts be set aside and that defendant Edwin D. Morgan account
for the sums of money which he has received under the said contracts and
that defendant the Corralitos Company be enjoined, pending the determination
of this action, from paying any more money to defendant Edwin D. Morgan
under either of the said contracts and for such further and other relief as may
be just, together with the costs and disbursements of this action.”

The demand for judgment in the case at bar reads as follows:

“Wherefore, the plaintiff demands judgment against the defendant that the
said pretended contracts be set aside and cancelled, that the defendant Mor-
gan account for the sums of money which he has received under the said
pretended contracts, that he pay back to the defendant company the difference
between the sums of money so received and the fair and reasonable value of
his services rendered to the defendant company during the period for which
he received the said sums, and that the deferdant company be enjoined pend-
ing the determination of this action, from paying any more money to the de-
fendant Morgan under either of the said pretended contracts; and for such
further and other relief as may be just, together with the costs and disburse-
ments of this action.”

In the suit in the New York court judgment was entered for the
defendant and the bill was dismissed. Warner v. Morgan, 81 Misc.
Rep. 685, 143 N. Y. Supp. 516. That court in its findings of fact
found that the contracts were within the company’s chartered powers,
that there was no proof that they were fraudulent or oppressive, that
the contracts were exceptionally favorable to the defendant company,
and that the contract as modified by the contract of May 8, 1911, was
in all respects valid. And this judgment has been affirmed by the
Appellate Division. 165 App. Div. 903, 149 N. Y. Supp. 1117.

It appears that the plaintiff in the case at bar was well aware, at
the time, of the pendency of the suit in the New York court; that he.
knew of it from the time of its commencement and could at any time
have intervened therein and become a party thereto. He did not, how-
ever, see fit to do so. And it is claimed now that he is concluded by
that judgment and that the question involved in this case is res adjudi-
cata. The court below dismissed the bill on that ground.

It is eévident that the plaintiff in this court seeks exactly the same
result that the plaintiff in the New York suit sought. They both at-
tempted to have the contracts under which the defendant was employed
set aside. And they both alleged that the defendant has received from
the company for his services under these contracts a remuneration
grossly in excess of the value of his services, and they both sought to
require him to account to the company for the moneys he has so re-.
ceived.

[1] Warner predicated his suit on the theory that the contracts were
ultra vires and the plaintiff has predicated this suit upon the theory
that the contracts were made in bad faith and in fraud of the company.
But we are not able to see that this difference in the method by which
these two plaintiffs sought to maintain their suits affects in any way
the result. ‘The cause of action was the same. The right of the plain-
tiff to sue is, in this case, as it was in the New York case, a right to
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sue for the wrong alleged to have been done to the defendant corpora-
tion. Neither suit was brought to redress a wrong which was personal
to the party who brought the suit. There is a vast difference between
the right of a shareholder to sue for the redress of an injury done to
the corporation, and the right to sue to redress an injury done to the
shareholder individuaily. ‘The judgment in the state court is conclusive
not only upon the stockholders who brought the suit but upon the cor-
poration also and upon those who had the right to intervene but did not
avail themselves of it. Burland v. Earle, [1902] A. C. 83,71 L. J. P.
C. 1; Willoughby v. Chicago Junction Railways, etc., Co., 50 N. J. Eq.
636, 25 Atl. 277; Appleton v. American Malting Co., 65 N. J. Eq. 373,
54 Atl. 454; Goodbody v. Delaney, 80 N. J. Eq. 417, 83 Atl. 988;
Hearst v. Putnam Mining Co., 28 Utah, 184, 77 Pac. 753, 66 L. R. A.
784, 107 Am. St. Rep. 698; Jones v. Johnson, 10 Bush (Ky.) 649; 10
Cyc. 993.

It makes no difference, in the absence of fraud or collusion, that a
stockholder’s suit is prosecuted by one or more, or by all, the stock-
holders; the suit being brought on behalf of all others of like interest
joining therein. As was said in Brinckerhoff v. Bostwick, 99 N. Y.
185, 1 N. E. 663, the action is really the action of all the stockholders,
as it is necessarily commenced in their behalf and for their benefit.
And as in such suits the wrong to be redressed is the wrong done to the
corporation and as the corporation is a necessary part to the suit, it
inevitably follow's that there can be but one adjudication on the rights
of the corporation. And it is undoubted law that the judgment in the
state court is an estoppel and a finality not only as to all matters actu-
ally litigated in the suit but also as to all matters which were not but
might have been presented to the court and passed upon therein. See
Landon v. Bulkley, 95 Fed. 344, 37 C. C. A. 96.

The plaintiff in support of his contention that he is not concluded
refers us to Wabash Railroad Co. v. Adelbert College, 208 U. S. 38,
28 Sup. Ct. 182, 52 L. Ed. 379, which he cites as “the leading author-
ity.” But the doctrine announced in that case has no application to
the facts of this case. The plaintiff in the case there relied on had not
brought a stockholder’s suit and had not asserted a right of the corpo-
ration. He was asserting a right which he possessed in his individual

‘capacity. The railroad company had issued what were known as
“equipment bonds,” and at the time of their issuance they were un-
secured. Subsequently the railroad company consolidated with cer-
tain other railroad companies and the theory of the plaintiff was that
the consolidation resulted in giving to these originally unsecured obli-
gations an equitable lien upon the property of the corporation which
issued them, and that the equity of redemption of that property went
into the hands of the consolidated corporation encumbered by that lien.
The holders of some of these bonds brought suit against the Wabash
Company and alleged that the suit was brought “on their own behalf,
as well as in behalf of all those in like interest who may come in and
contribute to the expenses of and join in the prosecution of this suit.”
No notice of the pendency of the suit was given to the other holders
of the bonds other than by this allegation of the bill. The trial court



90 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

held a lien existed and the Supreme Court reversed it ind denied the
existence of the lien. That was in Wabash, etc., Railway v. Ham, 114
U. S. 587, 5 Sup. Ct. 1081, 29 L. Ed. 235. Thereafter another holder
of similar bonds issued by the Wabash brought a similar suit and it
was contended that the judgment in the former case constituted a bar
to the claim for lien of all the holders of the equipment bonds, whether
they were parties or privies to the first suit or not. The theory on
which counsel relied was that the first suit was a representative or class
suit and that the judgment bound all of the class, even if not parties
or privies. But the Supreme Court held that the first suit was not a
representative suit in the sense that the judgment in it bound those who
were not parties to it.” We do not doubt the correctness of that deci-
sion as applied to the facts of that case. But in the case at bar the
plaintiff in the New York suit was asserting the right of the corpora-
tion and the corporation was a party to the suit and concluded by that
judgment. So that when Dana filed the second suit fo vindicate the
right of the corporation he was.seeking to vindicate a right which the
New York court had conclusively determined as against the corpora-
tion itself, and therefore as against him, did not exist. The principle
certainly cannot at this late day be successfully challenged that every
member of a corporation is so far privy in interest in a suit against the
corporation that he is bound by the judgment against it.

The plaintiff’s difficulty is that he apparently overlooks the real na-
ture of a stockholder’s suit. The true theory of such a suit is well
stated by Pomeroy in his work on Equity Jurisprudence (volume 3, §
1095). He says: :

“The stockholder does not bring such a suit because his rights have been
directly violated, or because the cause of action is his, or because he is en-
titled to the relief sought; he is permitted to sue in this manner simply in
order to set in motion the judicial machinery of the court. The stockholder,
either individually or as a representative of the class, may commence the suit,
and may prosecute it to judgment; but in every other respect the action is
the ordinary one brought by the corporation; it is maintained directly for
the benefit of the corporation, and the final relief, when obtained belongs to
the corporation and not to the stockholder plaintiff. The corporation is, there-
fore, an indispensably necessary party, not simply on the general principles
of equity pleading, in order that it may be bound by the decree, but in order
that the relief, when granted, may be awarded to it, as a party to the record,
by the decree. This view completely answers the objections which are some-
times raised in suits of this class, that the plaintiff has no interest in the sub-
Jject-matter of the controversy, nor in the relief. In fact, the plaintiff has no
such direct interest; the defendant corporation alone has any direct interest;
the plaintiff is permitted, notwithstanding his want of interest to maintain
the action solely to prevent an otheryvise complete failure of justice.”

In Cook on Stockholders, § 692, the law is correctly stated as fol-
lows:

“The rule that the corporation itself is an indispensable party defendant to
such suit is due to the fact that all other possible future suits by the corpora-
tion are thereby prevented, the rights of the corporation are duly ascertained
and the remedy made effectual against the corporation as well as others.”

In Alexander v. Donohoe, 143 N. Y. 203, 38 N. E. 263, Judge Earl .
speaking for the New York Court of Appeals as to a stockholder’s suit
said:
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“Suing as a stockholder the plaintiff’s right of action is a derlvative one.
He sues, not primarily in his own rights, but in the right of the corporation.
The wrongs of which he complains are wrongs to the corporation. They were
not aimed at him and did not involve his personal, individual rights. He suf-
fers as a member of the corporation.”

The plaintiff insists that the judgment of the New York court does
not affect him, as he ‘was not a party to it, a privy to it, or represented
in it. The answer is that the corporation whose interest he seeks to
represent in this suit was a party to that action and is concluded by it
and that that concludes him.

[2] The plaintiff also insists that he has not had his day in court on
the issues he presents. The complaint does not lie in his mouth to
make. He knew of the pendency of the other suit and he had an op-
portunity to be heard in it. It was expressly for the benefit of any and
all the stockholders who might come in and contribute to its expense.
At any time before decree he might have been made a party if he had
chosen to intervene, and having become a party he might have inform-
ed the court of anything he deemed important to bring to its attention
and might have had the bill of complaint amended if the court con-
cluded an amendment necessary. The question whether he should in-
tervene or commence an independent suit was considered by him and
he concluded that he would not participate in the New York suit. He
had his opportunity and declined to avail himself of it.

In view of the conclusion which we have reached it is not necessary
to consider any of the other matters submitted to the court.

Decree affirmed. )

UNITED STATES v. THIRODEAUX,

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. April 15, 1916. Rehearing Denied
May 20, 1916.)

No. 2795.

1. EXcEPTIONS, BIiLL oF ¢=39(1)—T1ME To FILE—EXPIRATION OF TERM.

The right to a bill of exceptions expires with the adjournment of the
term at which the case was tried, unless there is an order, agreement of
counsel, or ruling of the court granting time within which to file bills.

[Iid. Note.—For other cases, see Exceptions, Bill of, Cent. Dig. §§ 54, 56;
Dec. Dig. &==39(1).]

2. PuBLIC LANDS &=60—SwAMP LANDS—EVIDENCE-—SELECTION BY STATE.

In an action to recover the value of wood cut on certain land, to which
defendant claimed title from the state of Louisiana, evidence held to
show that the lands were selected by the state as swamp lands under the
special grant to that state by Act March 2, 1849, c. 87, 9 Stat. 352, so as to
justify a directed verdict.

[Ed. Note—Tor other cases, see Public Lands, Cent. Dig. §§ 186, 187;
Dec. Dig. &=60.]

3. Pubric LANDS &=60—AcTIONS FOR TIMBER—EVIDENCE—CHARACTER OF
LANDS. 4

In an action to recover the value of wood cut on a tract of land which

defendant claimed under a grant from the state of Louisiana, which

claimed it as swamp lands selected by it under Special Act March 2, 1849,

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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c. 87, 9 Stat. 352, parol evidence is admissible to show that In 1850 the
land was in fact swamp and overflowed lands, since, if it was such lands,
the state’s title was valid under Swamp Land Act Sept. 28, 1830, c. 84, 9
Stat. 519.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, Cent. Dig. §§ 186, 187;
Dec. Dig. &=60.]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Western
District of Louisiana; Aleck Boarman, Judge.

Action by the United States against Oneziphore Thibodeaux to
recover the value of wood cut and removed from a homestead entry.
Judgment for defendant on a directed verdict, and the United States
brings error. Affirmed.

Geo. Whitfield Jack, U. S. Atty., and Robert A. Hunter, Asst. U.
S. Atty., both of Shreveport, La.
E. B. Dubuisson, of Opelousas, La., for defendant in error.

Before PARDEE, and WALKER, Circuit Judges, and MAXEY,
District .Judge.

PARDEE, Circuit Judge. This is a suit brought by the United
States to recover the value of wood cut and removed from an alleged
unperfected homestead entry in a New Orleans, La., land district. The
defendants answered, generally denying plaintiff’s petition, and special-
ly denying that the United States was the owner of the land described
in the petition, and averring that the said lands were swamp lands in-
uring to the state of Louisiana under an act of Congress entitled “An
act to aid the state of Louisiana in draining the swamp lands therein,”
approved March 2, 1849, and set forth a title under a patent from the
state of Louisiana down to the present defendants. From an adverse.
verdict and judgment, the United States sued out this writ of error,
assigning errors relating to the admission of evidence and the charge
and refusals to charge of the trial court.

We find in the case no commendable, if legal and sufficient, bill of
exceptions. What purports to be and is headed “Bill of Exceptions”
commences with the title of the case; the list of the officials of the
court; the filing of the original petition on February 9, 1911, which
is fully set out; the service of citation on the 13th day of February,
1911; the subsequent filing on the 8th day of May, 1912, of an an-
swer fully transcribed, and indorsed with statement that at a later
date by consent the trial of the cause was continued from time to
time and term to term until finally it was agreed that the same should
be tried at Opelousas, La., on January 27, 1915, and at said date,
the parties announcing themselves “Ready,” the jury was fully im-
paneled, whereupon the following proceedings were had, the following
evidence adduced, and the following objections were made and bills
of exception taken, noted, and allowed during said trial, to wit:
(Thereupon follows the court proceedings, appearances, and evidence,
etc., giving and containing all the proceedings and evidence, documents,
and exhibits up to the rendition of the verdict and judgment on Janu-
ary 28, 1915, on which day the court adjourned.)
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The next entry in said bill is an agreement of parties, dated May
25, 1915, in which it is agreed, among other things pertaining to the
suit, that: ' ‘

“Certain maps need not be copied or attached to the bill of exceptions, but

shall be deemed and considered as a part of said bill of exceptions to the same
extent as if formally inserted therein.”

And thereupon the bill was authenticated by the court as follows:

“lixamined and approved as to facts, but not as to legal sufficiency, this
26th day of May, 1915.” Indorsed, “Filed May 31, 1915.”

[1] The record shows that the term of court in which this case was
tried was duly adjourned on the 28th day of January, 1915. Up to
that date there does not appear to have been any order nor agreement
of counsel nor rule of court granting time within which to file bills
of exception. Without such order, agreement, or rule, the right to bill
of exceptions expired with the adjournment of court. See Miller v.
Morgan, 67 Fed. 82, 14 C. C. A. 312; United States v. Jones, 149 U.
S. 262, 13 Sup. Ct. 840, 37 L. Ed. 726. _

From subsequent printed matter in the transcript we find that to a
petition filed on the 22d day of February, 1915, is attached the follow-
ing order:

“The foregoing petition and agreement of counsel being considered, it is
ordered that the plaintiff, the United States of America, be and is hereby
granted an extension of time of 60 days to begin from the expiration of time
originally allowed herein, to wit, 30 days from January 28, 1915, in which to
file an assignment of errors and bills of exception in the above numbered and
entitled cause. Said assignments of error and bills of exception to be filed
on or before the 28th day of April, 1915. Thus done, read, and signed at
Shreveport, Louisiana, the 22d day of February, 1915.”

And thereafter, it appears, further extensions of time to file bills of
exception were granted.

[2] If we assume from these orders extending time that the first
order was granted before the term ended, then we find, passing over
objections to evidence rejected and charges refused, that over the
objections of the government the trial judge directed a verdict for the
defendants. If this charge was correct, then the judgment should be
affirmed; if not correct, then the judgment should be reversed. As
stated in brief of counsel for defendants in error:

“The question to be decided is purely one of law, and is: Did the land in
controversy inure to the state of Louisiana under the act of Congress of March
2, 1849 (9 Stats. 852), granting to the state the whole of the swamp and over-
flowed lands therein, ‘which may be or are found unfit for cultivation? Sec-
tion 1 of the act provides that such lands ‘shall be and the same are hereby
granted’ to the state of Louisiana. Section 2, that the Secretary of the Treas-
ury, afterwards the Secretary of the Interior (Act March 3, 1849, c. 108; 9
Stat. 395) shall cause a personal examination to be made, under the direction
of the Surveyor General of the statd, ‘by experienced and faithful deputies,
of all the swamp lands therein which are subject to overflow and unfit for
cultivation, and a list of the same to be made out, and certified by the depu-
ties and Surveyor General to the Secretary of the Treasury, who shall approve
the same, so far As they are not claimed or held by individuals; and on that
approval, the fee simple to said 'lands shall vest in the said state of Louisiana,
subject to the disposal of the Legislature thereof’ The evidence shows that
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there was selected on behalf of, and on May 5, 1852, approved to, the State,
under said act, in township 14 south, range 4 east:

The whole of section 23, containing 639.92 acres -
The whole of section 24, containing 640.64 acres
The whole of section 25, containing 594.43 acres
The whole of section 26,- containing 639.52 acres
The whole of section 27, containing 639.84 acres
The whole of section 28, containing 640.72 acres
The whole of section 32, containing 640.48 acres
The whole of section 83, containing 624.96 acres
Theé whole of section 34, containing 427.96 acres
The whole of section 35, containing 201.00 acres
The whole of section 36, eontaining 8.56 acres

Aggregating ..............5,698.03 acres

—and ‘all the unsurveyed portion described as sea marsh in township 14
south, range 4 east, except section 16, containing 18,622 acres.

“At the time when the selections were made, two official plats of the town-
ship were in existence—one approved May 1, 1848, offered by plaintiff; and
one approved December 8, 1842, offered by defendant. Plaintiff contends that
the selections were made from the map of 1848, and defendant that they were
made from that of 1842. I submit that defendant’s contention is the more
reasonable, because an inspection of the two maps will show that, according to
the map of 1848, only the northern fringe and a small portion of the western
fringe of the township were surveyed, while according to that of 1842 only
the southern portion was surveyed. Now the specific sections designated as -
having been selected, and their acreage, are precisely the sections shown to
have been surveyed by the map of 1842, with the exact acreage assigned to
them on that map. All the balance of the township, according to the map of
1842, was sea marsh. It is but a reasonable presumption, therefore, to as-
sume that the man making the selections had before him the map of 1842, and,
bhaving specifically designated the sections appearing thereon as surveyed, with
their acreage, he then selected the balance designated as sea marsh, excepting
the school section, and approximated the whole of said balunce at 18,622 acres.
That acreage covered more than the balance of the township, because, if it
be added to the aggregate acreage of the designated sections, we have an even
greater total than a township contains. The selections could not have been
made from the map of 1848, because not one of the specific sections selected
is shown on that map, and not one of the sections shown on that map as sur-
veyed was specifically selected.”

With this view of the case we concur, and, as the defendants in
" error have an admitted title to the lands in question from the state of
Louisiana, we find that verdict in their favor was properly directed.

[3] And it may.be noticed that the directed charge may be sustained,
because the case shows that in 1850 the lands in question were in fact
swamp and overflowed lands. In the conglomerated bill of exceptions
we find admission as follows:

“It is admitted by and between counsel for defendant that the witness,
Theolin Landry, will swear that he is 74 years old, and has known the land
in controversy since he was a small boy, and that it has always been of a
swampy character and unfit for cultivation; that the land is, however, much
higher or better drained to-day than it was formerly, and especially in the
decade between 1860 and 1870, during which he assisted at a survey of a
boundary line of the township; that the land has been in possession of the
defendant and his authors as far back as 1860; he thinks it was 1855 or 1860
when possession was first taken of the land, and the defendant and his authors
have always been in possession. The land is used for pasture—no part hav-
ing been cultivated either by the defendant or his authors. Counsel for the
government admits that the witness above referred to will swear to the facts
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above set forth, but counsel for the government objects to the introduction
of any parol testimony for the purpose of showing that the land in question
was swamp and untit for cultivation, on the ground that such testimony is in-
admissible to establish defendant’s contention that said land inured to the
state under the swamp land grant act. And said testimony is therefore in-
competent and irrelevant. (Objection overruled; to which ruling bill is re-
served by counsel for the government.)”

We think this admission was admissible under the issues presented,
and there is found no evidence to the contrary. If the lands were in
fact swamp and overflowed lands in 1850, then the defendant’s title
was good. See Wright v. Roseberry, 121 U, S. 488-521, 7 Sup. Ct.
985, 30 L. Ed. 1039; Irwin v. San Francisco Savings Union, 136 U.
S. 578, 10 Sup. Ct. 1064, 34 L. Ed. 540; United States v. Chicago,
Milwaukee & St. Paul Ry., 218 U. S. 233, 31 Sup. Ct. 7, 54 L. Ed.
1015.

Judgment affirmed.

GENERAL FILM CO. v. SAMPLINER.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. April 4, 1916.)
No. 2752,

1. CourTs ¢==351-—DISCOVERY &4, 6—FEDERAL COURTS—BILL oF DISCOVERY
IN AID OF ACTION OR DEFENSE AT Law, .
Statutory provisions of a state, under which a party to an action at
law may require the production of books or writings containing evidence
in advance of trial, do not apply to procedure in the federal courts; but
Rev. St. § 724 (Comp. St. 1913, § 1469), authorizes the court to require the
production of such evidence “in the trial of actions at law.” While this
provision does not deprive a court of equity of jurisdiction to entertain a
bill of discovery in aid of an action at law before trial, it is intended as
a substitute for such bill, and the equitable jurisdiction will not be exer-
cised to require a plaintiff to produce in advance evidence which is nec-
essary to sustain his action, nor unless it appears that the party asking
the discovery has good ground for asserting the fact sought to be proved
by such evidence.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 924 ; Dec. Dig. &
351; Discovery, Cent. Dig. §§ 5, 7; Dec. Dig. ¢4, 6.]

2. CHAMPERTY AND MAINTENANCE &=4(S)—CHAMPERTY A8 DEFENSE—PLEAD-
ING.

The defense of champerty need not be pleaded; but, if it appears on
the trial that a contract is void as against public policy, the court is
bound to so declare, and deny relief.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Champerty and Maintenance, Cent. Dig.
§ 19; Dec. Dig. &=4(8).]

8. DiscoveEry ¢=6—"FisHING BirLr.”

A discovery, sought upon suspicion, surmise, or vague guesses, is called
a “fishing bill,” and, will be dismissed. .

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Discovery, Cent. Dig. § 7; Dec. Dig.
€&=6.] :

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the North-
ern District of Ohio; John H. Clarke, Judge.
. Bill of discovery by the General Film Company against Joseph H.
Sampliner. Bill dismissed, and complainant appeals. Affirmed.

@=>For other cases see same toplc & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Richard Inglis and Bulkley, Hauxhurst, Inglis & Saeger, all of
Cleveland, Ohio (Caldwell, Masslich & Reed, of New York City, of
counsel), for appellant.

J. H. Sampliner, of Cleveland, Ohio, pro se.

Before WARRINGTON and KNAPPEN, Circuit Judges, and
SANFORD, District Judge.

KNAPPEN, Circuit Judge. The appellee (whom we shall call
plaintiff), claiming to be the assignee of the Lake Shore Film & Sup-
ply Company, brought suit at law against appellant in the court be-
low for treble damages, alleged to have accrued to the Lake-Shore Com-
pany under the Sherman Anti-Trust Act (Act July 2, 1890, c. 647,
26 Stat. 209 [Comp. St. 1913, §§ 8820-8830]) by reason of an alleged
conspiracy to monopolize the motion-picture business of the United
States and to restrict trade and commerce therein between the several
states, and for other alleged unlawful and injurious acts.

The petition in the suit at law alleged that, on or about a date nam-
ed, plaintiff “became the owner by assignment, of all the right, title
and interest of the Lake Shore Film & Supply Company * * *
in and to all its claim for damages by it sustained, by reason of the
violation of” the federal act referred to, “by the various parties here-
inafter specifically mentioned.” Appellant answered the petition spe-
cifically denying the alleged assignment to plaintiff. Later, appellant
filed its bill in equity in the same court, setting up the suit at law, in-
cluding the claimed assignment to plaintiff and its denial thereof.
The bill further alleged on information and belief that the Lake Shore
Company had “never assigned by proper, legal and binding corporate
action, any such alleged cause of action, * * *” appellant stat-
ing as the source, among others, “of its information and ground of its
belief,” certain testimony given in advance of the trial of the action
at law by an officer and director of the Lake Shore Company at the
date of the alleged assignment. It also alleged the request of appel-
lant for an inspection of the assignment “to ascertain whether or not
the same was duly made,” and plaintiff’s refusal to exhibit the as-
signment or a copy of it; also that appellant “is desirous of examin-
ing said assignment and ascertaining its validity for the purpose of
substantiating its defense against said action at law * * * and
further to substantiate the position of your petitioner * * * that
if said alleged cause of action was in form assigned to [plaintiff] the
attempt to assign the same was champertous, and also that the [plain-
tiff] in such case, is not the real party in interest to bring any suit
on said alleged cause of action.” The bill also alleged inability to
ascertain and prove the facts as to the alleged assignment without
an inspection of the instrument, inability to obtain inspection except
by bill of discovery, and possession by plaintiff of the assignment,
and prayed that plaintiff “be required to appear under oath and tes-
tify as to the form and manner of said alleged assignment, and if said

_alleged assignment is in writing, to permit the plaintiff [appellant] to
inspect the same and take copies thereof.”

Appellee made a motion to dismiss the bill, presumably under gen-
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eral equity rule No. 29 (198 Fed. xxvi, 115 C. C. A. xxvi). The mo-
tion was sustained and the bill dismissed for the reasons, stated by
the District Judge, that appellant had an undoubted right to compel
production of the assignment at the trial, and that the proceeding in
equity was clearly “a fishing expedition upon the part of the defend-
ant in the suit at law, for the purpose of procuring inspection of the
assignment to Sampliner for the purpose of using it if it serves its
purpose or of not using it if it proves unfavorable.” The appeal is
from this decree of dismissal.

[1] The Ohio Statutes (G. C. §§ 11551 and 11552) empower the
court, in an action at law, to require a party to produce books and
writings which contain evidence pertinent to the issues “in cases and
under circumstances where they might heretofore have been com-
pelled to produce them by the ordinary rules of chancery,” and give
either party the right to demand of his adversary an inspection and.
copy, or permission to take a copy, of a book, paper or document in
the adversary’s possession containing evidence relative to the merits
of the action or defense. But state statutes of this nature are held
inapplicable to the procedure in federal courts, either under section
721 of the Revised Statites (Comp. St. 1913, § 1538), which gives,
" with certain exceptions, to the laws of the several states the effect, in
the courts of the United States, of rules of decision in trials at com-
mon law, or under the Conformity Act (section 914 [Comp. St. 1913,
§ 1537]), and because of section 861 of the Revised Statutes (Comp.
St. 1913, § 1468), which provides that the mode of proof in the trial
of actions at common law shall be by oral testimony and examination
of witnesses in open court, subject to certain exceptions which the in-
stant’ case does not present. FEx parte Fisk, 113 U. S. 713, 5 Sup. Ct.
724, 28 1. Ed. 1117; Hanks Dental Ass’n v. International, etc., Co.,
194 U. S. 303, 24 Sup. Ct. 700, 48 L. Ed. 989.

Section 724 of the Revised Statutes (Comp. St. 1913, § 1469) em-
powers the courts of the United States “in the trial of actions at law”
to require the parties “to produce books or writings in their possession -
or power, which contain evidence pertinent to the issue, in cases and
under circumstances where they might be compelled to produce the
same by the ordinary rules of proceeding in chancery.” But the
words “in the trial” have been authoritatively construed to mean “on
or at the trial,” and so not to authorize a requirement of such pro-
duction “before the trial.”" Carpenter v. Winn, 221 U. 8. 533, 538, et
seq., 31 Sup. Ct. 683, 55 L. Ed. 842. In the latter case it was said
by Mr. Justice Lurton (221 U. S. 539, 31 Sup. Ct. 685 [55 L. Ed.
842]) that procedure for discovery in chancery of evidence material
to the maintenance or defense of an action at law “is still open if it
is desired to have the evidence produced before the trial. A court
of equity does not lose its jurisdiction to entertain a bill for the dis-
covery of evidence or to enjoin the trial at law _until obtained, because
the powers of the courts of law have been enlarged so as to make
the equitable remedy unnecessary in some circumstances.” While this
statement was perhaps unnecessary to a decision of the question be-
fore the court, we should accept it as authoritative. It has been so

232 F.—1
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accepted by other courts;' and the proposition receives support from
Southern Pacific R. R. Co. v. United States, 200 U. S. 341, 351, 26
Sup. Ct. 296, 50 L. Ed. 507, as well as from the authorities cited in
Carpenter v. Winn. The discovery obtainable by bill in equity is, of
course, by answer. 1 Bates, Fed. Eq. Proc. § 118.

The District Court thus had jurisdiction to entertain a bill of dis-
covery in aid of the action at law. The question is whether appel-
lant’s bill presents a case calling for the exercise of such power. The
discovery sought relates to two matters of defense to the action at
law: (a) That plaintiff is not the real party in interest, and (b) that
the assignment is champertous.

The first defense, except so far as involved in the defense of cham-
perty, is presented by a denial of plaintiff’s allegation of the assign-
ment under which he claims. This denial puts upon plaintiff in the
-suit at law the burden of proving the assignment, and he cannot well
make such proof without a production of the written assignment, if it
exists. A defendant in a suit at law is not entitled to a discovery in
equity of his adversary’s evidence sustaining his action. Carpenter
v. Winn, supra, 221 U. S. at page 540, 31 Sup. Ct. 683, 55 L. Ed. 842,
and cases there cited. It is obvious that further information by way of
discovery is unnecessary to enable appellant to properly plead this de- -
fense. Indeed, it has already so pleaded. .

As to the defense of champerty: It is the rule that in order to
entitle a defendant in an action at law to a discovery of evidence in
his adversary’s possession it must appear that defendant has good
ground for asserting the fact that the evidence will so disclose, and
usually he is required to give the sources of his information. “A dis-
covery sought upon suspicion, surmise or vague guesses is called a
‘fishing bill,” and will be dismissed.” Carpenter v. Winn, supra, 221
U. S. at page 540, 31 Sup. Ct. 683, 55 L. Ed. 842, and cases there cit-
ed. See Childs v. Railway Co., supra, 221 Fed. at page 223, 136 C.
C. A. 629. The fact that there is an available statutory remedy by
way of inspection upon the trial, and that the object of the federal
statute is, as stated in Carpenter v. Winn, supra (221 U. 8. 537, 31
Sup. Ct. 683, 55 L. Ed. 842), “to provide a substitute for a bill of
discovery in aid of a legal action,” or as stated in American Litho-
graphic Co. v. Werckmeister, 221 U. S. at page 609, 31 Sup. Ct. 676,
55 L. Ed. 873, “to provide, by motion, a substitute quoad hoc for a
bill of discovery in aid of a legal action,” furnishes ample reason for
at least adhering to the ancient strictness affecting the remedy by bill.

[3] While the bill in this case alleges certain information to the ef-
fect that there has not been a valid and legal assignment to plaintiff, yet
as respects the defense of champerty the statement is merely that peti-
tioner desires to examine the assignment to ascertain its validity “to
substantiate the position of your petitioner * * % that if such al-
leged cause of action was in fact assigned to said * * * Samplin-

1 United Cigarette Mach. Co. v. Winston, ete., Co. (C. C. A. 4th Cir.) 194 Fed.
947, 957, 114 C. C. A. 583; Cheatham Electric, etc., Device v. American Auto-
matic Switch Co. (D. C) 198 Fed. 496; Childs v. Railway Co. (C. C. A. 8th
Cir) 221 Fed. 219, 223, 136 C. C. A, 629.
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er, the attempt to assign the same was champertous.” This manifestly
fails to allege the existence of reasonable ground for believing that
the assignment was champertous, and the proceeding was thus, as
held by the district court, “a fishing bill” within the authorities, and
was rightly dismissed. We are the better content with this conclusion
from the fact that it is difficult to see how plaintiff can be prejudiced
by such dismissal. Several pertinent suggestions present themselves:

Appellant has the absolute right under the statute to inspect the as-
signment upon the trial of the action at law, which, apart from the
question of pleading, would ordinarily seem an adequate protection.
United States v. Bitter Root Co., 200 U. S. 451, 475, 26 Sup. Ct. 318,
50 L. Ed. 550. He has also the right to oral examination of the ad-
verse party upon the trial. Were it necessary to plead champerty,
it not only may be pleaded upon belief, but it would seem almost a
matter of course to permit amendment upon the trial of the action
at law, under the issue framed as to the validity and effectiveness of the
assignment to plaintiff, to meet a champertous situation if developed.

[2] But the defense of champerty is not usually required to be
pleaded. When it appears upon the trial, even in the absence of
pleading, that a contract is void as against public policy, the court is
bound to hold the contract void and deny relief. Oscanyan v. Arms
Co., 103 U. S. 261, 266, 26 L. Ed. 539; Lee v. Johnson, 116 U. S. 48,
52, 6 Sup. Ct. 249, 29 L. Ed. 570; Peck v. Heurich, 167 U. S. 624,
627, 629, 17 Sup. Ct. 927, 42 1. Ed. 302 et seq; Brown v. Ginn, 66
Ohio St. 316, 324, 325, 64 N. E. 123. In Peck v. Heurich, supra, the
defense was the general issue (167 U. S. 625, 17 Sup. Ct. 927, 42 L.
Ed. 302), but the court dismissed the proceeding when it appeared on
the trial that the conveyance was champertous. In Brown v. Ginn,
supra, the plea was only that the plaintiff was not the real party in
interest (66 Ohio St. 317, 64 N. E. 123); but when it appeared on the
trial that the assignment was champertous it was held (66 Ohio St. 325,
64 N. E. 123) that even if the legal title to the right of action rested
in the assignee, “‘so as to constitute him the real party in interest, and
‘thus enable him to bring the action in his own name, such action can
not be maintained because against public policy.” The fact that in
the earlier case of Stewart v. Welsh, 41 Ohio St. 483, 502, the de-
fense of champerty seems to have been pleaded is not significant.
That case does not involve the question of the necessity of pleading.

The decree of the District Court dismissing the bill of complaint
is affirmed with costs.
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LEWIS et al. v. JONES et al.
In re RIVERSIDE FERTILIZER CO.

{Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. April 15, 1916. Rehearing Denied
: May 15, 1916.)

No. 2811.

1. MORTGAGES &=186(3)—PRIORITY—UNRECORDED MORTGAGE—NOTICE—BUR-
DEN OF PROOF.

Under Civ. Code Ga. 1910, § 4530, providing that notice sufficient to
excite attention and put a party on inquiry is notice of everything to
which it is afterwards found such inquiry might have led, and that
ignorance of a fact, due to negligence, is equivalent to knowledge in fixing
the rights of the parties, and section 3260 providing that mortgages not
recorded are postponed to all other liems, but that if the younger lien is
created by contract, and the party receiving it has notice of the prior
unrecorded mortgage, then the lien of the older mortgage shall be held
good against him, the burden is on the holder of the senior unrecorded
mortgage to show clearly actual notice of the mortgage to the former
mortgagees.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Mortgages, Cent. Dig. § 454; Dec.
Dig. €=186(3).] -

2. MORTGAGES &==186(5)—PRIORITY—UNRECORDED MORTGAGE—EVIDENCE—AQ-
TUAL NOTICE.

Proof that mortgagees were informed before they took their mortgage
that there was a prior mortgage against the property, but were not told
that it was unrecorded, does not show such notice to the mortgagees of
the existence of the senior unrecorded mortgage as gives it priority under
Civ. Code Ga. 1910, § 3260, where it was understood by all the parties that
the prior mortgage was to be paid off out of the money advanced to
the mortgagors to clear the property of all prior liens, and before the
mortgage was taken, the mortgagees’ attorney made a search for all
liens of record and inquired concerning outstanding accounts, but was
not informed of the prior unrecorded mortgage.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Mortgages, Cent. Dig. § 454;  Dec.
Dig. €¢=186(5).]

Walker, Circuit Judge, dissenting.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of Georgia;- William T. Newman, Judge.

In the matter of the Riverside Fertilizer Company, bankrupt. From
a decree of the District Court, awarding priority to the unrecorded
mortgage of George S. Jones and another, Charles B. Lewis, trustee
in bankruptcy, and another, appeal. Reversed and remanded.

Clifford L. Anderson and Daniel W. Rountree, both of Atlanta, Ga.,
for appellants.

Orville A. Park, of Macon, Ga. (Hardeman, Jones, Park & Johnston,
of Macon, Ga., on the brief), for appellees.

Before PARDEE and WALKER, Circuit Judges, and FOSTER,
District Judge.

FOSTER, District Judge. In this matter it appears the real estate
surrendered by the bankrupt was burdened with a valid mortgage in

&—=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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favor of the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company, executed Sep-
tember 27, 1912, and recorded September 28, 1912, for over $170,000
in principal, interest, and costs. George S. and Bruce C. Jones also
held a valid mortgage on the same property, executed on April 17,
1912, and. recorded October 16, 1912, for $3,500 and interest. Not-
withstanding the Pratt mortgage was registered over two weeks be-
fore the Jones mortgage, the Messrs. Jones claimed priority on the
ground of actual notice to the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company,
and the District Court decided in their favor. From that decree the
trustee and the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company have appealed.

[1,2] The Georgia Code contains the following provisions:

“See. 4530. Notice sufficient to excite attention and put a party on in-
quiry is notice of everything to which it is afterwards found such inquiry
might have led. Ignorance of a fact, due to negligence, is equivalent to
knowledge, in fixing the rights of parties.”

“Sec. 3260. Effect of Failure to Record.—Mortgages not recorded within
the time required remain valid as against the mortgagor, but are postponed to
all other liens created or obtained, or purchases made prior to the actual
record of the mortgage. If, however, the younger lien is created by con-
tract, and the party receiving it has notice of the prior unrecorded mortgage,
or the purchaser has the like notice, then the lien of the older mortgage shall
be held good against therg.” (Italics ours.)

The burden was, of course, on the older mortgagees to clearly show
actual notice to the junior mortgagees. From the evidence in the
record, which is not in conflict, except as to certain conversations be-
tween the parties, it appears the bankrupt was building a plant, and,
while the buildings were in course of erection, having some financial
and other troubles in regard thereto, it entered into a contract with the
Pratt Engineering & Machine Company to complete it. Before mak-
ing the contract there was considerable negotiating between the par-
ties, and it was thoroughly understood and agreed that the Pratt Engi-
neering & Machine Company was to have a first lien on the property.
To make certain of this, the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company,
advanced $25,000 for the purpose of paying and clearing off all ex-
isting liens, or debts that might become liens, superior to its mortgage.
In the beginning of negotiations Mr. Baxter Jones, a brother of the
senior mortgagees and president of the Riverside Fertilizer Company,
mentioned the claim of his brothers to the representative of the Pratt
Engineering & Machine Company, Mr. Hurt, but stated it did not
amount to anything and would be taken care of. Later on, at a con-
ference at Atlanta, at which Mr. George S. Jones was present, he men-
tioned the mortgage as a claim that would have to be paid. At that
time Mr. George S. Jones, who is an attorney at law, was interested in
the completion of the plant, and was prepared to go to New York
on behalf of the Riverside Fertilizer Company, to make other financial
arrangements, if the negotiations then pending with the Pratt Engi-
neering & Machine Company should fall through. Regarding this in-
terview Mr. George S. Jones testifies (Record, page 38):

“We went downstalrs, and he and Mr. Baxter Jones sat over at one table
by themselves, Mr. Hall, Mr. Park, and I at another, while dinner was

being brought in. Mr. Hurt and Mr. Baxter Jones finally came over to our
table, and I inquired of Baxter how they were getting on, and so far as I
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recollect this is about all that was said; Baxter said he hoped to be able to
effect some kind of an agreement, but it would be necessary for him and Mr.
Hall to dispose of the liens on the property. There was some talk about
what liens there were on the property, and I stated to Mr. Hurt at that time,
as I regollect it, at the table, that Bruce Jones and I held a mortgage on
the property securing a $3,500 advance, and that that was to be taken care
of among the others which had been mentioned. That, so far as I recollect,
had not been mentioned up to that time; in fact, there was very little said.”

There is a direct conflict between him and Mr. Hurt as to this con-
versation, Mr. Hurt denying that anything was said as to the Jones’
claim being secured by mortgage. Mr. Park, the only disinterested wit-
ness, did not testify, and the testimony of Mr. Hall and Mr. Bruce
Jones does not aid in solving the conflict. *We will assume, however,
that the conversation was as related by Mr. Jones; but beyond ques-
tion it was understood by all parties present at this time that the
Jones claim was to be paid out of the money advanced by the Pratt
Engineering & Machine Company, and was not to remain as a ranking
lien on the property. Before the transaction was completed.the Pratt
Engineering & Machine Company sent an attorney, Mr. George P.
Whitman, to Macon, where the Jones mortgage would have been re-
corded, to search the records for all outstanding liens. He found some
liens recorded, but not the Jones mortgage. He also looked over the
books of the Riverside Fertilizer Company, saw the “bills payable” ac-
count, but no mention in the books of any mortgage. He discussed
the recorded liens with Mr. Hall or Mr. Baxter Jones, officers of the
Riverside Fertilizer Company, and nothing was said about the Jones
mortgage. There is not a line of evidence to the effect that the Pratt
Engineering & Machine Company was ever told the Jones mortgage
was unrecorded. And there can be no doubt it was intended by all
parties that it was to be paid out of the $25,000 loaned by the Pratt
Engineering & Machine Company for the purpose of clearing off prior
liens. Under all the circumstances, it is difficult to imagine what more
the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company could have been expected
to do. They were dealing with honorable men in a fair, open manner,
and no doubt, but for some untoward happening, undisclosed by the
record, the Jones mortgage would have been discharged with the Pratt
money. ‘The universal rule regarding notice is well stated by the Su-
preme Court of Georgia in the case of Jordan v. Pollock, 14 Ga. 157:

“Loose, suspicious, vague rumors oxn reports will not do; * * * but

knowledge must be brought home to the party, so that mala fides marks the
transaction, if he afterwards buy.” :

Under the facts of this case there could be no suspicion of bad faith
on the part of the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company, and the
- knowledge brought home to them at no time amounted to notice that
the Jones mortgage was an active, adverse, unrecorded’claim on the
property, that might be defeated by the mortgage of the property to
them.

Having reached this conclusion, it is unnecessary to pass upon the
other assignments of error in the record.

The decree will be reversed, and the case remanded, for such other
proceedings as may be necessary and in accordance with these views.
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WALKER, Circuit Judge (dissenting). I am unable to come to the
conclusion announced in the foregoing opinion. Before the mortgage
to the Pratt Engineering & Machine Company was made, the repre-
sentatives of that company were informed of the existence of a prior
mortgage of the same property to George S. and Bruce C. Jones. Un-
der the statutory provisions which have been quoted, this information
had the effect of preventing the subsequent mortgagee acquiring a
lien superior to that of the prior mortgage, unless the prior mortgagees

by contract waived their rights under their mortgage, or, in favor of
the subsequent mortgagee, estopped themselves from asserting those :°

rights. It does not seem to me that anything in the record supports
the conclusion that they lost their priority, either by contract or by
estoppel. They did not agree to relinquish any right they had, and 1t
is not made to appear that they said, did, or omitted to do anything
calculated to mislead the subsequent mortgagee into the belief that, in
acquiring its mortgage, it was getting a prior lien on the mortgaged
property.

LEWIS v. JONES et al
In re RIVERSIDE FERTILIZER CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. April 15, 1916.)
No. 2812,

Petition to Superintend and Revise Proceedings of the District
Court of the United States for the Southern District of Georgia;
William T. Newman, Judge.

In the matter of the Riverside Fertilizer Company, bankrupt. Peti-
tion of Charles B. Lewis, trustee, from allowance of claim of George
S. Jones and another. Petition to revise denied.

See, also, 232 Fed. 100, — C. C. A, —.

Clifford I.. Anderson and Daniel W. Rountree, both of Atlanta, Ga.,
for petitioner.

Orville A. Park, of Macon, Ga. (Hardeman, Jones, Park & Johns-
ton, of Macon, Ga., on the brief), for respondents.

Before PARDEE and WALKER, Circuit Judges, and FOSTER,
District Judge.

PER CURIAM. The case herein involved is disposed of under the
appeal between the same parties, as per decision this day rendered.
232 Fed. 100, — C. C. A. —.

The petition to revise is denied.

WALKER, Circuit Judge, dissenting.
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LILLIE v. DENNERT.
(Circult Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. May 2, 1916)
" No. 2734.

1. JUurY &=>19(1)—RIGHT T0 JURY TRIAL,

Under the modern practice of allowing a motion to enter satisfaction
of a judgment at law, by ‘reason of its payment or discharge, as a sub-
stitute for the writ of audita querela, the trial of controverted issues of
fact arising under such motion is ordinarily to be had in the same man-
ner as under such writ; that is, by jury trial.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Jury, Cent. Dig. § 104; Dec. Dig.
&=19(1).}

2. COURTS &=356—REVIEW-—QUESTION REVIEWABLE~—OBJECTIONS. :
Where a motion to enter satisfaction of a judgment was tried to the
court, but a jury was not waived, the appellate court on writ of error will
not, no objection having been made, consider whether the order of the
lower court was a mere award of an arbltrator, but will treat the deasmn
as one which can be reviewed.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 937; Dec. Dig.
€&=356.]

3. APPEAL AND ERROR &=859—WRIT OF ERROR—MATTERS REVIEWABLE,

The right of review under writ of error is limited to questions of law,
and does not extend to matters of fact; therefore, where a motion to
enter satisfaction of a judgment was tried to the court, matters of fact
cannot be reviewed, save in so far as the appellate court may determine
whether there was any evidence which would warrant the finding.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. §§ 3441—
3445; Dec. Dig. €=859.]

4. JUDGMENT @&=878(2)—SATISFACTION—EFFECT.

Where one of two joint tort-feasors satisfied a judgment against both,
the judgment was discharged, though he induced a third person to pay
the judgment for him and to make an assignment.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Judgment, Cent. Dig. § 1654; Dec.
Dig. &=878(2).]

5. JUDGMENT &=8934—SATISFACTION—EVIDENCE.

On motion to enter satisfaction of a judgment, evidence held to warrant
a finding that one of the two joint tort-feasors against whom it was ren-
dered satisfied the judgment through the agency of a third person.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Judgment, Cent. Pig. §§ 1706-1709,
1712; Dec. Dig. €=894.]

,

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the West-
ern District of Michigan; Clarence W. Sessions, Judge.

Charles P. Lillie, the assignee of a judgment, moved for an execu-
tion against Paul Dennert one of the defendants, who filed a petition
praying the court to enter satisfaction of the ]udgment Satisfaction
of the judgment was ordered entered, and Charles P. Lillie brings er-
ror. Affirmed.

G. C. Brown, of Grand Rapids, Mich., for plaintiff in error.
C. J. Hall, of Grand Rapids, Mich., for defendant in error.

Before KNAPPEN and DENISON, Circuit judges, and SAN-
FORD, District Judge.

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes




LILLIE V. DENNERT 105

SANFORD, District Judge. This writ of error is brought to review
an order entering satisfaction of a judgment obtained in the court be-
low.

On December 17, 1913, one Charles R. Horrie, the plaintiff in an ac-
tion at law brought against one Edgar P. Daggett zad Paul Dennert,
the defendant in error, as joint tort feasors, obtained a judgment
against them jointly for $2,683 and costs. On February 9, 1915, this
judgment was assigned by Horrie to Charles P. Lillie, the plaintiff in
error,

This assignment having been filed in the clerk’s office, Lillie moved
the court for the issuance of a body execution against Dennert. This
motion, being resisted, was heard by the trial judge on oral testimony
taken before him, and was, after such hearing, denied. On applica-
tion of Lillie an execution and a garnishment against Dennert were
then issued for the admitted purpose of collecting the entire judgment
out of his property. Thereupon Dennert filed a petition, in which
he alleged, in substance: that his co-defendant Daggett had paid the
-full amount of the judgment to the plaintiff Horrie and satisfied the
same; that, while this payment purported to have been made by Lillie
and an assignment of the judgment had been taken by him, the money
paid to Horrie was in reality the money of Daggett, the payment, as
a matter of fact and law, the act of Daggett, and the action taken by
Lillie a mere sham and pretense; and that Lillie had refused to dis-
charge the judgment of record as he ought to do, and was attempting
by his proceeding to compel a contribution by Dennert to Daggett a
joint tort feasor, not warranted by law. And he thereupon prayed that
an order be entered withdrawing the execution, discharging the gar-
nishment and entering satisfaction of the judgment.

Lillie answered this petition, denying the foregoing allegations of
fact, and alleging, in substance: that he had paid Horrie the amount
of the judgment with his own money; that no part of it was received
by him from or for Daggett; that he took the assignment as his own
Eroperty, with all rights to enforce it given by law; that it had not
een paid and was wholly unsatisfied; and that he was its individual
and sole owner. :

The issues raised by this petition and answer were heard and de-
termined by the trial judge upon the oral testimony heard by him on
the previous motion for body execution, a transcript of which was filed
with the petition and incorporated therein by reference; upon the con-
sideration of which, without handing down any opinion or making any
finding of facts, he entered an order that the judgment was fully paid
and satisfied on February 9, 1914, directing the clerk to make an
entry of such satisfaction, recalling the execution and dismissing the
garnishment proceedings.

Lillie by his writ of error now seeks to review this order. It has
been held that such an order is a decision from which a writ of error
will lie. See McCutcheon v. Allen, 96 Pa. 319, 329; also Cooley v.
Gregory, 16 Wis. 303, in which an appeal was allowed. In view of
the result which we reach on the merits, we assume, without deciding,
that the proper remedy has been adopted.
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[1] The scope of the review permissible under such writ of error
1s, however, in the instant case, a matter of grave doubt. Under
the established modern practice allowing a motion to enter satisfaction
of a judgment at law, by reason of its payment or discharge, as a
substitute for the ancient writ of audita querela, the trial of contro-
verted issues of fact arising under such motion, is ordinarily to be had
in the same manner as under such writ, that is, by jury trial; to
which several state courts have held the parties are entitled as a mat-
ter of right. Harding v. Hawkins, 141 1ll. 572, 584, 31 N. E. 307,
33 Am. St. Rep. 347 ; Bruce v. Barnes, 20 Ala. 219, 222; McCutcheon
v. Allen (Pa.) supra, at page 323; Hottenstein v. Haverly, 185 Pa.
305, 308, 39 Atl. 946; Cooley v. Gregory (Wis.) supra, at page 326;
and other cases therein cited. ~ And see 2 Black on Judgments (2d Ed)
§ 1014, p. 1491.

[2,3] Sections 648 and 649 of the Revised Statutes (Comp. St.
1913, §§ 1584, 1587), however, provide that the trial of issues of fact
in the Circuit Courts shall be by jury, except in certain cases not here
material, unless the parties or their attorneys file with the clerk a stip—
ulation in writing waiving a jury; in which case they may be tried
and determined by the court. Neither of these sections is repealed by
the Judicial Code; and they,—as well as Section 700 providing for
review,—are clearly ‘made applicable to the District Courts, as now
constituted, by Section 291 of that Code. Act March 3, 1911, ¢. 231,
36 Stat. 1167 (Comp. St. 1913, § 1268). If, therefore, the issues of
fact arising under a motion to enter satisfaction of judgment are to be
considered as coming within the class of issues embraced within Sec-
tions 648 and 649 of the Revised Statutes, it would seem clear that
where the parties, without filing a written stipulation waiving a jury
trial, either expressly, or, as in the instant case, impliedly, submit the
determination of the controverted issues to the trial judge, as, in ef-
fect, to an arbitrator, his conclusion is,—at least in the absence of a
finding of facts,—not subject to review under writ of error, on a con-
sideration either of the questions of fact or of law, or of mixed fact
and law, arising on the evidence heard before him. Campbell v. Boy-
reau, 21 How. 223, 226, 16 L. Ed. 96; Bond v. Dustin, 112 U. S. 604,
606, s Sup. Ct. 296 28 1. Ed. 835; Andes v. Slauson, 130 U. S. 435,
438, 9 Sup. Ct. 573, 32 L. Ed. 989 St. Louis v. Rutz, 138 U. S. 226,
241, 11 Sup. Ct. 337, 34 L. Ed. 941 Lupton’s Sons v. Auto Club, 225
U. S. 489, 494, 32 Su»p. Ct. 711, 56 I. Ed. 1177, Ann. Cas. 1914A, 699.
And see Edwards v. Ladow (6th Cir.) 230 Fed. 378, — C. C. A. —.
In the absence, however, of any objection interposed in this behalf
by the defendant in error, we are not disposed of our own motion,
to apply the rigor of this rule to the instant case, but shall assume,
for present purposes, without determination, that it is not appli-
cable, in its strict sense, to the subordinate issues of fact submitted
to the determination of the trial judge upon a motion to enter sat-
isfaction of judgment of the court; that in such matter he acts in
his judicial capacity rather than merely as arbitrator, and that hence,
as to the questions thus determined by him, we have authority, un-
der a writ of error to review the evidence for the purpose of de-
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termining whether any error of law has been committed. It is en-
tirely clear, however, that as the right of review under writ of error
is limited to questions of law and does not extend to matters of
fact (Andes v. Slauson, supra, 130 U. S. at p. 348, 9 Sup. Ct. 573,
32 L. Ed. 989), we can not in any event review the conclusion of the
trial judge in so far as it depends upon a mere consideration of the
weight to be given the evidence introduced before him, and that his
conclusion is to be accepted by us as final if there was any evidence
upon which, as matter of law, it could properly have been reached.
See, by analogy, Hathaway v. Cambridge, 134 U. S. 494, 498, 10 Sup.
Ct. 608, 33 L. Ed. 1004; Runkle v. Burnham, 153 U. S. 216, 225, 14
Sup. Ct. 837, 38 L. Ed. 694; Dooley v. Pease, 180 U. S. 126, 131, 21
Sup. Ct. 329, 45 L. Ed. 457; West Virginia Railroad v. United States
(4th Cir.), 134 Fed. 198, 202, 67 C. C. A. 220; and Louisville Railroad
v. United states (D. C.) 216 Fed. 672, 679 (three judges), and cases
therein cited.

[4,5] The following facts are shown by the undisputed evidence:

After the rendition of the judgment in Horrie’s favor and notice
from his attorney that he was about to obtain an execution thereon,
Daggett, under the advice of his attorney, offered to pay Horrie one-
half of the judgment, if he would proceed against Dennert for the
other half; and deposited in bank one-half of the amount of the judg-
ment, taking therefor a certificate of deposit with which he intended
to make the proposed payment. This proposition was declined by
Horrie; his attorney stating, however, that in order to assist Daggett,
he would be willing to assign the entire judgment to some third per-
son. Thereupon Daggett’s attorney advised him to get some one
friendly to him to buy the judgment, but with his own money and as
an actual purchase. Daggett accordingly saw Lillie, who was his
friend and business associate, and asked him, as Lillie states, “to buy
that judgment for him”; telling Lillie at the time that he would see
that he did not lose anything by it. Lillie agreed to do this; and in
order that he might obtain the money with which to make the purchase,
Lillie and Daggett went together to the bank in which Daggett held
his certificate of deposit, being the bank in which Daggett’s company
regularly did business and in which he was well known, but at which
Lillie had not done business for several years or apparently ever made
a previous loan. Daggett and Lillie saw the cashier of this bank and
arranged for a loan to Lillie for the full amount of the judgment;
Lillie giving the bank his three months’ note therefor, without endorse-
ment. After Lillie had given this note, Daggett stated that he had a
certificate of deposit for one-half of the amount which he had forgot-
‘ten to bring, and told the cashier that he would bring it in and deposit
it as security on the note. This he did on the next day. Lillie took
the money thus obtained from the bank on his note, and with it paid
Horrie the full amount of the judgment; taking from him the assign-
ment which is now in question. Subsequently on receiving from the
bank notice of the maturity of the note, Lillie notified Daggett, who
said he would take care of the interest; the note being accordingly
renewed by Lillie and the interest paid by Daggett. This renewal
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note is still unpaid and outstanding in the hands of the bank as Lillie’s
individual obligation alone. Lillie, however, admitted that he did not
buy the judgment as an investment for his own money; that he had
no personal interest in the matter and did what he did for Daggett
as his friend; that he understood at the time that the judgment was
to be bought in his name in order that he might collect one-half of it
from Dennert, and that, as Daggett could not pay it in his own name
and collect from Dennert, it was necessary to have the assignment
taken in the name of a third party; and that the whole arrangement,
© so far as he was concerned, was made for Daggett’s benefit. And
he further admitted that he had never made any demand upon Daggett
for payment of the judgment, but stated that if he had to pay the
note, he intended to look to Daggett on his word to hold him harm-
less.

Daggett also admitted that, realizing that he could not himself pay
the judgment and then collect the one-half from Dennert, he went
to Lillie as his friend and asked him to take up the judgment for him,
promising him at the time that he would see him through and see that
he did not lose anything.

It is not disputed that if the judgment was in fact paid by Daggett,
one of the joint tort feasors and judgment debtors, this operated as a
satisfaction and discharge of the judgment. Klippel v. Shields, 90
Ind. 81, 82; Booth v. Farmers’ Bank, 74 N. Y. 230, 232; Hammatt
v. Wyman, 9 Mass. 138, 142; Sager v. Moy, 15 R. 1. 528, 9 Atl. 847.
It is earnestly insisted, however, in behalf of Lillie, that the undis-
puted evidence does not warrant such conclusion, but that it shows, on
the contrary, that the judgment was in fact bought by Lillie with
his own money and as a stranger to the judgment, although as an ac-
commodation for Daggett; that he took an assignment thereof with
the express intention of keeping the judgment, alive and enforcing
its collection ; that under such circumstances the purchase of the judg-
ment by him did not operate as a discharge, under the rule stated in
McAleer v. Young, 40 Md. 439, and other cases on which he relies;
~ and that, in any event, the giving of security to him by Daggett for
one-half of the judgment, operated at the most, as a payment of one-
half of the judgment, and did not discharge the remaining one-half,
which he is now entitled, in any event, to enforce against Dennert.

After careful consideration we are, however, of the opinion that,
under the tindisputed evidence, there was ample room for an inference
of fact that while the entire loan in the bank was ostensibly made in
Lillie’s name, and the note, as between himself and the bank, con- -
stituted his individual debt, yet, as between Lillie and Daggett, the
entire transaction amounted, in substance and in effect, to the bor-
rowing of the money by Lillie as the agent for Daggett, as an undis-
closed principal, the entire note constituting, as between them, Dag-
gett’s obligation rather than Lillie’s; that the judgment having been
purchased with the proceeds of this note was, in substance and effect,
bought by Daggett, acting by indirection, through the instrumentality
of Lillie; in short, that Lillie acted in the entire transaction merely
as a man of straw for and in behalf of Daggett, as the real actor.
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If, however, the judgment was thus in fact bought by Daggett, one
of the joint tort feasors and judgment debtors, this clearly operated
as an entire discharge and satisfaction of the judgment, even although
the purchase was ostensibly made by Lillie and the assignment taken
in his pame in the effort to keep the judgment alive as an obligation
against Dennert. Boyer v. Bolender, 129 Pa. 324, 328, 18 Atl. 127,
15 Am. St. Rep. 723 Tompkins v. Bank, 53 Ill. 57, 59; Ten Eyck
v. Craig, 62 N. Y. 410, 416; Booth v. Farmers’ Bank, supra, 74 N.
Y. at page 232. And see Harbeck v. Vanderbilt, 20 N. Y. 395. And
as the evidence, in our opinion, warrants an inference that this was the
fact, we cannot say that the conclusion of the trial judge that the judg-
ment was paid and discharged, is supported by no evidence upon
which, as matter of law, it could have been properly based. Finding,
therefore, no error of law in the order entering satisfaction of the
judgment, it must accordingly be affirmed, with costs.

CURTIS v. LOUISVILLE & N. R. CO.
(Circuit Coﬁi't of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. May 2, 1916.)
No. 2731.

1. RAILROADS &=320—OPERATION—CARE—STATUTE.

Shannon’s Code Tenn. §§ 1574-1576, which arbitrarily require certain
precautions to be taken when any obstruction appears on the railroad
tracks, and declare absolute liability in the absence of such precautions,
apply only when the person or obstruction appears on the track in front
of an engine or within lateral striking distance before the collision occurs,
and do not apply where the person first comes within striking distance
at a point which the head of the engine has already passed, or into danger
at the very instant of the engine’s arrival.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Railroads, Cent. Dig. §§ 1014-1016,
1019; Dec. Dig. €=320.]

2. RAILROADS &=346(1)—CROSSING ACCIDENTS—ACTIONS—BURDEN OF PROOF.

In an action under Shannon’s Code Tenn. §§ 1574~1576, for the death of
one run down by a train, plaintiff, who contended that the railroad com-
pany did not take the required precautions has the burden of showing
that his intestate was upon the tracks ahead of the engine.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Rallroads, Cent. Dig. § 1117; Dec. Dig.
&=346(1).] . .

3. RAILROADS &=348(1)—CR08SING ACCIDENTS—EVIDENCE—SUFFICIENCY.

In an action for the death of plaintiff’s intestate, who was killed at a
railroad crossing, where plaintiff relied on the failure of the railroad com-
pany to take the precautions by Shannon’s Code Tenn. §§ 1574-1576, evi-
dence held insufficient to show that deceased was upon the tracks in front
of the engine so that the statute would apply.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Railroads, Cent. Dig. §§ 1138, 1140,
1141; Dec. Dig. €=348(1).]1

4, RATLROADS &=»327(2)—CROSSING ACCIDENTS—CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE.

Where the view was only partially obstructed and, had he looked, save
in two places, one where there was a woodpile and the other where there
was a cut deceased must have seen the train, which was lighted, he was,
it appearing that according to schedule the train was expected about that
time, guilty of contributory negligence as a matter of law in driving onto

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER ibp all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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the tracks just in front of the train, or so close to the tracks that his
horse became frightened.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Railroads, Cent. Dig. § 1044; Dec. Dig.
&=3827(2).1

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Tennessee; Edward T. Sanford, Judge.

Action by C. D. Curtis, administrator of Charles C. Curtis, deceased,
against the Louisville & Nashville Railroad Company. There was a
judgment for defendant, and plaintiff brings error. ~Affirmed.

G. W, Pickle, of Knoxville, Tenn., for plaintiff in error.
Jas. G. Johnson, of Knoxville, Tenn., for defendant in error.

Before WARRINGTON, KNAPPEN, and DENISON, Circuit
Judges.

DENISON, Circuit Judge. Charles C. Curtis was killed by a Louis-
ville & Nashville train at a grade crossing in Eastern Tennessee, at
10 o'clock on an evening of September. 'This action was brought by
his administrator, to recover for the death, under the Tennessee stat-
ute. There was the requisite diversity of citizenship to give jurisdic-
tion; but on the trial the court below directed a verdict for the de-
fendant, and the administrator brings error.

[1,2] The Tennessee statutes (Shannon’s Code, §§ 1574-1576, and
. subdivision 4 of section 1574) arbitrarily require certain precautions
-to be taken, when any “obstruction appears upon the road,” and de-

clare an absolute lability in the absence of such required precautions.
It is the settled Tennessee construction of this statute that it is to be
applied only when the person or other obstruction appears upon the
track in front of the engine or within lateral striking distance before
the collision occurs, and that it does not apply in a case where the per-
son first comes within the striking distance at a point which the head
of the engine has already passed, or at the very instant of the en-
gine’s arrival (see reviews by this court of the Tennessee cases in Rail-
way v. Truett, 111 Fed. 876, 50 C. C. A. 442; Railroad v. Sutton, 179
Fed. 471, 103 C. C. A. 51; Railway v. Koger, 219 Fed. 702, 135 C.
C. A. 374); also that, in order to make out a case under the statute,
the burden is on the plaintiff to show that the obstruction did appear
on the track ahead of the.engine (Railway v. Hawk [C. C. A. 6] 160
Fed. 348,353, 87 C. C. A. 300, and Tennessee cases cited).
[3] The first count of the declaration in this case was based upon
this statute. There was no surviving eyewitness of the accident. Cur-
“tis was in a buggy driving a single horse, going east along the high-
way at about right angles to the railroad. The north-bound train
reached the crossing at about the same time. The horse and buggy and
Curtis were found at different spots, but all west of and within a few
feet of the railroad track, and within a few feet north of the center
of the highway. The only mark found on the engine indicating a
collision was that the flagstaff holder, near the left-hand end of the pilot
beam, was bent. The fireman, looking up after putting in coal, caught
a glimpse of the horse apparently rearing away from the side of the
engine. These facts as to the flagstaff and as to what the fireman saw,
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coupled with the inference to be drawn from the location of the bodies,
constitute the only evidence on the issue whether the horse was upon
or close to the track ahead of the engine, so as to make it possible to
say that the horse constituted an “obstruction upon the track” within
the meaning of this statute. We are quite clear that these facts, coupled
with all permissible inferences, cannot meet the burden of proof which
rested upon plaintiff on this issue. Remembering that the horse was
going eastwardly, these facts and inferences, separately and collec-
tively, tend to determine the issue in the negative, viz., that the horse
was not upon the track or within striking lateral distance until, at the
earliest, the same instant when the front of the engine arrived at the
same spot. So far as this count is concerned, the direction of verdict
must be sustained.

[4] The court below found that the undisputed facts disclosed such
contributory negligence as would bar any right of recovery at common
law under the second count, and so found it unnecessary to decide
whether there was any evidence tending to show negligence by the rail-
road. If this did exist, it consisted in not giving the customary signals
by bell and whistle when approaching the crossing. We assume, with-
out deciding, that the evidence tended to show a breach of duty by the
railroad in this respect, and so we come to the existence of contributory
negligence as the controlling question. This requires some further
statement of facts. About a half mile south of the crossing, the rail-
road emerged from a deep cut. The railroad track at this point was
8 feet higher than at the highway crossing, and, between the two
points, was straight. The view of a north-bound train, by a person
going east on the highway, for 300 feet toward the crossing was wholly
unobstructed for this half mile, except for two things. About 300
feet west of the crossing, there began, on the south of the highway, a
slight rise or hill which reached its highest point east of the railroad.
This led to a cut by both highway and railroad, and a resulting em-
bankment on the south of the highway and west of the railroad. This
bank was highest along the edge of the railroad cut and this edge was
42 feet from the nearest rail. A supposedly accurate survey shows
that the bank at the edge was 414 feet high; the extremest supposi-
tion or estimate by plaintiff’s witnesses is that it was 6 feet high. From
this height it ran down to nothing toward the west, and also ran down
to nothing at the south, at a distance of some 300 or 400 feet. Along
the top of this bank, commencing 50 to 100 feet south of the highway,
was a pile of cordwood, 5 or 6 feet high, 4 or 5 feet wide, and run-
ning along the edge of the bank parallel with the track for a distance
the highest estimate of which is 60 feet. There is also a suggestion in
the argument that weeds were growing along the top of the bank.

The trial court considered only the situation arising after Curtis
emerged from behind whatever obstruction was presented by this
bank and woodpile, and finding that there was then a distance of 42 |
feet between the rail and Curtis, or say 25 feet between his horse’s
head and the overhang of the train, concluded that the opportunity
to see the approaching train was so ample as to require the inference
that Curtis had not exercised due care. If he had been on foot, this
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result would probably not be questioned; but it is suggested that he
may have lost control over a frightened horse, and so have been in
a situation analogous to that disclosed by Railway v. Truett, supra.
There is no testimony that the horse was likely to be frightened. Plain-
tiff’s proof is directly to the contrary. The facts differ materially
from those in the Truett Case, and it is difficult, if not impossible, to
distinguish the circumstances of the present case from those of Rail-
road v. Freeman, 174 U. S. 381, 19 Sup. Ct. 763, 43 L. Ed. 1014, in
which the Supreme Court held that the irference of contributory neg-
ligence was conclusivély established. However, it is not necessary to
rest that inference upon what occurred after passing the 42—foot line.
Curtis lived within 100 feet of this crossing, east of the railroad; he
was entirely familiar with the crossing and with the train schedule;
this was a regular train, running at its usual speed, 30 to 40 miles an
hour, and was practically on time. Curtis was therefore bound in un-
usual degree to be on the lookout for this train at this time. He was
riding in an open buggy, and his eyes would be well above the highest
point of the bank. The engine carried a headlight, in good condition
and burning brightly, 'and ample to be seen-by him; the train, 500
feet long, consisting of both day coaches and Pullmans, was lighted in
the usual way. Both the engine headlight and the upper part of the
cars would have been exposed to Curtis’ view constantly over the top
of the bank, and, indeed, fully exposed, except for the less'than one
train length which the bank extended south from the highway. There
is no proof whatever that there were any weeds on the bank at this
time—proof either specifically or that their presence was customary.
The only proof is from plaintiff’s witness, who says that he does not
know whether there were any weeds at this time, but that it was cus-
tomary to cut them down in August, and this was in September. Clear-
ly, the woodpile is the only thing which could have obstructed Curtis’
view, and it is impossible to figure out how this could have obscured
his view of the train, except momentarily, ‘while Curtis was moving
east and the train going north. Further, a train moving at the speed
of this train, even if running with the steam shut off, makes a great
noise; there was nothing else, unless the rattle of the moving buggy
wheels, to cover up this noise; and although the wind was blowing
from the north, yet plaintiff’s witnesses, situated still further north,
clearly heard the roar of this particular train as it came out of the cut
and came on toward the crossing. They remember this as distinctly as
they remember that the whistle was not blown.

Putting together all the testimony and allowable inferences, one of
three conclusions is compelled: First, that Curtis saw the train coming,
and, misjudging its distance, tried to cross ahead of it, demonstrating
his negligence; second, that he saw the train coming, and stopped and
waited too close to the track, so that the horse was hit by the train or
drawn against the train, indicating not only his lack of care, but also
that the absence of whistle or bell was of no importance; or, third,
that he failed during all the time of approaching the track for 300 feet,
to use any care in either looking or listening for this train. We must
consider this case within the rules which the Supreme Court has de-
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clared in Railroad v. Houston, 95 U. S. 697, 24 1. Ed. 542, Schofield
v. Railway, 114 U. S. 615, 5 Sup. Ct. 1125, 29 L. Ed. 224, and in Rail-
road v. Freeman, supra, which are stated by Judge Hook, for the
Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals, in Tomlinson v. Railroad, 134 Fed.
233, 67 C. C. A. 218, and which we have applied in (e. g) Kallmer-
ten v. Cowen, 111 Fed. 297, 49 C. C. A. 346, and Railroad v. Hurlburt,
221 Fed. 907, 137 C. C. A, 477.
The judgment is affirmed.

HALFPENNY et al. v. MILLER.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit. February 2, 1916.)
No. 1388.

1. APPEAL AND ERROR &=>80(1)—DECISIONS APPEALABLE—FINALITY OF DETER-
MINATION.

In an action for a partnership settlement, a master to whom the case was
referred presented a statement of the accounts, with a finding that defend-
ants owed plaintiff $219.10. A decree was entered, confirming the report,
dissolving the partnership, adjudging that plaintiff recover such sum against
the defendants, ordering a receiver to sell certain partnership property,
and continuing the cause for further proceedings. A subsequent decree
confirmed the receiver’s sale, fixed the fees of the receiver and special mas-
ter, ordered the receiver to pay one half the funds in his hands to plaintiff
as his share, and to pay the other half to plaintiff to be credited ou his
recovery against defendants, and adjudged costs in favor of plaintiff, with
the right to issue execution therefor, and for the amount remaining un-
paid on the decree in his favor. Hcld that, while the first decree determin-
ed the main controversy between the parties, as the partnership property
was yet to be sold, the balance in the hands of the receiver ascertained and
disposed of, and the liability for costs determined, and as the final balance
in favor of plaintiff had not been fixed, with leave to issue execution, it
was at least doubtful whether the first decree was a final decree for the
purposes of appeal, and, under the principle that all doubts should be re-
solved in favor of retaining an appeal, a motion to dismiss an appeal from
the second decree would be refused. .

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. §§ 494-500,
503, 505-509; Deec. Dig. €=80(1).]1

"9, APPEAL AND HRROR &=801(1)—MoTIroNs To DisMIss.

Motions to dismiss appeals without consideration of the merits should
not be granted, except when it clearly appears that there has been a €atal
failure to comply with legal requirements. o

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. §§ 3161,
3164; Dec. Dig. €=801(1).] .

3. PARTNERSHIP ¢=»333—DISSOLUTION AND SETTLEMENT—ACCOUNTING.

Where, on a partnership settlement, the master’s statement of the oper-
ating account showed, not only that defendants owed the partnership
$12,503.72, but also that the partnership owed plaintiff the same amount,
defendants having received such amount in excess of what ther paid in,
and plaintiff that much less than he paid in, the account was properly set-
tled by charging defendants, as due plaintiff, the full amount thereof,
though, had the account showed th4t defendants owed the partnership
such amount, and that the partnership owed plaintiff nothing, the balance
would have been a partnership asset, and plaintiff would have been en-
titled to judgment for only one-half thereof.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Partnership, Cent. Dig. §§ 792-796; Dec.
Dig. €=333.]

@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
232 F.—8
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Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of West Virginia, at Charleston; Benjamin F. Keller,
Judge.

Suit by A. G. Miller against John Halfpenny and another, late
partners trading as Halfpenny & Hamilton. From a decree, defend-
ants appeal. Affirmed.

W. B. Maxwell, of Elkins, W. Va. (H. M. McCaughey, of Phila-
delphia, Pa., and E. L. Maxwell, of Elkins, W. Va., on the brief), for
appellants.

Andrew Price, of Marlinton, W. Va., for appellee.

Before PRITCHARD, KNAPP, and WOODS, Circuit Judges.

WOODS, Circuit Judge. This action was instituted by A. G
Miller against John Halfpenny and R. C. Hamilton for the settle-
ment of a partnership. By the terms of the partnership contract the
losses and profits were to be shared, one-half by Miller, who was in
charge of the operation of the lumber mills in West Virginia, and
one-half by Halfpenny and Hamilton, who did business in Philadel-
phia and had charge of selling the lumber.

[1,2] The District Court referred the case to a special master to
report the proper settlement. That was little material dispute as to
the facts, and no charge of intentional wrongdoing. The difficulty
was the adjustment of a complicated account. The master presented
to the court a thorough and careful statement of ‘the accounts and
his reasoning thereon; his finding being that the defendants Half-
. penny and Hamilton owed the plaintiff Miller on December 31, 1910,
the sum of $2,191.10. By a decree entered November 18, 1913, the
report of the master was confirmed in accordance with the opinion
of the court filed on the same day; the copartnership was dissolved;
recovery for $2,191.10 and interest was adjudged in favor of Miller
against Halfpenny and Hamilton; and the receiver was ordered to
pay two small debts, and to sell a tract of land, the property of the
partnership. By this decree the cause was “continued for further
proceedings.” On June 19, 1914, by another decree, the sale made
by the receiver was confirmed; the fees of the receiver and the spe-
cial master were fixed; the receiver was ordered to pay one half of
the funds in his hands to Miller as his share as a member of the part-
nership, and the other half, the share of Halfpenny and Hamilton, to
Miller to be credited on his recovery of $2,191.10 against Halfpenny
and Hamilton; and costs were adjudged in favor of the plaintiff
against the defendants with the right to issue execution for costs and
for the amount remaining unpaid on the decree in his favor. The pe-
tition for appeal and the order allowing it were dated December 17,
1914. :

At the hearing in this court a motion was made to dismiss the ap-
peal, on the ground that the decree of November 18, 1913, was a
final decree, and that therefore the appeal on December 17, 1914,
was too late. The accepted definitions of a final decree are sometimes
difficult to apply. In Keystone M. & I. Co. v. Martin, 132 U. S. 91,
10 Sup. Ct. 32, 33 L. Ed. 275, it was held that a decree for an in.
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junction leaving an account to be afterwards taken was not final.
The authorities are reviewed, and the rule reafirmed, that for a de-
cree to be final it—

“must terminate the litigation between the parties on the merits of the case,

so that, if there should be an atfirmance here, the court below would have noth-
ing to do but to execute the judgment or decree it had already rendered.”

In Lewisburg Bank v. Sheffey, 140 U. S. 445, 11 Sup. Ct. 755, 35
L. Ed. 493, the court thus speaks of a decree which it held to be
final:

*“This finally determined the entire controversy litigated between the parties
and nothing remained but to carry the decree into execution. The bringing
of the fund into court was for the final distribution as decreed, and not to be

held pending the ascertainment of the principles upon which it should be dis-
tributed.”

In the case now before us it is true the decree of November 18,
1913, determined the main controversy between the parties—the
method of taking the accounts and the balance on such accounting
in favor of Miller. Hence, under the authorities cited, there is strong
reason to say the decree was final. But the land was yet to be sold,
the balance in the hands of the receiver to be ascertained and dis-
posed of, and the liability for costs to be determined. Besides, the
final balance in favor of Miller had not been fixed with leave to is-
sue execution therefor; for the receiver had in his hands funds be-
longing to Halfpenny and Hamilton applicable to the balance of $2,-.
191.10 found against them on the general accounting taken of part-
nership transactions. These matters were not adjudged and the
rights and liabilities of the parties finally settled until the decree of
June 19, 1914, It is, therefore, at least doubtful whether the decree of
November 18, 1913, should be regarded the final decree-for purposes
of appeal. Dainese v. Kendall, 119 U. S. 53, 7 Sup. Ct. 65, 30 L.
Ed. 305; Lodge v. Twell, 135 U. S. 232, 10 Sup. Ct. 745, 34 L.
Ed. 153; McGourkey v. Toledo & Ohio Central R. Co., 146 U. S.
536, 13 Sup. Ct. 170, 36 L. Ed. 1079; Covington v. Covington First
National Bank, 185 U. S. 270, 22 Sup. Ct. 645, 46 L. Ed. 906. Mo-
tions to dismiss appeals without consideration of the merits should
not be granted, except when it clearly appears that there has been a
fatal failure to comply with legal requirements. On the principle
that all doubts should be resolved in favor of retaining an appeal for
decision on the merits, the motion to dismiss is refused.

[3] Coming to the merits, the defendants contend that there was
a fundamental error in the conclusion from the statement made by
the master that Halfpenny and Hamilton owed Miller on the oper-
ating account $12,503.72; that the conclusion should have been that
the balance due by Halfpenny and Hamilton was a partnership asset
of which Halfpenny and Hamilton themselves were entitled to one-
half; and that therefore the debit against them on this account in
favor of Miller should have been only one-half, $6,251.86.

This position is founded on a misapprehension. Had the state-
ment of the operating account showed that the defendants owed the
partnership thereon $12,503.72 and that the partnership owed the
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plaintiff nothing on that account, then the balance of $12,503.72 would
have been a partnership asset, divisible one-half to the defendants
and one-half to the plaintiff. But the statement showed not only a
balance against the defendants of $12,503.72 in favor of the partner-
ship, but a balance against the partnership in favor of the plaintiff
of $12,503.72. In other words, including the share of loss chargeable
to each party the defendants had received from the operating account
$12,503.72 more than they had put in, and the plaintiff had received
$12,503.72 less than he had put in. It follows that this account was
properly settled by charging the defendants as due to the plaintiff
$12,503.72.

The exceptions to the master’s report relating to the charges of
interest and discount are so fully and satisfactorily disposed of by the
District Court that they require no further discussion. There are
numerous assignments of error relating to small items of the ac-
count: without detailed discussion it is sufficient to say that the mas-
ter has disposed of these items as fairly as was possible under the
circumstances.

Affirmed.

UNGLES-HOGGETTE MFG. CO. v. FARMERS' HOG & CATTLE POW-
DER CO.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. March 20, 1916.)

No. 4453,

1. TRADE-MARES AND TRADE-NAMES @&=3(4)—DESCRIPTIVE MARKS—*“DIp”—
“DrY-D1p.” ’

The compound word “dry-dip” cannot be appropriated as a trade-mark
for a powder to be sprinkled over animals to rid themn of vermin, since
“dip” as a noun has a well-established meaning as a liquid preparation
into which objects may be dipped or $mmersed, as for cleansing, coloring,
and the like, and in connection with animal husbandry means a liquid
preparation into which infected animals may be plunged for treatment,
and a “dry-dip,” therefore, presumptively means a dry or powdered prep-
aration intended to perform the same service.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Trade-Marks and Trade-Names, Cent.
Dig. § 7; Dec. Dig. ¢&==3(4).

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Dip.]

2. TRADE-MARKS AND TRADE-NAMES @=S—DESCRIPTIVE MARKS—ARBITRARY
SPELLING.

Nor can there be an appropriation of the word ‘‘dridip” as a trade-mark
for such a powder, since that is idem sonans with the other spelling, and
Act March 3, 1881, c. 138, § 2, 21 Stat. 503, providing for the registration
of trade-marks, requires as a condition to registration a showing that no
other person has the right to use the mark sought to be registered, either
in the identical form or in any such near resemblance thereto as might
be calculated to deceive, thereby indicating the disapprobation of Congress
to the use of any word as a trade-mark tending to deceive or confuse the
publie. .

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Trade-Marks und Trade-Names, Cent.
Dig. § 12; Dec. Dig. ¢=8.]

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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3. TRADE-MARKS AND TRADE-NAMES C=45—REGISTRATION—ETTECT.
The registration of a trade-mark under Act March 3, 1881, c. 138, § T,
21 Stat. 503, is only prima facie evidence of ownership, and confers no
right to the use as a trade-mark of a descriptive name, which could not be
appropriated as such at common law.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Trade-Marks and ‘Trade-Names, Cent.
Dig. §§ 53, 59; Dec. Dig. ¢=45.]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the District
of Nebraska; Thomas C. Munger, Judge.

Suit for injunction by the Ungles-Hoggette Manufacturing Com-
pany against the Farmers’ Hog & Cattle Powder Company. Decree
for the defendant, and plaintiff appeals. Affirmed.

Maxwell V. Beghtol, of Lincoln, Neb. (Edmund C. Strode, of Lin-
~oln, Neb., on the brief), for appellant.
Samuel P. Davidson, of Tecumseh, Neb., for appellee.

Before ADAMS and CARLAND, Circuit Judges, and TRIEBER,
District Judge. .

ADAMS, Circuit Judge. This was a bill to restrain infringement of
a trade-mark consisting of the word “Dridip,” which the plaintiff,
Ungles-Hoggette Manufacturing Company, claims to have adopted and
appropriated as a trade-mark, to indicate the origin and ownership of
a certain lice and vermin destroyer manufactured by it. It alleged
in its bill that the defendant, Farmers’ Hog & Cattle Powder Company,
infringed upon its trade-mark by using the words “Dry-Dip,” or
“Farmers’ Dry-Dip,” on packages of lice and vermin destroyer man-
ufactured by it.

Defendant denied that plaintiff had appropriated, or by use or other-
wise had acquired, the right to the exclusive use of the word “Dridip”
as a trade-mark for its product, on the ground that that word, instead
of indicating the origin and ownership of its product as it lawfully
might, was descriptive of that product, and was not the subject of ex-
clusive appropriation by plaintiff as a trade-mark. Defendant also de-
nied infringement. '

The District Court heard the proof and rendered a decree dismiss-
ing the bill. Plaintiff appeals.

[1] The word “dip,” as a noun, has a well-understood meaning.
Any liquid preparation into which objects may be dipped or immersed,
as for cleansing, coloring, lacquering, and the like, may be properly
described as a dip. See “dip” in Webster’s International Dictionary
and Funk & Wagnalls Dictionary. Such common use of the word
“dip,” as a noun, is conceded by plaintiff’s counsel. In connection with
animal husbandry this word, taken by itself, therefore, signifies some
liquid preparation, consisting of a mixture of parasiticides, like sulphur,
coal-tar creosote, arsenic, or similar agents, into which animals infected
with lice and other vermin may be plunged for treatment.

The word “Dry-Dip,” employed in connection with animal hus-
bandry, would presumptively mean some dry or powdered preparation

G=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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intended to perform the same service. This proposition, however, is:
not left to presumption or speculation, as counsel specifically agreed
(among other facts bearing on the case, which, in view of the conclu-
sion reached by us, it is unnecessary to state), that “the dry dip sold
by the defendant and the dridip sold by plaintiff is a dry powder, and
is used by sprinkling on the animal.” ~So it .appears that the dry-dip
served the same purpose and accomplished the same result as the lig-
uid dip, with an unimportant difference—in their application. The in-
fected animal is driven or plunged into the liquid dip, while the dry
dip is sprinkled upon the infected animal. In view of these consid-
erations, plaintiff certainly could not have appropriated the compound
word “Dry-Dip” as its trade-mark. Such a word would unquestion-
ably have been accurately descriptive of the article sold or dealt in
by it.

[2] Does the fact that plaintiff misspelled the first member of its
compound word, in such a way, however, that its necessary pronunci-
ation is the same as “Dry-Dip,” make the misspelled word any more
available to exclusive appropriation by it? We think not. In Trini-
dad Asphalt Manufacturing Co. v. Standard Paint Co., 163 Fed. 977,
90 C. C. A. 195, affirmed by the Supreme Court in 220 U. S. 446, 31
Sup. Ct. 456, 55 L. Ed. 536, we had occasion to consider whether the
plaintiff could secure a trade-mark in the word “Ruberoid,” notwith-
standing the conceded right of the public to make use of the word
“rubberoid,” and we there said: ‘

“A public right in ‘rubberoid’ and a private monopoly of ‘ruberoid’ cannot
coexist. They are inconsistent and trespass upon each other, and under the
law of trade-mark the latter must give way. To the contention that ‘ruberoid”
is fanciful or arbitrary, it must be said that no one can restrict or destroy
the public right by the coinage and monopoly of a word that is a near imita-

tion of one, the use of which is open to all for the truthful description of
articles of trade and commerce.”

To these propositions many illustrative cases are cited to which at-
tention is directed. In addition to the teaching of that case, which
seems to us conclusive of this, attention may be called to the fact that
Act March 3, 1881, c. 138, 21 Stat. 502, entitled “An act to authorize
the registration of trade-marks and protect the same,” requires as a
condition to such registration that the applicant must make a showing
that:

“No other person, firm, or corporation has the right to use the mark sought

to be registered, either in the identical form or in any such near resemblance
thereto ag might be calculated to deceive.” Section 2.

While this act relates to registration only of a trade-mark, it never-
theless discloses the disapprobation of Congress to the use of any
word as a trade-mark which may tend to confuse or deceive the pub-
iic. The word “Dridip” may be a misspelling of the word “Dry-Dip.”
This, however, depends upon whether the phonetic method of spelling
is practiced or not (many educated and more uneducated persons do-
practice it). But, however this may be, there can be no possible differ-
ence in the pronunciation of the two words. They sound alike to any
listener or bystander.
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The rule governing the doctrine of idem sonans is that absolute ac-
curacy in spelling words is not required in legal documents or pro-
ceedings, whether civil or criminal. If the name, as spelled in a
document, however incorrectly, conveys to the ear, when pronounced
according to the commonly accepted methods, a sound practically
. identical with the name as correctly spelled, the name thus given is
a sufficient designation of the individual referred to, and no advantage
can be taken of the clerical error. See Hubner v. Reickhoff, 103 Iowa,
368, 72 N. W. 540, 64 Am. St. Rep. 191; Robson v. Thomas, 55 Mo.
581. Manifestly then, the word “Dridip” could no more be appropri-
ated as a trade-mark than the concededly descriptive word “Dry-Dip.”

[3] Some argument is made that the fact of registration of the word
“Dridip” as a trade-mark conferred upon the plaintiff some additional
right. 'This is not correct. If there be no valid common-law trade-
mark by the appropriation and use of a word or symbol that indicates
origin or ownership, as distinguished from describing the article man-
ufactured or sold, the bare fact of registration cannot make it so. Reg-
istration is only prima facie evidence of ownership. See Act March
3, 1881, c. 138, § 7, 21 Stat. 502. If that presumption is overcome
by the facts in a given case, then registration is of no avail.

Our conclusion is that the word “Dridip” is so descriptive of the
article manufactured and sold by plaintiff that it cannot be the sub-
ject of a lawful trade-mark. With this conclusion, no consideration
need be given to the defense of a noninfringement.

Judgment of the District Court is affirmed.

WARD v. AMERICAN AGRICULTURAL CHEMICAL CO.
In re FLOYD & HAYES’ ESTATE.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit. February 29, 1916.)
No. 1397.

1, BANRRUPTCY &=184(2)——0OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTY—CHOSES IN ACTION—RE-
CORDING.

A contract between the seller and buyer, whereby the latter agrees to
assign all accounts, notes, etc., taken for the property when resold, and to
collect them in trust for the seller, is not required to be recorded by the
statutes of South Carolina as interpreted by the Supreme Court of that
state, and entitles the seller to the possession thereof as dgainst the buy-
er’s trustee in bankruptey.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 276; Dec. Dig.
&»184(2).]

9. COURTS ¢=>366(1)—RULES 0F DECISION—CONSTRUCTION OF STATE STATUTES.

The construction of the South Carolina recording acts as not applying
to the assignment of choses in action is binding on the federal courts,
though contrary to an earlier decision of the federal court.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. §§ 956, 957, 967;
Dec. Dig. €é=366(1).]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the East-
ern District of South Carolina, at Charleston; Henry A. Middleton
Smith, Judge.

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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In the matter of the estate of Floyd & Hayes, bankrupts. From
an order allowing in part the claim of the American Agricultural
Chemical Company (225 Fed. 262), R. E. Ward, trustee in bank-
ruptcy, appeals.” Affirmed.

F. L. Willcox, of Florence, S. C. (Wilicox & Willcox, of Florence, .

S. C., on the brief), for appellant.
W. C. Moore, of Dillon, S. C. (Sellers & Moore, of Dillon, S. C,,
on the brief), for appellee.

Before KNAPP and WOODS, Circuit Judges, and DAYTON,
District Judge.

WOODS, Circuit Judge. -This appeal involves the right of the-

American Agricultural Chemical Company to certain notes, mort-
gages and open accounts claimed by it under a contract with the
bankrupt firm of Floyd & Hayes. The contract dated January 14,
1914, provided that the American Agricultural Chemical Company
would furnish Floyd & Hayes a quantity of fertilizer for which they
gave their unconditional promise to pay at a future time. The con-
tract contained the following stipulations: .

“On May 1, next, or when called on, you agree to deliver us all cash for cash
- sales, and all the notes you have taken and a list of accounts that are due from
purchasers of the above-named fertilizers, for the gross amount of time-sales
of same, these notes and accounts to be returned to you before maturity for
collection, and all proceeds as collected must be applied to the payment of your
obligation to us, whether the same shall have matured or not. Homestead
and all other exemptions are hereby waived as to any debt arising under this
contract. And it is further agreed that all fertilizers shipped to you as well
as all notes, accounts, cash or other proceeds from the sale of said fertilizers,
which may at any time be in your possession, or in the possession of your rep-
resentative, are our property, to be heid by you as our agent in trust for the
payment of your obligation to us, the title thereto shall not pass until your
obligation to us is paid.”

Pursuant to this contract, the American Agricultural Chemical
Company delivered to the bankrupts fertilizers to the value of $9,-
358.16. On June 20, 1914, Floyd & Hayes executed and delivered to
the company an assignment of the notes, mortgages and open ac-
counts, and turned over with the assignment the notes and mortgages
and a list thereof. About September 1, 1914, the notes and mort-
gages were returned to Floyd & Hayes for collection and a trust
receipt for them was taken. Prior to filing the petition in bank-
ruptcy the bankrupts had collected on the accounts, notes and mort-
gages and turned over to the company in money and cotton $1,976.18.

Floyd & Hayes were adjudged bankrupts on January 1, 1915. The
contract was not recorded, and the question is whether the company
is entitled to hold the notes, mortgages and book accounts against
the trustee in bankruptcy.

[1,2] Practically the same question arose as to book accounts in
Townsend v. Ashepoo Fertilizer Co., 212 Fed. 97, 128 C. C. A. 613,
and this court held that, under the broad terms of the South Carolina
recording statutes, record of such a paper in the nature of a mort-
gage of accounts was necessary to its validity against subsequent
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creditors and purchasers without notice. The principle which the
court thought applicable was thus stated:

“Nothing is better settled than that a creditor owns debts owing to him as
property; and we are unable to see what warrant the court would have to ex-
clude such property from the operation of a statute covering all personal prop-
erty, on the ground that the property is choses in action and intangible. Secret
liens may be valid in the absence of a statute condemning them. Greey v.
Dockendorft, 231 U. S. 513, 34 Sup. Ct. 166, 58 L. Ed. 339. But they are under
just condemnation in the business world, and we are not inclined to indulge
refinements in the interpretation of the statute in order to protect those who
fail to record their papers, and then when disaster comes bring them out
against subsequent creditors. Besides, nothing is more plainly within the nis-
chief at which the statute was directed than an unrecorded mortgage of a mer-
chant’s accounts, especially of the accounts of a merchant like Roof doing what
is known as an advancing business. All know that the debts owing to such a
merchant constitute an important asset, sometimes the chief asset, on which
his credit rests, and those who credit him do so on the faith of these debts as
his property.”

The court was not inadvertent to the cases of Williams v. Pay-
singer, 15 S. C. 171, and Patterson v. Rabb, 38 S. C. 138, 17 S. E.
463, 19 L. R. A. 831, and of course recognized their binding author-
ity. In these cases there was an assignment and delivery of a note
or bond and the mortgage securing it, and it was held, in accordance
with the general rule, that the recording of the assignment was not
necessary to the protection of the assignee against those who dealt
with the original mortgagee as if he were the owner. Booth v. Ke-
hoe, 71 N. Y. 341; Kirkland v. Brune, 31 Grat. (Va.) 126; Tingle
v. Fisher, 20 W. Va. 497; Brady v. State, 26 Md. 290; Bacon v.
Bonham, 27 N. J. Eq. 209; National Bank v. Purifier Co., 84 Mich.
364, 47 N. W. 502. But it seemed to us that a transaction of that
sort might well be distinguished from a written contract providing
that goods sold to a merchant should remain the property of the
seller and that all accounts or other evidences of indebtedness taken
for the goods “shall represent the goods sold” and remain the prop-
erty of the seller as security for his debt. If not distinguishable, a
merchant doing an advancing business of $50,000 a year and carrying
a stock of goods of $10,000 may, by an unrecorded blanket mortgage
of all his book-accounts and other choses in action then in existence
or thereafter made, completely deceive the business public and sub-
sequent creditors and purchasers.

Since the decision of Townsend v. Ashepoo Fertilizer Co., supra,
however, and probably in view of that decision, the Supreme Court
of South Carolina has used this language in Carolina Nat. Bank v.
City of Greenville, 97 S. C. 291, 81 S. E. 634: '

“Ihe first proposition argued by the appellant’s attorneys is ‘that the assign-
nment executed by Bowe & Page on the 2d of September, 1910, in favor of the
plaintiff, was null and void, on the ground that it was not recorded. ‘Waiving
the objection that this question is not properly before the court for considera-
tion, for the reason that it was not set up as a defense, the court takes this
opportunity to reaffirm the doctrine, already settled in this state, that the as-
signment of a chose in action, is not embraced within the provisions of the
recording acts, as will appear by reference to the cases of Williams & Co. v.
Paysinger, 15 S. C. 171, and Patterson v. Rabb, 38 8. C, 138, 17 8. E. 463, 19
T. R. A. 831. The case of Williams & Co. v. Paysinger, supra, was cited with
approval in Singleton v. Singleton, 60 S. C. at page 235, 38 S. E. 462.”
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The contract assigned to which the Supreme Court of South Caro-
lina referred was one made by Bowe & Page with the city of Green-
ville for street paving, and the payments for which it provided from
the city of Greenville seemed to constitute the main assets of the
business in which the contractors were engaged. The language of
the court in this case must be regarded as laying down a construc-
tion of the South Carolina statute contrary to that adopted by this
court in Townsend v. Ashepoo Fertilizer Co.; supra; and the con-
struction of the state court is controlling. We think the District
Court was right in so regarding it, and holding that the recording
statutes of South Carolina have no application to the reservation of
title or assignment of the choses in action claimed by the appellee
under its contract with Floyd & Hayes.

Affirmed.

McGRAW v. WALSH.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fourth Circuit. March 2, 1916.)
No. 1430.

1. MECHANICS' LIENS ¢=5246—SUITS To ENFORCE—EXISTENCE OF OTHER REMEDY,
Where a creditor having a mechanic’s lien also held stocks and bonds
as collateral security for his debt, he had a right to enforce either security
or both, unless enjoined by the court.
[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Mechanics’ Liens, Cent. Dig. § 431;
Dec. Dig. €=2246.]

2. MECIIANICS’ LIENS @&251—SALE—ENJOINING—CONDITIONS PRECEDENT.

One seeking to enjoin a sale for the satisfaction of a mechanic’s lien on
the ground that the lienor held stocks and bonds as security for his debt
and bhad not accounted therefor was bound to show a demand for the re-
turn of the securities, accompanied by payment or tender of the amount
due, before he could have the enforcement of the decree of sale enjoined,
as the duty was on him to pay his debt as a condition of the return of the
security, and not on the lienor to produce the security before the debtor
was ready to pay. .

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Mechanies’ Iiens, Cent. Dig. § 439;
Dec. Dig. &=251.]

3. MECHANICS' LIENS €251 —SALES—ENJOINING—AFFIDAVITS.

A sale under a decree establishing a mechani¢’s lien would not be en-
Joined on the ground that the lienor had misappropriated collateral se-
curity held by him, where the allegations as to the misappropriation of the
securities were made upon information and belief, without stating the
sources and nature of the information, especially as the moving party was
a party to the suit to enforce the mechanic’s lien and had ample oppor-
tunity therein to ask that the lienor be required to bring the securities
into court before enforcing the lien, but made no effort to that end.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Mechanics’ Liens, Cent. Dig. § 439; Dec.
Dig. &=251.]

4. Courts @=493(2) — CONFLICTING JURISDICTION -~ STATE AND IEDERAL
COURTS.

That a state court had in a separate proceeding ordered a sale of the
same property and a different application of the proceeds was no ground
for enjoining a sale under the decree of a federal court establishing a me-
chanic’s lien, where the federal court first acquired jurisdiction of the
subject-matter. '

[Ed. Note.—TFor other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 1347; Dec. Dig.
E&=493(2).]

@&=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numberez_l Digests & Indexes
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Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the North-
ern District of West Virginia, at Wheeling; Alston G. Dayton, Judge.

.Suit by J. J. Walsh, Jr., surviving partner of himself and Frank
G. Walsh, deceased, doing business as J. J. Walsh & Son, against the
Grafton Hotel Company. From an order denying the petition of John
T. McGraw to restrain a sale in satisfaction of a mechanic’s lien, the
petitioner appeals. Affirmed.

T. S. Riley and John J. Coniff, both of Wheeling, W. Va, for ap-
pellant. .

J. M. Ritz and John A. Howard, both of Wheeling, W. Va,, for
appellee. .

Before PRITCHARD, KNAPP, and WOODS, Circuit Judges.

WOODS, Circuit Judge. After protracted litigation in the District
Court for the Northern District of West Virginia and in this court,
J. J. Walsh, Jr., established a mechanic’s lien on the property of the
Grafton Hotel Company known as Willard’s Hotel for about $50,000
and interest, in the case of Grafton Hotel Co. v. Walsh, 228 Fed. 5,
—_ C.C. A. —. Under an order of the District Court the property
was advertised for sale for the satisfaction of the amount due on
the lien. On January 16, 1916, John T. McGraw filed his petition
in the District Court asking for an order restraining the sale. The
petition was denied, without answer or demurrer, on the ground that
it stated no facts warranting the relief asked; and the petitioner ap-
pealed. The facts alleged in the petition or admitted at the hearing
may be thus summarized: .

John T. McGraw was the only person interested in the corpora-
tion and the hotel property, and therefore the sole party in interest in
the litigation with Walsh. In the course of that litigation it was ad-
mitted by Walsh in his testimony that he had received from McGraw
bonds and stocks amounting in the aggregate at par value to the sum
of $348,800 as security for any balance that might be due Walsh on
his contract for building the hotel. Walsh testified that he was able
and willing to return the securities whenever he received the balance
due him on the contract. The court enjoined Walsh from disposing
of the securities pending the litigation; and the injunction is still in
force. The charge is made on information and belief that Walsh
has disposed of a number of these securities as collateral for his own
debts or the debts of a corporation in which he is interested. But
the sources of information upon which the belief is founded are not
given. There is an allegation that the securities are worth at least
$200,000, and that Walsh is insolvent. On these allegations the court
was asked to enjoin the sale, “until there shall be a proper accounting
between the said Walsh and this petitioner as to said securities, and
until at least the said Walsh shall produce within the jurisdiction of
this court so much of said securities as he can produce.”

[1, 2] From the petition it appears that Walsh had two securities—
the mechanic’s lien, and the stocks and bonds referred to in the peti-
tion. He had a right to enforce either or both, unless enjoined by the
court. Nothing appears in the petition to show that he will not be
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able to regain possession of the stocks and bonds for delivery to the
petitioner, by using the money due to him on the judgment when he
receives it. ‘The primary duty is on the petitioner to pay his debt as
a condition of the return of his collateral, and not on Walsh to pro-
duce the collateral before the petitioner is ready to pay. It seems
clear, therefore, that before the petitioner can have the enforcement of
the decree of sale enjoined he should show demand for the return of
his securities accompanied by payment or tender of the amount due.

[3] But if there were no other reason, the petition must be denied .
because all the allegations of misappropriation of the securities are
made upon information and belief without stating the sources and
nature of the information. 1 Foster’s Fed. Practice, 293; 1 High
on Injunctions, 35; Lake Shore Ry. Co. v. Felton, 103 Fed. 227, 43
C. C. A. 189. No extraordinary circumstances are alleged taking the
case out of the general rule; on the contrary, the circumstances are
strong against relaxation of the rule. McGraw was a party to the suit
to enforce the mechanic’s lien, and had ample opportunity to ask that
Walsh be required to bring the securities into court, before enforcing
the lien; but he made no effort to that end. When he comes now and
asks that this judgment obtained after long and expensive litigation be
enjoined he should make satisfactory proof of the wrong alleged and
of irreparable injury. A mere statement of misappropriation of the
securities on information and belief without indication of the sources
of the information falls far short of satisfactory proof. '

[4] The fact alleged in the petition that the state court has in a
separate proceeding ordered a sale of the same property and a dif-
ferent application of the proceeds of the sale does not affect the mat-
ter, since it is conceded that the federal court first acquired jurisdic-
tion of the subject-matter.

It may be the duty of the District Judge upon proper showing to
require Walsh to produce and surrender the collateral securing the
judgment debt as a condition of receiving the proceeds of the sale in
satisfaction of the amount due on the decree. Upon that point we ex-
press no opiniomn

Affirmed.

In re H. B. HOLLINS & CO. In re EVERETT et al. In re FIRST NAT.
BANK et al.

(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. March 14, 1916.)
No. 126.

1. BANKRUPTCY €=140(3)—PROPERTY—COLLATERAL SECURITIES,

‘When a bankrupt has pledged to secure a loan his own securities, secu-
rities of his customers rightfully, and securities of his customers wrong-
fully, the customers became sureties for him as principal to the lender,
and the securities must be applied to the payment of the loan as follows:
First, the bankrupt's; second, the customers’ securities rightfully pledg-
ed; and, third, the customers’ securities wrongfully pledged.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptey, Cent. Dig. §§ 198, 199, 219,
225; Dec. Dig. €140(3).],

&~>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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2. BANKRUPTCY &=140(3)—PROPERTY—COLLATERAL SECURITIES.

‘ Where a bankrupt repledged, as he had a right to do, securities pledged
by several of his customers to secure several loans to him, the indebted-
ness of each customer is to be charged against the securities in the pro-
portion of each customer's whole indebtedness to the bankrupt; and if
any customer loses some of his securities on some of the loans, he is en-
titled to an equal amount of the surplus on other loans as against gen-
eral creditors.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 198, 199, 219,
225; Dec. Dig. €&=140(3).]

Petition to Revise and Appeal from Order of the District Court of
the United States for the Southern District of New York.

In the matter of H. B. Hollins & Co., alleged bankrupts. A petition
by the bankrupts, asking that Crossman & Sielcken be required to pay
over part of the proceeds realized from the sale of certain securities,
was denied by the District Judge, and petitioners appeal. Affirmed.

See, also, 210 Fed. 965; 230 Fed. 917,

Beekman, Menken & Griscom, of New York City (W. C. Armstrong,
of New York City, of counsel), for appellants.
L. B. Smuth, of New York City, for appellees.

Before COXE, WARD, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

WARD, Circuit Judge. In April, 1913, Crossman & Sielcken bor-
rowed $1,000,000 of Hollins & Co. and gave them as collateral $1,-
200,000 of the corporate 41/ per cent. stock of the city of New York,
agreeing that Hollins & Co. might rehypothecate the same for any
larger sum they could obtain. November 13, 1913, a petition in bank-
ruptcy was filed against Hollins & Co. and a receiver appointed. No-
vember 22, 1913, the court permitted Crossman & Sielcken to take up
Hollins & Co.’s note to the Chase National Bank for $950,000 and the
collateral securing it, which included among other securities $1,073,000
of their City stock and certain securities belonging to Hollins & Co.
June 29, 1914, the court confirmed a composition offered by Hollins
& Co. to pay their creditors in notes of the Equities Realization Cor-
poration for the full amounts of their claims, but payable only out
of the assets of the firm taken over by it.

April 21, 1915, Hollins & Co. filed a petition in the District Court
sitting in bankruptcy asking that Crossman & Sielcken be required to
pay over to them a part of the proceeds realized from the sale of the
securities received from the Chase National Bank. The District Judge
denied this petition, and upon a petition to revise his order we reversed
the same without prejudice, on the ground that after confirmation of the
composition the bankruptcy court had no jurisdiction as. to assets not
in its session. There were, however, before the confirmation of the
composition, and now are, in the possession of the receiver, cash and
securities turned over to him by the First National Bank and by the
Equitable Trust Company after loans made by them to Hollins &
Co. had been paid. Various claims for priority as to these funds were
referred to a special master, and upon exceptions to his report de-
cided by the District Court.

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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The collateral in the case of the First National Bank loan of $175,-
058.33 was Crossman & Sielcken’s City stock, of the value of $57.-
919.84, securities belonging to other customers, and some belonging
to Hollins & Co. This loan was treated by the master separately, and
as a result of computing the ratio Crossman & Sielcken’s total indebt-
edness to Hollins & Co. bore to the total value of their hypothecated
securities he charged $48,140 upon their securities in this loan, leaving
an equity of $9,860 on which they were entitled to share pro rata in
this surplus with other claimants whose securities had also been right-
fully hypothecated. The surplus which remained after this was done,
and all claimants of securities satisfied, he ordered to be paid to the
receiver, who would have to account therefor to the Equities Realiza-
tion Corporation, which is realizing the assets of Hollins & Co. for the
benefit of the general creditors who accepted its notes under the com-
position, _

In the case of the Equitable Trust Company’s loan of $50,000 se-
cured by $30,000 of Crossman & Sielcken’s City stock and certain se-
curities belonging to Hollins & Co., there was a surplus of cash and
the securities of Hollins & Co., all of which the special master award-
ed to Crossman & Sielcken. His two conclusions do not seem to us to
be consistent. The surplus in each case should have gone to the same
party, either to the receiver or to Crossman & Sielcken. Judge Hough
awarded them in each case to Crossman & Sielcken, reversing the first
and confirming the second order of the special master.

We are referred to but two authorities on the question of the rela-
tive standing of pledged securities belonging to the bankrupt and se-
curities of his customers rightfully pledged, Skiff v. Stoddard, 63 Conn.
198, 26 Atl. 874, 28 Atl. 104, 21 L. R. A. 102, holds that the bank-
rupt’s securitiés should share ratably with the customers’, while Unit-
ed National Bank v. Tappan, 33 R. 1. 1, 79 Atl. 946, holds that the
bankrupt’s securities must be first exhausted. We prefer the latter
view., .

[1] When a bankrupt has made a loan, and to secure the same
has pledged his own securities, securities of his customers rightfully,
and securities of his customers wrongfully, the customers become
sureties for him as principal to the lender. The securities must in equi-
ty be applied to the payment of the loan as follows: First, the bank-
rupt’s; second, the customers’ securities rightfully pledged; third,
the customers’ securities wrongfully pledged. )

[2] When a bankrupt, authorized to repledge securities of his cus-
tomers, repledges them in several separate loans, as he has a right to
do, the proportion of the customers’ indebtedness to- the bankrupt
must be charged to these securities as between them and competing
creditors, and is to be ascertained for each loan by charging the securi-
ties with their ratable proportion of the customers’ whole indebted-
ness to the bankrupt. If, after all the customers have received the
shares they are entitled to of the surplus, anything be left, it should
go to the general creditors, except that, if it appear, as in this case,
that a secured creditor has lost some of his securities in some of the
loans, he should be credited on his indebtedness to the bankrupt with
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their value in determining his share of the surplus as between himself
and the general creditors.

In this case, as it appears that there is a surplus in the loan of the
First National Bank and of the Equitable Trust Company in which
no other secured creditor is interested, and that Crossman & Sielcken
have lost City stock in some of the other loans in which the bank-
rupt pledged it of more value than the aggregate surplus, the Dis-
trict Judge was right in awarding the whole surplus to them. A true
apportionment of the indebtedness of Crossman & Sielcken to Hollins &
Co. shows that this surplus is the proceeds of their City stock.

The orders are affirmed.

BANK OF HATTIESBURG v. CARTER (two cases).
In re MOLLERE.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. April 4, 1918.)
Nos. 2829, 2887.

MORTGAGES &=151(1)—PRIORITY—STATUTORY LIEN OF LANDLORD.
The landlord’s lien given by Code Miss. 1906, § 2851, on the movables
of the tenant on the demised premises, is superior in bankruptey to a mort-
gage given to secure an antecedent indebtedness.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Mortgages, Cent. Dig. § 326; Dec. Dig.
&=151(1).]

Appeal from, and Petition for Revision of Proceedings of, the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Southern District of Missis-
.sippi; Henry C. Niles, Judge.

In the matter of H. P. Mollere, bankrupt. To review an order
giving preference to a landlord’s lien in favor of J. P. Carter, the Bank
of Hattiesburg appeals and petitions to revise said order. Appeal dis-
missed, and petition to revise denied.

James N. Flowers and Ellis B. Cooper, both of Jackson, Miss., for
petitioner and appellant.

Nathan C. Hill and Claude E. Hill, both of Hattiesburg, Miss., for
respondent and appellee.

Before PARDEE and WALKER, Circuit Judges, and MAXEY,
District Judge.

PARDEE, Circuit Judge. The case shows that in the bankruptcy
of H. P. Mollere, pending in the District Court of the United States
for the Southern District of Mississippi, the Bank of Hattiesburg prov-
ed its claim for $2,380, with interest, secured by a deed of trust cov-
ering certain movables, which proof of debt by preference was duly
allowed. Thereafter J. P. Carter, as landlord of a certain building
rented to the bankrupt, probated his claim of $800 on the same mov-
ables, claiming a lien thereon under the laws of the state of Mississippi.
Section 2851, Code Miss. 1906.

@& For other cases se6 same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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The property in contest was duly sold by the trustee, and the pro-
ceeds, amounting to $675, not enough to pay either claimant, was held
to await the disposition of the court. At the time of proving his claim
said Carter filed a petition in the bankruptcy court, asserting his lien
as prior to all other claims, and attacking the allowance of the claim
of the Hattiesburg Bank as a valid lien on the movables in question,
and praying that the deed of trust in favor of the bank should be dis-
allowed, and the proceeds of the movables sold be adjudged liable to
" his lien for rentals.

No specific parties were made, but the matter was taken up by the
referee as a contest for priority between Carter and the bank, and after
hearing evidence the referee reported in favor of the Bank of Hatties-
burg. On review before the District Court, the finding in favor of the
Bank of Hattiesburg was reversed, and preference was decreed in
favor of Carter. Neither before the referee nor the trial judge was
the trustee made a party or considered as having any interest. In this
court the trustee is ignored. '

As the distribution of the funds coming into the hands of the trus-
tee is necessarily a regular step in the proceedings, our jurisdiction to
review must be found either in section 24b or section 25 of the Bank-
ruptcy Law (Act July 1, 1898, c. 541, 30 Stat. 553). As the judgment
of the bankruptcy court complained of was in no proper sense an al-
lowance or rejection of any claim over $500, section 25 does not au-
thorize an appéal, and our jurisdiction can only be found under sec-
tion 24b, and is confined to matters of law arising on the facts as found
lf)y the lower court or otherwise indisputably shown in the record be-

ore us.

The trial judge found and adjudged as follows:

“H. P. Mollere, Bankrupt. No. 225. In Bankruptcy.

“As between the claim of the landlord for rent due by the bankrupt, as con-
stituting a lien' upon the assets situated upon the premises of higher rank
than that of the creditor having a mortgage upon the same property, the
referee held that the len of the mortgagee was superior to that of the land-
lord, and from this holding the landlord appeals to this court. The landlord
bases his claim for rent upon section 2851, Mississippi Code of 1906, providing:
‘That no goods or chattels, lying or being in or upon any messuage, lands or
tenements, leased or rented for life, years, at will or otherwise, shall at any
time be liable to be taken by virtue of any writ of execution, or other process
whatever, unless the party 'so taking the same shall, before the removal of the
goods or chattels from such premises, pay or tender to the landlord or lessor
taereof, all the unpaid rent for the said premises, whether the day of payment
shall have come or not, provided it shall not amount to more than one year’s
rent; and the party suing out such execution or process, paying or tendering
to such landlord or lessor the rent unpaid, not to exceed one year’s rent, may
proceed to execute his judgment or process; and the officer levying the same
shall be empowered and required to levy and pay to the plaintiff as well as
the money so paid for rént, as the money due under the process, and when
the rent contracted for is payable, not in money, but in other things, the credi-
tors shall pay the landlord the money value of such things.’

“The language of the statute just cited clearly defines the rights of the
landlord as to his rent for one year as superior and paramount to any and
every claim against the assets upon the premises. The Missis$ippi cases con-
struing this section of the Code, or one identical, re-enacted and now in
force, are cited by opposing counsel as establishing their respective conten-
tion, and it is argued by the mortgagee herein that the case of Marye v. Dyche,
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42 Miss. 847, is decisive, in which it is held that ‘this provision of the statute
does not affect the tenant’s conveyance by mortgage in good faith and for a
valuable consideration of the property on the demised premises, or where
there is a special lien thereon created by contract prior, to the levy of the at-
tachment’; that this holding has been affirmed in the following cases:
Stamps v. Gilman, 43 Miss. 456; Fitzgerald v. Fowlkes, 60 Miss. 270; Henry
v. Davis, 60 Miss. 212; Newman v. Bank, 66 Miss. 323, 5 South. 753; Richard-
son v. McLaurin, 69 Miss. 71, 12 South. 264; that in the instant case the con-
veyance by the bankrupt was prior to the attachment, and the question at
issue decided by Richardson v. McLaurin, supra. The landlord in turn cites
these cases as supporting his contention, in that a landlord cannot be de-
prived of his rent without the conveyance has all the elements of good faith
and a valuable consideration.

“The record in this case discloses that the indebtedness of the bankrupt was
an old one, long past due and owing several months prior to the deed of trust
executed to the mortgagee, making the consideration a past-due indebtedness,
a8 no new funds or money was advanced and the consideration of that certain
‘bill of sale’ (not recorded) executed in August, 1913, need not be considered, -
because the court is of opinion that the landlord from the testimony and
proof herein, is fully protected by section 2851, Miss. Code 1906, supra, and his
claim fortified by the Mississippi cases cited. Further, the application of
the provisions of the Bankrupt Act of 1898, as amended, to the issue arising
herein, that liens must be given for present consideration, to be of effect, In
the judgment of the court, would operate in favor of the landlord. Bankrupt
Act 1898, sec. 67(d), as amended by Act June 25, 1910, ¢. 412, § 12, 36 Stat.
842 (Comp. St. 1913, § 9651).

“In view of the foregoing, the holding of the referee is an erroneous one,
and a decree should enter recognizing the claim of the landlord as superior to
that of the mortgagee.”

On the facts found by the District Judge we concur in his ruling
and find no error of law to revise.

The appeal in No. 2887 is dismissed, and the petition to revise (No.
2829) is denied.

HOOKWAY v. McKNIGHT.
. In re McKNIGHT LAND CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. April 17, 1916.)
No. 4567,

FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCES &=57(4)—WHAT CONSTITUTES.

Where a creditor of a solvent corporation agreed to take preferred
stock under an express stipulation that it should be redeemed within a
given time, a conveyance of lands by the corporation, which was then
solvent, to redeem the stock, is not fraudulent, though the corporation
thereafter through bad investments became insolvent.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Fraudulent Conveysnces, Cent. Dig. §§

150-152, 154; Dec. Dig. ¢&==57(4).]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the District
of North Dakota; Charles F. Amidon, Judge

Suit by C. W. Hookway, as trustee of the McKnight Land Company,
bankrupt, against E. V. McKnight. From a judgment for defendant,
plaintiff appeals. Affirmed.

@==F~: other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
232 F.—9
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G. W. Twiford, of Minot, N. D., and Daniel B. Holt, of Fargo, N.
D. (Edward Engerud and John S. Frame, both of Fargo, N. D., and
R. H. Bosard, of Minot, N. D, on the brief), for appellant.

E. T. Conmy, of Fargo, N. D. (J. S. Watson and N. C. Young, both
of Fargo, N. D, on the brief), for appellee.

Before ADAMS, Circuit Judge, and REED and ELLIOTT, Dis-
trict Judges.

ADAMS, Circuit Judge. On September 15, 1913, the McKnight
Land Company, a corporation of North Dakota, was by the District
Court of the United States for the District of North Dakota adjudi-
cated a bankrupt, and C. W. Hookway was duly chosen its trustee.
He brings this suit in equity agamnst E. V. McKnight to rescind a con-
- tract of sale or transfer of land made by the bankrupt corporation to
him on December 20, 1911,.0n the alleged ground that it was made
with intent to defraud the creditors of the Land Company.

The testimony tended to show the following main facts: In 1907 the
appellee and his two sons, Roy and John, organized a land corporation
to deal in lands, with an authorized capital of $50,000, of which $12,-
000 only was then issued. E. V. McKnight, the appellee, subscribed
and paid for $4,000 of the stock, and the two sons, Roy and John,
subscribed each $4,000, and gave their notes to the corporation for
that amount. The appellee later purchased and paid for $1,000 worth
more of the stock of the company. In 1909 the appellee, being about
to remove to California to reside there, sold his stock in the Land
Company and some other stock owned by him, known as the “Hurd
bank stock,” to the corporation, for $13,125, and took the notes of the
corporation in that amount for the purchase price. In June, 1910, the
articles of incorporation of the Land Company were so amended as to
permit the issuance of preferred stock by it and to provide for its re-
demption at any time after one year from its issuance.

Afterwards the appellee, being then an acknowledged and rightful
creditor of the company for $8,000, balance due on account of the stock
sold by him to it, and $15,000 in money loaned by him to it, and hold-
ing the note of the corporation for the aggregate amount so due him
of $23,000, at the solicitation of his sons agreed to surrender his note
and take preferred stock of the corporation, of the par value of $23,-
000, provided the corporation would agree to redeem it at par on De-
cember 1, 1911. This was assented to by the corporation, and the note
was surrendered, and a corresponding amount of preferred stock is-
sued to him. When the period fixed for redemption of the preferred
stock held by appellee, namely, December 1, 1911, arrived, the cor-
poration assigned to him certain valuable contracts for the purchase
of school lands from the state of North Dakota at a valuation fairly
and reasonably equivalent to the face value of the stock so acquired
and held by him, and this was received by the appellee in lieu of money
originally agreed to be paid. At the time the agreement to surrender
his notes by the appellee was made and performed, and the preferred
stock was accepted by him, the corporation was solvent and in a first-
class financial condition, but afterwards, by reason of improvident ven-

'
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tures, bad crops, and misfortunes of one kind and another, insolvency
and bankruptcy ensued.

There was no evidence that there was any reasonable ground to
contemplate insolvency or bankruptcy at the time the appellee and the
corporation entered into the arrangement to exchange the note for
the preferred stock. On this and other evidence, not substantially con-
tradicting this, the learned trial judge dismissed the bill, saying,
amongst other things:

“At the time of this preferred stock transaction, in exchange for the cash,
and the equivalent of cash which the Land Company then received, that com-
pany agreed to redeem the stock by the payment of the face value thereof,
~ with interest at 8 per cent. on December 1, 1911, if the defendant, E. V. Mc-
Knight, should so desire. At the time the company was perfectly solvent,
the transaction was made in entire good faith; it was a contract which the
Land Company had authority to make, and was in fact a simple loan with an
agreement on the part of the Land Company to repay the loan on December
1, 1911, with interest. The lands sought to be recovered in this suit were
turned out to E. V. McKnight in payment of the obligation of the Land Com-
pany created by this loan. Such payment in land was just as valid as a pay-
ment in cash would have been. I hold the payment to have been valid in all
respects.”

This finding of fact was presumptively correct. Moreover, after an
independent consideration of the evidence and arguments of counsel,
we are of opinion that the trial court was clearly right in the view it
took of the case. It seems to us that the essence of the transaction be-'
tween the appellee and the Land Company was that the appellee, being
a bona fide creditor of the Land Company in the sum of $23,000, ac-
cepted the stock practically as collateral security for the payment of
that debt at the time fixed. There was no evidence that McKnight
desired the stock of the company as an investment. On the contrary,
he was about leaving North Dakota, where he had resided with his
boys for a long time, and to take up his residence in California, and
all the testimony points to this conclusion that he desired to convert
his holdings of stock in North Dakota into cash, and that he never
intended to accept the stock in full discharge of his debt. He did ac-
cept it with the agreement that the face value of the stock, which was
the equivalent of the debt, should be refunded to him on the Ist of
December, 1911.

There is no pretense that the transaction between E. V. McKnight
and the bankrupt amounted to any unlawful preference under the bank-
ruptey law to Mr. McKnight. The basis of the suit is that the con-
tract was void under the statute of North Dakota concerning fraudu-
lent conveyances. Finding no fraud to have been practiced upon the
Land Company in the transaction, and that there was no intent to
hinder, delay, or defraud creditors by the transaction, the decree of
the District Court must be affirmed.
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YANUSZAUCKAS v. MALLORY 8. 8. CO.
(Cireuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. February 15, 1916)
No. 136.

1. CoURTS ¢=270—FEDERAL COURTS—JURISDICTION.

Where plaintiff is an alien, the District Court of a district other than
that ‘of defendant’s residence has no jurisdiction over the action, unless
the parties consent.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent, Dig. § 810; Dec. Dig.
&=270.]

2. APPEARANCE €&=>9(5)—SPECIAL APPEARANCE—WHAT CONSTITUTES.

Where defendant appeared specially for the purpose of moving to dis-
miss, and the notice of appearance so stated, defendant’s appearance was
special, and did not confer jurisdiction on the court.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appearance, Cent. Dig. §§ 4749; Dec.
Dig. ¢=9(5).] .

3. APPEARANCE &>10—SPECIAL APPEARANCE—TIME TO PLEAD.

Where defendant appeared specially for the purpose of moving to dis-
miss the summons and complaint, the fact that it thereafter applied for
an order extending the time to plead generally, in case it should be
held the court had jurisdiction of the action, such application did not
convert the special appearance into a general one, giving the court jur-
isdiction.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appearance, Cent. Dig. §§ 53, 54;
Dec. Dig. ¢=10.] :

4. COURTS &=274—FEDERAL COURTS—JURISDICTION—CITIZENSHIP OF Corpo-
RATION,
A corporation must be considered as a citizen of the state wherein
it was incorporated.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 814; Dec. Dig.
E&>»274.]
5. COURTS ¢&=276—FEDERAL COURTS—VENUE—W ATVER—*CITIZENSHIP.”

“Citizenship” can be acquired only by birth and naturalization; hence
an averment in the complaint that plaintiff was a citizen of the state by
domicile and residence was meaningless, and where defendant moved to
dismiss because the United States District Court was without jurisdic- '
tion, the allowance of an amendment setting up plaintiff’s alienage did
not affect defendant’s rights.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 815; Dec. Dig.
&=276.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Citizenship.]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of New York.

Action by John Yanuszauckas against the Mallory Steamship Com-
pany. The complaint was ordered dismissed, and plaintiff’s motion
for judgment by default denied, and he brings error. Orders affirmed.

Baltrus S. Yankaus, of New York City (Frank J. Felbel, of New
York City, of counsel), for plaintiff in error.

James A. Hatch, of New York City (Wharton Poor, of New York
City, of counsel), for defendant in error, appearing specially.

Before LACOMBE, COXE, and WARD, Circuit Judges.
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COXE, Circuit Judge. The plaintiff is an alien and the defendant
is a Maine corporation. The plaintiff sues for damages for injuries
sustained by him while being employed by the defendant in unload-
ing the steamer Brazos, owned by the defendant, while the steamer
was attached to Pier 38, North River. The suit was commenced in
the District Court for the Eastern District of New York.

[1] We think it clear that, unless both parties consent, the action
cannot be maintained in the Eastern district for the reason that the
plaintiff is an alien and the defendant is a Maine corporation.

[2] The defendant appeared specially for the sole purpose of mov-
ing to dismiss. The statement in the notice of appearance that the
defendant appears “specially for the purpose of moving to dismiss the
summons and complaint” prevents it from being considered as a gen-
eral appearance. In Harkness v. Hyde, 98 U. S. 476, 25 L. Ed. 237,
the court says:

“It is only where he (the defendant) pleads to the merits in the first in-
stance, without insisting upon the illegality, that the objection is deemed to -
be waived.” .

See also Shaw v. Spencer, 100 Mass. 382, 97 Am. Dec. 107, 1 Am.
Rep. 115, and Waters v. Central Trust Co., 126 Fed. 469, 62 C. C.
A. 45, ’

[3] The defendant asserted this position at the earliest moment by
moving to dismiss and appearing for that purpose only. The applica-
tion for an order extending the time to plead generally in case it should
be held that the suit was properly brought in the Eastern district, can-
not be regarded as a waiver of the position taken in the motion to dis-
miss. It was only a wise precaution to enable the defendant to defend
on the merits if the jurisdiction in the Eastern district should be up-
held. The judge simply said, in effect, that if he found that the action
was properly brought in the Eastern district he would permit the de-
fendant to answer and defend on the merits. To assert that the de-
fendant was compelled to accept a situation which might result in a de-
fault being taken against him while the court was considering its rights
is both illogical and unfair.

[4,5] The defendant being a Maine corporation must be regarded
as a citizen of Maine and the venue must be laid there unless it consents
to be sued elsewhere. It has not so consented. The original complaint
contained no averment either that the plaintiff was a citizen or an alien. .
The averment, “that the plaintiff is a citizen of the state of New York
by his domicile and residence and is a resident of the Eastern district of
New York,” is meaningless. Citizenship can be acquired only by
birth or naturalization. The amendment permitted by the court allow-
ing the plaintiff to allege that he was an alien did not operate as a
waiver of the defendant’s rights.

The orders of the District Court are affirmed.
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TAYLOR et al. v. KIMMERLE.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. May 2, 1916.)
No. 2738.

1. COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT &=19(2)—SETTING ASIDE OF COMPROMISE—
RIGHT TO SET ASIDE.

Bondholders, familiar with the situation and desirous of effecting a
quick reorganization, acquired from a bankrupt estate a vendor’s lien, as
well as bonds. Other persons interested refused to consent to a dismnissal
of the litigation, and the vendor’s lien, as well as the bonds acquired, were
denied priority. Held thag, as the purchase was a compromise settlement
and an adjustment of disputed claims, made in good faith and without
fraud, the purchasing bondholders, who were familiar with the situation,
are not entitled to have the order of purchase set aside and a return of
the purchase price on the ground of failure of consideration.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Compromise and Settlement, Cent. Dig.

. §8 71-73; Dec. Dig. ¢=19(2).]
2, BANKRUPTCY &260—SALES—WARRANTIES.

A court, which approved a trustee’s report and authorized him to sell
bonds and a vendor’s lien, did not thereby so warrant the priority of such
claims over other claims that it was judicial bad faith for the same
court to thereafter hold other claims prior to the claims sold. :

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptey, Cent. Dig. § 360; Dec.
Dig. &=260.]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the West-
ern District of Michigan; Clarence- W. Sessions, Judge.

Petition by William L. Taylor and another against Charles H. Kim-
merle, trustee in bankruptcy, for an order requiring Kimmerle to re-
pay the sum they had paid in purchasing assets of the bankrupt estate.
From an order dismissing the petition, petitioners appeal. Affirmed.

H. F. Williams, of Chicago, Ill, for appellants.
W. F. McKnight, of Grand Rapids, Mich., for appellee.

Before KNAPPEN and DENISON, Circuit Judges, and SAN-
FORD, District Judge. ,

DE_NISON; Circuit Judge. The question involved on this appeal
is thus most concisely stated by appellant’s counsel:

“Charles H. Kimmerle, as trustee in bankruptey, sold to William L. Taylor
and Frank M. Millikan a vendor’s lien for something over $8,000, face value,
and $36,000 face value, of bonds, for $6,500 in cash, and the sale was approved
by the District Court. Taylor and Millikan did not buy for speculgtive pur-
poses and were admittedly acting in the best of good faith. The same court
shortly thereafter, in another proceeding concurrently pending, held that the
vendor’s lien and the bonds were void. Thereupon, and before Kimmerle had
distributed the $6.500, Taylor and Millikan filed their petition in the bank-
ruptey cause, setting up, in substance, the fact that the vendor’s lien and the
bonds were void, and praying for an order on’ Kimmerle to repay to them
$6,500, which they had previously paid to him, on the ground that they had
never received any consideration for it. The court, on the admitted facts,
denied the right of Taylor and Millikan to have their money repaid to them,
and dismissed their petition. The matter now comes to this court on the
appeal of Taylor and Millikan.”

&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes



TAYLOR V. KIMMERLE 135

[1] This statement may be adopted, save as to the phrase “held
void.” The vendor’s lien was denied priority over the mortgage in
foreclosure, and the bonds in question were held not to have been so
issued to Kimmerle as to carry a right to share in the foreclosure pro-
ceeds. Kimmerle was insisting in the foreclosure suit that these
claims of his were rightful. Taylor and Millikan, as large bondhold-
ers, were adversely interested. They agreed to buy out Kimmerle's
interests and claims for $6,500, expecting thereby to accomplish an
adjustment of all disputes and a quick reorganization of the corpora-
tion in receivership under mortgage foreclosure. This expectation
failed only because outside bondholders disapproved and compelled
the litigation to go on to an adjudication.

We are satisfied that this judgment must be affirmed on the ground
that the purchase was a compromise settlement and adjustment of dis-
puted claims and was made in good faith and without fraud. The
fact that it involved an assignment, instead of a surrender, of claims
in litigation is of no importance. Taylor and Millikan fully understood
the situation; they may have been mistaken about the legal questions
involved, but it is not likely that they regarded these questions as im-
portant; they wanted to get the litigation out of the way; and the
fact that there is a later judicial determination against the validity ot
value of the rights involved cannot justify rescinding a settlement so
made. We had occasion to dispose of a case upon this principle very
recently (American Co. v. Waltermire, 231 Fed. 412, — C. C. A.
—), and we thought the principle too familiar to require citation of
authorities; but for illustrative cases, see Bofinger v. Tuyes, 120 U.
S. 198, 7 Sup. Ct. 529, 30 L. Ed. 649, in which it appeared that parties
had made a compromise settlement under the supposition that it
would terminate litigation, but other parties had unexpectedly taken
an appeal, and in which it was held that the settlement would not
, thereby fail; and see, also, Union Bank v. Geary, 5 Pet. 99, 114 (8

L. Ed. 60), in which it was said:

“So that this question, at the time the contract was entered into, was con-
sidered by the bank at least doubtful. And to permit a subsequent judicial
decision on this point in their favor, as baving retrospective effect, so as to

annul a settlement or agreement made by them under a different state of
things, would be sanctioning a most mischievous principle.”

[2] We are unable to approve appellant’s theory that the court
which approved the trustee’s report and authorized him to make the
sale thereby so warranted the legal priority of the claims sold over cer-
tain adverse claims that it was judicial bad faith for the same court
afterwards in another case to decide these questions against the inter-
ests of Taylor and Millikan.

The order dismissing their petition is affirmed.
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OWEN v. CLIFTON et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. April 6 1916. Rehearing Denied
May 20, 1916.)
No. 2882.

CORPORATIONS &==560(6)—RECEIVERS—ADMINISTRATION OF ESTATE—SUIT TO
SET, ASIDE FRAUDULENT JUDGMENT.

A’ receiver for a corporation may maintain a bill in the court of his
appointment, and which is administering the estate, to prevent the en-
forcement, to the injury of that estate, of a fraudulent judgment recov-
ered against the corporation, and affirmed on an appeal, in which the
corporation gave a supersedeas bond, although no claim against the
receivership estate has yet been filed.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 2262; Dec.’
Dig. ¢&=560(6).]

Maxey, District Judge, dissenting.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of Mississippi; Henry C. Niles, Judge.

Suit in equity by W. F. Owen, receiver 6f New Orleans, Mobile &
Chicago Railroad Company, against J. F. Clifton and others. Decree
for defendants, and complainant appeals. Reversed.

J. N. Flowers and Ellis B. Cooper, both of Jackson, Miss. (Flowers,
Brown, Chambers & Cooper, of Jackson, Miss., and J. C. Rich, of
Mobile, Ala., on the brief), for appellant.

J. W. Cassedy, of Brookhaven, Miss.,, and W. J. Pack, of Laurel,
Miss. (Jeff. Collins, of Laurel, Miss., on’the brief), for appellees.

Before PARDEE and WALKER, Circuit Judges;, and MAXEY,
District Judge. . .

WALKER, Circuit Judge. The bill in this case was filed by the .
appellant, W. F. Owen, suing as the receiver of the property of the
New Orleans, Mobile & Chicago Railroad Company, lagainst J. S.
Clifton and his two attorneys in a suit for personal injuries brought in
a state court in Mississippt by Clifton against said company before the
property of that company was placed in the hands of the receiver,
in which suit a judgment was rendered against the railroad company.
The bill as it was amended contained averments to the effect that the
claim asserted in that suit was one wholly unfounded upon facts, and
was the result of a corrupt conspiracy between Clifton and two other
named persons to fabricate that claim and to ‘support it by the per-
jured testimony of Clifton and his two co-conspirators, and that this
conspiracy, without any fault or lack of due diligence on the part of
the defendant in the suit brought by Clifton, has been so far success-
fully carried out that a judgment in favor of Clifton has been rendered
against the railroad company, which, on an appeal by that company,
which gave a supersedeas bond, was affirmed by the Supreme Court of
Mississippi after the receiver of the property of that company was
appointed. The bill prayed that the judgment so obtained be canceled
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and set aside, or that the enforcement of it be perpetually enjoined, or
for such other, further, special, or general relief as the equities of
the case require. By the decree, which is appealed from, the bill as it
was amended was adjudged to be insufficient in law upon its face to
warrant the relief prayed for, and was dismissed.

The receiver was not a party to the suit in which the impeached
judgment was rendered. He is concerned with that judgment only
in so far as it may give rise to a claim against the estate which is the
subject of the receivership. The averments of the bill make it ap-
parent that the rendition of the judgment will lead to the presentation,
either by the plaintiff in the judgment or by the surety on the super-
sedeas bond, if payment of the judgment by him shall be coerced, of
a claim against the estate which the court is administering in the suit
in which the receiver was-appointed. That court, by its receiver, has
possession of all the property of the defendant in the judgment in
question, and that property is subject to administration by that court
alone. In view of that fact, although when the bill was filed the claim
represented by the judgment had not been formally presented to the
court of equity which was administering the estate of the defendant
in the judgment, that court, looking at the substance of the transac-
tion, so far as the estate in its charge was subject to be affected by it,
would be justified in treating the recovery of the judgment and any-
thing done by the plaintiff therein to enforce it as steps in the prose-
cution of the claim, to the end of making it a charge upon the estate -
which the court was administering. The receiver was within his right
and duty in defending the estate in his possession against a claim
which was antagonistic to the rights or interests of the parties to the
suit in which he was appointed. Bosworth v. St. Louis Terminal Rail--
road Association, 174 U. S. 182, 19 Sup. Ct. 625, 43 L. Ed. 941. One
who is shown to have fraudulently procured a judgment in his favor
cannot expect to have the aid of a court of equity to carry it into
execution. In so far as the execution of the judgment is dependent
upon property in the equity court’s charge being subjected to the sat-
isfaction of it, that court may inquire into the conduct of the plain-
tiff in procuring it. Lawrence Mfg. Co. v. Janesville Mills, 138 U. S.
552, 11 Sup. Ct. 402, 34 L. Ed. 1005; Gay v. Parpart, 106 U. S. 679,
1 Sup. Ct. 456, 27 1. Ed. 256; Lewers & Cooke, Limited, v. Atcherly,
222 U. 8. 285, 32 Sup. Ct. 94, 56 L. Ed. 202,

. If Clifton, the plaintiff, in the alleged fraudulently procured judg-
ment, is permitted to enforce it against the surety on the supersedeas
bond, he would reap the fruits of his fraudulent transaction and at
the same time leave the claim which the judgment in his favor created
to be asserted against the estate of the defendant in the judgment by
one who was not a party to the fraud. The action of the receiver in
submitting by his bill for the scrutiny of the court the alleged fraud-
ulent transaction at the stage it had reached when the bill was filed was
not premature, as the result was to enable the court to deal with the
claim, obviously being prosecuted to the end of making it a charge
upon the property which the court was administering, and, if itis found
to have such a fraudulent origin that the claimant could not have the
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aid of the court for its enforcement, to thwart an attempt by him to
do indirectly, through the instrumentality of an application which an
innocent third party might be practically coerced into making to save
himself, what he could not do directly.

The conclusion is that the averments of the bill disclose a fraudulent
transaction having for one of its objects the creation of an unconscion-
able claim against an estate which the court is administering, and that
the court should inquire into that transaction, and, if it is found to be
such a one as is alleged, should prevent its consummation, in so far as
such consummation would be to the injury of the estate in the court’s
custody.

It follows that the decree dismissing the bill was erroneous, and
should be reversed; and it is so ordered. :

MAXEY, District Judge, dissents.

PURITAN CORDAGE MILLS v. SAMPSON CORDAGE WORKS.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. April 14, 1916.)
No. 2796.

1. APPEAL AND ERROR &=339(2)—TIME FOR APPEAL—INTERLOCUTORY DECREE.
A decree adjudging unfair competition, awarding an injunction, direct-
ing that defendant deliver up for destruction any imitative articles which
he may have on hand, and ordering a reference for accounting of profits
and damages, is interlocutory, not final, and an appeal not taken there-
from till more than 30 days after it was entered must be dismissed.
[Ed. Note.—-For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent, Dig. § 1884;
Dec. Dig. ¢&=2339(2).]

2. APPEAL AND ERROR &=357(1)—APPEALABLE DECREE—BURDEN OF PROOF.

If the direction for destruction of imitative articles renders the decree
final as to such articles, the burden is on appellant to show that there
were such articles. . )

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. § 1928;
Dec. Dig. ¢&»357(1).]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the West-
ern District of Kentucky; Walter Evans, Judge.

Suit by the Sampson Cordage Works against the Puritan Cordage
Mills. Decree for complainant, and defendant appeals. On motion to
dismiss, because not taken within 30 days. Dismissed. -

Helm & Helm, of Louisville, Ky., for appellant.

McDermott & Ray, of Louisville, Ky., Coale & Hayes, of Boston,
Mass., and Joseph Wilby, of Cincinnati, Ohio, for appellee.

Before KNAPPEN and DENISON, Circuit Judges.

PER CURIAM. [1,2] The decree adjudged unfair competition,
awarded injunction, directed that defendant “now deliver up” for
destruction any of the imitative articles “which it may have on hand,”
and ordered a reference for an accounting of profits and damages.

&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes



UNITED STATES V. WHITED & WHELESS 139

<

This decree must be deemed interlocutory, upon the authority of Maas
v. Lonstorf (C. C. A. 6th Cir.) 166 Fed. 41,91 C. C. A. 627. The di-
rection for destruction is only for incidental relief, and does not, be-
yond recall, dispose of the main controversy, as in Thomson v. Degm,
74 U. S. (7 Wall.) 342, 19 L. Ed. 94; if this direction could distinguish
from Maas v. Lonstorf, the burden would be on appellant to show
that there were such articles on which the decree would thus take pres-
ent final effect, and this burden is not met; and the statute permitting
appeals from interlocutory orders has, as to this class of cases, re-
moved the hardship which was the basis of the exception to the gen-
eral rule that a decree is not final and appealable if a judicial accounting
remains to be taken and reviewed. .

Motion granted. The clerk will deliver to appellant, for use in a
future appeal, all except five copies of the printed record.

UNITED STATES v. WHITED & WHELESS, Limited, et al.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. April 15, 1916.)
No. 2796.

PuBLIC LANDS &>123—DIsPOSAL BY UNITED STATES—LIMITATION OF ACTIONS.
Act March 3, 1891, c. 561, § 8, 26 Stat. 1099 (Comp. St. 1913, § 5114), pro-
viding that suits to vacate and annul patents theretofore issued shall only
be brought within five years from the passage of the act, and that suits
to annul or vacate patents thereafter issued shall only be brought within
six years after the issuance of the patent, gives to the patent, after the
expiration of the term, the same effect against the United States that it
would have had if it had been valid when issued, and therefore bars an
action by the United States to recover from the purchasers of the patentee

the value of lands alleged to have been fraudulently patented.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, Dec. Dig. €=123.]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Western
District of Louisiana; Aleck Boarman, Judge. )
Action by the United States against Whited & Wheless, Limited, and
others, to recover the value of lands alleged to have been fraudulently
patented. Judgment for the defendants on exceptions to the peti-

tion, and the United States brings error. Affirmed.

George Whitfield Jack, U. S. Atty., and Robert A. Hunter, Asst.
U. S. Atty., both of Shreveport, La., for plaintiff in error.

T. Alexander and J. D. Wilkinson, both of Shreveport, La., for
defendants in error. ’

Before PARDEE and WALKER, Circuit Judges, and MAXEY,
District Judge.

PER CURIAM. This is a suit to recover from the purchasers of
the patentee the value of lands alleged to have been fraudulently
patented. The defendants in error excepted to the petition on two
grounds: (1) That the petition set forth no cause of action or right to
recover for the matters and things set forth; and (2) that, even if
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the petition did set forth a cause of action, the same was barred and
" prescribed by the prescription of six years. These exceptions were
sustained in the lowér court and judgment rendered accordingly.

The error alleged in this writ is that the court erred in sustaining
the exceptions. The act of March 3, 1891 (26 Stat. 1095, ¢, 561), pro-
vides among other things, that:

‘“Suits by the United States to vacate and annul any patent heretofore issued
shall only be brought within five years from the passage of this act; and suits
to vacate and annul patents hereafter issued shall only be brought within six
years after the date of the issuance of such patents.” 26 Stat. 1099, § 8.

The patent involved in this case was issued the 12th day of Decem-
ber, 1898; this suit was brought December 29, 1914, We are of
opinion this statute must be taken to mean that the patent is to be held
good and is to have the same effect against the United States that it
would have had if it had been valid in the first place. United States
v. Chandler, 209 U. S. 447, 28 Sup. Ct. 579, 52 L. Ed. 881; United
States v. Winona & St. Peters R. R. Co., 165 U. S. 467, 17 Sup. Ct.
368, 41 L. Ed. 789. See United States v. Exploration Co. (C. C.) 190
Fed. 405; United States v. Smith (C. C.) 181 Fed. 545; Kansas City
Lumber Co. v. Moores, 212 Fed. 153, 129 C. C. A. 1. If the patent
by the lapse of six years is to have the same effect against the United
States that it would have had if it had been valid in the first place, then
the situation is just about the same as if there had been no fraud
practiced upon the government, and as if the patent had been properly,
legally, and fairly issued.

Judgment affirmed.

KNABE BROS. CO. v. AMERICAN PIANO CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. April 14, 1916.)
Nos. 2673, 2674.

TBADE MARKS AND TRADE-NAMES €=73(1)—INFRINGEMENT—UNFAIR COMPETI-
TION.
The form of notlces required to be affixed by defendant to its pianos to
distinguish them from those of complainant, which were older in the mar-
Kket, where both bore the name “Knabe’’ considered.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Trade-Marks and Trade-Names, Cent.
Dig. § 84; Dec. Dig.-&=73(1).]

On petition to modify opinion. Modified and affirmed.
For former opinion, see 229 Fed. 23, — C. C. A, —.

Before KNAPPEN and DENISON, Circuit Judges, and CLARKE,
District Judge.

PER CURIAM. Our opinion, filed February 11th last, provided
for hearing counsel upon the precise language of the cheek-block
notice upon appellant’s piano. Each party has presented suggestions
on that subject. Certain modifications of the opinion are also asked.
We state our conclusions upon the various subjegfs:
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(a) We think the form of the cheek-block notice, suggested in our
opinion, should be used without modification. This notice may con-
tain the guaranty and statement of inspection as in appellant’s orig-
inal cheek-block notice. It should be in plain type, substantially of the
kind used in the printed slips presented by appellee, should be print-
ed on paper securely glued to the cheek-block and well covered by
transparent varnish. The cheek block should be secured in place by
the use both of glue and a screw. :

(b) The fall-board inscription should be in the words “Made by the
Knabe Bros. Co., Cincinnati, O.,” arranged in three lines, the upper
containing the words “Made by,” the lowest the words “Cincinnati,
0.,” and the words “The Knabe Bros. Co.” between the first and
the third lines. The words last named should be no more prominent
than in form 1 of appellant’s proposed fall-board designation, Exhibit
A, and the other words should be as prominent as in that suggested
form. We see no valid objection to the use of script in the name of
appellant company with the lower arm of the letter “K” underlining
the words “Knabe Bros.,” as in Exhibit A mentioned.

(c) We adhere to the form of notice required by our opinion “to
be conspicuously inserted in catalogues and advertisements, and to be
. framed and kept displayed upon defendant’s pianos in all salesrooms
in which they are offered for sale.” We see no occasion for a warn-
ing notice upon concert programs in which merely the name of the
piano is given, with nothing referring to the sellers, manufacturers
or place of sale. In such case, appellee would not be injured by pos-
sible confusion but would quite as likely be benefited thereby. No
form of appropriate and effective short notice for short advertise-
ments has been presented; no such appropriate and effective form
occurs to us, and we must, therefore, leave our opinion as it stands
upon the subject of warning notice in advertisements. Manifestly,
an effective warning notice upon ordinary street signs, illuminated or
otherwise, is impracticable; appellant, however, should not be allowed
to use such signs without such warning notice.

(d) Appellant has, in this court, prevailed to a substantial extent
upon the merits, and should, therefore, recover full costs of this court,
as announced in our opinion. The fact, as alleged, that appellant did
not actually use the cheek-block notice before appellee’s bill was filed
is immaterial either to the opinion or to the subject of costs.

THE PORT JOHNSON TOWING CO. NO. 7.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. March 14, 1916)
. Nos. 166, 167.

COLLISION €&=82(2)—CoLLisioN WiITH ToW—NEGLIGENT NAVIGATION IN Foa.
A tug navigating in a fog without a tow, at a speed of about 4 miles
and which, knowing that there was a tow ahead and hearing the whistle
of the towing tug, proceeded without change of course or speed until she
came into collision with the tow, held solely in fault.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Collision, Cent. Dig. §§ 170, 172-174;
Dec. Dig. &=82(2).]1

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Appeals from the District Court of the United States for the East-
ern District of New York.

Suits in admiralty for collision by Edward J. Phalen and by A. J.
& J. J. McCullom against the steam tug Port Johnson Towing Com-
pany No. 7; Port Johnson Towing Company, claimant. Decrees for
libelants, and claimant appeals. Affirmed.

For opinion below, see 229 Fed. 267.

Park & Mattison, of New York City (Samuel Park, of New York
City, of counsel), for appellant. .

Foley & Martin, of New York City (William J. Martin and George
V. A. McCloskey, both of New York City, of counsel), for appellees.

Before COXE, WARD, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

COXE, Circuit Judge. These appeals are from decrees entered by
Judge Chatfield against the tug No. 7 running without a tow, and in
favor of the barges McAllister and Phalen, for damages occasioned
by a collision which occurred in a fog, just as the tow had come
through the Buttermilk Channel, northwest of Governor’s Island, De-
cember 2, 1914. The barges were part of a fleet of twelve barges
which were being towed by the tug Nellie Tracy. The barges Mc-
Allister and Phalen were in the first tier of the tow. The collision
occurred about 5:30 p. m.

There is some dispute over the density of the fog, but we do not
think that it is very material how dense the fog was, for if it were a
light fog the master of the tug No. 7 could have seen the tow and, as
the tug was not encumbered in any way, should have avoided the
string of boats. If, on the contrary, the fog were so dense that he
could not see at all, he should have stopped or proceeded at such
moderate speed that he could have avoided a collision. He was going
about four miles an hour. :

We have, then, a case where a tug navigating in a fog, and know-
ing that there is a tug and tow ahead, proceeds, without changing
course or speed, until she is right on top of the tow. The Tracy was
proceeding at moderate speed—not over 214 miles an hour—and blew
her whistle, which was heard on the No. 7. It seems to us that a clear
case of negligence on the part of the No. 7 is established. In the
Chicago and the City of Augusta, 125 Fed. 712, at page 715, 60 C. C.
A. 480, at page 483, we said:

“This court has repeatedly held, following the Supreme Court, that a vessel
which is primarily in fault for a collision cannot shift its consequences in
part upon the other vessel without clear proof of the contributing negligence
or fault of the latter. Her own negligence sufficiently accounts for the dis-
aster.”

The decrees of the District Court are afirmed with costs.
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YEE SUEY v. BERKSHIRE, Supervising Inspector.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. March 30, 1916.)
No. 2752,

ALIENS ¢&=32(9, 10)—DEPORTATION OF CHINESE—PLACE OF DEPORTATION.
An order for deportation of an alien to China is not warranted, where
the record does not show that he came from China, but that he entered
the United States from an adjacent country; but in such case the order
may be amended.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Aliens, Cent. Dig. §§ 92, 94; Dec. Dig.
&=32(9, 10).]

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the West-
ern District of Texas; William B. Sheppard, Judge.

Suit by Yee Suey against F. W. Berkshire, Supervising Inspector.
From the decree for deportation, Yee Suey appeals. Modified and af-
firmed.

U. S. Goen, of El Paso, Tex., for appellant.
R. E. Crawford, Asst. U. S. Atty., of El Paso, Tex., for appellee.

Before PARDEE and WALKER, Circuit Judges, and GRUBB, Dis-
trict Judge.

PER CURIAM. This cause was submitted on briefs, and in the
light of the transcript and briefs we find that, excepting the fifth as-
signment of error, no one of them is well taken. As to the fifth, we
notice counsel for the appeliee confess partial error as follows:

“Appellant’s fifth assignment of error raises the question as to whether or
not the Secretary of Labor under the law was warranted in ordering the ap-
pellant deperted to China, there being no evidence in the record that ap-
pellant ever was in China, the evidence showing that appellant came to the
United States from Mexico. The contention of appellant’s counsel is directly
sustained by tbe decision of the Second Circuit in the case of United States
ex rel. Moore v. Sisson, U. 8. Chinese Inspector, 206 Fed. 450, 124 C. C. A.
356. In our view of the law, appellant’s contention is correct. However, in
the case cited, the court declined to discharge the Chinamen because they
had been ordered deported to China when they should have been ordered
deported to Canada, but held that the warrant of deportation should be
amended, by providing that the aliens should be deported to Canada. We
think that the judgment in this case should conform to the judgment in
that, and your judgment should be that the order of the Secretary of Labor,
deporting appellant to China, should be amended so that he would be deported
to Mexico. R. E. Crawford,

s “Assistant United States Attorney,
“Attorney for Appellee.”

Giving effect to this, the warrant of deportation of the Acting Secre-
tary of Labor should be amended, by striking out the word “China,”
and inserting in its stead the word “Mexico,” and with such amend-
ment the decree appealed from is affirmed.

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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SOUTHERN RY. CO. v. WHITE.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Sixth Circuit. May 2, 1916.)
No. 2775.

APPEAL AND ERROR &=2981—MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL—REVIEW.
The granting of a new trial on the ground of excessiveness of dam-
ages is a matter of discretion with the trial court, not subject to review.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Appeal and Error, Cent. Dig. § 3876;
Dec. Dig. &=981.]

In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Eastern
District of Tennessee; Edward T. Sanford, Judge.

Action by John White against the Southern Railway Company.
There was a judgment for plaintiff, and defendant brings error. Af-
firmed.

L. D. Smith, of Knoxville, Tenn., for plaintiff in error.
S. E. Hodges and W. T. Kennerly, both of Knoxville, Tenn., for
defendant in error. '

Before KNAPPEN and DENISON, Circuit Judges, and EVANS,
District Judge.

EVANS, District Judge. John White, the plaintiff below, and whom
we shall call the plaintiff in this opinion, was an employé in interstate
commerce of the Southern Railway Company, which we shall call the
defendant.

While at his work in December, 1913, in one of defendant’s yards
known as the Coster Yards, located near Knoxville, Tenn., plaintiff
was struck and injured by one of defendant’s engines. To recover
$30,000 which he claimed as damages for the injury thus inflicted, he
brought this action in the court below under the Employers’ Liability
Act of April 22, 1908 (35 Stats. 65). He alleged in his declaration that
his injuries were caused by the negligence of the defendant. This alle-
gation was put in issue by a plea of not guilty. After the testimony had
all been heard by the jury, defendant moved the court to direct a verdict
in its favor. The motion was overruled by the court and defendant
excepted. The jury found for thé plaintiff, and assessed his damages
at $7,500. A motion for a new trial was made by the defendant. Aft-
er hearing his motion the court expressed the opinion that the verdict
was excessive to the extent of $2,500, and suggested that the plaintiff
enter a remittitur to that extent. The plaintiff in open court accepted
the suggestion and remitted $2,500 of the damages assessed by the jury
in their verdict. Thereupon the court overruled the motion for a new
trial and entered judgment for $5,000. ‘

The defendant brought the case to this court and in its assignment
of errors states two grounds upon which it asks a reversal of the
judgment. The first error assigned is that the trial court erred in
not directing a verdict in defendant’s favor, and in not granting its
motion for a new trial on that ground. The second error assigned is

EC=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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that the damages remained excessive after the entry of the remittitur.

1. The questions thus raised were ably argued but after. examina-
tion of the record we have reached the conclusion that there was no
error in refusing to direct a verdict for defendant, and therefore none
in overruling the motion for a new trial based on the same ground.
While upon the testimony the question of plaintiff’s right to recover
may be a close one, we think the ruling of this court in the very similar
case of Southern Railway Co. v. Smith, 205 Fed. 360, 123 C. C. A.
488, must control us, and we are content to rest our decision upon it
without repeating what was there said.

2. The second error assigned is that the court should have granted
a new trial upon the ground that the amount of the verdict was ex-
cessive, evincing caprice, passion or prejudice in plaintiff’s favor in
the minds of the jury, and that the amount remitted from the damages
assessed still left the amount excessive. Respecting this, we repeat
what was said by this court in Big Brushy Coal & Coke Co. v. Williams,
176 Fed. at page 533, 99 C. C. A. 102, and in Mason v. Smith, 191
Fed. at page 504, 112 C. C. A. 146, and by the Supreme Court in Holm-
gren v. United States, 217 U. S. 521, 30 Sup. Ct. 588, 54 L. Ed. 861,
19 Ann. Cas. 778, to the effect that this case falls within the settled
rule that granting or refusing a new trial is matter of discretion and
not subject to review.

The judgment of the District Court is affirmed.

BURKE ELECTRIC CO. v. INDEPENDENT PNEUMATIC TOOL CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. March 15, 1916.)
No. 117.

1, PATENTS ¢=76—VALIDITY—PRIOR SALE—“ON SALE.” :

A contract for sale of articles subsequently patented, subject to approval
by the buyer of a sample to be afterward submitted, is not a putting ‘“‘on
sale” of the invention, and does not invalidate the patent, where the sam-
ple is not furnished or approved until within two years prior to the filing
of the application.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Patents, Cent. Dig. §§ 92, 98; Dec. Dig.
&=T6.
For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, Second Series, On Sale.]

2. PATENTS &=101—VALIDITY—SPECIFICATIONS.
A patent for an electric motor held not invalidated by a too broad claim
in the specification of the current frequencies at which the motor will
operate, where the claim was made in good faith.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Patents, Cent. Dig. § 141; Dec. Dig. &=
101.]

R, PATENTS &=>328—VALIDITY AND INFRINGEMENT—UNIVERSAL MoOTOR.
The Burke patent, No. 1,053,940, for a universal motor, held not antici-
pated, to disclose invention, and to be valid as against the claims of prior
use and insufliciency of the specitication; also held infringed.

&=>For other cases 5e@ 5ame topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
232 F.—10
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Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of New York.

Bill by the Burke Electric Company against the Independent Pneu-
matic Tool Company. Decree for complainant, and defendant ap-
peals. Affirmed.

The following is the opinion of Learned Hand, District Judge, in the
court below : '

In this case there can be no question of the defendant’s infringement, and
therefore the case necessarily resolves itself into the issue of invalidity. The
patent is attacked upon three grounds: Prior sale; improper specifications;
lack of invention. In the last defense are included the so-called Birtman and
United States Standard Electric Company uses, which are not strictly such, but
are rather anticipations. There are also included the Latour patent, and
the claim that the patent is only for a new use of that patent.

The first defense is that the patentee had the patented article “on sale”
before September 9, 1907, the application being filed September 9, 1909. This
defense rests upon the documents extracted froin the plaintiff of his order to
Barker for the first 100 motors ever made. Burke's own testimony was ex-
tremely vague about the whole matter, but I cannot say that it was insincere;
on the contrary, he impressed me favorably. It appears that on June 27, 1907,
Barker had written to Burke, asking about getting some of these motors, and
the letter had been awaiting an answer for Burke’s return. On June 6, 1907,
the earliest fixed date, Burke wrote that the work upon the modified sample
had been pushed along, and that the first motor would be sent on the 15th for
Barker's approval. Burke in that letter “confirms our proposition” to fur-
nish 100 motors, subject to approval of the first sample, showing that at some
earlier time he had already made such a proposal. No sample motor had "
reached Barker by July 23d, and we have every reason to suppose that the
“modified sample,” when actually sent, was motor No. 1, shipped with anoth-
er on September 26, 1907. My reason for saying this is that the letter of July
6th does not, in my judgment, distinguish between “the modified sample” and
“the first of these light-weight machines for your approval”; on the contrary,
it is “this first sample” which is to be “subject to your approval.” On the en-
try of the order, No. 5114, appear the words “Date entered, August 29/07,”
which the defendant urges to have been necessarily the date of the closing of
the contract. It is, of course, possible that Barker had accepted-before that
date, but it is also possible that it was only a factory direction. If that di-
rection was in pursuance to Barker’s acceptance, it still does not follow that
he had passed upon the sample which he was to approve. We have, on the
contrary, reason to suppose that he had not got such a sample, since, as I
have said, the sample was apparently to be only the first of the series ordered,
and we know that the first of the series was delivered on Septembr 26, 1907.

[1]1 The situation for the defendant at best is then only this: Before Sep-
tember 9, 1907, Barker and Burke had concluded an agreement to buy and
sell 100 motors, subject to Barker’s approval of the kind to be delivered. This
I cannot think to have been putting the motor “on sale” under any of the.
cases. In Plimpton v. Winslow, 14 Fed. (C. C.) 919, -the skates on the price
list were already completed; in Dittgen v. Racine Paper Goods Co., 181 Fed.
(C. C.) 394, many pouches had been sold; in Covert v. Covert (C. C.) 106 Fed.
183, the jack was actually exposed for sale in a shop; in Burton v. Greenvilie
(C. C.) 3 Fed. 642, Bruce had actually sold lamp posts as early as November,
1874. The grain elevator in Barnett-McQueen Co., Limited, v. Canadian
Stewart Co., 13 Canadian Exch. 186, had been completed for over a year be-
fore the application. In National Cash Register Co. v. American Cash Regis-
ter Co., 178 Fed. 79, 101 C. C. A. 569, Juengst had actually delivered the ma-
chine to the Kruse Company more than two years before application filed.
None of these cases fit the case at bar. Judge Lowell's decision in McCreery
Eng. Co. v. Mass. Fan Co. (C. C.) 186 Fed. 846, held that taking an absolute
contract to erect a ventilating system was putting the invention “on sale”;
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but that was reversed (195 Fed. 498, 115 C. C. A. 408), and is not an author-
ity. Judge Denison went so far in the other direction, in Mershon v. Bay
City (C. C.) 189 Fed. 741, as to say that an actual sale was not enough, when
the buyer had the right to reject, provided that the period for rejection had
not passed before the two-year period came into effect. I do not think it nec-
essary to decide the question whether it puts the invention ‘“‘on sale,” if the
inventor makes his first contract to sell the article as fully described therein,
or by a sample submitted at the time, though the seller does not deliver tin
within two years. In the case at bar there was no contract of that character;
it was a sale by future sample, and, as every one knows, the sample is a part
of the contract; it measures the obligations of each, just as though its descrip-
tion were written in with the utmost particularity. The sample, so far as
we can see, was not submitted till after September 9, 1907; at least, there is
no proof that it was, and nobody was bound to furnish or accept anything
till then. Burke could have changed the motor as he liked, Barker need not
have accepted any motor at all. If Burke had found something quite different
from the invention actually patented, he was as free to submit that as what
he then had in mind. Nothing was sold or offered for sale till he was satis-
fied that he had got what would be successful. How, then, can it be said that
he had agreed to sell any of the intermediate forms until the sample was ac-
tually sent on? I think the defense fails.

[2] The attack upon the specifications is threefold: That it is deceptive, in
saying that the motor will run upon all frequencies of alternating current;
that it is too vague to be followed, having no definite quantitative directions,
and leaving the public to experiment; that the claims are in form functional,
and in effect only for a new use of Latour's motor. I think that the first
criticism is true, and that the language of the patent is broader than the
facts warrant as now disclosed. Thus (page 1, lines 68-70) the patentee says
that his results “are substantially independent of the number of cycles the
single phase alternation current.”” Again (page 3, lines 68-70): ‘“The speed
and the efficiency is also substantially independent of the frequency of the
alternating current.” These statements, together with others, less explicit,
indicating the same thing, are true only within certain limits. The com-
mercial motors actually made will run successfully on alternating current up
to 60 cycles, but not with satisfaction at 125 or 133. Indeed, it is the defend-
ant’s assertion that no practicable motor has yet been devised to run upon
such frequencies and also on direct current. Still I cannot think that this
has any effect upon the validity of the patent. There is no evidence that it
was deliberately introduced to deceive the public, and, so far as appears, it
was an honest mistake. It does not concern the construction of the motor, but
of the results to be obtained.

The next criticism is that the patent has not enough directions for practical
use, and the objection comes down to the proportion hetween rotor and stator
turns and to the angle of the brush position. In direct current motors the
stator field is always stronger than the rotor; in alternating current motors
the opposite is true. Burke wished to put his motor, which was to operate
upon both currents, among the alternating current class. Naturally, he did
not mean to limit himself to any exact proportion, but he did indicate a normal
proportion, two to one, which gave an index of what he understood. I think
that his reference was clear enough to an art which already knew weak stator
fields. His description of any element of his combination might be of such
latitude as the practice of the art admitted for that element, always assum-
ing that the new result to be obtained did not require more definite limitation.
If the defendant hoped to succeed with such a defense, it should have shown
that a successful universal motor depended upon a certain definite proportion
of turns. Were that so, then the description would be insufficient, but it has
not been shown to be so. So far as appears, the motor will work successfully
if the elements are combined as described, though in size and proportion they
stand anywhere within the limits which the art would recognize as included
in their mention by name. When that is so, it is enough only to mention them
by name. Particularly, and as regards the proportion of the stator to rotor
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turns, so far as appears the implied reference to the alternating current art
has not been shown to be inoperative.

As regards the brush position the defendant’s case is even weaker. The
exact angle of the brushes could not be predetermined, because it varies with
the general structure and relation of the parts. To give any angle would
have been a miscue; the angle must be found experimentally when the rest
of the motor is designed. That experiment is, however, not the kind which
requires any independent invention by one who would follow the patent, and
which thus leaves 'the specification imperfect. You need only plot the two
curves on the respective currents, and you will always find an area of substan-
tial coincidence, within which the brushes should be put. Westinghouse Elec-
tric Mfg. Co. v. Montgomery Electric Light Co., 153 Fed. 890, 82 C. C. A. 636.
It is as if a chemist were directed to add enough of an element to secure
precipitation. Such a recipe would be an absolutely accurate guide to the re-
sult though the quantity varied with temperature or atmospheric humidity.
‘What men need is a path to the goal; they will not be curious of the country
it traverses.

The last objection is that the claims are functional. I can really see noth-
ing in this exception that the second, third, and fifth claims conclude with the
phrase, “whereby approximately the same speed and torque are maintained
under either current,” or its equivalent. Nothing is gained or lost by these
words; if they are surplusage, they are at least harmless surplusage, adding
no element to the claim, which is just as good without as -with them. Finally,
the assertion that the patent is for a new use is surely untrue. It is one
question whether there is any invention over Latour, and another whether
the patent is for a new use of Latour. Assuming for the time being that La-
tour showed the brush pdsition, and that Burke’s invention was only a species
of the genus Latour, it was a definite enough species, and its differentia, wheth-
er good or not in point of invention, consist in the addition of specific new
structural elements. Every patent for an improvement forbids the world to
use that exact species of a genus which is otherwise free; that form becomes
monopolized even as against the very inventor of the genus. While it is true
that an inventor is entitled to all the uses of his invention, it is a mistake
to suppose that he is entitled to every structural form it may take, regardless
of any new invention necessarily imposed upon his own work to produce it. In-
deed, were there no structural differentia to serve in this case, it might per-
haps be urged that the particular brush position obtained by Burke’'s method
could be said to be a species of Latour which he might not use. While he is
entitled to all brush positions of his patent, and while his brushes might by
accident be placed at the point predetermmed under Burke’s patent, at least
there could be a process patent in finding the position as Burke points out.
Whether there could be a structural patent merely for a given brush position
may be admitted to be doubtful, but the questlon is nowhere presented by any
of the claims and is moot.

[3] There finally remains the question of invention, upon which concededly
the best reference is Latour, which is, therefore, the only one that need be
considered. Before taking up Latour, it will be well to consider what was
Burke’s real invention. In direct current motors the problem of self-induc-
tion is substantially nonexistent. That phenomenon appears, it is true, when-
ever an electric circuit becomes charged with a current of electricity, but it
exists only while the potential rises from zero to its maximum or when it falls
again to zero. The period when this occurs with a direct current is so small
that it can be disregarded for all practical purposes, for self-induction
is a function of the change in potential, and there is no such change in a di-
rect current. This is not wholly a correct statement in a series motor of the
type here in question. The rotor is made up of a number of coils of wire, each
surrounding a core of iron and terminating at adjacent bars of the commuta-
tor. The current is fed to these coils through brushes touching the commuta-
tor bars, and the coils are so wound that, if the current come to one end of one
coil, one-Half of it will pass, not only through that coil, but through one-halt
the whole number of coils on the rotor, and will be taken off at the opposite
brusi. The other half of the coils will take the other half of the current from
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the brush in exactly the same way; thus the rotor is made into & magnet
with a pole at each brush, the current being split in half and going in opposite
directions around the two sides of the rotor.

Since, however, the brush is rigid and the rotor moves, each coil must at
some time pass under the brush, and from being a coil which takes current
around one side of the rotor must become one of those which takes it around
the other. This involves a change of direction of the current in that coil, and
a subsidence of the potential from its maximum to zero and from zero to its
maximum again, though of opposite sign. In this process is precisely illus-
trated in small proportion the phenomenon of self-induction which the whole
system illustrates when excited by an alternating current. Unless the brush
is so narrow as not to span the interval between two bars, there must there-
fore be a moment when one of the coils is short-circuited, else the current
in the whole rotor would be broken. As the current dies out in this short-cir-
cuited coil, there is established a counter pressure of self-induction, which
causes a spark at the time the brush leaves one commutator bar. Thus, even
in a direct current commutator motor, we have the problem of sparking, a
phenomenon, it is true, of self-induction, but nevertheless quite different in
scale from the phenomenon of the general self-induction of the whole system
when excited by an alternating current.

Sparking, if uncorrected, causes serious damage to the motor; hence it
had long been customary to correct it in direct current motors by a displace-
ment of the brushes. Were it not for this phenomenon, the most efficient work
would be done by a direct current motor, if the brushes were placed at right
angles with the stator flux. This Is true, because at that point the
two fields are normal to each other, and the mechanical advantage of the mag-
netic attraction and repulsion of the poles is at a maximum. This is, more-
over, called the neutral position of the brushes, since the brushes are in the
neutral plane of the stator flux. Generally in such motors the core of the sta-
tor does not completely surround the rotor and the poles are not gradually
worked up to a point of bighest magnetic activity; the coils come and go
abruptly into and out of the stator flux of uniform strength, itself much
stronger than the rotor flux. Now, the custom was to bring the brushes within
the edge of this strong rotor flux, and by so doing to counteract and destroy
the self-induction of the short-circuited coil, produced in the way T have de-
scribed. This displacement of the brushes was therefore known in the direct
current motor art, but it was solely to correct sparking, and it always in-
volved only slight angles of displacement, since the stator fluxes were always
strong.

Furthermore, it was also known that a continued displacement of. the brush-
es affected the speed of the rotor, not, as one might expect, to increase it, but
the reverse. This increase was, however, at the expense of the total efficiency
of the motor, since, the angle of the two fluxes being changed, they operate
at less mechanical advantage; part of the stator flux, indeed, being neutraliz-
ed in its action by another part, as may be seen by plotting them out in dia-
gram. Hence it was at a loss of energy that the added speed was acquired.

Such was the knowledge respecting the direct current motor. The alternat-
ing current motor presented a different problem, because of the self-induction
of the whole system. When the alternations of current are as high as even
93 to the second, the self-induction arising in the system will make the actual
potential lag behind or out of phase with the impressed potential so much as
greatly to injure the efficiency of the motor; hence it became of cardinal
consequence to overcome the self-induction of the whole system. This had
nothing to do with sparking, which was a wholly independent phenomenon re-
quiring separate consideration. It was generally effected by using what are
called compensating coils, either in series or shunt, so arranged that, when
excited, they would create a flux, opposite in direction to the self-induced
flux of the system, and so allowing the potential of the system to operate
unimpeded.

Latour was the first, so far as appears in this record, to devise another
means by which a part of the stator coils themselves were set to oppose the’
self-induction of the rotor itself and to act as compensation. As I have al-
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ready noticed, any displacement of the brushes from an angle of 90° to the
stator flux will affect the mechanical operation of the motor. Parts of both
motor and stator will then produce torque in opposite directions; the effective
circumference of each for torque will be diminished by four times the angle
of displacement. This would he all lost. as it is in the case of direct current,
were it not for the fact that when the fluxes meet at an angle a certain com-
ponent of the stator flux will oppose the self-induced flux of the rotor, thus
allowing the flux itself to operate unimpeded. While, therefore, the proportion
of the two. fluxes which remain in operative mechanical position is less,
that part which is thrown out of operation does not remain indiffer-
ent to ‘the total effect, but contributes by neutralizing the self-induc-
tion of the rotor. There is an equation of gain and loss between these two
quantities which differs for every angle of the brushes. No one can say in
advance just where the resulting energy will be greatest.

This was Latour’s patent, but the detendant insists that his disclosure before
the International Electrical Congress showed a nearer approdch to Burke.
That was a short paper, quite unintelligible to a layman, dealing with alter- -
nating current machines having commutators. The sixth and last of these was
a single-phase series motor with “perfect” commutation, in which, as the title
implies, he seems to be concerned with the commutation only. His suggestion
is that the best commutation point for the brushes will be found to be'where
the resultant field of the two fluxes is normal to the line through the brushes.
If the self-induction of the whole system is low, then he thinks the power fac-
tor will be pretty high, which may mean—especially if we read the paper with
his patent in mind—that the stator coils, which act as compensation, will be
enough to counteract a good deal of the self-induction. The most that can
be gathered from this I believe is that if you get a theoretically good commu-
tation point, based upon the assumption that you operate by direct current,
you may use it as a commutation point for alternating current, and if you
have correctly bullt your system you will also have a good power factor. That
Latour supposed the same commutation point would serve for both currents
I agree, but he was not thinking about the way to produce power factor at all,
and the injection of that element as part of the disclosure seems to me gra-
tuitous. What he meant was that, if the general design was good, the point
where the line of the brushes was normal to the two fluxes would also be the
point of highest power factor on alternating current. That he did not mean
a motor like Burke’s is shown by the fact that he necessarily presupposed
a stronger stator than rotor flux, which is, indeed, a condition of operability
if the brushes are to be set normal to the resultant.

If we assume, as perhaps we should, that he had his patent also in mind,
and that he thought it insured a system of low induction, still in combination
they show nothing more than that with his St. Louis disclosure you could find
a perfect commutation, and with his patent you could get a pretty high power
factor. That that power factor insured a coincidence of speed is a gratmtous
assumption—first, because we cannot know that the power factor could in fact
be made to approach unity; second, because we do not know that power
factor alone determines speed. We do not know that Burke reached his re-
sult by an opposite path to Latour, even when all these assumptions are made.
He did not keep a strong stator flux, nor did he fix his brushes as Latour
recommends. He did so design a motor as to secure that coincidence, which
Latour does not even suggest, and, if he had suggested, did not achieve.

The French paper contributes nothing more, except the statement regarding
the relation of stator to rotor turns. Earlier in the same paper Latour has
used his old diagrams, which presuppose a stronger stator flux without which
the motor could not operate if the brushes were set normal to the resultant
-flux. I must confess that I have not been able to understand quite how Vree-
land supposed the situation as shown in Figure 8 of the St. Louis article to
be changed when the motor was in action, so that it might still remain true
of a weak stator field. However, he was right to seize upon the statement
. in the French paper to support his position, coupled as it was with exactly
the same figure as that of the St. Louis paper. Just what was the meaning of
the language I am afraid I cannot learn, but it seems to me to refer to thé
possibility of greatly increasing the rotor turns when the motor is to operate
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at high speeds. Such high speeds will be secured when, as in Latour’s motor,
the brushes are set where the full mechanical effect of the fluxes is not felt,
Latour had just been saying that at high speeds there was not time for the
establishment of induction in the short-circuited coils. I think he meant that
you could therefore afford to increase the rotor flux and still keep your com-
mutation good; but he does not say, and I do not know, why there should
be a positive advantage in doing this. In any case the reference seems to me
too obscure as a guide to the art, so far as I can accomplish the extremely
diflicult feat of putting myself in the position of one ordinarily skilled in the
art.

I can, therefore, regard Latour as doing no more than showing how part of
the stator coils could be used for compensation. He had no idea of a motor
which would operate upon either current at a brush position where the speed
would be the same for each. The defendant leaps this gap by saying that the
step was obvious. Its argument is as follows: Under direct current, for every
position of the brush in a given system, there is a characteristic speed, given
the voltage; this speed is dependent upon the amount of the field operativé
at that angle. If the motor be driven by alternating current, for any sup-
posed angle of the brush it would attain the same speed as under direct cur-
rent, but for the self-induction of the system. The less the self-induction at
a given angle, the nearer the two speeds will be at that angle; therefore it
requires no invention, nor anything but common sense, to see that, if the self-
induction can be neutralized at a given angle, the speeds will be the same.
Hence, as soon as Latour showed how the power factor could be raised by
brush shifting, he left nothing more for the art to do to get a universal motor.

Upon the assumption that the only element controlling speed was power
factor, there is some force in this argument so far as it concerns the single
element in the patent of securing the unity of speed. There are, however, a
good many reasons to suppose that power factor is not the only element con-
trolling speed. Burke is decided to the contrary; he frankly concedes that
he does not understand all that does control speed, and says that he worked
it out empirically. Vreeland was least satisfactory upon that branch of the
case, and I conclude that his opinion was based more upon a priori reasoning
‘than upon observation in a field with which he was confessedly not so familiar
as in other branches of the art. Whether there be any “transformer action”
which is indépendent of the self-induction of the system, whether the whole
thing is as simple as Vreeland thinks, must remain to me a doubtful question.
I must take it against the defendant.

Moreover there are some other considerations which militate against such an
easy explanation. In the first place, every one agrees that the power factor
never does reach unity; if so, the curves should never ineet, to say nothing of
crossing. Yet we find that they do meet and cross, and have areas where the
direct current speed is less than alternating. Something certainly has inter-
vened in such a case. Again, iIf the matter be so easy, why does the defend-
ant assert that no one has ever succeeded in solving the problem for high
frequency currents? Upon them there must be some point where the power
factor is highest and where the speeds coincide. Burke thinks he can build
such a motor, but the defendant does not.

Finally, though it be granted that power factor is all, how was it to be
known that it could be brought so near unity as to give a practical coincidence?
That certainly could not be ascertained a priori, nor did it arrive until
the general designing of the motor had been again and again modified,
if Burke is to be believed. No one has said that it will be bound to
happen in every kind of motor, no matter what its design, and it is an assump-
tion entirely unsupported by proof that the necessary designing was an obvious
thing, open to every skilled artisan. Again, the commutation position is not a
priori the same as the speed position, and how the two are to be made to coin-
cide after the speeds have coincided is not shown to be obvious. I shall take
Burke's explanation as he gives it: That he reached his result by more or
less chance experiment, trying out a number of possible alternatives, guided
partly by hypothesis, partly by past experiment, without any authoritative and
complete understanding of how he was to reach what he wanted.

But the defendant says that Ells had no trouble in making such a motor
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without knowing Burke’s brush position. It is true that Ellis so testified, but
it is also true that, before making the infringing motor, he had had submitted
to him the stator and rotor of Burke’s very motor itself, In spite of his pres-
ent insistence that it was left for only a short while with him, the slavish
imitation of every detail leaves no doubt that the short time was ample enough
to give Ells the key to the structure. It may well be that the brush position
Ells borrowed from Latour’s paper which he had heard: but it cannot be too
often repeated that the defendant’s insistence upon brush position as the sole
significance of this patent is quite mistaken. I can well believe that, upen
seeing the rotor and stator, it was obvious to any one skilled in the art that,
to obtain the necessary compensation upon alternating current, the brushes
must be shifted. I decline to believe that Ells, unassisted, learned that in
that machine there would necessarily be a single position of the same speed
upon either current; if he did, I believe it was after the event. ‘

The supposed prior uses of the Standard Electric Works and of Birtman
need not occupy much time. Beach clearly did not know anything about brush
position, and could not have told whether the hrushes were back or forward
of the neutral, because he did not know what the neutral was. His tests of
speed were only by ear, and amounted to nothing. Lum says that the stator
windings were substantially in excess of the rotor, and that the brushes were
in conventional position for a direct current series motor. He does not pre-
tend to have measured the speeds on each current, or even to know what they
actually were. Radtke’s tests are at least open to grave doubt; but, if they
were not, they would not prove that Beach had built a motor which would
run with equal speeds except either free or with a very small load. ‘When
the load became 10 or 15'grams, the divergence was very marked. It does -
not appear, so far as I have found, that these are overloads. The test for 5
grams is very doubtful, owing to Radtke’s change in his tables, upon the sup-
position that “he must have” used both kinds of current. Perhaps that is true,
but his testimony has small probative force.

It is clear enough that we know too little ahout Beach’s motor to regard it
as the least of an anticipation. On the contrary, we know it had none of the
features described in the claims—neither poles, nor brush position, nor neutral
teeth, nor relative windings, nor incommensurate relation. Why it should le
thought relevant, except for the unsupported claim that it was a universal
motor, I confess I cannot see.

Birtman’s motor has even less bearing on the case, if possible, and is put
forward with less confidence. There was no effort to show that the brush
position had been discovered, or that any of the other features were known
except the relative number of windings. To these English did testify, dut his
testimony is far from satisfying the rigorous tests applicable, and it is pretty
evident that his memory, unsupported by any document, was of the haziest
kind. Birtman’s testimony regarding the relation between the windings does
not seem intelligible to me in any way; I can hardly believe that he had any
recollection of the matter.

It is of small consequence whether Birtman's motor operated at the same
speeds on alternating and direct currents, though T do not think that there is
any valid testimony to that effect. The claims in suit are very narrow, and
if as good results can be obtained by using Birtman’s or Beach’s motor, they
are open to the defendant. The evidence of Durand and Drake satisfies me
that a substantial demand can and did exist, both here and in Europe, for a
universal motor, and that no one knew anything to fill it. Neither of these
supposed anticipations seemed to answer; but, if they do, they are still open.
It is not necessary to decide that this is a pioneer patent, or to trouble about
construction of the claims. The defendant must stand nakedly upon the prop-
osition that Burke's combination limited to the precise disclosure is a mere
bit of ordinary craftsmanship. That really seems to me too obviously unreal
a position to justify so long an opinion, had it not been for the elaborate at-
tack made upon it. If this combination, reached after a series of patient
and tentative experiments by an acknowledged expert of ability and ingenuity,
is a part of the common heritage of the ordinary routineer, I can only say that
I bave been wholly blind to the proof.

The usual decree will pass, with costs,
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John Robert Taylor, of New York City (Dyer & Taylor and J. E.
Bull, all of New York City) for appellant.

C. V. Edwards and Lawrence K. Sager, both of New York City
(Edwards, Sager, & Wooster, of New York City, of counsel), for
appellee.

Before LACOMBE, WARD, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

PER CURIAM. Decree affirmed on the opinion of Judge Learn-
ed Hand.

Judge LACOMBE heard the argument, participated in the con-
sultation, and concurred in the above.

SHERIDAN-CLAYTON PAPER CO. v. UNITED STATES ENVELOPE CO.
ST. JOSEPH PAPER CO. v. SAME.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Eighth Circuit. May 1, 1916))
Nos. 4364, 4365. )

1. PATENTS €&=256—SALE OF PATENTED ARTICLES—RESTRICTIONS.

A purchaser of a patented machine must have notice that he buys with
only a qualified right of use, having the right to assume, in the absence
of knowledge, that the seller passes an unconditional title to the machine,
with no limitations upon the use, and when a machine is sold without re-
strictions, though contrary to the seller’s direction, the purchaser takes
it free from restrictions.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Patents, Dec. Dig. €&=256.}

2. PATENTs &=301(1)—INJUNCTION—SUBJECTS OF RELIEF,

Many of complainant’s devices for holding paper were sold free from
patent restrictions, or were freed from restrictions because the purchasers
were not notified. Defendant sold paper for use in such fixtures, and
only in three instances was there an infringement of complainant’s patent
rights; it appearing that defendants made an effort not to infringe. Hcld
that, where one of the sales which infringed was induced by complainant’s
own officers, defendants should not be enjoined; the injurious effect of
the sales having long since passed, and the torts not being continuing.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Patents, Cent. Dig. §§ 489, 493; Dec.
Dig. &=301().] :

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the West-
ern District of Missouri; Arba S. Van Valkenburgh, Judge.

Suits by the United States Envelope Company against the Sheridan-
Clayton Paper Company and against the St. Joseph Paper Company.
From orders issuing injunctions against defendants, they appeal. Or-
der reversed.

Edwin J. Prindle, of New York City (Warren H. Small, of New
York City, and Graham & Silverman, of St. Joseph, Mo., on the
brief), for appellants. ’

Louis W. Southgate, of New York City (O. Ellery Edwards, Jr.,
of New York City, and George Y. Thorpe, of Kansas City, Mo., on
the brief), for appellee. :

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Before HOOK and CARLAND, Circuit Judges, and AMIDON,
District Judge.

HOQK, Circuit Judge. These are appeals by defendants from or-
ders of temporary injunction. The suits were brought by the United
States Envelope Company to enjoin contributory infringement of pat-
ents Nos. 819,488 and 819,682, issued May 1, 1906, for improvements
in toifet paper fixtures. The defendants are dealers in paper special-
ties. The contributory infringement claimed was in sales by defend-
ants of toilet paper to plaintiff’s licensees for use by the latfer on the
patented fixtures, contrary to license restrictions. See Henry v. Dick
Co., 224 U. 8. 1, 32 Sup. Ct. 364, 56 L. Ed. 645, Ann. Cas. 1913D,
880. There was no patent on the paper or its particular form or ar-
rangement.

[1,2] We have not found it necessary to consider the validity or
scope of the patents, nor whether there is such a privity between the
vendor and vendee of materials sold for use on a patented device
contrary to license restrictions as will estop the former from question-
ing the patent, nor whether the instrument relied on here as a license
is sufficient for plaintiff’s purpose, nor whether a patented device
which, as regards restrictions upon its use, has once passed beyond
the limits of the monopoly by an unconditional sale, can thereafter
be brought back by agreement between the patentee and purchaser.

- We think the evidence showed quite clearly that there were a large
number of toilet paper fixtures in use throughout the United States
and the market territory of defendants not subject to license restric-
tions on which their paper could be used without trespass on plain-
tiff’s rights. Some of these fixtures never were under the patents
mentioned, and many, though so covered, had been sold outright by
the plaintiff and its distributors, withotit reservation or restraint upon
their use. It is no answer to say the distributors acted contrary to
instructions. There can be no contributory infringement by sale of
materials to a purchaser who is free. It was said in Henry v. Dick
Co., supra: )

“To begin with, the purchaser {of a patented machine] must have notice
that he buys with only a qualified right of use. He has a right to assume,

in the absence of knowledge, that the seller passes an unconditional title to
the machine, with no limitations upon the use.”

The legend cast in the plaintiff’s metal fixtures contained the cus-
tomary patent marks, but unlike the mimeograph of the Dick Company
there was nothing otherwise to show a restriction or limitation upon
the freedom of use. The result was that large numbers of them which
were sold outright got into the hands of purchasers who were at lib-
erty to use any make or kind of paper upon them. This condition was
doubtless recognized by plaintiff in its attempt to regain control by
giving its license contracts a retroactive operation, so as to include
fixtures already in use. The unrestricted field open to all dealers in
toilet paper of the kind and form handled by defendants was broad
enough to repel any general inference of intent to infringe plaintiff’s
rights.
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Tt devolved upon the plaintiff to show specific wrongdoing of a
character to justify the remedy of injunction. In this respect we think
the plaintiff failed. Three instances only were shown in a long period
prior to the commencement of the suit, one of which occurred and
was known to plaintiff more than a year before. In two of them one
defendant participated, and in the third the other. One of the sales
of paper was inspired by a representative of the plaintiff, and all were
either inadvertent or by employés contrary to instructions. The in-
jurious effect of the three sales was soon at an end. There was no
continuing tort in the proper sense, nor do the sales shown disclose, in
our opinion, a course of business persisted in or threatened. In every
suit in equity the fair rights of the defendant should be considered
with those of the complaining party. From what appears in the
present record we are impressed with the good faith of the defend-
ants and their efforts to avoid invading the plaintiff’s rights. Some
isolated cases of infringement would not unnaturally follow the con-
fusion in the market between restricted and unrestricted fixtures, for
which the plaintiff and its distributors or sales agents were largely
responsible, and where the evidence of the license restriction was not
upon the fixtures themselves, but rested in either word of mouth or
detached instruments of writing. The defendants owe good faith and
endeavor to avoid infringement, but they ought not to be excluded
from a lawful market, nor suffer unduly from the lax business methods
of the plaintiff.

The order of injunction is reversed.

F. E. FONSECA & CO. v. RUY SUAREZ & CO.
(Circuit Court of Appeals, Second Circuit. March 14, 1916.)
No. 235.

PATENTS ¢&==328—VALIDITY AND INFRINGEMENT—CIGAR WRAPPER.
The Fonseca patent, No. 655,549, for a wrapper for cigars, discloses
patentable invention, the device, while simple, being novel and of con-
siderable utility; also held infringed.

Appeal from the District Court of the United States for the South-
ern District of New York.

Suit in equity by F. E. Fonseca & Co. against Ruy Suarez & Co.
Decree for defendant, and complainant appeals. Reversed.

Philip C. Peck, of New York City (Thomas M. Rowlette, of New
York City, of counsel), for appellant.

Max D. Steuer, of New York City, for appellee.

Before COXE, WARD, and ROGERS, Circuit Judges.

COXE, Circuit Judge. The subject of the patent is a simple wrap-
per for a cigar which is sufficiently described in the first claim. This
claim is as follows:

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digesis & Indexes
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“A cigar package comprising a cigar and the containing protecting cover,
the said cover extending normally beyond the ends of the cigar and having
its extended ends twisted to form practically cords which are wound back
upon the cover and secured.”

The result is that the cigar is covered in a neat paper case upon
which any desired printing may be inscribed, such as the name of the
cigar and its maker. The twisted ends form cushions which protect
the cigar and the covering protects it when carried in the pocket or
cigar case of the smoker. The nearest approach to the patent is the
Whitney envelope which had a different object in view and has none
of the distinctive features of the Fonseca patent.

The patent is on the border line between invention and mechanical
skill, but we are inclined to think that we should resolve the doubt in
favor of the patent. We think it is in the same category as the metal-
lic castor patent which we recently upheld, which consisted in sub-
stituting a cup-shaped metal disk for the ordinary wheel castor. Barry
v. Harpoon Co., 209 Fed. 207, 126 C. C. A. 301. See, also, Mahony
v. Malcom, 143 Fed. 124, 74 C. C. A. 318; Williams v. String Wrap-
per Co., 86 Fed. 641, 30 C. C. A. 318; Gandy v. Belting Co., 143 U. S.
587, 12 Sup. Ct. 598, 36 L. Ed. 272.

The wrapper in question has many advantages which appeal to the
smoker. It keeps the cigar clean, it prevents it from being broken at
the ends if roughly handled and it enables the maker to advertise and
identify his cigars which partly by reason of his covers, we may as-
sume, have become popular with the public.

The decree is reversed with costs.

ANCHOR CAP & CLLOSURE CORP. v. PRITCHARD.
(District Court, S. D. New York. April 3, 1916.)

1. P&TENTS &=328—VALIDITY AND INFRINGEMENT—CLOSURE FOR BOTTLES AND
ARS.
The Hull patent, No. 779,751, for closure for bottles, jars, and other
receptacles, was not anticipated and is valid; also held infringed.
2. PATENTS €&=328—VALIDITY AND INFRINGEMENT—CLOSURE.
The Hull patent, No. 1,134,067, for closure, keld not anticipated and val-
id, and claims 4, 5, and 6 infringed.
3. PATENTS ¢&=328—VALIDITY AND INFRINGEMENT,
The Hull patent, No. 874,201, for a machine for sealing bottles, jars, and
other receptacles, held not anticipated, valid, and infringed.
4, PATENTS &=244—INFRINGEMEXT—REVERSAL OF PARTS.
A mere reversal of parts in a patented machine does not avoid infringe-
ment. :
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Patents, Cent. Dig. § 385; Dec. Dig.
&=244.]
5. PATENTS ¢&==328—VALIDITY AND INFRINGEMENT.,
The Hull patent, No. 1,134,065, for machine for vacuum sealing, claim 1,
held not anticipated, valid, and infringed. Claims 14, 15, and 16 held void
for lack of invention.

In Equity. Suit by the Anchor ‘Cap & Closure Corporation against
Edward Pritchard. On final hearing. Decree for complainant.

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered ﬁlgests & Indexes
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James Q. Rice, of New York City, for plaintiff.
Fay & Oberlin, of Cleveland, Ohio (John F. Oberlin, of Cleveland,
Ohio, of counsel), for defendant. -

LEARNED HAND, District Judge. There are four patents here
in suit which should be treated separately.

Patent 770,751.

[1] This patent has no predecessors, except Kalling’s two patents,
561,792 and 697,491. They differed from Hull’s disclosure, because
the bead was deformed by squeezing it against the side of the glass.
It makes no difference whether the gasket was of a hard enough con-
sistency, so that the nearest edges of the bead never touched the glass,
or whether it collapsed so far that a part of the pressure was between
metal and glass. In either case, the glass had to bear the whole of a
pressure sufficient to deform the bead. It is, perhaps, not surprising,
therefore, that Hull should have testified that the breakage when he
witnessed the test ran as high as 60 per cent., although the patentee
was giving a demonstration in the hopes of a sale. This evidence,
coupled with the fact that no commercial use of the patent has ever
been made, makes the conclusion reasonable that the patent was im-
practical. A

I therefore find, first, that the disclosure operated upon a different
principle from the patent in suit; and, second, that it is invalid in any
case, because it did not contribute to the-art a practical device.

The next question is of infringement, and this turns altogether upon
whether, in the defendant’s cap, the bead’s “upper and lower inner
walls firmly bind against the upper and lower surfaces of a peripheral
portion of said ring, and hold squeezed from said groove the other
peripheral portion of said ring.” The defendant’s bead, upon their
own statement, “holds squeezed from said groove the other peripheral
portion of said ring”; the only question is whether “the upper and
lower walls firmly bind against the upper and lower surfaces.” If this
clause means that it must be only because of the approach vertically
of the upper and lower walls that the gasket is extruded from its for-
mer position, then I agree that the defendant does not infringe. What
makes the gasket move out in their case.is that the area of a crosss
section of the bead is reduced, not only by the approach of the upper
and lower walls, but by intrusion of the side wall, which is bowed in,
in the form of a re-entrant angle. It is true that this re-entrant angle
drives before it nearly all of the gasket, but not quite all. All the
sections actually made show that the gasket is pinched between the
upper wall and the upper side of the re-entrant angle, and between the
lower side of the re-entrant angle and the false wire. In short, the
former opening within the bead is made too scant, partly by the ap-
proach of the walls, and partly by the toggle action of the side of the
bead, and the gasket is driven out by both factors; but the resulting
pressure between the bead and the glass makes the gasket fill every part
of the space left within the bead. The approach of the walls does
pinch all of the gasket which the re-entrant angle does not extrude
from the bead; all the elements of the plaintiff’s operation are pres-
ent, and in addition the added element of the toggle-like angle, help-
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ing at once to press and extrude the gasket. The addition of this
element does not, in my judgment, avoid infringement.

Patent 1,134,067.

[2] There are two inventions set forth in this patent—one for a
groove “formed from the excess metal of the beading”; the other for
the application to a continuous walled vessel of the earlier patent.
The defendant infringes the second invention (claims 4, 5, and 6), if it
infringes the earlier patent at all, as I have found it does. Therefore
the question under claims 4, 5, and 6 turns wholly upon validity.

The first question is of the prior use by Weller of the caps of Hull’s
patent, 795,284, upon the Phcenix finish bottles. Weller and Santen
tell a straight enough story; they say that the Phcenix finish bottles
ran somewhat unevenly, so that the caps would not fit. This led to a
number of discards, and to use these up they ordered the caps from
the Sure Seal Cap Company. If they did use them on Phcenix finish
bottles, they certainly did practice the invention. That they did ‘order
and secure the Sure Seal Caps to the number of 330,000 in 1908 and
1909 every one concedes. That they used large numbers of them upon
some bottles cannot likewise be disputed. The question then resolves
itself into whether they used them upon Crown finish or Pheenix finish
bottles, or rather whether they used them only upon Crown finish
bottles. Although amply corroborated upon the purchase of the caps,
Weller and Santen are not supported as to their use on Pheenix bot-
tles; that rests solely on their memory. On the other hand, Hull
says he went to Cincinnati to install the machine, and that while he
was there they capped only Crown finish bottles; more than that he
cannot swear. He does say, and Magrane confirms him, that such
caps could not have been made to stay on catsup bottles which were
pasteurized in an open oven, as they were pasteurizing them. The
pressure would have forced off too many tops to make the effort com-
mercially- practical. .

It does not seem to me that the use is proven beyond a reasonable
doubt. Although Weller and Santen were obviously disinterested and
honest witnesses, and it seems unlikely that they should have remem-
bered the use of these caps on Phcenix finish bottles, if it were not so,
it is of course possible that after seven years their memory may be at
fault. If the caps were bought only to use on Pheenix finish bottles, -
why did not Hull see something of them? My doubt rests chiefly in
whether the caps would have stayed fast. The Pheenix finish bottle
has a slightly beveled top, and it seems to me most probable that
under the pressures said to be generated when curing in an open oven
they must have been loosened. Of course, I cannot myself speak of
this matter; but the plaintiff’s experts stand uncontradicted in re-
spect of it, and the antecedent probability makes in its favor. If forced
to choose upon a mere balance of probabilities, I might say that Weller
and Santen were right in their memory; but when forced to apply the
extreme test, that there should be no reasonable doubt about it, I can-
not find the use proven.

There remains the question of whether the new use of the old pat-
ent to a straight-walled vessel is in itself patentable. Stated in that
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way, perhaps, it is doubtful; but the new combination is not alone
the cap, but the cap and the bottle. The prior art thought in terms
of the coaction of these two elements, and it is unfair to treat them
as though they could be separated functionally. It is quite true that
no substantial change is necessary, once you have thought of putting
such a cap on a straight finish bottle; but often the best inventions
lie only in omitting what everybody thought necessary. That there was
a great advantage in using a continuous wall is undoubted; it enabled
the cap to be got off very easily and without danger of breakage. Why
should not any one else have thought to do it before? I agree that in
the case of goods which must be pasteurized it was impracticable to
use these in open ovens, and if that were their only use, and they ap-
peared at once after the pressure ovens were devised, I should be dis-
posed to doubt their patentability. Their use is not so confined, how-
ever; they are used for many other purposes, and their use was in no
sense dependent upon pasteurizing under pressure. It had apparently
always been thought that some ridge or roll was necessary to hold on
the cap. The first man who thought it was not necessary, and that
the cap would stay on alone, contributed a real benefit, if it was only
the benefit of daring to go without what the rest of the world thought
necegssary. When it turned out that he was right, he had helped the
art, and ought to be allowed to hold his patent. The length of time
that the art had been practiced before any one thought to omit the
flange is. good evidence that it took some one besides the ordinary
routine craftsman to think of it.

I do not find it necessary to take up claims 2 and 3 under this pat-
ent. Indeed it would probably be necessary to reopen the trial to do
so, because I excluded evidence relating to the meaning of the words
“formed of excess metal in the beading”’—a matter not clear from
the mere patent. If the Circuit Court of Appeals should take a dif-
ferent view from mine with respect to claims 4, 5, and 6, it might
be necessary that that proof should be taken, but, since all these claims
are in one patent, the duration of the injunction will not be different,
whether all or some only be sustained. As enough has been said to
dispose of the actual device in suit, it seems hardly worth while to
reopen the cause merely upon a chance which may prove to be of only
academic interest.

Patent 874,201.

[3,4] This patent is for a machine for putting on the caps mentioned
in the other patents. Claims 1 and 3 are in suit, and do not require
separate consideration. The defendant infringes, unless infringement
can be avoided by a mere reversal of the parts. In the patent in suit
the jaws, 22, slide up and down in the casing, 20; the upper die, 34,
remaining stationary. In the defendant’s infringing device the jaws
remain stationary, except for their pivotal action, and the die rises
and descends to effect the capping. Of course, this avoids the claims
literally, and, if literalism were all, there would be no infringement.
However, a mere reversal of the parts will not avoid infringement.
Walker v. Giles, 218 Fed. 639, 134 C. C. A. 395. The only question,
therefore, is whether the claim is valid, or must be so narrowly con-



160 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

strued as to be confined to that relative movability set forth in the
claim. Confessedly, the only anticipation is the patent to Asche, 538,-
890. The examiner had Asche before him, and cited it against some
of the claims, but not claim 3. He did cite it against claim 1, which
was changed so as to refer only to the vertical motion of the jaws
in deforming the bead. Asche had no such relative vertical motion,
for his jaws came in from four sides laterally. It is suggested that
the change in any event was not patentable, but I can see no merit in
this contention. The machine is a complicated one, and it would be
the merest speculation to say it was within the competency of the ordi-
nary skilled artisan, whose ingenuity I am not disposed to rate very
highly. It is quite p0551ble that the scope of the patent must be held
strictly to the disclosure itself; but that question is academic here, for
the defendant has copied the machine faithfully, except for the mere
reversal of the parts.

Patent 1,134,065.

[5] In this patent two features of a second machine are concerned.
The first, covered by claim 1, is the location of the spring, 47, support-
ing the platform, 42 (Fig. 4), within the tube, 4I. This tube must have
a motion relative to the bottom of the ceiling chamber, 73, and must
therefore be hermetically packed as indicated at 76. The defendant
has copied this, and urges in justification the prior patent to Lands-
berger, 842,320, which 1s the nearest reference. In this patent the
platform, 25, is movably supported on a rod, which in turn is support-
ed by a spring, 49. The spring is outside of the air chamber, and as
the chamber must be airproof the rod must slide through a hermetic
packing. The result is that the spring must be heavier, and the re-
siliency of the platform, 25, less sensitive, than if the spring were with-
in the chamber. It perhaps would not be difficult, when the matter was
suggested to adapt Landsberger to Hull’s device; but it was a con-
venient detail, which added a real and practical advantage to the op-
eration of the machine. I do not feel disposed to say that it did not
take any patentable ingenuity to make it. A decree may therefore
go upon that claim.

The final invention is the lockmg doors, claims 14, 15, 16. There
must be a door to the vacuum chamber, and this must be packed at
its edges, and firmly held, or the air will come in. Various forms of
door are possible, and the plaintiff has chosen one; that is, carrying
the doors upon substantially parallel arms. Such arms were not new
in mechanics, though they were new in precisely this situation. The
case is close, but I should hardly consider the swinging of a door in
such a way a patentable novelty. It seems to me a mechanical detail,
on which the general mechanical arts offered several possible alterna-
tives. I shall not, therefore, issue a decree upon these claims, which I
think void for nonpatentablhty

A decree will go in accordance with the foregoing opinion, without
costs,



SLIP SCARF CO. V. CHURCH, WEBB & CLOSB 161

SLIP SOARF CO. v. CHURCH, WEBB & CLOSE, Inc
(Distriet Court, S. D. New York. January 17, 1916.)

PATENTS €=328—INVENTION—NECKTIE.
The Mills patent, No. 1,109,838, for a necktie, held void for lack of in-
vention, on satisfactory evidence of prior public use by two or more oth-
ers, who manufactured similar ties for the market.

In Equity. Suit by the Slip Scarf Company against Church, Webb
& Close, Incorporated. On final hearing. Decree for defendant.

This is the ordinary complaint in equity for the infringement of patent to
Mills, No. 1,109,858, for a new kind of neckwear., The claims in issue are 4,
5, 6, and T, which are as follows:

4. “A necktia formed of suitable fabric folded and shaped in a flat tubular
form, embodying a narrow neckband portion and tying-end portions at the
ends of the neckband portion, the edges of the back fold of the folded fabric
in the tying ends being intermediate the edges of the tie, and interlining in
the tying-end portions, and stitches in the tying-end portions attaching the
interlining to the.back fold only of the tie throughout the tying ends of the
tie whereby said stitches will not appear on the outer face of the tie.”

5. “In a necktie having a neckband and two tying ends formed of a fabric
material cut and folded to form the face and back of said necktie, the edges
of said material meeting on the back of the tie intermediate the edges of the
tying ends and a reinforcing strip extending substantially throughout the
length of said necktie and secured to the fabric of the back only of the tying
ends of said necktie.”

6. “A mnecktie formed of a folded fabric and comprising a narrow neckband
portion, knot-forming portions at the end of the neckband portion and en-
larged ends, the edges of the folded fabric forming a longitudinal seam at the
back of the tying ends of the necktie in combination with a longitudinally ex-
tending, relatively strong, inelastic flexible reinforcing strip reinforcing the
back of the scarf throughout the neckband and a substantial portion of the
tying ends thereof, longitudinal stitching connecting said reinforcing strip to
the back fold only of the said folded fabric throughout the said knot-forming
portions, and lines of stitching connecting said reinforcing strip to back and
face folds of the tie throughout the neckband portion thereof.”

7. “A necktie formed of suitable fabric folded and shaped in a flat tubular
form, embodying a narrow neckband portion and wider tying-end portions at
the end of the neckband portion, the edges of the back fold of the folded fab-
ric in the tying ends being intermediate the edges of the tying ends of the
tie, an interlining in said tying-end portions, a reinforcing strip extending
throughout the neckband and the tying-end portions, said strip being substan-
tially equal in width to the neckband portion, and stitches attaching the in-
terlining of the tying ends, to the back fold only, of the said folded fabrie
throughout the tying-end portions, so arranged that said stitches will not ap-
pear on the outer face of the tie.”

Nothing need be said regarding infringement, since the case goes off upon
the issue of validity. The patentee is a lawyer, associated with the well-
known firm of Kenyon & Kenyon, who had charge of the conduct of another
litigation in this court before Judge Mayer concerning a patent to Kays, a
large manufecturer of neckwear, whom Kenyon & Kenyon represented. Dur-
ing the course of that litigation Mills devised the patent now in suit, the
novelty of which consisted in introducing a strip of unyielding material, like
muslin, within the scarf proper, usually made of soft material, such as silk,
and frequently cut on the bias. In addition there was put within the tying
ends of the scarf an interlining, such as light flanel. The muslin “reinforcing
strip,” as it is called, was stitched to the interlining and the two stitched to
the back of the secarf in the tying ends, so that no stitching should be seen
from the front. In the neckband the reinforcing strip was stitched firmly

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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through the material of the scarf. The result was to put the strain of the
pull upon the reinforcing strip and to relieve the flimsier fabric of the scarf.
Claim 4 is for the interlining alone in the tying ends, stitched to the fold of
the scarf; the fold being at the back and between the scarf edges. Claim 5
is for the reinforcing strip, stitched to the back only, of the tying ends in the
same way as the interlining in claim 4. Claim 6 is for the reinforcing strip
stitched to the fold at the back only of the tying ends, and through both
front and back of the scarf over the neckband portions. Claim 7 is for
the combination of reinforcing strip, interlining, and stitching to the back
only of the folds of the tying ends.

At the trial the issue of infringement was not seriously contested, but the
defendant put in evidence numerous patents for scarfs, approaching more or
less near to the patent in suit, and also attempted to prove five distinct prior
uses. These were of scarfs made in New York before the date of the inven-
tion, May 31, 1912, by the following neckwear manufacturers: Bachrach, C.
Stern & Mayer, Oppenheimer, Franc & Langsdorf, James R. Keiser, Incor-
porated, and J. J. Riker & Co. The plaintiff does not dispute that these
scarfs, if proved, would anticipate, but does assert that no one of them has
been proved. In addition the defendant insists that Mills borrowed his in-
vention from an exhibit in the former suit, a scarf made by Blanchard &
Price, in professed accordance with a patent to Blanchard, No. 954,017, which
was put in evidence.

Alan D. Kenyon, of New York City, for plaintiff.
Joseph L. Levy and William R. Davis, both of New York City, for
defendant.

LEARNED HAND, District Judge (after stating the facts as above).
I shall first consider the alleged prior use of C. Stern & Mayer, and
then that of James R. Keiser, Incorporated. These in my judgment
dispose of the patent.

On February 7, 1911, Ackerman, a salesman for C. Stern & Mayer,
took an order for scarfs from Gaston Heilbroner amounting in price
to $95.06, the order for which in Ackerman’s hand is in evidence and
cannot be questioned. There were three separate forms of scarf spec-
ified in this order, “345,” “like shape,” and “320.” N othing turns upon
forms “345” and “320,” and as they were apparently stock forms
they may be omitted. The phrase “like shape” reasonably means
made after some form then first submitted, and Ackerman says that
Heilbroner gave him a form which he was to copy for that part of
the order. This testimony fits in so closely with the written order as
to be free from any reasonable doubt. Seven dozen “like shape”
scarfs were ordered to be made up of 13 separate patterns of silk,
indicated upon the order by 13 separate numbers. Each of these num-
bers indicates a separate silk pattern, and is contained in a swatch-
book comprising the period of the order, February, 1911. The prac-
tice of the manufacturer was to cut pieces off the various patterns of
silk when he first received them, and to give each pattern a number,
and paste the piece along with its number in the swatch-book. The
appropriate entries from this swatch-book corresponding to the num-
bers of the silks contained in Ackerman’s order “like shape” were
put in evidence without objection.

At the trial there was produced from the custody of C. Stern &
Mayer a scarf made up of the same silk as was found in the swatch-
book under No. 1146, which was one of the 13 patterns used to fill the
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“like shape” part of the order of February 7, 1911. To the back of
this scarf was affixed a label bearing the words, “Gaston Heilbroner,
302 Third Avenue, New York Smart Haberdasher.” The scarf itself
is made in such a way as to anticipate the patent in suit. So far
the proof is of such a kind as admits of no doubt whatever. The miss-
ing link is the proof that the scarf in evidence is made in accord-
ance with the form submitted by Heilbroner and denoted by “like
shape.” To supply this link the defendants produce the testimony of
Stemsky, their manager of manufacturing, of Heilbroner, and of
Ackerman. It may be granted to the plaintiff for argument that even
the combined testimony of these three men, of whom Heilbroner, at
least, must be held to be absolutely impartial, would not be enough
to supply the degree of proof necessary in such cases. Is there any-
thing else? Heilbroner swears that he had only one shop while in
business, and that it was at 302 Third avenue, New York. This shop
he gave up in June, 1911, and went into the employ of Weber & Heil-
broner, where he now is. It is true that we have no independent doc-
umentary evidence of the time when he gave up this shop, and if
anything turned upon its being in June, 1911, the case might fail.
We cannot suppose, however, that a man would be wrong about the
season and year in which such a thing happened in his life, at least
within the past five years. We may take it as established beyond a
reasonable doubt that Heilbroner closed his shop during the summer
of 1911.

How, then, are we to account for the existence of the scarf in evi-
dence, Exhibit O, with the label, “Gaston Heilbroner,” etc. QObvi-
ously, taken alone, the scarf proves nothing; it could have been made
up at any time. Yet every act must have a motive, and what possible
motive could there be in making up such a scarf with such a label
after Heilbroner had closed his shop? We have as the only alterna-
tives either to suppose that the scarf, Exhibit O, was in fact one of
those made for Heilbroner from pattern 1146, which we know to have
been received at about the time of the order, or to suppose that it was

‘made up after May 31, 1912, It may perhaps be admitted that it
might have been made up afterwards, were it not for the label, se-
curely sewed to the back, indicating that it was made for Heilbroner
at 302 Third avenue. I lay aside the possibility of deliberate fabrica-
tion, which the plaintif does not assert, and which is not to be as-
sumed in the absence of proof. No other possibility occurs to me
which would account for the presence of the label, if the scarf was
made up after Heilbroner went out of business. The label is a sep-
arate piece of fabric sewed on with some purpose, and it seems to
me most unreasonable that it should have been put onto a scarf made
up for anybody else. If it was intended only as a sample to be kept in
the factory for reference, why should any label at all be put on? Or
if any label was put on, why should Heilbroner’s be selected a year
after he had stopped business? The rule of proof does not require
the exclusion of every conceivable whimsy of doubt which capricious
ingenuity may invent, Short of some such mental exercise, I can see
no explanation for this scarf, made as it is, except that it was one of -
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those made under Ackerman’s order and retained as a sample of the
new form, “like shape,” which Ackerman says Heilbroner gave him
and in following which the silk pattern found in the exhibit was with
others to be used. The recollections of Stemsky, Ackerman, and Heil-
broner, therefore, appear to be corroborated in such a way that noth-
ing short of deliberate fabrication will account for the facts. There-
fore I find that the prior use of C. Stern & Mayer has been proved.

As to the J. Keiser & Co. use the facts are as follows: Ruston, the
manager of manufacturing, produced three scarfs, J*, J%, and J?, which
‘had come from the possession of the manufacturer, and which Ruston
recognized as of the make of the company put upon the market in
1915 and 1916. He had got them from the foreman, whom he had
told to search for them in the sample box in which the manufacturer
kept samples of all new shapes as they were put out upon the market.
Sarah Steele, the forewoman, also recognized the scarfs as of the
manufacture of the company, and she placed them by virtue of their
silk at the same period. She had told the foreman where to get them.

The defendant insists that this testimony of Ruston and Steele has
not been sufficiently corroborated by contemporaneous documentary
evidence to put it beyond reasonable doubt. The link is the fact that
the silks of which J*, J2, and J® are made were issued once, and once
only, all before January 1, 1907. ‘This is proved beyond the least
possible doubt as follows: Nellie Lees was in charge of a card index
system for keeping track of silks. The factory, when it issued a new
silk, gave it a number as it came to Nellie Lees, which she put upon a
new card in her index, cutting off a sufficient piece for identification
and pasting it on the same card. When samples of the silk were issued
to salesmen, Nellie Lees checked with the date against their names on
the back of the card, and checked again in red when they returned the
samples. If the silk was reported out, she noted it also upon the card.
The cards show that the latest of these silks, L, was issued late in
December, 1906, and was reported out on January 29, 1907. If any
second issue of the same silk was made, it would be again checked upon
the card.

The plaintiff says that, if the silk was duplicated at a later period,
it would receive a new card and a new number. It is mistaken in so
understanding Nellie Lees’ testimony. She never made out a new
card unless the factory-sent her a new number with the silk. She
made no effort to look for old silks when the factory sent her a silk,
but relied wholly upon the factory. Since these silks are all reported
out, any mistake in putting an old silk upon a new card would there-
fore arise from a mistake of the factory in failing to keep a proper
tecord of its silks. The questions, 58-61, on which the plaintiff re-
lies, do not prove what it thinks. In that portion of her testimony
Nellie Lees was apparently speaking of her comparison of samples re-
turned by salesmen with the swatch-cards to find the right ones, though
it is not certain that she and her questioner were understanding each
other. Be that as it may, the whole of her testimony leaves no doubt
that she relied on the factory for her new numbers.

Now it is of course possible that once a factory should give an old
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silk a new number, and that therefore there might be another undis-
covered card in Nellie Lees’ card index with the same silk as J ?, J ?, and
J2, but that this should happen three times, and should happen to just
these scarf patterns, is much more than three times as unlikely. We
may therefore say with every reasonable certainty that these scarfs
were made at about the time when the silks were issued, and that they
were made up for the salesmen to take out with them, because for about
every ten silks one scarf pattern would be made up. A sample was
then returned to the sample box of each scarf pattern, but not of each
silk. The idea that these three were all made up over five years after
they had been reported out seems to me fantastic. Yet there is an
added corroboration, not sufficient alone, perhaps, but still significant.
To each of these scarfs is attached a pin ticket, which it was custemary
for the superintendent, Loomis, to put upon each sample kept in the
sample box, which designated the scarf pattern. Loomis had left the
employ of Keiser, and Sarah Steele said she did not know his where-
abduts; had he been called, his testimony as to each particular pin
ticket could hardly have added anything of value. We find a pin
ticket with the No. 1551 on J?, and we find sales in substantial quanti-
ties of No. 1551 during the first three months of 1907, to fill the orders
which salesmen were making as shown by the swatch-card, L.*. Leav-
ing out of account deliberate fabrication, the plaintiff can account for
the correspondence between pin ticket and sales only on the possibili-
ties, either that there was another sample 1551 in the sample box, or
that the pin ticket had been misplaced. That there should be another
sample with the same number is most unlikely in itself, and as to both
possibilities the chance is reduced to negligible force by the fact that
the silk of J* was used only in that period. The idea that it was made
of a chance remnant at a subsequent time, when the manufacturer
did not mean to run that silk, no one would seriously urge. The cor-
respondence of pin ticket, sales, and silk seems to me so strongly to
corroborate Steele and Ruston that the result admits of no reasonable
doubt.

The Bachrach use seems to me to be thoroughly established through
the corroboration of Fanny Lewis’ testimony through her entry, “Mus-
lin strip all ov.” on Sero Sq. The entry, “New Sero 1912,” at the top,
I have no doubt was a subsequent entry. No one can read this testi-
mony without, in my judgment, being satisfied that Bachrach made the
scarfs before May 31, 1912; but there is undoubtedly some technical,
highly technical, difficulty in the proof of the swatch-books, and
rather than rest the case upon a question of evidence not absolutely
certain, 1 prefer to make no finding upon the Bachrach use.

The Oppenheimer use is perhaps weaker than Bachrach’s, and is
subject to the same possible weakness in the proof of the swatch-books.
I make no finding upon it, though I have no question in fact that
Oppenheimer made the ties as is claimed.

The Riker use is the weakest of all; I should think there might be
an honest doubt regarding it.

The Blanchard patent, No. 954,017, left a very small scope for in-
vention if there was any at all. The reinforcing strip is clearly dis-
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closed from end to end and the interlining in the tying-ends. The dis-
closure is of a bow or butterfly tie, not a scarf; but no invention cer-
tainly can lie in the change. Mills’ only novelty over Blanchard rests
in the stitching of the strip, lining, and silk in the tying ends to the
back folds of the scarf. This Blanchard did not show, but Tatton,
1902 British, 14,289, shows a reinforcing strip stitched to the back
only of the scarf, and a long scarf at that. I can attach no importance
to the fact that the silk is not brought together into one fold at the
back, but is stitched to the reinforcing strip in two seams. If Tatton
had put in his interlining in the tying-ends, I should have certainly
been unable to see any patentable novelty between him and Mills.
Thus invention can rest only in combining the two disclosures of
Blanchard and Tatton, and I am extremely doubtful whether the pat-
ent could stand if it did not have to meet prior uses. It seems to me
to be one of those trifling readjustments of well-known forms which
ought never to have escaped the examiner. In any case it was not the
work of a manufacturer seeking to satisfy that cherished friend of
courts, the long-felt want. Rather it was a bit of academic ingenuity
by a lawyer, whose imagination was stirred by a litigation which cer-
tainly came very close to his supposed invention. I need not find that
Miils saw the Blanchard & Price scarf, or that it was a prior use
itself. I cannot disregard the fact that there existed the precise in-
vention corporeally embodied and within his very grasp. That cer-
tainly should have some bearing upon the difficulty of taking the
step which he took to tnite Blanchard and Tatton.
Bill dismissed, for want of invention, with costs.

INTERNATIONAL CURTIS MARINE TURBINE CO. et al. v. WILLIAM
CRAMP & SONS SHIP & ENGINE BLDG. CO.

(District Court, E. D. Pennsylvania. March 20, 1916.)
No. 263.

UNITED STATES €=97—APPROPRIATION OF PATENT—CONTRACTOR FOR MAKING
DEVICE FOR GOVERNMENT—LIABILITY FOR INFRINGEMENT.

Act June 25, 1910, c. 423, 36 Stat. 851 (Comp., St. 1913, § 9465), which
provides that the owner of a patent covering an invention whith shall be
used by the United States without license may recover reasonable com-
pensation for such use by suit in the Court of Claims, in effect provides

* for the appropriation by the government by right of eminent domain, of’
a license to use any patented invention, which includes also the right to
make the patented device; and, having such right, the government may
contract for the making of all or any part of the same, and the contractor
is protected against lability for infringement, the owner of the patent be-
ing limited to the remedy provided by the statute.

[BEd. Note—For other cases, see United States, Cent. Dig. § 76; Dec.
Dig. &=97.]

In Equity. Suit by the International Curtis Marine Turbine Com-
»  pany and the Curtis Marine Turbine Company of the United States
against the William Cramp & Sons Ship & Engine Building Com-
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pany. On rehearing sur defendant’s motion to exclude evidence before
special master. Motion denied.

Fish, Richardson, Herrick & Neave, of Boston, Mass., for plain-
" tiffs.

Edwards, Sager & Wooster, of New York City, and Dickson, Beit-
ler & McCouch, of Philadelphia, Pa., for defendant.

THOMPSON, District Judge. Since the argument upon the re-
hearing, the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, in 231
Fed. 1021, — C. C. A. —, has affirmed the decree of Judge Hough
in the case of Marconi Wireless Telegraph Company of America v.
Emil J. Simon, 227 Fed. 906, upon Judge Hough’s opinion; Judge
Ward dissenting. Judge Hough in his opinion said:

“The questions, therefore, become the following: (1) What is the legal posl-
tion of the sovereign in respect of patent rights granted by itself under the
Act of 19107 (2) How does that act, or more accurately the legal position of
the United States thereunder, affect or protect an independent contractor?

“So far as the first query is concerned, it has been fully and finally answer-
ed by Crozier v. Krupp, 224 U. S. 305 [32 Sup. Ct. 488, 56 L. Ed. 771], whick
holds that, having regard to ‘the undoubted authority of the United States as
to such subjects [as patents] to exercise the powers of eminent domain, the
statute * * * provides for the appropriation of a license to use the inven-
tions; the appropriation thus made being sanctioned by means of compensation
for which the statute provides.> It may in some sense be true, as is urged by
the plaintiff, that the act is remedial, and does not disturb any of the rights
of a patentee which existed before its passage.. But it is also true that, if
the act creates a legal status, the relation of the holder of that status to the
rest of the world is affected by the statute, whether such change or modifica-
tion of relation be specifically mentioned or described in the act or not.

“The Supreme Court has defined the somewhat inartificial language of the
statute. What the act contemplates being done by the United States is to use
an invention ‘deseribed in and covered by a patent.’ This is held to be equiva-
lent to the expropriation or appropriation of a ‘license to use the inventions.
This means a license in its widest sense; i. e.,, both to make and to use, and
possibly to sell, but certainly both to make and to use. In this instance the
Navy, through its officers, has appropriated by right of eminent domain a li-
cense to make and use any and all articles covered by the patent in suit. It
could plainly make them in its own yards or other work places by its hired
employés or permanent officers. It could take Simon into its employment at
a stated stipend, and it could even make that stipend the exact amount of his
estimated profit under the contract. If this had been done, the plaintiff could
certainly do nothing but institute an action in the Court of Claims. Simon
would be as immune as an admiral. However repugnant to business and pro-
fessional feeling this method of riding roughshod over the rights of a patentee
may be, it is difficult for me to perceive that there is any substantial ditfer-
ence between what the government admittedly might have done and what it
has done in respect of this contract. Any distinction drawn between doing an
infringing job by day’s work and doing the same job by contract is without
substance.

“But it is said (and here hangs the plaintiff’'s whole case) that before the
act of 1910 the holder of a patent could sue a contractor with the government
for infringement as fully and freely as he could any one else, provided always
that he did not by injunction or otherwise interfere with government posses-
sion of anything (however obnoxious to the patentee’s rights) actually in gov-
ernmental use. Brady v. Atlantic Works, supra [Fed. Cas. No. 1,794]; In-
ternational, etc., Co. v. Cramp, 211 Fed. 124 [127 C. C. A. 522] and cases there-
in cited. In my opinion this is true, but not so as to the corrollary stated by
plaintiff, viz., that since this right existed before the act of 1910, and is not
explicitly taken away by that statute, if: must still survive as fully as of old.
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If the reason of the law falls, the law ought to fail with it; this maxim seems
to me to apply very forcibly here. The reason for permitting actions for in-
fringement by private parties against government contractors was that since
infringement was a torf, and the United States had never consented to be sued
in tort, patentees were without remedy. Now they have such remedy under
the statute, and cannot take what the statute gives (or imposes), and retain
what they had before, if it interferes with governmental enjoyment of its li-
cense. The United States has a license under this pafent to make, use, and
perhaps to sell, to any extent deemed beneficial to the commonwealth, and
without any territorial or other limitation upon its right. A licensee to make
and use is not (in the absence of specific language in his license) limited to
making with his own hands, in his own shop, or by his own employés. He may
employ, procure, or contract with as many persons as he chooses to supply
him with that which he may lawfully use, provided such conduct does not
change his relation to the licensor. In my opinion this is exactly what the
government has done here, and Simon is not an infringer, because he is sup-
plying lawful goods to a lawful licensee. Foster Hose Supporter Co. v. Tay-
lor Co., 191 Fed. 1003 [111 C. C. A. 667].”

The decision of the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit
adopting the opinion of Judge Hough is to be regarded as decisive of
the question here raised, unless the Circuit Court of Appeals for this
circuit in its opinion and decree ordering an accounting determined as
the law of this case that, in a suit by a patentee against an independ-
ent contractor, an accounting should be had of profits accruing in
making turbine engines for torpedo boat destroyers for the government
under contracts entered into after June 25, 1910.

The present suit was commenced in 1909, and the contracts under
consideration upon the appeal were Nos. 30 and 31, entered into in
1908. There was apparently nothing before the court relating to
contracts with the government subsequent to the passage of the act
of June 25, 1910, and there is no discussion of any such transactions
by the court in its opinion. Contracts Nos. 47, 48, 49, and 50 were not
entered into until 1911, and it is apparent that the sole question before
. the court, where the question of jurisdiction was discussed, was one of
equitable jurisdiction of a suit begun prior to the act of June 25, 1910.
This is apparent from the following language in Judge Buffington’s
opinion (211 Fed. at page 152, 127 C. C. A. 550):

“Since the litigation began, the two torpedo boat destroyers referred to have
been finished and delivered to the government, and the plaintiffs do not now
ask that the decree shall in any wise be directed against these vessels, or against
the government in respect thereof. The bill contains no averment that the
defendant is building or threatening to build infringing turbines for commer-
cial use; only certain ships of war are involved in the suit, and, for reasons
to be briefly stated, we are of opinion that no injunction should now be grant-
ed. We do not agree that the court below should have dismissed the bill for
want of jurisdiction. Neither the United States nor one of its officers is a
party defendant, but the suit is brought solely against a private corporation
that had contracted to do certain public work. The bill was filed in 1909, and
we think there was then no doubt that the court below had the right to en-
tertain it. * * * But since the suit was brought the act of 1910 has been
passed, and has been interpreted by the Supreme Court in the recent case of
Crozier v..Krupp, 224 U. S. 290, 32 Sup. Ct. 488, 56 L. Ed. 771. This statute,
we think, furnishes a practical solution of the questions arising upon this
branch of the case. Even if the plaintiffs did not disclaim the desire to in-
terfere with the government’s possession of the vessels, there is no longer any
ground upon which a final injunction can be properly rested, even in a suit
against a contractor with the government, where the dispute concerns such
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property as vessels of war. If the United States-has infringed, or shall here-
after infringe, the patents that we have been considering, the act of 1910 per-
mits the plaintiffs to sue in the Court of Claims. Crozier v. Krupp, supra.
And if the defendant shall undertake to infringe hereafter by making offend-
fng turbines for commercial use, relief can be obtained by another sult.”

It seems to be conclusive, therefore, that the Circuit Court of Ap-
peals had not before it in the consideration and decision of the case
the situation now presented, and that its order for an accounting should
not be construed as intended to include an inquiry whether the turbine
engines in torpedo boat destroyers made by the defendant under
contracts with the government entered into since June 25, 1910, in-
fringed the plaintiffs’ patent (as would have been the inquiry but for the
provisions of the act of 1910), and, if found to be infringements, an
inquiry and report regarding the defendant’s profits. There was no
decision by the Circuit Court of Appeals that the license acquired by
the Unitéd States by right of eminent domain to use the invention of
the plaintiffs’ patent was not a license under the broad signification
of the term “license to use,” including the right to make and use, as
was held by the special master in overruling the objection of the de-
fendant to any inquiry into any transaction under contracts Nos. 47, 48,
49, and 50.

The court will therefore follow the construction of the act of 1910,
adopted in Marconi Wireless Telegraph Company of America v. Simon,
applying the doctrine of Crozier v. Krupp td a suit by a patentee
against an independent contractor with the government. It is there-
fore held that the defendant is not, as to the contracts entered into
since June 25, 1910, an infringer, and is not liable to an accounting
for anything done under those contracts, and that the special master
was in error in overruling the motion of the defendant to exclude from
its accounting the profits, if any, made by defendant for building tur-
bine engines under contracts 47, 48, 49, and 50.

It is ordered that the action of the special master in overruling the
defendant’s objection be overruled, and that the defendant’s objec-
tion be sustained, without prejudice, as noted in the memorandum
opinion filed July 2, 1915,

UNITED STATES v. SHANAHAN,
(District Court, B. D. Pennsylvania. April 8, 1916.)
No. 1377.

1. ALIENS &=>60—NATURALIZATION—RIGHT.

The admission of aliens to citizenship is a privilege, not a right, and
Congress may prescribe the conditions under which the privilege may be
enjoyed ; but when the alien has complied with the prescribed conditions
the privilege ripens into a right.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Allens, Cent. Dig. §§ 117, 118; Dec.
Dig. ¢&=60.]

2. ALIENS &=T11%, New, vol. 7 Key-No. Series—NATURALIZATION—PROCEED-
INGS To CANCEL—I'INDINGS OF KAcCT.

In proceedings to cancel a naturalization certificate because illegally

granted, the finding of the court which granted the certificate that the

@=>For other cases seo same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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applicant had continuously resided within the United States for the pre-
scribed time will not be reviewed, even if, on the evidence, the court hear
ing the petition to cancel would have reached a different conclusion.

3. ALIENS &>711%, New, vol. 7 Key-No. Series—NATURALIZATION—PETITION To
CANCEL—“ILLEGALLY PROCURED.”

A naturalization certificate can be canceled, because “illegally procur-
ed,” where any of the jurisdictional facts necessary fo the granting of the
certificate are absent from the record.

[Ed. Note.—For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and
Second Series, Illegally.]

4, ALIENS &62—NATURALIZATION—"RESIDED CONTINUOUSLY.”

The requirement of the naturalization laws that the applicant shall
have “resided continuously” in the United States for the prescribed time,
does not require his unbroken physical presence during that time, but
only that he maintain a bona fide residence and domicile here, and is a
question of fact, into which intention enters as a controlling element.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Aliens, Cent. Dig. §§ 123-125; Dec.
Dig. ¢&=62.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, Second Series, Resided
Continuously.]

* Petition by the United States against Roger Shanahan for the can-
v cellation of a naturalization certificate. Petition dismissed.

Robert J. Sterrett, Asst. U. S. Atty., and Francis Fisher Kane, U.
S. Atty., both of Philadelphia, Pa.

O. Charles Brodersen and Benjamin H. Leiterman, both of Phila-
delphia, Pa., for respondent.

DICKINSON, District Judge. The respondent was naturalized July
17, 1914. There was and is no reason to doubt that he emigrated
from Ireland to this country with the full bona fide purpose to cast
his lot with us. He followed this with the required declaration of
his intention to become a citizen. He then filed his petition in accord-
ance with the requirement of the law, and supported this with the full
measure of proof that he was (otherwise than because of the objection
next stated) entitled to be granted the privilege of citizenship for which
he asked. The court “was satisfied” by the proofs submitted and
admitted him. The objection referred to was based upon the fact
that after he had made his declaration of intention he received a
message from his old mother that she was critically ill,and wished to
again see her son before she died. Answering to this appeal, he went
to her. The good faith of his statement that he went only in response
to this appeal, and with every purpose to continue his residence in
America, is evidenced by the fact that he came back on the first ship
which sailed for this country after his mother was buried. The pres-
ent petition for cancellation of his certificate of naturalization is based
upon the sole ground of this break in the time of his physical presence
in this country, and that because of this he has not “continuously re-
sided” here. There is no suggestion of imposition upon the court, or
concealment or attempted concealment of the facts, much less of fraud,
and no suggestion even that the “certificate of citizenship was illegally
procured,” except in the averment of error in the court in its finding
of the fact of continuous residence.

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Congress, in pursuance of its constitutional power “to establish a
uniform rule of naturalization,” has provided us with our present
system. These laws confide the power to certain courts, and impose
the duty upon the District Courts of admitting to citizenship. Certain
things are preliminarily essential to the exercise of this power. These
are the jurisdictional facts. One of them is a previous declaration
of the intention of the applicant to become a citizen. Another is that
he shall within the prescribed time thereafter file his petition in the
required form, and this petition must be verified by the affidavits of at
least two credible witnesses, who are themselves citizens, to the fact
of residence, etc. What follows is a matter of “proofs.”” In other
words, it is a finding of facts from evidence. This is a judicial act,
or a judgment, the memory of which is preserved in the records of
the court. Congress has further made it the duty of the United States
district attorney upon a certain showing to institute proceedings for
“setting aside and canceling” certificates of citizenship on the ground
(as already stated) “of fraud,” or on the ground that they were “il-
legally procured.”

[1] It is, of course, true that, outside of the acts of Congress, ad-
mission to citizenship, like the admission of aliens to our shores, is
not a right, but a privilege. Congress may prescribe the conditions
upon which these high privileges may be enjoyed, and may commit
to any official or tribunal the determination of any questions of fact
upon which the privilege may depend. The right of appeal from the
judgment rendered may be given or withheld. Congress has seen fit
to commit the determination of the facts to the courts, and has made
no provision for an appeal from the judgment reached. When an
applicant has met all the requirements of the law, the privilege accord-
ed him ripens into a right. It is his legal right to submit his petition
- and proofs to the court as the constituted tribunal to pass upon them.
If certain facts appear to the satisfaction of the court, he is entitled
to citizenship.

2] In similar proceedings like findings made by an official or tri-
bunal other than a judge or a court are not disturbed because a differ-
ent conclusion might have been reached on the facts. The courts will
not assume to sit in judgment to review findings of fact which it is
the duty of another tribunal to make. This is the established rule.
U. S. v. Rodgers, 191 Fed. 970, 112 C. C. A. 382. Why should not
the same rule apply to a finding by a judge or a court? The principle
remains the same when the court in dne form of proceeding is asked
to review its findings made in the course of another proceeding.

[3] The rule, of course, has its limitations. These are well recog-
nized. They have their practical application in this provision of the
law for cancellations. If the certificate was procured by fraud, it
may be canceled. So likewise if it “was illegally procured.” The
absence from the record of any of the jurisdictional facts would make
the certificate “unlawful,” because issued without warrant of law.
The moment, hawever, we get beyond the record and the jurisdic-
tional facts, we get into the domain of the “proofs.” In the first place,
we have no record of what these were, and in any event, in the ab-
sence of fraud, or an abuse of power by the tribunal which has passed
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upon them, we are doing nothing else than hearing the evidence over
again and retrying the case on its facts.

[4] The law, it is true, requires the applicant to have “resided con-
tinuously” in the United States the prescribed time. If this means
an unbroken physical presence, this applicant, under the facts averred
now, should not have been admitted, and his admission by the court
might well be held to be such an abuse of power as to make the issue
of the certificate “illegal.” ‘This, however, it does not mean. It means
only that the applicant shall have maintained a bona fide residence or
domicile here. This has been determined for us in the case of U. S.
v. Cantini, 212 Fed. 925, 129 C. C. A. 445, with a clearness of state-
ment which should finally settle this strangely vexing question of what
constitutes residence. It is a question of fact, into which intention
enters as a controlling element. Intention is a mental attitude, but
we are not dependent for a knowledge of its existence wholly upon
verbal declaratiéns. They are evidence only, and may be overborne
by the persuasive force of other facts, which are also in evidence.
Physical presence in the claimed place of residence is consistent with
the claim of domicile, and absence may be found to be inconsistent
with such a claim. It cannot be said, however, that absence, even when
prolonged, is necessarily, or of itself, so inconsistent as to compel a
finding against residence. :

Take what would seem now to be the facts of this case. A visit
to Ireland, made on the appeal of a dying mother, coupled with an
immediate return as soon as the son had seen her buried, would be
thought by no one to in itself negative the fact of a continued resi-
dence in this country; nor would the length of the stay, if such were
the sole motive of the visit, of itself control the decision. It can be
easily understood that days might lengthen into weeks, and weeks
into months, without weakening the evidence of an intention to keep -
his residence here. It is the happy heritage of the Irish people that
the ties of family affection are not lightly held or easily broken, and
it is proper to take this into account in weighing evidence of this kind.
Indeed, were we now weighing this evidence, it is easy to understand
that it might be so strong as that the number of months over which
the visit lasted would not control the judgment. We have before us
now nothing but the length of the visit. Viewed by itself alone, it
must be confessed to be staggering to belief in it as a visit. Did we
have before us now, as the court had then, all the detail facts and
circumstances, the length of time might impress us less. It may be
that the length of the visit was given less weight than it otherwise
would have had because of the effort made then, as is made now, to
impress us with the view that an unbroken physical presence is re-
quired by the act of Congress.

However this may be, the conclusion reached is that the court, when
it admitted this applicant, was “satisfied” of the fact of residence,
and, being so satisfied, it was proper to admit him to citizenship, and
we see no justification for canceling the certificate because of the fact
(even if it were the fact) that from a view of part of the proofs which
were then before the court we differed in our judgment of the weight
of the evidence.

. The petition to cancel is dismissed.
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IVANOFF v. MECHANICAL RUBBER CO.
(District Court, N. D. Ohio, E. D. February 11, 1916)
No. 9229.

1. REMOVAL OF CAUSES €=11—CAUSES REMOVABLE—"‘JURISDICTION"—"1HIS
TITLE."” . ®
Judicial Code (Act March 3, 1911, c. 231) § 28, 36 Stat. 1094 (Comp.
St. 1913, § 1010), authorizes the removal into the District Court of the
United States for the proper district by nonresident defendants of suits
of a civil nature of which the District Courts of the United States are
given jurisdiction by “this title,” which includes the entire Judicial
Code. Section 51 (section 1033) provides that, except as provided in the
following sections, no civil suit shall be brought in any District Court
against any person by any original process or proceeding in any other
district than that whereof he is an inhabitant, but that, where the juris-
diction is founded only on diverse citizenship, suit shall be brought .only
in the district of the residence of either the plaintiff or the defendant.
Held, that an action by a nonresident alien against a New Jersey corpora-
tion cannot be removed from an Ohio state court to the District Court
for the Northern District of Ohio, as “jurisdiction” is authority to hear
and determine a cause, and section 51 places the right to hear and de-
termine such case as much beyond the authority of such District Court
+ as if it was excluded by the section defining the jurisdiction of District
Courts.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Removal of Causes, Cent. Dig. §§ 20-31;
Dec. Dig. ¢=11.
For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Jurisdiction.]
9, REMOVAL OF CAUSES @11—CAUSES REMOVABLE.
Only cases within the original jurisdiction of the District Court are
removable from state courts.
[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Removal of Causes, Cent. Dig. §§ 29-31;
Dec. Dig. &=11.]

At Law. Action by Todor Ivanoff against the Mechanical Rubber
Company. On motion to remand. Motion sustained.

Payer, Winch & Rogers and E. P. Strong, all of Cleveland, Ohio, for
plaintiff.
Reed, Eichelberger & Nord, of Cleveland, Ohio, for defendant.

CLARKE, District Judge. [1] This cause was commenced in the
court of common pleas of Cuyahoga county. The plaintiff is an alien;
the defendant is a corporation organized under the laws of the state
of New Jersey. Within the time prescribed by statute, the defendant
filed a petition for removal to this court, and before taking any other
action in the case the plaintiff filed a motion to remand the cause to
the state court. :

Removal of cases from state to United States courts is provided
for in sections 28 to 39, inclusive, of the Judicial Code, and the clause
of section 28 applicable to this case reads as follows:

“Any other suit of a elvil nature, at law or in equity, of which the District
Courts of the United States are given jurisdiction by this title, and which

@&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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are now pending or which may hereafter be brought in any state court, may
be removed into the District Court of the United States for the proper district
by the * * * defendants therein, being nonresidents of that state.”

“This title” in the above clause includes the entire Judicial Code, ap-
proved March ‘3, 1911, but the essential reference is to section 24.
The plaintiff being an alien and the defendant a nonresident of this

. district, because organized under the laws of New Jersey, this case
could not have been commenced in this court. Galveston, etc.,, Ry. v.
Gonzales, 151 U. S. 496, 14 Sup. Ct. 401, 38 L. Ed. 248.

[2] Only cases within the original jurisdiction of the District Court
are removable from state courts. Cochran v. Montgomery County, 199
U. S. 260, 26 Sup. Ct. 58, 50 L. Ed. 182, 4 Ann. Cas. 451. Thus
the question for decision becomes: Can this court acquire jurisdiction
by removal, when it would not have had original jurisdiction if the
same case had been commenced in this court?

The distinction which some courts have drawn between the jurisdic-
tion of district courts as defined in section 24, and as the scope of that
jurisdiction as modified by the venue sections, especially by section 51
of the Judicial Code, holding that jurisdiction is given by section 24
over cases which cannot be commenced in District Courts under sec-
tion 51 seems to this court illusory and misleading.

Jurisdiction has been authoritatively defined as “authority to hear
and determine a cause.” Daniels v. Tearney, 102 U. S. 418, 26 L. Ed.
187; Simmons v. Saul, 138 U. S. 454, 11 Sup. Ct. 369, 34 L. Ed.
1054. - And it is dealing with words rather than with realities to say
that section 24 gives to this court jurisdiction over a cause which sec-
tion 51 declares shall not be commenced in this court. The right to
hear and determine the case is placed as much beyond the authority
of the court by the venue sections as it would be if section 24 were so
narrowed as clearly to exclude it.

The conviction that the fact that this cause could not have been com-
menced in this court places it beyond the jurisdiction of this court for
purposes of removal leads me to agree with Ex parte Wisner, 203 U.
S. 449, 27 Sup. Ct. 150, 51 L. Ed. 264, and with Mahopoulus v. Chi-
‘cago, etc., Ry. Co. (C. C.) 167 Fed. 165, and Sagara v. Chicago, etc.,
Ry. Co. (C. C.) 189 Fed. 220, rather than with those decisions which
frankly disagree with the conclusions of the Wisner Case, or which
distinguish away its authority to the vanishing point.

Therefore the motion to remand will be sustained.
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THE CETRIANA,
(District Court, N. D, California, First Division. March 23, 1916.)
No. 15824, }

1. ADMIRALTY &=50—BRINGING IN NEW PARTIES —ADMIRALTY RULE 59.
Admiralty rule 59 (29 Sup. Ct. xlvi), permitting the bringing in of
other parties on petition of a respondent, is not limited to collision cases,
nor to cases where a joint liability is alleged in the petition.
[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Admiralty, Cent. Dig. §§ 414-429;
Dec. Dig. ¢=50.]

2. ADMIRALTY &>50—BRINGING IN NEwW PARTIES—RIGHT OF RESPONDENT.

In a suit against a steamship for failure to deliver cargo, claimant may
properly bring in, under admiralty rule 59, or in analogy therewith, an-
other vessel upon an allegation that under the bills of lading respondent
had the right to transship the cargo in question, and did so upon the
vessel so brought in, which became solely responsible for its delivery.
Nor is the right to bring in such vessel defeated by the fact that an-
other suit by libelant against her, for the same causé of action, is pend-
ing in the same court; it being to the advantage of all parties that the
entire controversy should be settled in one proceeding.

[Bd. Note—Tor other cases, see Admiralty, Cent. Dig. §§ 414-429;
Dee. Dig. &=50.]

In Admiralty. Suit by Frank G. Hammer and William H. Hammer,
copartners, against the British steamship Cetriana; William Eadie,
claimant. On exceptions by Sudden & Christensen, claimants of the
steamship Mazatlan, to petition of respondent for bringing in such ves-
sel. Exceptions overruled.

Nathan H. Frank and Irving H. Frank, both of San Francisco, Cal,,
for petitioners.

Andros & Hengstler and G. W. Bell, all of San Francisco, Cal., for
third party.

DOOLING, District Judge. In this action Hammer & Co. libel the
steamship Cetriana for failure to deliver cargo. The owners of the
Cetriana have answered, denying liability, and have in addition filed a
petition praying that the Mazatlan, another vessel, be brought in. The
petition and answer both set up the fact that the Cetriana had in
accordance with the bills of lading the right to transship the cargo in
question, and did transship’ it upon the Mazatlan, and that for any
failure to deliver the same the Mazatlan is solely liable.

The petition is presented on the theory that this presents a case
analogous to that provided for in admiralty rule 59 (29 Sup. Ct. xIvi).
The owners of the Mazatlan have excepted to the petition, on three
grounds: (1) That rule 59 applies only to cases of collision; (2) that
the owners of the Cetriana do not aver a joint liability on the part of
the Mazatlan, but plead that she is solely liable; and (3) that there is
another action pending in this court, brought by the present libelants
against the Mazatlan, for failure to deliver this same cargo, and that the
Cetriana, if her protection demand such procedure, may intervene in’

@=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes



176 . 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

that suit; that in the action just mentioned the Mazatlan has given
a bond in the sum of $2,300 to cover precisely the same damage that
is complained of here, and has been compelled by reason of this peti-
tion to give a bond in this action in the sum of $2,000, and has also
given a cost bond in the sum of $500 on each proceeding.

[1] The principle upon which rule 59 is based has been applied in
many cases other than collision by the admiralty courts, and indeed it
was the application in the first instance of such principle by a trial
court that resulted in the promulgation of the rule in question. The
exception that the rule can only be applied in collision cases is there-
fore not well founded.

[2] As to the other exceptions, it may be well to note that the Cetri-
ana does not seek to bring in a party with whom she shows herself to
be in no connection. She was the original contractor with the libelants.
To her they delivered the cargo in question. Being called upon to
respond in damages for failure to deliver such cargo, she says:

“I delivered the cargo to the Mazatlan under a power conferred on me
so to do by the bill of lading. If the cargo has not been delivered, it is not

my fault, but that of the other vessel. Let her be brought in, and the whole
controversy will be determined in this proceeding.”

The fact that in pleading she asserts a sole liability on the part of the
Mazatlan does not seem under the circumstances a sufficient reason
for denying her petition. In Dailey et al. v. City of New York (D.
C.) 119 Fed. 1005, Judge Adams, in bringing in a third party, not
under rule 59, but in analogy therewith, says:

“The principle upon which the rule is based is applied by analogy in other
cases to assist in the administration of justice by requiring the appearance of

any additional defendant who may be responsible for the claim or a part
thereof.”

Here, the cargo having been transshipped to the Mazatlan, it is to
the advantage of all that the controversy be settled in one action. In-
deed, if there be, as suggested, two actions pending, the court will try
them together. The fact that the Mazatlan must give an additional
bond in this case is not important, if the “proper administration of
justice” require her to be brought in. The questions as to the liability
of both vessels, or as to the liability of either, for the failure to de-
liver 'the cargo to libelants, are so closely united that due administra-
tion will be advanced by having all parties before the court in one
proceeding. - It may be noted, too, that the objection here does not
come from the libelant, but from the third party.

The exceptions are overruled.
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UNITED STATES v. BOPP et al.
(District Court, N. D, California, First Division. March 23, 1916.)
No. 5885.

1, CouBTs &=>337—FEDERAL COURTS—AUTHORITY OF STATE STATUTES.
State statutes relating to criminal procedure have no application to
prosecutions in the federal courts.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 908; Dec. Dig.
- &=03317.] '

2, INDICTMENT AND INFORMATION &=15(4)—EFFECT OF SUSTAINING DEMUR-
RER—SECOND INDICTMENT FOR SAME OFFENSE.

The sustaining of a demurrer to an indictment is not a bar to the re-
turn of a new indictment by the grand jury which has already heard the
evidence. '

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Indictment and Information, Cent.
Dig. §§ 86, 448; Dec. Dig. &=15(4).]

8. CRIMINAL LAW &=280(2)—PLEA IN ABATEMENT—GROUNDS.

An averment in a plea in abatement to an indictment, made on infor-
mation and belief, the sources of ‘which are not stated, that the grand
jurors who returned the indictment were without knowledge of its con-
tents, is not suflicient to overcome the presumption of regularity, or even
to warrant the court in investigating the proceedings before the grand
jury.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. §§ 647, 648;
Dec. Dig. €=280(2).]

Criminal prosecution by the United States against Franz Bopp, E.
H. Von Schack, Wilhelm Von Brincken, J. F. Van Koolbergen, Mar-
garet W. Cornell, Charles C. Crowley, and Louis J. Smith. On plea
in abatement, motion to quash indictment, and demurrer to plea. De-
murrer sustained, and motion denied.

See, also, 230 Fed. 723.

John W. Preston, U. S. Atty., and Annette Abbott Adams, Asst.
U. S. Atty., both of San Francisco, Cal. '

J. P. O’'Brien, of San Francisco, Cal., and Samuel Platt, of Carson
City, Nev., for defendants Cornell and Crowley.

George A. McGowan, of San Francisco, Cal,, for defendant Von
Brincken.

Sullivan & Sullivan and Theo. J. Roche, of San Francisco, Cal,
for defendants Bopp and Von Schack.

DOOLING, District Judge. The defendants have presented a plea in
abatement and a motion to quash the indictment herein for the various
reasons in such plea and motion stated. The government has de-
murred to the plea. The only matters of importance, as it seems to
me, that are set forth in either the motion or plea, are those which
have to do with the sustaining of a demurrer to a former indictment,
and with the asserted lack of knowledge on the part of the grand
jurors as to the contents of the present one.

[1] As to the former, it is urged that, a demurrer having been sus-
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tained to a previous indictment returned by the same grand jury (230
Fed. 723) and no order of resubmission having been made by the court,
the judgment on demurrer was final, and became an absolute bar to any
other prosecution for the same offense. This is, indeed, the provision
of the Penal Code of the State of California. I cannot agree with
counsel, however, in their contention that this court is bound in this
matter by the state law.

[2] It is, however, further urged that, even if the state law be not
applicable, the defendants are still exempt from further prosecution
because at common law such was the effect of a judgment sustaining
a demurrer. It is quite true that upon the sustaining of a demurrer
to an indictment at common law the judgment was that the defend-
ant be discharged, and indeed that was in effect the judgment here.
But I do not understand that to mean that they are discharged finally
from any further prosecution at all, but that they are discharged from
further prosecution upon that particular indictment. That was the
effect of the judgment here, but I know of no reason why, because a
demurrer has been sustained to an indictment which was insufficient
in form or substance to put the defendants upon trial, a new indict-
ment, curing the defects found in the former, may not be returned by
the grand jury which has already heard all the evidence, if they de-
sire to do so. The court and the district attorney are without the power
to amend an indictment, and for that reason a judgment sustaining a
demurrer thereto is necessarily final as to that particular pleading.
But it is in no sense a judgment on the merits, and the grand jury
possesses the power to amend which is lacking both in the court and
the prosecuting officer.

[3] It is further urged that the grand jurors were without knowl-
edge as to the contents of the indictment in question. This averment
is made upon information and belief alone, and such an averment is,
in my opinion, not sufficient so to overcome the, presumption of regu-
larity which the law attaches to the return of an indictment as to
compel or even to warrant the court in jnvestigating the proceedings
before the grand jury which resulted in such return. It was stated on
the argument that the defendants had the right to “ascertain” whether
or not the grand jurors were acquainted with the contents of the in-
dictment, and that seems to me, under the circumstances, what they are
endeavoring to do. No facts are stated upon which their “belief” is
founded, and the sources of their “information” are not disclosed.
Upon such averment as this, which might safely be made by any de-
fendant, the court would be compelled to inquire into the proceedings
of the grand jury upon every indictment returned, a thing which I
do not believe is contemplated by the law.

The demurrer to the plea in abatement is sustained, and the motion
to quash denied.
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TNITED STATES v. NEW YORK CENT. & H. R. R. CO.
(District Court, N. D. New York. May 1, 1916.)

1. ALIENS &>36 — IMMIGRATION — CONTRACT LABORERS — PREPAYMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION.

A railroad company, which sent its duly authorized agent into Canada
to employ men to work on its section in the TUnited States, and furnished
the agent with free transportation over its own lines for the men he
should employ, is guilty of a misdemeanor, under Act Feb. 20, 1907, c.
1134, § 4, 34 Stat. 900 (Comp. St. 1913, § 4248), making it a misdemeanor
for any person or corporation in any manner whatsoever to prepay the
transportation of any contract laborer into the United States.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Aliens, Cent. Dig. §§ 113-116; Dec.
Dig. ¢=56.]

2, ALIENS &=56—IMMIGRATION—CONTRACT LABORERS—*SOLICIT.”

The corporation was also liable to the penalty imposed by section 5 of
that act (Comp. St. 1913, § 4250) on any corporation which knowingly
solicits the immigration of any contract laborer, though the laborers em-
ployed were denied admission by the immigration authorities, since to
“solicit” does not imply success, but merely means to incite.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Aliens, Cent. Dig. §§ 113-116; Dec.
Dig. ¢=56.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Solicit.]

8. WoRDS AND PHRASES—“PERSUADE.”

While the primary meaning of “persuade” is to advise or counsel, it
has a secondary meaning, which is to prevail upon by demonstration, ex-
position, or argument, and implies the completed act. .

[Ed. Note—For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and
Second Series, Persuade.]

At Law. Action by the United States against the New York Central
& Hudson River Railroad Company tc recover a penalty for the viola-
tion of Act Feb. 20, 1907, c. 1134, §§ 4, 5 (34 Stat. 900). Judgment
ordered for the United States.

Dennis B. Lucey, U. S. Atty., of Ogdensburg, N. Y.
MclLarey & Alien, of New York City, and Alex. H. Cowie, of Syra-
cuse, N. Y., for defendant.

RAY, District Judge. The defendant is a railroad cogporation or-
ganized and existing under the laws of the state of New York and en-
gaged in the business of a common carrier and in operating and con-
structing railroads and branches thereof in the state of New York and
in the Northern district thereof, and one or more of which branches
extend into the Dominion of Canada, kingdom of Great Britain. The
defendant had in its employ as supervisor of tracks, including the
branch extending into Canada on the Adirondack Division and to Adi-
rondack Junction in the Dominion of Canada, one Fred W. Vincent,
who had power and authority from the defendant to employ and dis-
charge manual laborers on its tracks and in the construction and repair
of its railroad. Shortly prior to June 6th the defendant was in want

&=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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of men to work for it on its tracks as manual laborers, and said Vin-
cent, acting pursuant to his authority in employing and discharging
laborers, wrote to one Enrico Canale a letter of which the following
is a copy and delivered same to the said Canale:
“New York Central & Hudson River Railroad Company.
“Remsen, 6/6.

“E. Canale, Brandreth—Dear Sir: I called up Mr. Sisti about the five men
that you spoke about; he says that he don’t know anything about them, so if
you could get a hold of them send them to me as I am ten men short in extra
gang now. About these men at Canada, could you get them if you went after
them with a pass. Let me know at once. If you can get some go after them

at once. '
“Yours truly, [Signed] F. W. Vincent.”

Shortly prior thereto the defendant company had issued and deliver-
ed to said Canale a pass giving him free transportation between Kee-
pawa and Fulton Chain in the Northern district of New York and on
one of the branches of said defendant company, and had also issued
a free pass giving free transportation to ten employés of the company
as follows:

“New York Central Railroad Company, Buffalo and East. 1913. C. H. 55.

Pass 10 employés. Account Laborers M. of W. Dept. When identified. Be-
tween all stations Adirondack Division. Good_ until June 30, 1913.”

This pass was delivered to Fred*W. Vincent and by him to said
Canale shortly before the delivery of said letter. Sajd Errico Canale
was in the employ of the defendant company under and subordinate
to said Vincent as section foreman of section 14 in said Northern dis-
trict of New York. He was subject to the control and orders of said
Vincent. At said times Columbi Napoleoni, Giuseppe Papi, Giuseppe
Bove, Pietro Bove, and Antonio Tenace were alien laborers, not citi-
zens or residents of the state of New York, but citizens of the kingdom
of Italy and alien manual laborers, and were then at or near Montreal,
in the Dominion of Canada, kingdom of Great Britain, and did not be-
long to any class permitted to enter the United States under the provi-
sions of the Contract Labor Law.

Pursuant to the directions and authority of said letter the said En-
rico Canale proceeded to Montreal, Canada, and there solicited and en-
gaged the said persons, alien contract laborers, to come into the United
States and work for the defendant railroad company. On the 9th day
of June, 1913, two of said contract laborers, Napoleoni and Papi, ap-
peared before the board of special inquiry of the United States Immi-
gration Service in-the Montreal district and then and there applied for
admission into the United States. An inquiry was set on foot as te
their right to enter the United States, and this inquiry was held open
until the 10th day of June, 1913, on which day the said Giuseppe Bove,
Pietro Bove, Antonio Tenace, Columbi Napoleoni, and Giuseppe Papi,
accompanied by the said Enrico Canale, appeared before the said board
of special inquiry of the United States Immigration Service, the entire
board being present, and application was then and there made for the
admission into the United States of said persons, and said Canale then
and there requested the admission of said persons into the United
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States. The inquiry resulted in the rejection of said persons, and
they were refused admission into the United States.

It was clearly the intent and purpose of the defendant, acting
through its said agent, Vincent, to secure the immigration and importa-
tion into the United States of the said five alien contract laborers, and
it is clear that they were encouraged to come into the United States
as contract laborers and employed as such, and encouraged and solicit-
ed to migrate into the United States as such. It is also clear that the
pass was to be used by Canale in traveling back and forth, and that
the pass for ten employés was delivered to Canale to be used by him in
bringing such alien contract laborers into the United States.

[1] It appears from the facts stated: (1) That defendant in the
state of New York, Northern district, did certain acts for the purpose
of actually bringing these alien contract laborers into the United States
by authorizing its agent to engage them and bring them into the United
States to there perform manual labor and by furnishing him with a
pass, or free transportation, over its roads while engaged in the per-
formance of this undertaking, and by also furnishing him with a pass,
or free transportation, for such alien contract laborers from Canada
to the border of the United States, and then to their destination in the
United States, should he engage them and succeed in getting them
across the border, thereby prepaying their transportation. (2) The ac-
tual engaging or hiring and solicitation of these laborers to come into
the United States was, so far as appears, done in Canada, but was done
by the authority and direction of the defendant. In short, the defend-
ant sent its agents and employés, with full authority to hire such alien
contract laborers and bring them into the United States, into Canada,
there to employ such laborers and induce and solicit them to come into
the United States, and in the United States engage in manual labor for
the defendant, and prepaid their passage by issuing free transportation
for them over its own road from Canada into the United States. (3)
Such agent of the defendant, so authorized, in execution of his agency,
actually went into Canada and induced and solicited such contract la-
borers to come into the United States, and they with the aid and at the
procurement and solicitation of the defendant undertook to come in,
and the defendant by its said agent undertook to bring them in, their
passage being prepaid by defendant; but, the purpose being disclosed,
they were turned back and denied admission.

Therefore there was no actual coming into the United States, no
actual entry, no actual immigration® or importation of such contract
laborers info the United States. The statute says (Act Feb. 20, 1907,
c. 1134, § 5 [2 U. S. Comp. Stat. 1913, § 4250]):

“For every violation of any of the provisions of section four of this act,
the persons, partnership, company or corporation violating the same, by
knowingly assisting, encouraging, or soliciting the immigration or impor-

tation of any contract laborer into the United States shall forfeit and pay for
every such offense the sum of One Thousand dollars,” ete.

Section 4 of the same act (Comp. St. 1913, § 4248) reads as follows:

«It shall be a misdemeanor for any person, company, partnership, or cor-
poration, in any manner whatsoever, to prepay the transportation or in any
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way to assist or encourage the importation or migration of any contract la-
borer or contract laborers into the United States, unless such contract
laborer or contract laborers are exempted under the terms of the last two pro-
visos contained in section 2 of this act. 34 Stat. 900.”

The passage of these five alien contract laborers was as much pre-
paid by this defendant, by issuing and delivering the pass with intent
that it be used for the purpose, as if the defendant had paid actual
cash. By section 4 it is a misdemeanor “in any manner whatsoever to
prepay the transportation” of “contract laborers into the United States,”
and in my judgment this is done when the corporation, owning and
operating transportation lines reaching into the foreign country, fur-
nishes free transportation over its own lines for alien contract laborers
employed by it in such foreign country to come into the United States.
and perform manual work and labor for it here. Prepaying the trans-
portation is assisting or encouraging the importation or migration, and
clearly section 4 of the act makes it a misdemeanor “in any manner
whatsoever to prepay the transportation * * * of any contract la-
borer * * * into the United States.” The gist of the offense is
in prepaying the transportation, and the offense is committed when that
is done, whether the contract laborers succeed in getting into the Unit-
ed States or not.

[2] So under section 5 of the act the offense is committed by en-
gaging and encouraging or soliciting the coming or immigration of alien.
contract laborers into the United States, and the offense is complete
when the alien manual laborers are actually engaged and encouraged or
solicited to come in, free transportation having been provided before-
hand and delivered for use by the defendant in the United States.
This is made clear by the language of Mr. Justice Brewer in Lees v.
United States, 150 U. S. 476, 480, 14 Sup. Ct. 163, 164 [37 L. Ed.
1150], where, discussing the Alien Contract Labor Law, as amended
by the act of February 23, 1887 (24 Stat. 414, c. 220), the learned jus-
tice said: . . .

“Given thé power to exclude, it [Congress] has a right to make that ezclu-

sion effective by punishing those who assist in introducing, or attempting to
introduce, aliens in violation of its provisions.”

The language of sections 4 and 5 of the act of February 20, 1907,
makes this clear, for the act of “soliciting the migration” of alien con-
tract laborers subjects the offending party to the penalty imposed, and
the statute so reads. To “solicit” and “soliciting” do not even imply
success. The Century Dictionary says:

“Solicit. 1. To arouse or incite to action; summon; invite; tempt; allure:
entice. 2, In criminal law, to incite another to commit a erime. To entice &
man in a public place; said of a prostitute. To endeavor to bias or influence
by the offer of a bribe. 3. To disturb; disquiet; make anxious. 4. To seek
to obtain; strive after, especlally by pleading; ask a thing with some degree-
of earnestness or persistency; as to solicit an office or favor; to solicit or-
ders. 5. To petition or ask (a person) with some degree of earnestness or per-
sistency ; make petition to. 6. To advocate; plead; enforce the claims of;
act as solicitor or advocate for or with reference to.”

It seems to me clear that, when a corporation has transportation
lines for passengers or travelers running into Canada, and, desiring
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manual laborers, issues free transportation for such laborers, and sends
its agent, provided therewith, into such country for alien contract la-
borers, with power to solicit and engage them and deliver or use such
passes for bringing them into the United States, and such laborers are
actually solicited and engaged, and an effort is made to bring them into
the United States, the offense against the statute has been committed,
even if the officers of the law intervene and prevent the laborers from
crossing the border. In my judgment the statute was aimed at at-
tempts to bring in such alien contract laborers, if accompanied by acts
committed, some in the United States and some in the foreign country
even if the attempt proved abortive and actual migration was pre-
vented.

The defendant corporation was in the United States and there oper-
ating, and it was there that it set on foot the offending against the stat-
ute and did some of the acts complained of. If all the acts had been
done in the Dominion of Canada, it might be contended that no offense
at all was committed in the United States or within the jurisdiction of
this court. United States v. Nord Deutscher Lloyd (C. C.) 186 Fed.
39%1 However in United States v. Craig (C. C.) 28 Fed. 795, it was
said: :

“It seems that Congress has power to punish by indictment offenses comumit-

ted by citizens of the United States upon foreign soil”’—meaning, of course, of-
fenses against laws of the United States.

[3] In United States v. Craig, supra, it is true that Judge Brown
held, not necessarily or because the question was in the case, but be-
cause it might arise later in the progress of the case, that the statute as
it then read, taken all together, indicated an intent on the part of Con-
gress that actual migration or importation into the United States of
the alien contract laborers must follow the solicitation and employ-
ment. See pages 799, 800. The learned judge cited as authority for
his dictum the case of Respublica v. Roberts, 1 Dall. 39, 1 L. Ed. 27,
where defendant was indicted under a statute declaring that any person
who shall “knowingly and willingly aid or assist any enemics at open
war with this state,” etc., “by persuading others to enlist for that pur-
pose, shall be adjudged guilty of high treason.” Then the court held
that the word “persuading” meant “succeeded in procuring others to
enlist.” This was, of course, the only fair and just construction to
put upon such a drastic statute; for, while the primary meaning of the
word “persuade” is “to advise; counsel; urge the acceptance or prac-
tice of ; commend by exposition, argument, demonstration,” etc., it has
a secondary meaning, “to prevail upon by demonstration, exposition,
argument, entreaty, etc.; argue or reasor into a certain belief or course
of conduct; induce; win over.” “Persuading” implies the completed
act. So does “persuasion,” which means “the act of persuading, in-
fluencing, or winning over the mind or will to some conclusion, deter-
mination or course of action.” See Century Dictionary.

On the other hand, as we have seen, “solicitation” or “solicit” has no
such meaning, and from it alone we draw no conclusion that the act of
solicitation or of soliciting has met with success. The writer of Acts,
26:28, had in mind, when he wrote “Almost thou persuadest me to
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be a Christian,” the difference between solicit and persuade as com-
monly understood. He did not write, “Almost thou solicitest me to
become a Christian.” If we say, “Thou solicitest me to become a
Christian,” we give no indication we are convinced or won over ; but if
we say, “Thou persuadest me to become a Christian,” we affirm that
our mind is convinced and our course of action determined upon. In
the case referred to, in determining the meaning of “persuading,” the
court construed it in the most merciful way, gave the defendant the
benefit of any doubt as to which meaning was intended by the law-
makers, as was its duty. When we construe the meaning of “solicit”
or “soliciting,” we must give the word its only meaning and that does
not include or imply a successful solicitation.

I"am of the opinion, and hold, that a successful solicitation in this
case was not necessary to complete the offense against the provisions
of the statute; that is, that to incur the penalty it was not necessary
that the alien contract laborers should have actually entered into the
United States. As there was but one solicitation, all one act, the de-
fendant incurred one penalty.

There will be a judgment for one penalty of $1,000 and costs. So
ordered. '

GIDEON v, REPRESENTATIVE SECURITIES CORP. et al.
(District Court, 8. D, New York. April 10, 1916.y

1. CorPORATIONS €=123(23)—CORPORATE STOCK—REDEMPTION OF PLEDGE—
PARTIES,

In a suit to redeem stock of New York corporation, whose by-laws
were not shown to differ from the ordinary by-laws in regard to the
transfer of corporate stock, which stock had been sold by the pledgee in
violation of the pledgor’s rights, a transferee of the stock, not residing
in the district in which the suit was brought, to whom the stock had not
yet been transferred on the books of the corporation, is a necessary par-
ty, and may be joined as defendant, since, under Stock Corporation Law
N. Y. (Consol. Laws, c. 59) § 50, providing that the stock of a corporation
shall be transferable in the manner prescribed in that law and in the by-
laws of the company, it is the transfer on the books that passes the title,
and the court therefore has jurisdiction over the stock under Act March
3, 1875, c. 137, § 8, 18 Stat. 472 (Comp. St. 1913, § 1039), giving the Dis-
triet Court jurisdiction to enforce a legal or equitable claim to property,
real or personal, situated within the district. )

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Corporations, Dec. Dig. €&==123(23) ;-
Pledges, Cent. Dig. § 125.]

2. INJUNCTION &=137(3)—TEMPORARY INJUNCTION—GROUNDS FOR DENIAL—
DoUBTFUL RIGHT—DELAY.
In a suit to redeem from a pledge corporate stock sold by a pledgee in
violation of the pledgor’s rights, where the stock had not been transferred
on the corporation’s books, but plaintiff had already been defeated in a
similar suit in the state court, and his delay in filing the suit was not
sufficiently explained, a temporary injunction will not be granted to re-
strain the transfer of the stock on the corporation’s books.

- [Ed. Note—For other cases, see Injunction, Cent. Dig. §§ 308, 309; Dec.
Dig. &=>137(3).}

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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In Equity. Suit by George G. Gideon against the Representative
Securities Corporation and another. Plaintiff moves to join Roy Curf-
man, a resident of another state, as party defendant, and for a tem-
porary injunction. Motion to join granted, and motion for injunc-
tion denied.

This is a motion to add as a party defendant one Roy Curfman, a resi-
dent and citizen of the state of Missouri, under the following circumstances:
The plaintiff was the owner of certain shares of stock in the defendant com-
pany, Hinds, Noble & Eldredge, a New York corporation, which shares he
pledged to a third party, who afterwards sold the same to the Representative
Securities Corporation. The suit was brought upon the theory that the
sale, which wag in supposed satisfaction of the pledge, was not in accord-
ance with the rights of the pledgee under the note, and that the plaintiff
could therefore redeem the same in the hands of the Representative Securl-
ties Corporation. Pending the suit, the Representative Securities Corporation
has conveyed the stock to Curfman, whom the plaintiff wishes to join upon
the theory that he is not a bona fide purchaser for value. The objection is
raised that he cannot be served, being a nonresident, to which the plaintiff
. answers that its claim arises under Act March 3, 1875, c. 137, § 8, 18 Stat. 472
(Comp. St. 1913, § 1039), since the suit is to enforce a legal or equitable
claim to real or personal property within this district. An injunction is also
asked against Hinds, Noble & Eldredge's transferring the stock upon its
books in case Curfman’s certificate shall be presented for transfer.

Lewis & Kelsey, ‘of New York City, for plaintiff.

Edward F. Clark and Roger Hinds, both of New York City, for
defendants.

LEARNED HAND, District Judge (after stating the facts as
above). [1] I think that Jellenik v. Huron Copper Mining Co., 177
U. S.'1, 20 Sup. Ct. 559, 44 L. Ed. 647, controls. The defendants
suggest that that case turned upon the peculiar provisions of the Mich-
igan statute, recited on pages 11 and 12 of the opinion; but the pro-
visions were not peculiar. The only relevant portions were that the
stock should be transferred only. on the books of the company, in
such form as the by-laws direct, or the directors shall prescribe. Sec-
tion 50 of the Stock Corporation Law of New York provides that the
stock of a corporation shall be transferable in the manner prescribed
in that law and in the by-laws of the company. There is no evidence
that the by-laws of the corporation in question are different from the
usual by-laws, which generally provide that stock shall be transferred
on the books of the company. It is the transfer on those books which
transfers the title (N. Y. & New Haven R. R. v. Schuyler, 34 N. Y.
30), not the transfer of the certificate. The latter only constitutes the
transferee an attorney in the name of the holder to make the transfer
upon the books of the company. There is no need, therefore, to have
personal jurisdiction over Roy Curfman, and on that account the case
is unlike York County Bank v. Abbot (C. C.) 139 Fed. 988. If the
plaintiff should succeed, he could redeem the stock by paying the
amount of his debt into the registry of the court for the benefit of
Curfman; the court would then direct Hinds, Noble & Eldredge to
transfer the stock upon its books to the plaintiff, which would change
the title to the shares and put them in the plaintiff. In order to pro-
tect the corporation, it could be permanently enjoined from issuing any
stock to Curfman or his transferee. Curfman, if made a party to
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the suit, would be estopped by this finding and could never succeed in
a new suit. Perhaps his transferee pendente lite would not be conclud-
ed; but that question is quite separate from the question whether
Curfman’s affirmative action is necessary to transfer title, and wheth-
“er, if joined, any relief could be granted against him. o

[2] I will not, however, give an injunction. The plaintiff has been
already beaten in a similar suit in the Eastern district of New York,
where success was concededly necessary for his success here. The
plaintiff’s rights are certainly far too problematical for interlocutory
relief. Besides, the delay is not sufficiently excused.

The motion to join Roy Curfman as party will be granted, and the
motion for the injunction will be denied.

FURNESS, WITHY & CO., Limited, v. LOUIS MULLER & CO.
(District Court D. Maryland. March 29, 1916.)

SHIPPING @&=52—CHARTERS—BREACH. ;

The charterer of a steamship for carrying a cargo of wheat from Bal-
timore to one of a number of European ports, in August, 1914, held not
Justified in refusing to load the vessel because of the war; it appearing
that none of the named ports was blockaded, and that other vessels car-
ried cargoes safely at about the same time.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Shipping, Cent. Dig. §§ 211-213; Dec.
Dig. &=52.] .

In Admiralty. Suit by Furness, Withy & Co., Limited, a corporation,
against Louis Muller & Co., a corporation. Decree for libelant.

Whitelock, Deming & Kemp and John B. Deming, all of Baltimore,
Md., for libelant. .

Venable, Baetjer & Howard and Charles McHenry Howard, all of
Baltimore, Md., for respondent.

ROSE, District Judge. The libelant, Furness, Withy & Co., Lim-
ited, is -a British corporation. It seeks damages for the breach of a
contract to furnish a cargo to one of its ships and to pay the agreed
freight thereon. It will be called the owner. The respondent, Louis
Muller & Co., is also a body corporate, organized under the laws of this
state. It will be called the charterer.

The charter was made in May, 1914. By it the owner undertook to
put at charterer’s command at Baltimore, some time between the 5th
and 25th of August, 1914, a steamer to carry 32,500 quarters of grain
to that one of the six ports, Avonmouth, London, Antwerp, Rotter-
dam, Havre, or Dunkirk, which the charterer should name at the time
of the signing of the bills of lading. If it designated either Havre
or Dunkirk, it was to pay extra freight at the rate of 414d. a quarter.
On the 7th of August the owner tendered the steamship Kelbergan to
the charterer. Its lay days began at 7 a. m. on the 8th and ended on

@&==Faor ather cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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the 14th, on which last-named day the charterer told the master that
it would not furnish the cargo. It is admitted that the owner did every-
thing it was called upon to do.

The defense is that the outbreak of the European war made per-
formance impossible, or at all events so changed the conditions exist-
ing at the time the charter was made as to justify either party in treat-
ing it as at an end. What made performance impossible? There
was plenty of grain in Baltimore. It was wanted on the other side.
The ship was ready to take it. The trouble was twofold. The char-
terer did not wish to ship without insuring the cargo against war risks.
During the first two weeks of August, 1914, such insurance was hard
to get, and could be obtained, if at all, only at rates which seemed
then unreasonable, and which later events have demonstrated to have
been so.

The other consideration which gave the charterer pause was it could
not get pay for its grain in the way in which it and all other American

" grain exporters had been wont to get it. When the grain was stowed

on the vessel and the bills of lading for it signed, it was the custom
- to attach them, with insurance policies and other necessary or con-
venient shipping documents, to a draft upon the European consignees,
and to sell the drafts to bankers in this country. The war closed the
market for such paper. The European buyers were not, at short no-
tice, able to arrange to make payment on this side. The charterer and
other persons in like line of business did not want to ship their grain
and take the chance of having it paid for when it reached the other side,
and many, if not most, of them had not the capital to do so, even if
they had the disposition.

Nevertheless some grain was shipped from Baltimore to Antwerp in
the first two weeks of August, and from and after August 15th such
shipments were many and large. None of the ports to which the char-
terer had the right to send the grain were blockaded. The traffic was
as legal in August as it had been in May. Itis true that the charterer,
by no fault of its own, found in its way many difficulties which had not
been foreseen when the charter was made. These difficulties do not
appear, however, to have been of a character which would excuse per-
formance. Carnegie Steel Company v. United States, 240 U. S. 156,
36 Sup. Ct. 342,60 L. Ed. —.

How much was the owner damaged? It lost the difference between
the freight it would have received and what it would have had to pay
out to earn it, less any other net earnings the ship actually made in
the time which would otherwise have been occupied in discharging her
charter obligations. In dollars and cents much depends on the port to
which the charterer would have sent the ship. The charterer says that
the owner’s recovery cannot exceed the net profit the latter would have
made had it been required to discharge at the port most costly to it-
self. The owner’s view is that the damages should be calculated upon
the assumption that the cargo would have been sent to the port which
the court shall find the charterer would have chosen had it selected
any. It is unnecessary to decide which is right. The charterer says,
if it had been able to make arrangements to ship at all, it would have
sent the ship to Havre. I believe it. That is the port which would
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have been most expensive to the shipowner. It is true that the freight
to Havre would have been greater than to any of the ports in England
or the Low Countries named in the charter. Nevertheless the port
charges and cost of unloading would also have been heavier, and, more
important than all, the length of time during which the ship would
have been detained would have been much greater. To unload at
Havre, even in ordinary times, is a much slower process than at Rot-
terdam. In the conditions which prevailed there in early September of
1914—that is, just before, during, and immediately after the battle of
the Marne—the delays would have been far more serious than under
other circumstances. I am satisfied that, if the ship had taken the
cargo to Havre, at least 41 days would have elapsed between the be-
ginning of the lay days at Baltimore and the earliest date on which
it could have entered upon another venture. Every day of this time in
a sense counts double. It not only increases the cost to the ship of
performing the original contract, but swells the portion of her net
earnings under a new charter, which must be applied to a reduction of
the first charterer’s liability.

When the latter finally announced its refusal to perform, the owner
sought a new charter, and three days later obtained one to carry coal
from Norfolk to Rio. On the 11th of September, when the ship was
within 500 miles of the latter port, it was stopped by the British cruiser

- Bristol. Its captain and crew were taken off and sent to Rio. The
ship itself was put in charge of a prize master, and it was net until 45
days later, on October 26th, that it was again delivered to its own cap-’
tain at the Brazilian capital. This prolongation of the voyage greatly
veduced its average daily earnings, which nevertheless still remain sub-
stantial. The account between the owner and the charterer may be
summarized as follows:

Freight, if the full cargo of grain had been sent to Havre...... o0 . $20,201.62
Cost of earning it......... PP [ crecsecans eeessnveses 13,632.24

Net earnings, if charter voyage had been made......cvoveevernen.. $ 6,569.38
From which deduct the daily net earnings under the substituted char-

ter, for the time during which the ship was earning money there-

under, but would, if the charterer had furnished the cargo, been

engaged in earning the charter freight......vecvieviiveeneeneess.. 5,666.71

Leaving net 10SS t0 OWIeT. ceseesvsesscstrvecoovassosans eead 002,67

For the last-named sum the owner must have a decree.
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FURNESS, WITHY & CO., Limited, v. FAHEY et al
(Distriet Court, D. Maryland. March 29, 1916.)

In Admiralty. Suit by Furness, Withy & Co., Limited, a corporation,
against John T. Fahey, J. Frank Reilly, and Edgar F. Richards, co-
partners trading as John T. Fahey & Co. Decree for libelant.

Whitelock, Deming & Kemp and John B. Deming, all of Baltimore,
Md., for libelant.

Venable, Baetjer & Howard and Charles McHenry Howard, all of
Baltimore, Md., for respondent.

ROSE, District Judge. Here, as in the case of Furness, Withy &
Co., Limited, v. Louis Muller & Co., 232 Fed. 186, the shipowner
seeks damages for the failure of charterer to furnish a cargo and pay
freight. The same defense, in that case held insufficient, is, along with
another, here relied upon. It has even less support in the facts. In
the instant case the lay days did not expire until August 26th. Within
the 11 days next preceding that date, three grain ships sailed from
Baltimore to French ports. The charterer now before the court says,
even so, the owner cannot recover because of its own refusal to carry
out its contract.

When, on the 19th of August, the ship reported itself ready to re-
ceive cargo, it added that such tender was without prejudice to its
right to demand extra compensation to cover war risk insurance, etc.
Apparently this was nothing more than a notice that if, under the con-
ditions existing, the charter gave the right to such higher pay, the
owner did not waive it. It is, however, unnecessary so to decide. The
next day the condition was withdrawn altogether. It is true that a
member of the charterer’s firm, in immediate charge of this transac-
tion, denies that he ever heard of its withdrawal. After hearing him
and the other witnesses I am satisfied that he is mistaken. It is certain
that the charterers, for days after the notice and its withdrawal, acted
as if the ship was at their command, if they wanted it. The conten-
tion that the owner had previously ended the charter was clearly an
afterthought.

The charterers here had the same choice of ports as existed in the
other cases. Here, as there, the charterers say they would have se-
lected Havre. There is nothing to show that they would not. The
damages will be calculated upon the assumption that they would. So
figuring, and giving the charterers credit to the expiration of the period
the ship would otherwise have been engaged in performing its original
charter for its daily earnings under a time charter effective from Sep-
tember 8th, it appears that the owner is entitled to a decree for $5,-
592.57.
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CLARK v. GRIMES.
(District Court, D. Maryland. April 15. 19168)

CHATTEL MORTGAGES @&=18—VALIDITY—AFTER-ACQUIRED PROPERTY.

- Under the laws of Maryland, a chattel mortgage on a stock of goods,
which covered, not only the stock then owned, but that which was sub-
sequently purchased, is not valid as to the property acquired after its
execution to replace that sold by the mortgagor, the proceeds of which
he, with permission of the mortgagee, applied to his own use, though the
mortgage required him to account therefor, even where the mortgagee
took possession before the levy of an execution thereon, and therefore
such mortgage does not entitle the mortgagee to seize and sell the after-
acquired property, after the insolvency of the mortgagor, and within four
months of the filing of a petition in bankruptey against him.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Chattel Mortgages, Cent. Dig. §§ 61—
66; Dec. Dig. €>18.]

In Bankruptcy. On demurrer of James Clark, as trustee in bank-
ruptcy, to the plea of J. Hamilton Grimes to the trustee’s petition to
recover the amount of a preference. Demurrer sustained.

Edward M. Hammond and Charles C. Wallace, both of Baltimore,
Md.,, for plaintiff.
Richard S. Culbreth, of Baltimore, Md., for defendant.

ROSE, District Judge. The plaintiff, who is trustee in bankruptcy,
seeks to recover $1,040.22, the amount of a preference which he says
defendant obtained. From defendant’s plea it appears that in Novem-
ber, 1911, the bankrupt wanted to purchase a stock in trade. ‘The de-
fendant lent him $1,300 to be used in paying for one. This sum was
to be repaid in one year, with legal interest. Its repayment was se-
cured by a mortgage on the stock purchased, and also on the “stock
in trade, trade fixtures, and personal effects which shall or may at any
time or times hereafter,” during the continuance of the mortgage, “be
_broughtinto the said store or warehouse or other buildings connected
“therewith or attached thereto in any way, or be appropriated to the
use of said business, either in addition to or substitution of the stock
in trade, trade fixtures, and effects now being therein or belonging
thereto.”

By the mortgage, power was given to the mortgagee, upon default,
to enter upon the bankrupt’s premises, and to take and carry away the
mortgaged property, and to sell the same at public auction. It was
especially stipulated that the right so to seize and sell was to include
“any and all goods that may have been brought into said store or ap-
propriated to the use of said business, either in addition to or substitu-
tion for the said stock in trade, trade fixtures, and effects now being
therein or belonging thereto, and therein or thereabout at the time of
the seizure.” Until default the bankrupt was to remain in possession,
and was to be allowed, as agent for the defendant, to sell in the usual
and regular course of business, at retail, such articles in the said store
or buildings as customers might desire to buy, the bankrupt render-
ing to the defendant monthly accounts of the articles sold and the

@==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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prices thereof, and paying to him, whenever required, all moneys re-
ceived by him from such sales, to be applied to the payment of the
indebtedness under the mortgage.

The mortgage was not paid at maturity, but up until the 17th of
November, 1913, interest was. The monthly accounts provided for
were never rendered nor demanded, nor were the proceeds of any
sales ever turned over by the bankrupt to defendant. At the time the
mortgage was made the bankrupt was solvent, but before the 11th
day of September, 1914, the defendant had reason to believe that he
had become insolvent. Practically all of the stock in the store at the
time the mortgage was executed had been sold and replaced by other
goods, and the new was so mingled with the old that it was impossible
to separate or distinguish them. On the date last mentioned, de-
fendant, acting, as he claimed, under the terms of the mortgage, took
possession of everything in the store. He subsequently sold it and
realized the amount of money which the plaintiff claims. On the 17th
of September, 1914, the mortgagor was adjudicated an involuntary
bankrupt. :

To defendant’s plea the plaintiff demurred. The legal question thus
raised is whether, under the law of Maryland, a judgment creditor of
the bankrupt could, on the 17th of September, have levied on the
stock in trade then in the hands of the defendant, and maintained such
levy as against defendant’s claim under the mortgage. There is no
question that in this state such a levy, made at any time before the
mortgagee took possession, would have been good. Hamilton v.
Rogers, 8 Md. 301; Crocker v. Hopps, 78 Md. 260, 28 Atl. 99. Nor
is defendant’s case in any wise helped by the declaration in the mort-
gage that the mortgagor should act as the agent of the mortgagee. He
never did so. The actual intent of the parties is shown by their uni-
form practice. ‘The mortgagor sold the goods for his own benefit and
lived out of the proceeds.

While defendant admits that when he took possession of the goods
he knew the bankrupt was insolvent, he says he was then exercising
the right acquired when the bankrupt was solvent. He relies upon
Thompson v. Fairbanks, 196 U. S. 516, 25 Sup. Ct. 306, 49 L. Ed.
577, and the cases which have followed it. That case holds that the
extent, if at all, to which such a mortgage is valid, is a local question,
upon which the decisions of the state courts will be followed. In
Vermont such a mortgage is good. The title of the mortgagee, who
under it takes possession of after-acquired property, relates back to
the date of his mortgage, and is good even as against an assignee in
insolvency. Such is not the Maryland doctrine. The two states are
one in holding that a judgment creditor who levies upon such property
before the mortgagee takes possession of it acquires a right superior
to his. They differ as to the effect of the filing of a petition in in-
solvency before the mortgagee takes possession. Under such circum-
stances, in Vermont the mortgagee’s title is better, in Maryland the
trustee’s. .

The Court of Appeals of Maryland does not appear ever to have
had occasion to decide what are the relative rights of the mortgagee



192 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

and a judgment creditor when the former takes possession of the prop-
erty shortly before the latter levies upon it. It has said that such a
mortgage is as to after-acquired property void, and has decided that
it is ineffectual at law to create a lien. First National Bank v. Lindens-
truth, 79 Md. 137, 28 Atl. 807, 47 Am. St. Rep. 366. In Vermont, the
mortgage creates a lien, which may, it is true, be defeated by an ex-
ecution levied before the mortgagee takes possession, but which, under
other circumstances, is good. In Maryland, the mortgage is powerless
to create a lien upon after-acquired property. Furthermore, in the
latter state a mortgage in which the mortgagor reserves the right to
sell for his own benefit the property mortgaged is void, as tending to
delay, hinder, or defraud creditors. Edelhoff v. Horner-Miller Man-
ufacturing Company, 86 Md. 595, 39 Atl. 314. There is no such a
covenant in the mortgage before the court, but for years the parties
acted as if there had been. What they did is at least as important as
what they said. . ‘

The plea says some things which appear to be conclusions of law,
rather than allegations of fact. If it shall turn out at the trial that the
facts in evidence sustain some of them, the defendant may obtain the
benefit by proper prayers for instructions to the jury.

The demurrer to his plea should be sustained. He will not be pre-
cluded from offering at the trial any prayers to which, upen the facts
then shown, he may think himself entitled.

UNITED STATES v. SCOTT et al. (two cases). SAME v. JACOBS et al. (four
cases). SAME v. HANTON.

(District Court, D. Rhode Island. April 26, 1916.)
Nos. 122,130, 132-134, 136, 138.

1. CRIMINAL LAwW &=280(2)—PLEA IN ABATEMENT—QUALIFICATION OF (3RAND
JURORS.

A plea in abatement to an indictment, on the ground that a grand juror
was disqualified under Gen. Laws R. I. 1909, c. 279, § 1, providing that all
persons over 25 years of age, qualified to vote in the election of the city
council or upon any proposition to impose a tax for the expenditure of
money in any town or city, shall be liable to serve as jurors, and amend-
ed Const. R. I. art. 2, § 2, providing that no person shall vote in the elec-
tion of the city council or upon any proposition to impose a tax for the

" expenditure of money in any town or city unless he shall within the year
next preceding have paid a tax assessed upon his property therein valued
at least at $134, which alleged that the juror had not within the year next
preceding the time he was summoned for service paid a tax, was insuffi-
clent, as not showing whether the calendar year or the 12 months pre-
ceding summoning was meant.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal Law, Cent. Dig. §§ 647, 64S;
Dec. Dig. &=280(2).]

2. CRIMINAL LAW &=280(1)—PLEA IN ABATEMENT—CONSTRUCTION AGAINST
PLEADER.

An equivocal expression used in the plea in abatement to an indictment
is to be taken against the pleader.

{Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Criminal TL.aw, Cent. Dig. §§ 645, 646;
Dec. Dig. ¢&=280(1).}

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER 1n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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Seven separate indictments against William B. Scott, Forrest R.
Jacobs, and Thomas R. Hanton. On demurrers by the United States
to pleas in abatement in each case. Demurrers sustained.

Harvey A. Baker, U. S. Atty., of Providence, R. I.
Waterman & Greenlaw, of Providence, R. I., and Max Levy, of
Newport, R. I, for defendants. :

BROWN, District Judge. [1] The United States, in each of the
above-entitled cases, demurs to a plea in abatement alleging the dis-
qualification of a grand juror.

Chapter 279, section 1, General Laws of Rhode Island, provides for
the qualification of jurors, as follows:

“All persons over twenty-five years of age who are qualified to vote in the
election of the city council of any city or upon any proposition to impose a tax
for the expenditure of money in any town or city, shall be liable to serve as
jurors, except as is hereinafter provided.”

To determine what persons are so qualified it is necessary to refer
to sections 1 and 2 of the amended Constitution of Rhode Island (Gen-
eral Laws of Rhode Island 1909, p. 46).

Section 2 of article 2 contains the following:

“%* = * Provided, that no person shall at any time be allowed to vote in
the election of the city council of any city, or upon any proposition to impose
a tax for the expenditure of money in any town or city, unless he shall with-
in the year next preceding have paid a tax assessed upon his property therein,
valued at least at one hundred and thirty-four dollars.”

In attempting to negative the qualification of 'the grand juror to
vote through payment of a tax, each of the pleas uses the following
language:

“Nor had he, within the year next preceding the time he was so summoned

for service as a grand juror in the District Court of the United States for the
District of Rhode Island, paid a tax,” ete.

As was pointed out in United States v. Gradwell (D. C.) 227 Fed.
243, 246, the expression “within the year next preceding,” used in
the provision of the Constitution, gave rise to much controversy as to
" whether the payment of the tax was required to be within the preced-
ing calendar year or within the 12 months immediately preceding
the time of voting. In a statute relating to taxation it is essential to' dis-
‘tinguish clearly between a calendar year and a year, meaning merely 12
months or a term of 365 or 366 days prior to a given date. Such dis-
tinction is made, for example, in the United States statute providing for
an income tax, which uses the term “the preceding calendar year” to in-
dicate the income period for which the tax is to be assessed.

In Re Providence Voters, 13 R. 1. 737, the Supreme Court of
Rhode Island said upon the question whether the period meant was the
calendar year or the 12 months period:

“There is in fact, if we consider merely the letter of the Constitution, nc
decisive reason for preferring either construction to the other.”

[2] If the expression used in a plea in abatement is equivocal it is
to be taken against the pleader. The opinion in Re Providence Vot-
232 F.—13
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ers shows that the language was of such uncertainty as to give rise to
different interpretations in respect to matters of great practical im-
portance.

This point was decided in United States v. Gradwell (D. C.) 227
Fed. 243, 246. Counsel urge that what was said upon this point in that
opinion was obiter dictum. Although the plea was held bad on an-
other ground, the opinion also decided the point now in question, say-
ing:

“It follows that the pleas are bad for uncertainty in this particular.”

The following clause:

*Irrespective of the quéstion what day the plea refers to as the end of ‘the
year pnext preceding’”

—does not modify or relate to the express finding on the point, but
referred to and waived consideration of another distinct contention;
i. e., that the plea was bad, in that it was uncertain whether it referred
to the date of impaneling the jury, the date of actual service as a ju-
ror, or the date of the return of the indictment.

Following the decision in United States v. Gradwell, I am of the
opirion that the demurrer of the United States to each plea in abate-
ment must be sustained. ’

- Demurrers sustained.

In re GOLDBERG & SAGMAN,
Ex parte TEITELBAUM.
(District Court, S. D. New York. April 27, 1916.)

1. BANRKRUPTCY €&=293(1)—TITLE OF TRUSTEE—PROCEEDINGS.

A court of bankruptcy can entertain a petition by a judgment creditor
of the corporation of which the bankrupt was an officer, and which turn-
ed its assets over to the bankrupt, to have those assets applied to the pay-
ment of the judgment, under the ordinary power of any court which has
jurisdiction of a fund for distribution to draw .to itself the disposition
of all questions arising in its distribution; the determination of whether
such proceeding shall be by plenary suit in that court, or by petition in
the bankruptcy proceedings, being one merely of .convenience.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 411; Dec.
Dig. ¢=293(1).]

2. BANKRUPTCY &=288(1)—TITLE O0F TRUSTEE—‘SUMMARY PROCEEDINGS.”

Such proceedings are not strictly ‘‘summary proceedings,” which term
is technically applicable only to proceedings to reduce to the possession
of the court property held by others.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 447; Dec.
Dig. &=288(1).

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Summary Proceeding.]

3. BANEKRUPTCY €=302(1)—TITLE OF TRUSTEE—PROCEEDINGS—PETITION.
A petition by a judgment creditor of a corporation in bankruptcy pro-
ceedings against an officer of that corporation, to have applied to the
payment of the judgment assets which the corporation turned over to

@ For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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the bankrupt, which did not allege that the execution against the corpo-
ration was returned nulla bona, is insufficient.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 456; Dec.
Dig. ¢=302(1).1

In Bankruptcy. In the matter of Goldberg & Sagman, bankrupts.
Petition by Samuel Teitelbaum to review an order of the referee dis-
missing a petition to apply assets in the hands of the trustee to the
payment of petitioner’s judgment. Referee’s order reversed, and
cause remanded.

This is a petition to review an order of a referee in bankruptcy dismissing
the petition of the petitioner below. The petition dismissed alleged that the
petitioner’s firm was the holder of notes executed by the Superior Jewelry
Company, Incorporated, which fell due after the bankruptey, and upon which
the firm, sued the maker. Judgment was taken upon one note, and execution
issued against the Superior Jewelry Company, Incorporated, which had not
been returned at the time the petition was issued. The bankrupt, Sagman,
before the bankruptey, had been an officer of the Superior Jewelry Company,
Intorporated, and on August, 1914, took over all its assets, which consisted
of various pieces of jewelry and diamonds, without consideration; the bank-
rupts assuming the liabilities of the corporation. The assets are now in the
possession of the trustee, and the petitioner demands that they be applied in
payment of his judgment against the Superior Jewelry Company, Incorporated.
On objection by the trustee, the referee held that the case must be prosecuted
by “plenary suit,” and that he had no “summary jurisdiction” to consider
the claim of the petitioner. On this account he-dismissed the petition.

David Haar, of New York City, for petitioner.
Blumberg & Immergluck, of New York City, for respondent.

LEARNED HAND, District Judge (after stating the facts as above).
[1] Any court, whether or not it be one of bankruptcy, having ac-
quired jurisdiction of a fund for distribution, will prevent suits else-
where, and draw to itself the decision of all questions arising in its
disposition. Indeed, it cannot discharge its own duties otherwise, -for
it must know how much it has to distribute. The method of deter-
mining the claims rests ordinarily in its discretion, though our Circuit
Court of Appeals has held that, when a bankruptcy court enjoins.a
third party’s suit elsewhere, it should secure him a jury trial, if he
would have had such, had he been allowed to pursue his remedies. In
re Russell, 101 Fed. 248, 41 C. C. A. 323. When the petitioner has
no such rights, and especially when he comes in voluntarily and files a”
petition in the bankruptcy court, his claim should be entertained;
there ¢an ordinarily be no convenience in having a “plenary suit,” as
is suggested here.

[2] The jurisdiction of this court is unquestionable; and it is con-
fusing to regard the proceedings here as “summary”’—a phrase more
technically applicable to proceedings to reduce to the possession of this
court property held by others. This is a proceeding strictly analogous
to ancillary dependent bills in equity, arising where the court has se-
questered corporate assets for distribution. Such bills do not, for
example, rest upon an independent diversity of citizenship; they rest
upon the custody of the fund. That is the case here; convenience, and
that alone, determines whether they shall proceed by petition entitled
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in the bankruptcy suit, or by “plenary suit” under the hand of the
court. In such a case as this there is no convenience in a “plenary
suit.” Therefore the case will proceed on this petition.

[3] The frame of the petition is somewhat ambiguous, and in any
aspect it is bad as it lies; but it may be made good by amendment. Its
vice rests in the fact that there is no allegation that the execution has
been returned nulla bona, and without that a judgment creditor of the
Superior Jewelry Company, Incorporated, would have no power to
assert its rights. If, however, the execution is returned, perhaps the
bill will lie as a judgment creditors’ bill alleging that there are assets
of the corporation which are not subject to execution, but which ought
nevertheless to be applied to the judgment of the petitioner; or it
may be that it will lie as a bill to set aside a fraudulent conveyance,
upon the theory that there was an actual conveyance by the Superior
Jewelry Company, Incorporated, without adequate consideration. All
these matters, however, rest wholly within the powers of the referee
when he passes on the case; I mean to express no intimation as to
whether the petitioner can eventually succeed. The petition is, with-
in the competence of the referee, to be disposed of on the merits, pre-
cisely as though it were an original bill in equity before a court of
competent jurisdiction.

The order is reversed, and the cause remanded for further proceed-
ings in accordance with this opinion.

UNITED STATES v. ATCHISON, T. & 8. F. RY. CO.
(District Court, D. New Mexico. February 21, 1916.)
No. 349.

MASTER AND SERVANT &=13—STATUTORY REGULATION—HOURS OF SERVICE—
Noon Hous. ..
Under the Hours of Service Aect (Act March 4, 1907, c. 2939, 34 Stat.
1415 [Comp. St. 1913, §§ 8677-8680]), the period of one hour at noon, given
by a railroad company to its telegraph operator, during which he was re-
quired to leave the office and was not subject to call,; except for emergen-
cies; is not to be counted as part of the time he is engaged.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Master and Servant, Cent. Dig. § 14;
Dec. Dig. ¢=13.] ) .

At Law. Action by the United States against the Atchison, Topeka
& Santa Fé Railway Company to recover penalties under the Hours
of Service Act. On stipulation as to the facts, judgment ordered for
the defendant. :

Summers Burkhart, U. S. Atty., of Albuquerque, N. M.
W. C. Reid, of Roswell, N. M., for defendant.

POLLOCK, District Judge. Action brought by the government
to recover penalties imposed under what is commonly known as the
Hours of Service Act. The petition contains eight grounds. The

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes




UNITED STATES V. ATCHISON, T. & 8. F. RY. CO. 197

parties have stipulated the facts. Hence there remains for determina-
tion only the law of the case. ) ) ‘

The first count charges a violation of the act by defend.ant in per-
mitting its telegraph operator, H. H. Edwards, to remain on duty
from 8 a. m. to 6 p. m. at the station of Las Cruces, this state, on
April 1, 1915, or a period of one hour in excess of that provided by the
statute. The stipulation, admitting formal and jurisdictional facts
relating to said count, reads:

“That defendant, during the 24-hour period, beginning at the hour of 8
o’clock a. m. on April 1, 1915, at its office and station at Las Cruces, in the
state of New Mexico, within the jurisdiction of this court, required and per-
mitted its certain telegraph operator and employé, to wit, H. H. Edwards, to
be and remain on duty in said 24-hour period as follows: From the hour of
8 o’clock a. m., on said date, to the hour of 12 o'clock noon, on said date, and
from the hour of 1 o’clock p. m. to the hour of 6 o’clock p. m., on said date,
said employé was required to use said telegraph or telephone for the purposes
mentioned in paragraph 3 hereof. That during the one-hour period from 12
o’clock noon, on said date, to the hour of 1 o’clock p. m,, on said date, said
telegraph operator and employé was permitted and required to and did leave
said office and station. That during said one-hour period said operator and
employé was not subject to call by defendant company, except in case of emer-
gency. That said time was absolutely his own, to do with as he saw fit, and
that all or a part of said one-hqur period was spent by said operator and em-
ployé in eating one of his regular meals.”

It is thus seen the question presented is this: Did the break of one
hour, from 12 m. to 1 p. m., at which time the employé of defendant
was off duty and not subject to call, unless in case of an emergency,
relieve defendant from liability for the penalty imposed by the act?,
The government contends to the contrary, and, in support of its po-
sition, relies upon United States v. Chicago & N. W. Ry. Co. (D. C.)
219 Fed. 342; United States v. Northern Pac. R. Co. (D. C.) 213 Fed.
539; Id. (in the appellate court) 220 Fed. 108, — C. C. A. —. On
the other hand, defendant contends it is not liable under the stipulated
facts, and relies upon United States v. Atchison, Topeka & S. F.
Ry. Co., 220 U. S. 37, 31 Sup. Ct. 362, 55 L. Ed. 361, affirming 177
Fed. 114, 100 C. C. A, 534.

From a reading of the above-cited cases it appears, in those relied
upon by the plaintiff, the release of the employé from duty was but
temporary, he all the while remained subject to recall; whereas, in
the case relied upon by defendant, the release from duty was absolute,
except in case an emergency arose. Under the stipulated facts, al-
though the station of Las Cruces was one continuously operated day
and night, yet, as the operator was not by the company permitted to
remain on duty more than 9 hours out of the 24, constituting a day, I
am of the opinion that the principle involved and determined in the
case of United States v. Atchison, T. & S. F. Ry. Co., supra, is not
only determinable of the case at bar, but, having in mind the pur-
pose of Congress in the enactment of the law, that purpose is better
subserved by permitting an operator to work 9 hours out of 10, with
1 hour absolutely his own, except in cases of emergency, that he may
take his meals, relax, and have recreation, than would be the case
where he is permitted to work 9 continuous consecutive hours.
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It follows, as the question presented as to each of the counts in the
.petition under the agreed facts is the same, judgment must go on
each of the counts for defendant company. It is so ordered.

FRANCO-AMERICAN CHEMICAL CO. v. McKEE GLASS CO.
(District Court, S. D. New York. April 10, 1916.)

CORPORATIONS &=668(5) — FOREIGN CORPORATIONS — PROCESS — “MANAGING
AGENT.”

The agent of a foreign corporation, who had a New York office where
he received orders, which he transmitted to the corporation, but who had
no authority to close any contracts, was not a “managing agent,” within
Code Civ. Proc. N. Y. § 432, on whom process could be served.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Corporations, Cent. Dig. § 2611; Dec.
Dig. &=668(5).

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Managing Agent.] .

At Law. Action by the Franco-American Chemical Company against
the McKee Glass Company, which was removed to the federal court.
On defendant’s motion to set aside the service of the summons. Serv-
ice of summons quashed.

Motion to set aside the service of a summons in a removed case
upon a Pennsylvania corporation, making glassware and sending it in
part to sell in New York. The New York orders were procured by

“one Jones, who could close no contracts, but who had an office here,
the rent being paid by the defendant, and who advised customers when
the goods arrived. The cause was sent to a master, on whose report
the cause came on for disposition. The facts appear more fully in
his report. He reported against the jurisdiction.

Sherman & Sterling, of New York City, for plaintiff.
Saul Gordon, of New York City, for defendant.

LEARNED HAND, District Judge. I think that Jones was not a
“managing agent” under the New York decisions. Some doubtful
cases occur when the agent has the power to close contracts. Fontana
v. Post Printing & Pub. Co., 87 App. Div. 234, 84 N. Y. Supp. 308,
is such a case, and the court thought that even the power to close ad-
vertising contracts was not enough; to the same effect is Vitolo v.
Bee Publishing Co., 66 App. Div. 582, 73 N. Y. Supp. 273. Palmer
v. Chicago Evening Post, 85 Hun, 403, 32 N. Y. Supp. 992, must be

. considered overruled by these cases. In Beck v. North Packing & Pro-
vision Co., 159 App. Div. 418, 144 ‘N. Y. Supp. 602, Snow had no
power to close contracts and the case was clearer, though there was a
dissent. I can find no case holding that where the agent has no power
to close a contract he has that superior position which the New York
Code of Civil Procedure, § 432, means by “managing agent,” as con-
strued by the language used in Taylor v. G. P. Ass’'n, 136 N. Y. 343,
32 N. E. 992, 32 Am. St. Rep. 749, and Coler v. Pittsburgh Bridge

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes




IN RE GRAND LODGE A. 0. U. W, 199

.Co.,, 146 N. Y. 281, 40 N. E. 779. In this aspect the question is not
unlike the question which generally arises in a federal court, and which
is whether the corporation is “doing business” within the state, and
so subjéct to local process. Generally that question also turns upon
whether it has an agent with power to close contracts locally (Irons
v.S. L. & G. H. Rogers [C. C.] 166 Fed. 781); but the case at bar does
not present it, at least not until the service of process be made as re-
quired by the Code.

Jones had no power to do anything but receive and transmit or-
ders, and notify customers. Calling him a “representative” means
nothing; his settlement of small matters he was willing to guar-
antee personally shows the ljmits rather than the extent of his au-
thority. The learned master was clearly right in finding that he was
not a “managing agent,” and his report will be confirmed, with costs.

Report confirmed; service of process quashed.

In re GRAND LODGE A. 0. U. W.
(District Court, N. D. California, First Division. March 29, 1916.)
No. 9785.

BANRRUPTCY &=43—CORPORATIONS ENTITLED TO BENEFITS—“INSUBANCE
CORPORATION."”

A corporation which merely collects from such of its members as are
willing to contribute funds which it thereafter distributes to the bene-
ficiaries of deceased members, which was not an insurance company un-
der the laws of the state where and when it was organized, and which
belonged to a class of corporations well known at the time the Bankrupt-
cy Act was passed as fraternal benefit associations, is not an “insurance
corporation,” within the provision of the Bankruptcy Act excepting such
corporations from the benefits thereof. '

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 38; Dec. Dig.
&=43.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Insurance Company.]

In Bankruptcy. In the matter of the Grand Lodge Ancient Order of
United Workmen, bankrupt. - On motion of Pauline Stanton to set
aside the order of adjudication. Conclusion of the master affirmed,
and motion denied.

L. P. Dunkley and G. F. Owens, both of San Francisco, Cal., for
petitioners. ’

R. G. Hunt, of San Francisco, Cal., for trustee.

Snook & Church, of Qakland, Cal., for bankrupt.

DOOLING, District Judge. The conclusion of the special master
on the petition of Pauline Stanton to set aside the order of adjudica-
tion herein must be affirmed. The bankrupt is not, in my opinion, an
insurance corporation within the meaning of the bankrupt law. As a
matter of fact it did not insure. Its only obligation was to collect,
from such of its members as were willing to contribute, funds with
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which, if and when collected, it would pay certain amounts to the .
beneficiaries of deceased members. There was no other obligation on
the bankrupt than that of a collector. There was no obligation on the
part of any of the members to pay unless they were willing to do so,
and a failure on the part of a member to pay at a fixed date released
him from any claim, legal or moral, for such payment. This is not
insurance. The laws of this state have always recognized the differ-
ence between this and insurance, and specifically provided at the time
that the bankrupt was incorporated that corporations of this character
were not insurance corporations. Besides, corporations of this char-
acter had been in existence very many years at the time of the enact-
ment of the bankrupt law, and of the provision excepting insurance cor-
porations from its benefits, and were technically known as fraternal
benevolent societies or associations, and not as insurance corporations.
If Congress intended to place them among the excepted corporations,
there was a well-known name by which they could have been designat-
ed. I do not think it was intended to embrace them in the term “in-
surance corporations.”

The conclusion of the master is affirmed, and the motion to set aside
the order of adjudication is denied.

In re SAN JOSE BAKING CO.
(District Court, N. D. California, First Division. March 31, 1918
No. 9887.

BANKRUPTCY €92—INVOLUNTARY PBOCEEDINGs—PmmON—WrrHDBAWAL or¥
PETITIONERS.

The withdrawal of any number of creditors who in good faith filed a
petition in bankruptey against the debtor does not prevent the court' from
proceeding with the adjudication so long as one or more of the petition-
ing creditors, though less than the number required to institute the pro-
ceedings, desires it, since any other rule would permit the alleged bank-
rupt to bargain with part of the creditors to induce them to withdraw
and thereby defeat the proceedings.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 107, 108,
183-136; Dec. Dig. &=92.]

In Bankruptcy. In the matter of the San Jose Baking Company,
alleged bankrupt. On motion by one of the petitioning creditors that
the respondent be adjudged a bankrupt upon the pleadings and record.
Motion granted.

Lloyd S. Ackerman, of San Francisco, Cal., for Henry F. Allen.
Goodfellow, Eells, Moore & Orrick, of San Francisco, Cal, for
Sperry Flour Co Hammond Milling Co and Western Meat Co.

‘DOOLING, District Judge. On January 28, 1916, Henry F. Allen,
Sam Martin, and Fred Welborn, three creditors of the San Jose Bak-
ing Company, a corporation, filed their petition in this court praying
that said corporation be adjudged a bankrupt. On February 11, 1916,
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M. Getz & Co. and Fred B. Bain, Incorporated, two other creditors,
filed their petition in intervention and joined in the prayer of the
original petition.

The alleged bankrupt has not appeared, but certain of its creditors
have filed answers to the original petition and the petition in interven-
tion, which do not deny the commission of the act of bankruptcy
alleged. The answer to the original petition relies upon the fact that
Sam Martin and Fred Welborn, two of the original petitioners, had
withdrawn from said petition. The answer to the petition in interven-
tion relies upon the fact that the two petitioners therein had with-
drawn therefrom.

Henry F. Allen, one of the original petitioners, now moves the court
that upon the pleadings and record the respondent company be ad-
judged a bankrupt. ‘The motion is based on the proposition that after
a petition has been properly filed, and the court has acquired jurisdic-
tion, no withdrawal by any of the petitioning creditors can affect the
right of any of the other creditors to have the matter proceed to ad-
judication. The motion must be granted.

It is not within the power of a creditor who joins in good faith in a
petition to have his debtor adj udged a bankrupt thereafter to withdraw
from such petition, and prevent the matter from proceeding, so long
as any of the petitioning creditors insist that the matter do proceed.
It is doubtful whether such petitioning creditor may withdraw in any
event without leave of court so to do. Any other rule would leave the
door open for the perpetration of fraud, and the surreptitious bargain-
ing between the debtor and petitioning creditors in an effort to pro-
cure the withdrawal of a sufficient number of the latter to reduce the:
amount of claims or the number of creditors below the requirements
of the statute. The court cannot inquire into the good faith of every
attempted withdrawal, nor indeed is there any way to prove the secret
bargainings between debtor and creditors, and the only way to pre-
vent them is to hold such attempted withdrawals to be ineffectual so
long as any of the petitioning creditors desire in good faith to pros-
ecute their petition to an adjudication.

As the only defense to the petition here is the attempted withdrawal
of some of the petitioners, the motion for adjudication will be granted.
Counsel will prepare the order.

GRANT v. NATIONAL BANK OF AUBURN.
In re CAYUGA CONST. CO.
(District Court, N, D, New York. April 12, 1916.)

1. STIPULATIONS &»18(8)—EFFECT—AUTHORITY OF COURT.

Where, in an action by a trustee in bankruptey to recover property on
the ground that it was obtained by defendant as a preference, the
parties stipulated that the case should be tried out before a referee of
their own selection, and that, upon filing the report, judgment might
be entered by the clerk in conformity therewith, the court adding the pro-
vision that judgment should not be entered until after 10 days’ notice of
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the filing of the report and of the proposed judgment, the court has no
authority to review the findings of fact by the referee, the stipulation
of the parties not so providing, and hence must uphold the judgment
warranted by the conclusions of law, if they be justified by the findings
of fact.

. [Ed. Note—For other cases, see Stipulations, Cent. Dig. $ 52; Dec.
Dig. €=>18(8).]

2. REFERENCE @99(4)—STIPUL9TIONS—POWEB oF TrIAL CourT—TRIAL TO
REFEREE.

Where, in an action to recover property on the ground that it was de-
livered as a preference, the parties, though there was no authority by stat-
ute, stipulated for trial to a referee, the trial court cannot review the
referee’s findings of fact, any more than an appellate court can review
findings of fact in an action at law tried without a jury, where there is
no statutory authority for the waiver of a jury and reservation of ex-
ceptions.

[Bd. Note—For other cases, see Reference, Cent. Dig. §§ 153, 154;
Dec. Dig. €&=99(4).]

3. REFERENCE &=99(4)—RULES OF CoURT—EFFECT.

A rule of court cannot confer jurisdiction on a District Court; there-
fore the District Court cannot, in an action by a trustee in bankruptey
to recover property on the ground that it was delivered as a preference,
review under rule of court the findings of fact by the referee, where the
parties stipulated for that mode of trial.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Reference, Cent. Dig. §§ 153, 154; -

- Dec. Dig. €&=99(4).] .

4, BANKRUPTCY &=162—“PREFERENCE”"—WHAT CONSTITUTES.

Under Bankr. Act July 1, 1898, e. 541, § 60a, 30 Stat. 562, as amended
by Act Feb. 5, 1903, c. 487, § 13, 32 Stat. 799 (Comp. St. 1913, § 9644), de-
claring that a person shall be deemed to have given a preference if, being
insolvent, he has within four montbs before the filing of the petition, or
after the filing of the petition and before adjudication, procured or suf-
fered a judgment to be entered against bimself in favor of any person, and
the effect of the enforcement of such judgment will enable one of his
creditors to obtain a greater per cent. of his debt than otbers, an in-
solvent corporation, which confessed judgment in favor of a bank two
months before filing of a petition in bankruptcy against it, under which
the bank was enabled to secure payment of its claim to the exclusion of
other creditors of the same class, gave & “preference” which may be
avoided.

[Ed. Note—TFor other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 278-281;
Dee. Dig. €=162.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Preference.]

5. BANKRUPTCY 6=166(4)—PREFERENCE—INTENT.

Under Bankr. Act July 1, 1898, c. 541, § 60b, 30 Stat. 562, as amended
by Act June 25, 1910, c. 412, § 11, 36 Stat. 842 (Comp. St. 1913, § 9644),
providing that if a bankrupt shall suffer judgment to be entered against
him in favor of any person, and if at the time of entry of judgment, it
being within four months of the filing of the petition in bankruptcy, or
after the filing thereof and before adjudication, the bankrupt be insolvent,
and the judgment then operate as a preference, and the person receiving
it shall have reasonable cause to believe that enforcement would effect a
preference, it shall be voidable by the trustee, the confession, within such
time, of a judgment by an insolvent in favor of one of its creditors,
whereby such creditor was enabled to obtain payment to the exclusion
of other creditors, constitutes the receipt of a preference, regardless of
apy intent on the part of the insolvent or the creditor, where the creditor
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has reasonable cause to believe that the enforcement of such judgment
would effect a preference, though it had no actual knowledge to that
effect,

[EQ. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 250, 251;
Dec. Dig. ¢==166(4).]

6. BANKRUPTCY €=304—PREFERENCE—FINDINGS OF Facr.

In an action to recover property seized under judgment by confession,
on the ground that such judgment constituted a preference within Bankr,
Act, § 60b, as amended in 1910, a finding of fact that at the time the
Judgment was rendered the creditor, which had urged the bankrupt to
pay it to the exclusion of other creditors, had reasonable cause to be-
lieve that the enforcement of the judgment would have that effect, is
sufficient to show that the confession of the judgment worked a prefer-
ence.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 463; Dec.
Dig. &=304.]

7. BANRKRUPTCY €=>168—PROCEEDING8—PREFERENCE,

Where, through the medium of confession of a judgment, a creditor
received a preference, buying in the bankrupt’s property on execution
sale, the creditor, on the preference being set aside, is, under the direct
provisions of Bankr. Act, § 60b, as amended in 1910, liable for the value
of the property.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 234; Dec.
Dig. ¢=168.}

8. BANKRUPTCY &>203—PREFERENCES—PURCHASE ON ExXEcUTION SALE—RE-
COVERY OF PROPERTY,

Bankr. Act, § 67c (Comp. St. 1910, § 9651), provides that any lien, ob-
tained under a judgment by confession against a person within four
months before the filing of a petition in bankruptey by .or against such
Person, shall be dissolved by the adjudication of such person as a bank-
rupt, if the lien was obtained while such person was insolvent, and its
existence will work a preference, or the parties to be benefited had rea-
sonable cause to believe such person was insolvent, or such lien was
sought and permitted in fraud of the provisions of the act, but that
nothing shall destroy or impair the title obtained by such levy, judg-
ment, or lien of a bona fide purchaser who shall have acquired the prop-
erty without notice or reasonable cause for inquiry. Within two months
of the filing of the petition in bankruptcy against it, an insolvent cor-
poration confessed judgment in favor of a bank, The bank bought in its
broperty at execution sale, paying much less than the value of the prop-
erty, and satisfying only two small judgments, which were prior liens;
the debt due the bank being set off against the purchase price. Held
that, as the transaction was a preference, the bank could not claim the
property as a bona fide purchaser without notice.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Dec. Dig. &=203.]

9. BANKRUPTCY @178(1)——PBEF‘ERENCES—-‘“TBANSFEB"—WHAT CoONSTITUTES.

Bankr. Act, § 1 (25) (Comp. St. 1913, § 9585), declares that a transfer

shall include a sale and every other different mode of disposing or part-

ing with property. Sectlon 67e provides that all conveyances, transfers,

assignments, or incumbrances made or given by a person adjudged a

bankrupt within four months prior to the filing of the petition, with in-

tent to hinder, delay, or defraud his creditors, shall be void ag against

such creditors. Held that, in such case, as the transaction was intended

to give the bank a preference over other creditors, it constituted a void-
able transfer.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 264-266,
268-274; Dec. Dig. S=178(1).] .
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At Law. Action by J. Lewis Grant, as trustee in bankruptcy of the
Cayuga Construction Company, against the National Bank of Auburn,
tried by a referee on stipulation of parties. Application for an order
vacating and setting aside report of referee, and for a new trial and
an order directing judgment for defendant. Motion to set aside re-
ports and findings, and for new trial, denied.

See, also, 197 Fed. 581.

This is an application to this court for an order vacating and setting
aside the report of the referee herein, to whom this action was re-
ferred on stipulation of the parties to hear, try, and determine, and
for a new trial and an order directing a judgment for the defendant.
This court is asked to go behind the report and decision of the referee,
and pass upon the correctness of rulings made on the trial, the suffi-
ciency of the evidence to sustain the findings, and also the question
whether or not the findings of fact are sufficient to sustain the conclu-
sions of law and warrant the judgment for the plaintiff ‘directed by
the referee. ‘

G. Earle Treat, of Auburn, N. Y. (Hull Greenfield, of Auburn, N.'
Y., of counsel), for plaintiff. '

Chas. 1. Avery, of Auburn, N. Y. (Frederic E. Storke, of Auburn,
N. Y., of counsel), for defendant.

RAY, District Judge (after stating the facts as above). 'This action
was brought to recover a preference received of the Cayuga Construc-

tion Company, and, being at issue, the parties voluntarily and without
any suggestion from or direction of the court, entered into the follow-
ing stipulation, referring the case to a referee selected by them, viz.:

“In the District Court of the United States for the- Northern District of
New York.

«J, Lewis Grant, as Trustee in Bankruptcy of Cayuga Construction Company,
Plaintiff, against The National Bank of Auburn, Defendant.

“It is hereby stipulated that the above-entitled cause and the issues of law
and of fact therein be referred to Walter E. Woodin, Esq., of Auburn, New
York, counselor at law, as sole referee to hear, try, and determine, and that
upon filing his report judgment may be entered by the clerk in conformity
therewith, without further notice. Tither party may enter an order to the
foregoing effect without further notice. :

“Dated September 30, 1912, G. Earle Treat,

“Attorney for Plaintiff.
“Chas. 1. Avery,
“Attorney for Defendant.”

Thereupon this court on such stipulation entered the following or-
der:
" «At a stated term of the District Court of the United States for the
Northern District of New York, held in the city of Auburn, New York, at
the United States courthouse on the 1st day of October, 1912, Present:
Hon. George W. Ray, Judge Presiding.
“In the Distriet Court of the United States for the Northern District of
New York.
«J. Lewis Grant, as Trustee in Bankruptcy of Cayuga Construction Com-
. pany, Plaintiff, against The National Bank of Auburn, Defendant.
“The above-entitled action, presenting an issue of fact, having been placed
on the calendar of causes for the above term, and the parties thereto having
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by their attorneys filed a stipulation consenting that the issues therein be
referred to Walter E. Woodin, Esq., counselor at law, of the city of Auburn,
New York, to hear, try, and determine: Now, on motion of Charles I. Avery,
Bsq., it is hereby ordered that this cause and all the issues of law and fact
therein are hereby referred to Walter E. Woodin, Esq., of Auburn, New York,
as referee, to hear, try, and determine the same. Judgment shall not be en-
tered until after ten days’ notice of the filing of the report of the referee, and
of the judgment proposed to be entered thereon.
“Geo. W. Ray, U. S. Judge.”

The last clause of this order reading as follows:

“Judgment shall not be entered until after ten days’ notice of the filing of
the report of the referee, and of the Jjudgment proposed to be entered thereon’

—was added by the judge signing the order and was not authorized
by the terms of the stipulation. It was done by the court to safeguard

the rights of the parties and enable the one defeated to see that the
" judgment was in accordance with the findings and directions of the
referee. The case was then duly tried before the referee selected by
the parties, and evidence taken, and thereupon such referee made his
report, in which he finds:

I. That May 19, 1911, a petition in bankruptey against the Cayuga Con-
struction Company was filed; that June 6, 1911, adjudication followed ;
that July 19, 1911, the plaintiff here, J. Lewis Grant, was duly appointed
trustee in bankruptey of the estate and property of said bankrupt; and
that he duly qualified and has since acted as such.

II. That April 13, 1911, less than two months prior to the filing of such pe-
tition in bankruptcy, the said Cayuga Construction Company confessed a
judgment in the Supreme Court of the state of New York in favor of the
National Bank of Auburn, N, Y., this defendant, for the sum of $4,756.86 on
certain notes held by said bank and made by said Construction Company,
and that on the 19th day of April, 1911, Jjudgment was entered and docketed
on said confession and pursuant thereto in Cayuga county clerk’s office for
the sum of $4,772.11, damages and costs, and that on the same day execution
thereon was duly issued and delivered to the sheriff of said county, who
levied, pursuant to direction of the defendant here, the plaintiff in such judg-
ment and execution, upon all the personal property of said Cayuga Con-
struction Company.

III. That at the time last mentioned the sheriff had two other executions
against said Construction Company, issued on judgments for $58.39 in
favor of Auburn Light, Heat & Power Company, and $169.44 in favor of
Wood Glass Company, both entered and docketed April 14, 1911, within the
four months preceding the filing of the petition in bankruptecy, and by virtue
of which the said judgment creditors had issned executions, and levied upon
and advertised for sale the property of said Construction Company.

IV. That the defendant here, the National Bank of Auburn, knew of such
last-mentioned judgments and of such levy, etc.,, when it docketed its Judg-
ment and issued execution.

V. That on the 28th day of April, 1911, the sheriff of Cayuga county sold
all of the personal property of said Cayuga Construction Company, with the
exception of some book accounts of no value, on such three executions, to
the said National Bank of Auburn, for the sum of $3,500, which bank paid
him that sum therefor, and May 11, 1911, returned said smaller executlons
wholly satisfied, and the execution in favor of this defendant, said bank, sat-
isfied as to $3,196.51 and unsatisfied as to the balance. The sheriff returned
said sum of $3,196.51 to the bank to apply on the execution and judgment.

VI. That such property so levied on, and sold and purchased by the de-
fendant bank, was reasonably worth $9,457.54.

VII. That all of such property was sold by the sheriff at the plant of the
said Cayuga Construction Company, and remained there until sold and dis-
posed of. The defendant, the National Bank of Auburn, after such sale,

’
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employed one Byrnes, and he, with the president and secretary of sald Con-
struction Company, sold off and disposed of the lumber, working up some of
it, and using the machinery for that purpose.

VIIL. That at the time of tbe filing of the petition in bankruptcy, and at
the time of the adjudication, and also at the time said judgment was con-
fessed to the bank, and the levy and sale made by the said sheriff, all the
property, real and personal, .of said Cayuga Construction Company, was
worth and of the value of only $13,712.54, of which $4,255 was real estate,
$3,500 machinery, $5,731.79 unmanufactured lumber, and $225.75 interior
furnishings in process of manufacture. The real estate was subject to a
mortgage of $3,000 and interest thereon for six months. The said company
was then owing, including said mortgage, $23,228.38; all of such indebted-
ness except that being unsecured. This includes $476.42 due for labor and
taxes. Aside from such labor, taxes, and the mortgage, such claims were of
the same class. At the time such judgment was confessed to the bank, and
the levy and sale made, the said Cayuga Construction Company was largely
insolvent.

1IX. This Cayuga Construction Company was organized February 29, 1908,
with an issued and paid-up stock of $2,600, all that was ever paid in, and
the said defendant bank was then or soon thereafter informed that all of this
stock had been acquired by John T. West, its president, George F. West, its
secretary, Fred J. Wells, its treasurer, and Fred C. Almutt, a director; each
owning at that time seven shares. In 1909 the said company purchased the
real estate before mentioned for $5,800. This was all the real estate it ever
owned, except a vacant lot used as a lumber *yard. The company’s busi-
ness was the manufacture of interior woodwork for houses, etc. Soon after
commencing business it commenced transacting its banking business with
this defendant, the National Bank of Auburn, and up to February 11, 1909, had
borrowed of it $1,500 on notes indorsed by said officers of the company. Un-
der date of February 11, 1909, the company made a statement to the bank,
giving its total resources as $6,800, and October 10, 1910, it gave to the
bank a statement of its resources without new capital as $35,700, and its
indebtedness as less than $4,500. March 5, 1911, about five months there-
after, it stated to the bank its resources as $25,000, without change of capital,
a falling off or loss of over $10,000 in resources, and its debts and liabilities
as $10,800, an increase in indebtedness in about six months of some $6,300.
Of this indebtedness the bank then held $4,550 in notes of the company in-
dorsed by the two Wests and by its attorney to the extent of $3,000. This
attorney for the bank was the one with whom the officers of the bank con-
sulted in arranging for said confession of judgment. These statements were
in writing and held by the bank. The statement of March 5, 1911, was in
response to a suggestion from Mr. Keeler, cashier of the bank, to the presi-
dent of such company, Mr. West, that he, West, was becoming careless about
his obligations, and@ Mr. West then informed Mr. Keeler that the company
had been speculating in lumber and was owing the officers of the company con-
siderable sums of money loaned to the company and for wages, all of which
information was communicated to the president of the bank.

That on or about March 5, 1911, the time when this information was ac-
quired, the defendant bank, through its said officers, began to negotiate with
said company, through its president and its said attorney, for a confes-
sion of judgment by the company to the bank “for the purpose of obtaining
an advantage over the other creditors of said company,” and that “said
bank had reasonable cause to believe when said confession was finally ob-
tained that the said Construction Company was insolvent, and that the en-
forcement of said judgment would work a preference in favor of said bank
(defendant here) over the other creditors of said bankrupt (company) of
the same class, and enable said bank to obtain a greater percentage of its
said debt than other creditors of said company of the same class.”

The referee also finds:

«That the enforcement of said judgment as aforesaid did work the prefer-
ence above mentioned, and did hinder, delay, and deprive the other creditors
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of said bankrupt of their lawful shares in the property of said bankrupt,
and both parties to said judgment intended to bring about said results when
8aid confession of judgment was made.”

The referee also finds a demand was made of the bank by the trus-
tee for a return of the property and and its proceeds, etc. The con-
clusions of law, somewhat mixed with findings of fact, are as follows:

“That said confessed judgment filed in Cayuga county clerk’s office April
19, 1911, in favor of said defendant bank and against said Construction
Company for $4,773.11, damages and costs, was void, because made while
said company was insolvent, and at a time when the defendant had reason-
able cause to believe plaintiff to be insolvent, and reasonable cause to be-
lieve that the enforcement of said judgment would work a preference in
favor of said bank, and enable said bank to obtain a greater percentage of
its debts against said Construction Company than other creditors of said
company of the same class.

“II. That said confessed judgment and all proceedings thereunder was
and are void, because said judgment and the sale was made and consented
to by both the parties thereto with intent to hinder and delay the other
creditors of said bankrupt, and with intent to deprive the other creditors
of said bankrupt of their rights to share equally, as provided by the bank-
ruptey law of the United States, in the property of said bankrupt.

“IIL. That said confessed judgment was and is void, because it did hinder,
delay, and deprive the creditors of said bankrupt of their rights in the property
of said bankrupt and was so intended by the parties thereto.

“IV. That said confessed judgment is void, because made, entered, and en-
forced against the property of said bankrupt within four months prior fo
its adjudication in bankruptey, and while said company was insolvent.

“V. That the plaintiff and trustee in bankruptey of the Cayuga Con-
struction Company is entitled to recover of the National Bank of Auburn,
defendant, the sum of $9,154.05, being the value of the property taken from
said company under said confessed judgment and sale, with interest thereon
since July 26, 1911, less the sum of $303.49 retained by the sheriff as afore-
said; such interest amounting at the date of this report to the sum of §1,-
727.05, the total amount to be recovered by the plaintiff against the defendant
being the sum of $10,881.10, for which sum judgment is hereby directed to
be entered, with the costs of this action.”

It would seem clear that the facts found justify the conclusions of
law, or some of them, and sufficient of them to authorize and justify
the judgment directed for $10,881.10, including $1,727.05 interest, and
being the value of the property taken by the bank less the $303.49 re-
tained by the sheriff and paid on the small judgments and executions.

[1] The trial and determination of the issues involved in the plead-
ings were voluntarily taken from the court by the act and stipulation
of the parties themselves. They stipulated and agreed that the case
should be tried by and before Mr. Woodin, as referee, they selecting
and naming him, and that he should hear, try, and determine same;
and more, the parties stipulated and agreed that “upon filing his re-
port judgment may be entered by the clerk in conformity therewith
without further notice,” and also that “either party may enter an order
to the foregoing effect without further notice.” “This reserved noth-
ing for the court, but eliminated it entirely, and made little, if anything,
more than an arbitration of it. This stipulation cannot be disregarded
or varied. It was the solemn deliberate act of the parties. It was
the authority for all that was done; the court having sanctioned that
disposition of the case. Nothing was reserved to the court or for the
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court. ‘The only restriction on this stipulation imposed by the court
was that:

«Judgment shall not be entered until after ten days’ notice of the filing of
the report of the referee, and of the judgment proposed to be entered.”

But for this provision imposed by the court, the successful party, on
the filing of the report, could have entered his judgment and issued
execution before the other party was aware of what the decision of
the referee was. I do not see that this court has any power or right
to examine the evidence, or the correctness of the rulings of the referee
in the admission or rejection of evidence, or in refusing requests to
find facts, or in making findings of fact. If conclusions of law suffi-
cient to support the judgment directed are supported and justified by
the findings of fact, then judgment as directed may and must be enter-
ed on the stipulation and findings of fact and conclusions of law and
pursuant thereto. David Lupton Sons v. Auto Club of America, 225
U. S. 489, 494, 495, 32 Sup. Ct. 711, 56 L. Ed. 1177, Ann. Cas. 1914A,
599, and cases there cited.

[2] The reasons are twofold: First, the parties have stipulated that
a referee named by themselves should hear, try and determine the case
and that judgment be entered on his decision; second, there is no law
of Congress authorizing such a reference, or preserving to, or in, or
conferring on, the court any power to review the findings of fact made
by the referee, when such a reference is agreed upon by the parties or
to review his rulings on the admission or rejection of evidence. For
this reason the court itself originally had only the common-law powers
in such cases, and could exercise no other unless expressly reserved
to the court by the stipuldtion, if indeed such reservation could have
been made, inasmuch as judicial power cannot be conferred by stip-
ulation or agreement of the parties. “Where the parties agree that
the court shall decide questions both of law and fact, none of the ques-
tions decided, either of fact or law, can be reviewed by this court (the
Supreme Court) on a writ of error.” Campbell v. Boyreau, 21 How.
223, 225, 226, 16 L. Ed. 96. In so deciding, and the case has been
steadily followed since the decision was rendered, the court after stat-
ing that, in the absence of statutory authority of Congress, the courts
of the United States, so far as questions of law are concerned, are
regulated in their modes of proceeding according to the rules and prin-
ciples of the common law, said:

«rphe finding of issues of fact by the court upon the evidence is altogether
unknown to a common-law court, and cannot be recognized as a judicial act.
Such questions are exclusively within the province of the jury; and if, by
agreement of parties, the questions of fact in dispute are submitted for deci-
sion to the judge upon the evidence, he does not exercise judicial authority in
deciding, but acts rather in the character of arbitrator. And this court,
therefore, cannot regard the facts so found as judicially determined in the
court below, nor examine the questions of law as if these facts had been
conclusively determined by a jury or settled by the admission of the parties.
Nor can any exception be taken to an opinion of the court upon the admis-
sion or rejection of testimony, or upon any other question of law which may
grow out of the evidence, unless a jury was actually impaneled and the ex-
ception reserved while they were still at the bar. The statute which gives

the exception in a trial at common law gives it only in such cases.”
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Later statutory provision was made whereby the parties may n
writing waive a trial by jury and try the case before the court itself,
and when this is done the case may be reviewed on exceptions taken
in the usual manner. But no provision by law has been made for re-
ferring by stipulation of the parties an action at law to a referee se-
lected by the parties to hear, try, and determine, especially when it is
also stipulated that judgment is to be entered on the decision of such
referee. Hence such a reference takes on the character of an ar-
bitration, or of a mere trial before the judge as arbitrator, i the ab-
sence of a written stipulation waiving a jury trial and consenting to a
trial before the court without a jury. The result is that this court is
without power to examine the evidence in this case, to ascertain wheth-
er it is sufficient to sustain the findings of fact, or to review the rulings
on the admission or rejection of evidence, or the refusal of the referee
to find certain facts as requested or to grant a new trial.

This is now established by a long line of authority. In New York
& Cumberland R. R. Co. v. Myers, 18 How. 246, 250, 253, 15 L. Ed.
380, the parties before trial, as here, agreed upon a reference, and the
court held:

«This conclusion of his (the referee) is a final decision on the question,
for this court cannot revise his mistakes, either of law or of fact, if such had
been established. Burchell v. Marsh, 17 How. 344 [15 L. Ed. 96]; Kleine V.
Catara, 2 Gall. 61 [Fed. Cas. No. 7,8691.”

In Bond v. Dustin, 112 U. S. 604, 5 Sup. Ct. 296, 28 L. Ed. 835,
the question was up again, and Mr. Justice Gray went more or less
into the common-law doctrine and the change or modification made
by Act March 3, 1865, c. 86, § 4, and carried into the Revised Statutes
of the United States (13 Stat. 501; Rev. St. §§ 649, 700; 1 U. S.
Comp. St. 1913, § 1587), and quoted from Campbell v. Boyreau, supra,
and which statute provides for the waiver in writing of a trial by
jury, and there said:

“Since the passage of this statute it is equally well settled by a series of
decisions that this court cannot consider the correctness of rulings at the
trial of an action by the Circuit Court without a jury, unless the record
shows such a wawer of a jury as the statute requires, by stipulation in writ-
iﬁg, signe)d by the parties or their attorneys, and filed with the clerk” (citing
the cases).

The learned justice then says:

“The only evidence of a waiver of a jury is the statement in the record
that when the case came on for trial the issue joined by consent is tried by
the court, a jury being waived,” and in the recital at the beginning of the
bill of exceptions, ‘“The above cause coming on for trial by agreement of
parties was tried by the court, without the intervention of a jury.”

The court then held this insufficient to comply with the statute pro-
viding for the waiver of a trial by jury i writing and said:

«Phe necessary conclusion is that this court has no authority to consider
the exceptions to the admission of evidence at the trial.”

The statute referred to reads as follows:

“Sec. 1587. (R. S. § 649.) Trial of Issues of Fact by the Court. Issues of
fact in civil cases in apny Circuit Court may be tried and determined by

232 F.—14
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the court, without the intervention of a jury, whenever the parties, or their
attorneys of record, file with the clerk a stipulation in writing waiving a Jury.
The finding of the court updn the facts, which may be either general or
special, shall have the same effect as the verdict of g jury.”

By section 700, R. S. U. S. (section 1668, 1 Comp. St. U. . 1913),
the Supreme Court may consider the exceptions when the reference
has been made as provided by section 1587, supra. The latest case of
which I am aware is David Lupton Sons v. Auto Club of America,
225 U. S. 480, 494, 495, 32 Sup. Ct. 711, 712 [56 L. Ed. 1177, Ann.
Cas. 1914A, 699], where Mr. Justice Hughes, in giving the opinion
of the court, says:

“Upon written stipulation the action was referred to q referee to hear and
determine the issues. The referee reported his findings of fact and conclu-
sions of law, holding that the contract was void under the statute and that
the complaint should be dismissed. * #* # As the trial was had before
the referee pursuant to the stipulation, the only question presented here is
whether there is any error of law in the judgment rendered by the court
upon the facts found by the referee. The findings of fact are conclusive in
this court. We-cannot review any of the exceptions to those findings or to
the requal of the referee to find facts as requested”—citing several cases.

When we consider the foundation for and reason of this rule and
line of decisions, we see that when a stipulation is made by the parties,
or their attorneys, agreeing upon a referee and submitting the case to
him to “hear, try, and determine,” and especially when the stipulation
provides for the entry of judgment accordingly on his report, the
court itself has nothing to do, no judicial power in the premises, ex-
cept to see that judgment is entered according to the findings and
the directions made by such referee. The District Court has no great-
er judicial power than the Supreme Court of the United States, or
the Circuit Court of Appeals, and cannot review or correct errors of
such referee, if any, in the admission or rejection of evidence, his
holding as to the sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the findings, or
his refusals to find as requested. This court can only look to the
pleadings to see if the findings are within the issues framed and to
the facts found, to ascertain whether the facts found sustain the con-
clusions of law, or sufficient of them to sustain the judgment directed
and entered. Such a trial before a referee is little more than an arbi-
tration, as has been more than once decided in this, the Second circuit,
and other circuits. Steel et al. v, Lord, 93 Fed. 728, 35 C. C. A. 555;
Parker et al. v. Ogdensburg & 1. C. R. Co., 79 Fed. 817,25 C. C. A.
205; Chicago, M. & St. P. R. Co. v..Clark, 92 Fed. 968, 35 C. C. A.
120; Hudson River Pulp & Paper Co. v. H. H. Warner & Co., 99
Fed. 187, 39°C. C. A. 452; J. G. White & Co. v. Ball Eng. Co., 223
Fed. 618, 139 C. C. A. 286; Edenborn v. Sim, 206 Fed. 275, 124 C.
C. A. 339. In J. G. White & Co. v. Ball Eng. Co,, supra, the Circuit
Court of Appeals in this, the Second, circuit, said :

“The trial was before a referee, called in Connecticut a ‘committee,” and
therefore the only question before us for consideration is whether his find-
ings of fact sustain the judgment. We can look only at the pleadings, order
of reference, findings of fact, conclusions of law, and judgment of the court.
We cannot consider the testimony, the exhibits (except so far as included in
the findings of fact), or the refusals of the committee to find.”
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As seen, the powers of the District Court in these respects are no
broader or greater then are those of the Circuit Court of Appeals or
Supreme Court. See, also, Alder v. Edenborn (D. C.) 198 Fed. 930,
and Del. L. & W. R. Co. v. Caboni, 223 Fed. 631, 139 C. C. A. 177.
It was not an agreement or stipulation to take the evidence out of
court, and then submit it with recommended findings of fact to the
court, a jury trial being waived by written stipulation, for its review
and decision, but a transfer of the case to the referee for trial before
and by him, and for his decision, and for a judgment thereon.
~[3] The learned counsel for the defendant urges old rule 22 (Blatch-

ford’s Rules [Ed. 1884] 622), but it requires no argument to show
that a rule of court cannot confer judicial power on a District Court,
or any other court, unless such rule is expressly authorized by some
law of Congress, and there is no such statute. This court has no
power to set aside or disregard the findings of fact of the referee, or
disregard his conclusions of law, if authorized by the facts found,
or to grant a new trial, or to disregard or modify the stipulation of
the parties. The appointment of arbitrators or referees at common
law, and common-law arbitrators, were well known; but such arbi-
trators neither possessed nor exercised judicial powers, and were not
even required to report and return the facts found. See Hecker v.
Fowler, 2 Wall. 123, 17 L. Ed. 759. :

[4] By section 60a of the Bankruptcy Act a person, and this in-
cludés a corporation, is deemed to have given a preference if, being
insolvent, he has, within four months before the filing of the petition
in bankruptcy, either procured or suffered a judgment to be entered
against himself in favor of any person, and the effect of the enforce-
ment of such judgment will be to enable any one of his creditors to
obtain a greater percentage of his debt than any other of such cred-
itors of the same class. This Construction Company was heavily in-
solvent, and knew it, and not only suffered, but procured, this large
judgment to be procured and entered against itself. The effect of the
enforcement of the judgment would be, as it well knew, to give to
the bank substantially everything it owned, and a greater percentage
of its claim than any other creditor of the same class. It is clear,
therefore, that the Cayuga Construction Company gave a preference
to each of the judgment creditors named.

[5,6] By section 60b of the same act it is provided that, if a bank-
rupt shall have suffered a judgment to be entered against him in fa-
vor of any person, and if at the time of the entry of the judgment,
it being within four months before the filing of the petition in bank-
ruptcy, the bankrupt be insolvent, and the judgment then operate as a
preference, and the person, including a bank, shall then have reason-
able cause to believe that the enforcement of such judgment would
effect a preference, such judgment is voidable by the trustee and he
may recover the property o7 its value from the person or bank receiv-
ing the preference. That these judgments and the sales thereunder,
and the transfer of the property to the bank by a sale thereunder, op-
erated as a preference, cannot be questioned. The referee has found
on the evidence given and produced before him that the bank did have
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reasonable cause to believe that the enforcement of the judgment would
effect a preference. The referee finds, not only that the bank knew
of large indebtedness to other persons and of the two other judgments,
but that the bank by its officers consulted as to steps and means to ob-
tain the property of its debtor in preference to other creditors. The
bank, by issuing execution, and selling, or causing to be sold, and pur-
chasing this property, perfected the payment to itself of a preference.
This court cannot, and no appellate court in the face of the stipula-
tion can, go behind that finding of the referee, and examine the evi-
dence, to ascertain and determine whether such evidence sustains this
finding of fact. That is not within the power of this court, or of any
appellate court. .

Since the amendment to the bankruptcy law of 1910, if the bank
knew, or had reasonable cause to believe, that its debt would be sat-
isfied in whole or in part by the confession of the judgment, and its
filing and docket, and the issuing of an execution thereon, and a levy
and sale thereunder of all the personal property of the Cayuga Con-
struction Company, to the exclusion of other creditors of such com-
pany of the same class, it constituted the receipt of a preference re-
gardless of any intent on the part of the company or of the bank, and
the trustee may recover the property received under and through such
sale, or its value. To establish reasonable cause to believe it is not
necessary to prove either actual knowledge or actual belief, but such
circumstances and conditions, within the knowledge of the party re-
ceiving the preference, as naturally would lead a man of ordinary
prudeénce and intelligence, had he been the creditor receiving the pref-
erence, to arrive at the conclusion that the judgment, levy, and sale
would result in a preference, and the creditor must have such knowl-
edge of facts and circumstances as would reasonably induce the belief
that his debtor was insolvent. Aronin v. Security Bank of New York,
228 Fed. 838, 890, — C. C. A. —, where the Circuit Court of Ap-
peals said that reasonable cause to believe is shown when it appears
that:

“The bank received the accounts under such ‘circumstances as naturally

would have caused an ordinary person, * * =+ receiving the preference to
have believed that thereby a Dreference would be effected.”

See also to the same precise effect Pratt v. Columbia Bank (D. C))
157 Fed. 137, 18 Am. Bankr. R. 406, 415; In re Neill-Pinckney-Max-
well Co. (D. C)) 170 Fed. 481, 22 Am. Bankr. R. 401.

It is sufficient if the facts brought to the knowledge of the person
to be affected are such as would produce action and inquiry on the
part of an ordinarily intelligent man (Grant v. Bank, 97 U. S. 80, 24
L. Ed. 971), or a prudent business man (Bank v. Cook, 95 U. S. 343,
24 L. Ed. 412; Toof v. Martin, 13 Wall. 40, 20 L. Ed. 481), or a
person of ordinary prudence and discretion (Wager v. Hall, 16 Wall.
584, 21 L. Ed. 504). Facts which would put an intelligent business
man. upon inquiry constitute reasonable cause to believe, if purpose
or intent to prefer would be discovered by making and following up
the inquiry. Stern v. Paper (D. C.) 183 Fed. 228, 25 Am. Bankr. R.
451; Tilt v. Citizens’ Trust Co. (D. C.) 191 Fed. 441, 27 Am. Bankr.
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R. 320. In this case the defendant was not only put on inquiry, but
made inquiry, and as a result secured the judgment by confession
speedily and made a speedy sale thereunder.

On the question of preference, therefore, the inquiry is: Do the
findings of fact make out the necessary “reasonable cause to believe”
on the part of the defendant, the National Bank of Auburn? The
finding of fact is that the bank did have at the time mentioned such
reasonable cause to believe that the enforcement of the judgment
would effect a preference.” I think this is a sufficient finding. The
findings of fact are not to embrace a statement of the evidence, or of
all the minor facts proved which together establish the main fact.
The fact necessary to be established by evidence was that the National
Bank of Auburn, at the time it received or obtained and filed this con-
fession of judgment, docketed same, and issued execution thereon,
and sold the property thereunder, or had it sold, and took possession
of such property, then had reasonable cause to believe that such en-
forcement of such judgment and transfer of property to itself would
effect a preference; that is, enable the bank to obtain a greater per-
centage of its debt than any other of such creditors of the same class.
Proof or establishment of this fact was necessarily made up of proof
of many facts and circumstances established to the satisfaction of
the referee, such as proof of insolvency, the existence of other cred-
itors, and actual knowledge on the part of the bank, or knowledge
of such facts and circumstances as gave it knowledge of such facts
as satisfied the referee that the bank had, or was chargeable with, the
knowledge of conditions required by the law. It must be assumed that
the evidence was sufficient to sustain and warrant this finding of
fact.

[7] It is claimed by the defendant that the bank cannot be charged
with more than the sum bid and paid for the property on the execu-
tion sale made by the sheriff, in the absence of proof that the sale
was a sham or unfairly conducted. But the law says that the trustee
in bankruptcy may recover from the one who has received the prefer-
ence either the property or its value. The language is:

«It [the preference] shall be voidable by the trustee and he may recover
the property [received] or its value from such person.”

Here the property was seized by the sheriff under this defendant’s
execution and sold, and the defendant bank bid it in and took posses-
sion and disposed of it, and on demand refused to give it up, or its
proceeds. The trustee gave to the bank an opportunity to surrender
the property, which it did not do. When property is fairly and openly
sold at public sale on due notice, the amount for which sold is some
evidence of its value, but not final, conclusive, or determinative of
that question of value. When this property was levied on and sold
by the sheriff under this execution (and the two smaller ones) there
was no trustee; the Construction Company was insolvent and had
confessed the judgment, and there is neither proof nor pretense that
the general creditors had any information as to the judgment or sale.
-Therefore the price for which this property sold on the execution sale
is not determinative of its value. The referee found its value as above
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stated, and the assumption is that this . finding was based on evidence,
and, as seen, this court cannot go behind that finding.

[8] Inasmuch as the findings of the referee as to a preference fully
support the conclusions of law based thereon and support the judgment
directed, it is not necessary for this court to consider or pass upon the
question of actual fraud, etc., under other sections and provisions of the
Bankruptcy Act, and the sufficiency of the findings of fact to sustain
the conclusions of law on that subject. The facts found present a case
where the creditor, the defendant bank, having reasonable cause to be-
lieve that its debtor, the Cayuga Construction Company, was insolvent
and unable to pay its unsecured creditors in full, and intending and
designing to obtain payment of its claim in full through a confession
of judgment in its favor, issue of execution, and levy and sale of the
property of such debtor, and payment of its judgment and debt there-
by in preference to such other creditors of the same class, negotiated
with its debtor to secure from it such a confession of judgment in its
favor, intending to file and docket such judgment, issue execution
thereon, levy on the property of the debtor, and sell same, and either
purchase the property or receive the proceeds of such sale to apply
on its debt, to the exclusion of the other creditors of said Construc-
tion Company, and to obtain an advantage over them and secure its
payment in full before .they should receive anything. These negotia-
tions were actually had, and both the debtor and the creditor agreed
upon such course of procedure for the purpose indicated and stated,
and both had the intent and object stated and indicated. Pursuant
thereto, and in execution of such arrangement, the judgment was con-
fessed by the debtor, the confession was received and filed by the cred-
itor, and judgment docketed. Then, in pursuance and in execution of
the same purpose, execution was issued and placed in the hands of
the sheriff, and the creditor directed a levy and sale. The levy and
sale were made; the creditor became the purchaser, received the
property, and paid over the purchase price to the sheriff, and then re-
ceived same back to apply on its debt against the Construction Com-
pany, less the amount necessary to pay the two prior judgments,
amounting to about $300, all 'of which was done in execution of the
said purpose and understanding.

The intent and purpose of both parties was to hinder and delay the
other creditors and “deprive” them of their share in such property
on the basis of.an equal distribution to creditors of the same class.
in the case of actual insolvency, and which equal distribution in such .
cases is the policy and purpose of the Bankruptcy Act. If this was
not a fraud upon the act, it is hard to conceive what would be. If a
trustee in bankruptcy cannot recover in such a case, it is difficult to
conceive of a case where a trustee in bankruptcy may recover. If the
trustee in bankruptcy may not recover from the creditor, who became-
the purchaser and who parted with no new consideration, the proceeds
of such a sale of the igsolvent debtor’s property, why should he re-
cover the property by use of injunction to stay the sale before actual
sale? In one view a preference has been effected, and the property
or its value may be recovered. In the other view, a fraud on the-



GRANT V. NATIONAL BANK OF AUBURN 215

Bankruptcy Act has been consummated, and the proceeds may be re-
covered from the party thereto having same in his or its possession.

The referee has found that at the time of the confession of judg-
ment to the bank the Construction Company was indebted to various
persons, including the defendant, in the sum of $23,228.38, all unse-
cured except $3,000 and interest, which was secured by a mort-
gage on the real estate of the company. He has also found that the
total value of all the property of the Construction Company was $13,-
712.54. In addition to these figures found by him, the referee finds :

«“That at the time of said confession of judgment to defendant bank, and
at the time of its entry and enforcement as aforesaid [referring to the sale

and purchase by the bank], the said Cayuga Construction Company was in-
solvent.”

The referee has found that certain written statements were made
to the bank, one of which, just before the confession of judgment,
showed a large falling off in assets and a large increase in liabilities,
and that information was given the bank that the company had been
speculating in lumber and was owing its officers considerable sums of
money loaned to the company and also wages, and also that the bank
knew that the president of the company was getting careless about its
obligations, etc. The referee has also found that about March 5,
1911, the defendant bank, through its said officers, began to negotiate
with said bankrupt (the company), through its said president and Mr.
Whelan, for a confession of judgment by the bankrupt to the defend-
ant bank, for the purpose of obtaining an advantage over the other
creditors of said bankrupt, and that the bank then had reasonable cause
to believe, when the confession was obtained, that the Construction
Company was insolvent, and that the enforcement of the judgment
confessed would work a preference in favor of the bank over the other
creditors of the said bankrupt of the same class, and enable the said
bank to obtain a greater percentage of its debt than other creditors of
the company of the same class. The referee also finds that:

“The enforcement of sald judgment as aforesaid did work the preference
above mentioned, and did hinder, delay, and*deprive the other creditors of
said bankrupt of their lawful shares in the property of said bankrupt, and
both parties to said judgment {referring to the judgment confessed to the

bank] intended to bring about said results when said confession of judgment
was made.”

All this was within the four months period. As matter of law the
referee finds:
“That said confessed judgment was and is void, because it did hinder, de-

lay, and deprive the creditors of said bankrupt of their rights in the prop-
erty of said bankrupt, and was so intended by the parties thereto.”

This judgment confessed by the company to the bank was almost im-
mediately filed, and judgment docketed pursuant thereto, and execu-
tion thereon was placed in the hands of the sheriff, and the property
was sold and bid in and taken possession of by the bankrupt. By is-
suing the execution and making the levy: the bank within the four
months period secured a lien on the personal property, and through it
took the property and appropriated the proceeds of the sale thereof
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to its own use and in payment of its own debt, so far as it would go;
the sheriff applying a small portion to the payment of the two small
judgments referred to. By section 67¢ of the Bankruptcy Act it is pro-
vided that:

“A lien created by or obtained in or pursuant to any suit or proceeding
at law or in equity, including an attachment Upon mesne process or a judg-
ment by confession, which was begun against a person within four. months
before the filing of a petition in bankruptcy by or against such person shall
be dissolved by the adjudication of such person to be a bankrupt if (1) it
appears that said lien was obtained and permitted while the defendant was
insolvent and that its existence and enforcement will work a preference, or
(2) the party or parties to be benefited thereby had reasonable cause to be-
lieve the defendant was insolvent and in contemplation of bankruptey, or (3)
that such lien was sought and permitted in fraud of the provisions of this
act.,”

The same section provides:

“That all levies, judgments, attachments, or other lens, obtained through
legal proceedings against a person who is insolvent, at any time within four
months prior to the filing of a petition in bankruptey against him, shall be
deemed null and void in case he is adjudged a bankrupt, and the property
affected by the levy, judgment, attachment, or other lien shall be deemed
wholly discharged and released from the same, and shall pass to the trustee
as a part of the estate of the bankrupt, unless,” ete.

.

It is also provided in the same section as follows:

“That nothing herein contained shall have the effect to destroy or impair
the title obtained by such levy, judgment, attachment or other lien, of a
bona fide purchaser for value who shall have acquired the same without
notice or reasonable cause for inquiry.”

There can be no pretense here that the defendant bank was a bona
fide purchaser for value, who acquired the property without notice or
reasonable cause for inquiry. The defendant bank purchased this
property at the execution sale and took possession of it. It was pur-
- chased under a sale made by virtue of the two smaller judgments and
this large judgment. There was no necessity for selling but a small
part of the lumber to satisfy the two smaller judgments. The sheriff
was acting under the directions of the bank, and under the facts found
it cannot be doubted that the bank intended, by obtaining the judgment,
issuing the execution, procuring the sale, and purchasing the property,
to hinder and delay the other creditors of the company, and prevent
the other creditors from obtaining any part of the property or its
proceeds. It cannot be doubted that the defendant bank also intended:
to deprive the other unsecured creditors of any remedy against the
property, and to secure the property for itself before bankruptcy pro-
ceedings could be instituted.

In Clarke v. Larremore, 188 U. S. 486, 23 Sup. Ct. 363, 47 L. Ed.
555, judgment was obtained within the four months period, execution
issued, levy and a sale thereunder made, but the sheriff, before paying
the money over to the judgment creditor, was enjoined in a state court
by another creditor from paying the money over. Immediately there-
after the state court vacated the injunction, but while the money was
still in the hands of the sheriff, and before the time to return the exe-
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cution had expired, a petition in bankruptcy was filed against the judg-
ment debtor. It was held that the money accruing from the sale un-
der the execution and levy did not belong to the judgment creditor,
but went under section 67f of the Bankruptcy Act to the trustee in
bankruptcy. The court said:

“A different question might have arisen if the writ had been fully executed
by payment to the execution creditor. Whether the bankruptey proceedings
would then so far affect the judgment and execution and that which was done
under them as to justify a recovery by the trustee in bankruptey from the
execution creditor, is a question not before us, and may depend on many oth-
er considerations.” ' ' :

Here, as seen, the money was paid over to the bank by the sheriff
before the institution of bankruptcy proceedings.

In Re Resnek et al. (D. C.) 167 Fed. 574, it was held that where,
within four months before the filing of a petition in bankruptcy against
an insolvent debtor, an execution has been issued, and a levy and sale
made, and the proceeds paid over to the judgment creditor before the
filing of the petition in bankruptcy, the case does not fall within the
provisions of section 67f of the Bankruptcy Act, and the lien created
by the judgment and levy is not rendered void by the adjudication.
The court said:

“The remedy, if any, the trustee has against the creditor, is under the
provisions of section 60a and 60b of the Bankrupt Act in & plenary action,
where it will be necessary to allege and show that the creditor had reason-

able cause to believe that the bankrupt, by suffering judgment to be taken
against him, intended to give a preference.”

The court cited In re Blair (D. C.) 102 Fed. 987; In re Bailey (D.
C.) 144 Fed. 214; In re Knickerbocker (D. C.) 121 Fed. 1004.
[8] Section 1(25) provides:

“Transfer shall include the sale and every other and different mode of dis-
posing of or parting with property, or the possession of property, absolutely
or conditionally, as a payment, pledge, mortgage, gift or security.”

Section 67¢ of the Bankruptcy Act provides:

“That all conveyances, transfers, assignments, or incumbrances of his prop-
erty, or any part thereof, made or given by a person adjudged a bankrupt
under the provisions of this act subsequent to the passage of this act and
within four months prior to the filing of the petition, with the intent and
purpose on his part to hinder, delay, or defraud his creditors, or any of them,
shall be null and void as against the creditors of such debtor, except as to
purchasers in good faith and for a present fair consideration; and all prop-
erty of the debtor conveyed, transferred, assigned, or encumbered as afore-
said shall, if he be adjudged a bankrupt, and the same is not exempt from
execution and liability for debts by the law of his domicile, be and remain
a part of the assets and estate of the bankrupt and shall pass to his said
trustee, whose duty it shall be to recover and reclaim the same by legal
proceedings or otherwise for the benefit of the creditors.”

It may be that a mere confession of judgment, followed by judg-
ment entered, execution issued, levy, and sale, is not to be regarded as
a conveyance within this section; but when the insolvent debtor and
the creditor (bankrupt) agree, for the purpose of securing an advan-
tage to this one creditor over other creditors, on this mode of disposing
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of the property, and the judgment is confessed, and the execution is
_issued, and levy and sale made, and the creditor becomes the pur-
chaser and holds the property, first paying the sum bid and then receiv-
ing it back from the sheriff on his debt, and the intent of both was to
. transfer the property or its proceeds to the said creditor to the exclu-
sion of others, what is the transaction but*a “transfer” as defined in
section 1, to the creditor? It is but a mode adopted by the parties
of disposing of the property of the debtor in payment to his creditor.
Here that is exactly what was accomplished. It will be noted that all
through section 67 the language is “hinder, delay or defraud,” notf
“hinder, delay and defraud.” 1 am of opinion that this sale of this
property of the Construction Company under the execution and levy all
of which was within the understanding between the bank and such
company, and all of which was done to hinder and delay the other
creditors of the company and deprive them of a share in the proceeds
of the property, and which sale transferred the property to the bank
and resulted in a payment of the proceeds to it on its pre-existing debt,
was a “transfer” within the meaning of section 67e, and, the property
having been demanded of the bank, the trustee may recover its value
on that ground. I am aware that it is not necessary to so hold in this
case, as under the facts found by the referee there was clearly a pref-
erence, which the trustee may recover, and the plaintiff is entitled to
the judgment directed by the referee.
I find no irregularities in the mode of procedure, and the motion to
set aside the report and findings and for a new trial is denied.
There will be an order accordingly.

UNITED STATES v. JONES.
(District Court, D. Oregon. March 31, 1916.)
No. 5606. '

1. PusLic LANDS €&=123—Di1sPoSAL BY UNITED STATES—FINAL PRoOF—
FRAUD—MATERIALITY.

Act Aug. 15, 1894, c. 290, § 15, 28 Stat. 326, providing for the disposi-
tion of certain ceded Indian lands, required actual residence thereon, and
did not permit time spent in military service to be deducted, as per-
mitted by Rev. St. §§ 2304, 2305 (Comp. St. 1913, §§ 4592, 4593), and Act
Jan. 26, 1901, c. 180, 31 Stat. 740 (Comp. St. 1913, § 5014). An entryman
made fraudulent misrepresentations in final proof of a homestead claim
to such land, which proof showed that he claimed the right to deduct his
time of military service. This deduction was allowed by the government
through mistake of law. Held, that the misrepresentations were not as
to a material fact, and did not authorize recovery of damages by the
United States.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, Dec. Dig. €=123.]
2. PuBLic LaNDS &=123—DisPoSAL BY UNITED STATES—FINAL PrRoOF—
*  FBAUD—MATERIALITY—ESTOPPEL.

The rule that a party who has effected his purpose through a misrepre-
sentation cannot deny its materiality does not affect the case, since

@=>For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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estoppel cannot go so far as to make material that which is absolutely not
material, and so appears by the transaction and the law governing it.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, Dec. Dig. €>123.]

3. PuBLic LANDS &=123—DisPosAL BY UNITED STATES—REMEDY FOR FRAUD
—QUESTION FOR JURY.
The question whether fraudulent representations, by which the entryman
obtained patent to homestead, were material, is a question for the court,
not the jury.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, Dec. Dig. €=123.]

4. PuBLic LANDS &=123—DisrosaL BY UNITED STATES—FINAL PrOOFP—
FRAUD—MATERIALITY.

Fraudulent misrepresentations by a homestead entryman in making an
application for commutation, which showed that he had not resided on
the entry for the period required by Rev. St. § 2301 (Comp. St. 1913, §
4589), were not misrepresentations as to a material fact, and do not give
the government the right to recover damages, though it allowed the com-
mutation through a mistake of law.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, Dec. Dig. ¢=123.]

5. PuBLIC LANDS &2123—DAMAGES—MEASURE—DETERMINATION—DEMURRER
TO ANSWER.
The question of the damages recoverable for fraud by homestead entry-
man will not be determined on demurrer to answer relating wholly to
the measure of damages.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Public Lands, D(_ec. Dig. ¢=123.]

At Law. Action for damages by the United States against Willard
N. Jones. On demurrers to special answers of the defendant. De-
murrer sustained as to the second defense, and overruled as to the
third.

See, also, 218 Fed. 973.

This is an action to recover damages, based upon fraud and deceit. By
Act Aug. 15, 1894, ¢ 290, § 15, 28 Stat. 286, 326, provision was made for dis-
position of certain ceded lands, formerly a part of the Siletz reservation, in
language following: “The mineral lands shall be disposed of under the laws
applicable thereto, and the balance of the land so ceded shall be disposed of
until further provided by law under the townsite law and under the provisions
of the homestead law: Provided, however, that each settler, under and in ac-
cordance with the provisions of said homestead laws shall, at the time of
making his original entry, pay the sum of fifty cents per acre in addition to
the fees now required by law, and at the time of making final proof shall pay
the further sum of one dollar per acre, final proof to be made within five years
from the date of entry, and three years’ actual residence on the land shall be
established by such evidence as is now required in homestead proofs as a
prerequisite to title or patent.” Subsequently, by Act May 17, 1900, c. 479, 31
Stat. 179 (Comp. St. 1913, § 5013), the Congress provided in effect that, upon
payment to the local land officers of the usual and customary fees, no other
or further charge of any kind whatsoever should be required from such set-
tler to entitle him to a patent to the lands covered by his entry. 7This was
designed as an amendment of the act of August 15, 1894, and relieved the
entryman from payment of $1.50 per acre as a prerequisite to obtaining his
patent from the government.

In general, the complaint avers that the defendant, Jones, with the view of
acquiring title in himself and persons associated with him to lands subject
to disposition under the act of August 15, 1894, entered into fraudulent ar-
rangements with certain persons, nine in number, whereby each of such per-
sons should make application to homestead a certain tract of the lands sub-
ject to entry under said act, and that each should make fraudulent and false

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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proofs as to settlement, residence, improvements, cultivation, ete., at the time
of making final proofs, so as to entitle him to patent; that said persons ac-
cordingly pretended to make settlement upon the lands selected as their home-
steads, and offered and made homestead proofs, and submitted the same to
the proper officers of the United States land office at Oregon City; “that in
and by said homestead proof each of said entrymen by himself and two wit-
nesses falsely and fraudulently represented that he had, as required by law,
established a residence upon and resided upon the land embraced in his said
enfry continuously after the alleged establishment of residence thereon until
the time of said proofs, and had made substantial improvements thereon as
set forth in said proof; that he had been only temporarily absent from said
lands for a short time for the purpose of earning money to improve the same.
And those entrymen having families each further falsely gave proof by him-
self and witnesses that his family resided on the claim in the absence of the
entryman; that he had cultivated that portion of said lands specifically set
out in his said proof, and that he had not conveyed any part of said lands and
had not made any contract, directly or indirectly, whereby the title which he
might acquire from the government of the United States should inure in whole
or in part to the benefit of any person except himself ; and that he was acting
in good faith in perfecting the entry, when in truth and in fact, as each of
said entrymen and his witnesses then and there well knew at the time of mak-
ing said proofs, had not established a residence upon said lands, and had nev-
er resided thereon, and had no improvements thereon, and none of the said
entrymen, as they and their witnesses well knew, had cultivated that part of
his saild entry set forth in his homestead proof, or any part thereof, for the
time set forth in said proof, or at any time; but, if any part of any of said
homestead entries was cultivated, the same was done by the defendant, Wil-
lard N. Jones, and all improvement made thereon was made by the defendant,
Willard N. Jones, and not by any of said entrymen. And plaintiff alleges that
none of said entrymen had acted in good faith, or was acting in good faith,
in perfecting said entry, but was making the same upon speculation, and not
for the purpose of making or securing for himself or his family a home; that
in truth and in fact all of said entrymen, after the making of their respective
entries as aforesaid, continued at all times during the life of their respective
entries to reside at Portland, Or., except Benjamin S. Hunter, who resided at
all said times at Dundee, Or., as aforesaid; that no improvements were made
upon any of said lands during the life of said homestead entries, with the ex-
ception that the said defendant, Willard N. Jones, for the purpose of falsely
and fraudulently making it appear that each of said entrymen resided upon
his respective entry, had a house thereon built, a small, flimsy, uninhabitable
shack upon the lands within each of said entries, shortly before said proofs
were made. And the said Willard N. Jones, also in furtherance of said fraud-
ulent and collusive purpose, caused a small tract upon each of said entries, in
extent less than an acre, to be scratched over in order to give a semblance of
a foundation for the statements of the entrymen and their witnesses that a
portion of their respective entries had been cultivated.” By further aver-
ment it appears that, relying upon the false and fraudulent representations
thus made by the entrymen, the officers of the government were induced to
issue final certificates to them, and eventually patents covering the lands com-
prised by the homesteads thus entered. The prayer is for damages in the
sum of $133,000.

The defendant, for a second further and separate answer, has set up
the statute of limitations of 6 years. For a third further and separate an-
swer it is averred in effect that, as to eight of the entrymen, none of them,
either by himself or by his final or homestead proof witnesses, or any witness
produced by him, claimed, represented, or testified that he had resided upon
said land by him. entered for a period of 3 years, or for any other or greater
period than as set out at length; the proofs showing that length of residence
ranged from 13 to 20 months after entry, supplemented by proof of service in
the Army or Navy of the United States for the remaining period of the
3 years. Thereupon it is alleged: ‘“That the plaintiff and its agents and offi-
cers, in considering and passing on said final proofs, well knew that each of
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said entrymen and his final proof witnesses had therein testified, stated, and
camied less thun 2 years’ uctual residence on the part of such entryman, and
neither the said plaintiff nor any of its agents or officers, in considering said
final proofs, believed or understood, or had any reason to believe or understand,
that any of said entryinen had represented or claimed to have resided upon
said lands, or any thereof, for 8 years, but, on the contrary, the plaintiff and
each and all of its agents and officers, by mistake of law, gave and allowed to
each of said entrymen credit for military service as aforesaid, as a major
part of the 3 years’ actual residence required by law, and by reason of such
mistake of law, and not otherwise, issued the final certificates and patents
mentioned and referred to in the complaint.” As to Wells, the remaining one
of the nine entrymen, it is alleged that he commuted, but that his proofs show
on their face that he was not an actual resident on his pretended homestead to
exceed 10 weeks. And in this relation defendant further avers, in effect, that
the plaintiff and its officers and agents, in considering said final proof, and in
issuing the final certificate and patent referred to in the complaint to the said
Wells, fully and well knew and understood that Wells had not resided upon
said land to exceed 10 weeks, and, notwithstanding this knowledge and un-
derstanding, issued such certificate and patent to Wells. A fourth further and
separate answer is interposed, which relates wholly to the measure of dam-
ages that should be applied, if recovery be had.

The plaintiff demurred to each of these three further and separate answers,
on the ground that the facts stated are insufficient in law to constitute a de-
fense.

Clarence L. Reames, U. S. Atty., and E. A. Johnson, Asst. U. S.
Atty., both of Portland, Or.

Fulton & Bowerman and Schwartz & Saunders, all of Portland,
Or., for defendant.

WOLVERTON, District Judge (after stating the facts as above).
As to the second further and separate answer, the demurrer must be
sustained, for the reason that the same question has been previously
decided adversely to defendant in this cause. United States v. Jones
(D. C.) 218 Fed. 973. ' :

[1] The vital question presented by the third further and separate
answer is whether a cause for deceit will lie where the alleged deceit
practiced is concerning a matter not material to the subject of negotia-
tion. The situation in brief is this: Under the general Homestead
Act and other provisions of law having relation to specific territory or
localities, and by virtue of sections 2304, 2305, R. S. (Comp. St. 1913,
§§ 4592, 4593), and Act Jan. 26, 1901, c. 180, 31 Stat. 740 (Comp. St.
1913, § 5014), relating to the commutation of homestead entries in cer-
tain cases, honorably, discharged soldiers who have made homestead
entries are entitled to have the time of their military service deducted
from the time of residence and cultivation required to entitle the home-
steader to patent; one year’s residence being required notwithstanding
military service. To illustrate: The time of residence under the gen-
eral homestead law being 5 years, if an honorably discharged soldier
had performed military service for 3 years, he would be entitled to
have the time of that service deducted from the 'S years, and would be
entitled to patent after having resided upon his homestead for the
period of 2 years.« Now, this regulation was applied by the govern-
ment as to eight of the persons alleged to have made false and fraudu-
lent final proofs respecting their homesteads. The proofs were of res-
idence of from 13 to 20 months, and of military service to supple-
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ment the same to make out 3 years’ residence on the land, as re-’
quired by the act of August 15, 1894. The final receipts were all issued
%)ri?ir to the expiration of the 3 years subsequent to entry upon the
ands.

Properly construed, the act of August 15, 1894, does not admit of
any such application. This is conceded, and the Interior Department
has so construed the act as applied to the Siletz Indian reservation
lands. See letter of Assistant Commissioner to Register and Receiver,
Oregon City, Or., of date July 2, 1902, In re Hattie C. Allebach, H. E.
No. 12949. The act of August 15, 1894, as it applies to the Siletz
reservation lands, requires that 3 years’ actual residence on the land
shall be established “by such evidence as is now required in homestead
proofs” as a prerequisite to title or patent. This means actual res-
idence for the term, not for a portion thereof supplemented by time
of military or other service, and manifestly it should have been re-
quired of these eight homesteaders before final certificates were issued
or patents granted to the lands comprised by their homesteads. In
issuing the certificates and granting the patents, the Land Department
acted under a clear mistake of law, and, even if it be conceded that
the proofs submitted were true in every respect, and made in entire
good faith, the entrymen were not entitled to title to the lands or to
the patents.

Now, having gotten their patents on false proofs, which proofs, if
true, would not have entitled them thereto, will the fraud and deceit
thus practiced, if it may be so termed, afford grounds upon which the
government may have relief in damages against the participants in the
fraud? The proofs made were in no wise material to any inquiry
pertinent to the establishment of the entrymen’s right to their patents.
They were wholly irrelevant to the inquiry that might properly have
been made; that is, an inquiry with a view to ascertaining whether 3
years’ actual residence had been made, with cultivation, improvements,
etc., as required by the act of August 15, 1894. The general rule on
the subject is tersely stated in American and English Enc. of Law,
vol. 14, p. 59, as follows:

“To constitute fraud, a representation must be as to a material fact. With
respect to this rule, there is no conflict of opinion, except sometimes in its
application. A representation in relation to a fact that is not material to a
contract, though it may be false and known to be false by the person making
it, and though it may be acted upon by the other party, is not fraud, either
for the purpose of an action of deceit, or for the purpose of rescinding the
contract.”

Then again, at page 62:

“Tt has been said that fraud is material to a contract, if the contract would
probably not have been made if the fraud had not been practiced. This, how-
ever, is not always true. If a representation is not material, a person hag
no right to act upon it, and, if he does, he is not entitled to relief or redress
on the ground of fraud. The question is not whether the person to whom the
representation was made deemed it material, but whether it was in fact
material.”

The rule that the false representations must be of a fact material
to the contract or inquiry has the approval of the United States Su-
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preme Court. See Marshall v. Hubbard, 117 U. S. 415, 6 Sup. Ct.
806, 29 L. Ed. 919. The Circuit Court in that case instructed the
jury, among other things, that:

“Not only must the representations be made, not only must they be fraud-
ulent, and not only must it appear that the party relied, and had a right to

rely, upon them, but it must also-be shown that the representations were ma-
terial to the contract or transaction which took place between the parties.”

Then, after so instructing the court said:

“I think, therefore, that upon the proofs the case is within the rule laid
down by the Supreme Court of the United States, namely: The court can now
see, upon the evidence that bears upon the question of materiality of the rep-
resentations, and alleged injury to the defendant, that if the jury were to ren-
der a verdict against the plaintiff it would have to set that verdict aside.”

The court thereupon directed a verdict for the plaintiff, the fraud
having been set up by the answer as a defense. On appeal to the Su-
preme Court, the action of the Circuit Court was affirmed, thus approv-
ing the holding of the Circuit Court. Other cases hold to the same
principle, that the false representations must be of a fact material to
the contract or transaction to constitute’actionable deceit. Saxby and
Wife v. Southern Land Co., 109 Va. 196, 63 S. E. 423; Hall v. ]ohn—
son, 41 Mich. 286, 2 N. W. 55, In the latter case the court says:

“False representations, no matter how acted upon, will not be sufficient to
set aside an agreement otherwise valid, unless they were material.”

See Missouri Lincoln Trust Company v. Third National Bank of St.
Louis, 154 Mo. App. 89, 133 S. W. 357; Furneaux v. Webb, 33 Tex.
Civ. App. 560, 77 S. W. 828; Anderson v, Adams, 43 Or. 621, 627,
74 Pac. 215.

The rule is further extended to comprise alleged false representa-
tions as to a fact of which the opposing party had knowledge, or which
was patent to him, or of a fact upon which he had no right to rely.
In either of such cases the action of deceit will not lie. Prince v.
Overholser, 75 Wis. 646, 44 N. W, 775 (citing Slaughter’s Adm’r v.
Gerson, 13 Wall. 385, 20 L. Ed. 627); Robins v. Hope, 57 Cal. 493.
No misrepresentation concerning the state of a party’s own title to
land can be treated as misleading to him. Russell v. Branham, 8
Blacki. (Ind.) 277. A party is not responsible for a misrepresentation
of the legal effect of a contract. First National Bank of Elkhart v.
Osborne et al,, 18 Ind. App. 442, 48 N. E. 256.

Now, applying the doctrine as thus established by the authorities,
it is perfectly manifest that the alleged false representations made by
the proofs of the eight entrymen and their witnesses were wholly im-
material to the inquiry and to the transactions of the entrymen with
the government; and not only this, the representations were of facts
upon which the government had no right to rely. The government
xnew the law and was cognizant of the proper interpretation thereof,
and, having such knowledge, it could not be deceived by proofs that
had relation to acts that could not in any way be construed as a com-
pliance therewith,
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[2] The government seeks to meet this objection to the right of re-
covery by invoking the doctrine that a party who has effected his pur-
pose through a misrepresentation cannot deny its materiality. Bigelow
on Fraud, 497, citing also Fargo Gaslight & Coke Co. v. Fargo Gas
& Electric Co., 4 N. D. 219, 59 N. W. 1066, 37 L. R. A. 593, and note.
But the law cannot make that material which is absolutely not mate-
rial, and so appears by the very transaction itself and the law govern-
ing the case. The law of estoppel cannot go so far as to make false
representations made in one transaction binding in another and a total-
ly distinct transaction.

[3] Itis further suggested that the matter of materiality is for the
jury, and not for the court.

“Concerning the elements which go to make up a case of fraud, it is for the
court and not for the jury to determine whether, e. g., an inducement held
out by one party to another, which the latter professes to have acted upon, is
material or not. * * * Generally speaking it is also for the court to inter-
pret language of a perfectly plain nature, unaffected by external facts such as
the particular circumstances in which it was used; when so modified, it is
for the jury to declare its meaning. But when, as we have just said, the lan-
guage is plain, and not subject to modification aliunde, the case is for the
court; and this is true in principle, whether the language be written or oral.
There is no question of the truth of this proposition when applied to written
language; and there ought to be none in regard to oral statement, for no sound
distinction can be drawn between the two cases.” Bigelow on Fraud, p. 139.

This quotation from Bigelow answers the objection. As it relates
to the eight entrymen, I am impelled to the conclusion that the answer
states a good defense. '

[4] The case of Wells presents the question in a different aspect.
Wells made application October 1, 1900, and commuted May 26, 1902.
Under the statute (section 2301, R. S. [Comp. St. 1913, § 4589]) Wells
was entitled to commute, if so entitled at all, upon making proof of
settlement and of residence and cultivation for a period of 14 months.
The act of August 15, 1894, requires actual residence. Adams v.
Coates, 38 Land Dec. Dept. Int. 179. Wells by his own testimony
shows that he had not actually resided on his homestead anywhere
near 14 months. He was asked, “How much time since entry have
you actually lived upon the land ?” to which he answered, “Between the
time of entry, viz., October 1, 1900, and the present time I have been
there five times, remaining there each time from one to two weeks.”

The government knew from this testimony that Wells had not com-
plied with the law. Notwithstanding, it issued to him the final receipt
and later the patent. Being fully aware of the situation, the govern-
ment could not have been deceived by the proofs made. Evemif true,
the proofs did not entitle Wells to his final receipt or patent. So that,
in either aspect, the government could not have been defrauded of
the land. If it be argued that the government relied upon the proofs,
the natural and pertinent answer is that, knowing the law and the
requirements of Congress in such a case, it had no right to rely upon
them, whether true or false, to the extent of approving the claim and
issuing final receipt and patent. Such being the situation, the govern-
ment is not entitled to an action in deceit.
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The demurrer will be sustained as to the second further and sep-
arate defense, and overruled as to the third.

[5] As to the fourth, I am still of the opinion that this is not the
time to pass upon the question involved.

Judgment accordingly.

GIBSON v. VICTOR TALKING MACH. CO.
(District Court, D. New Jersey. March 21, 1916.)

1.. PRINCIPAL AND AGENT €=2145(2)—BrrEACH OF CONTRACT UNDER SEAL—-
RIGHT OF ACTION AGAINST THIRD PERSON.

Parol evidence is not admissible to show that one of the parties to a
contract under seal acted as agent for another, for the purpose of churg-
ing the latter or permitting him to sue and a defendant sought to be so
charged may raise the same question by demurrer, where a copy of the
contract is made a part of the declaration.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Principal apd Agent, Cent. Dig. §§
514, 516, 517; Dec. Dig. €=145(2).]

2. CoURTs €=372(4)—FEDERAL COURTS—STATE LAW A8 RULE OF DECISION.
‘Whether or not an action at law may be maintained in a federal court
by a party to a contract against one who has assumed the obligations of
the other party thereto is to be determined by the law of the state
where the action is brought.
[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Courts, Cent. Dig. § 979; Dec. Dig.
&=372(4).]

3. CoNTRACTS &=187(1)—AcCTION FOR BREACH—RIGHT OF ACTION AGAINST
PERSON ASSUMING CONTRACT.
Under the law of New Jersey such an action may be maintained at
law, where it is alleged and shown that the contract of assumption by
defendant was made for the benefit of plaintiff.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Contracts, Cent. Dig. §§ 798, 799, 801-
804, 806, 807; Dec. Dig. &=187(1).]

At Law. Action by Robert L. Gibson against the Victor Talking
Machine Company. On demurrer to second amended declaration.
Overruled.

Ernest Howard Hunter, of Philadelphia, Pa., for plaintiff.
French & Richards, of Camden, N. J., for defendant.

HAIGHT, District Judge. This matter is before the court upon
a demurrer to the plaintiff’s second amended declaration. Twenty-nine
grounds of demurrer are assigned. All of them, except those herein-
after specially referred to, are the result, I think, of a misconception
on the part of defendant’s counsel of the nature and purpose of this
action. This, however, is not surprising, in view of some of the
allegations of the declaration and the attitude which plaintiff’s counsel
took upon a previous demurrer regarding the nature of the action.
He then argued that the actiqn was one in tort, and now that it is one
on contract. The cause of action set forth in the present declaration,
as in those preceding, is essentially one to recover damages for a breach
of a contract. It is in no sense an action in tort. The plaintiff does

@&==For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
232 F.—15



226 : 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

not sue for an infringement, or seek to recover damages therefor. He
sues because, as it is alleged, the defendant has failed to prosecute
suits to prevent infringements which, it is claimed, it was bound by
contract to do. He does not seek to recover any damages from the
American Graphophone Company for infringement or otherwise, but
he claims that the American Graphophone Company has infringed
the patents mentioned in the contract; that it was the duty of the de-
fendant, by virtue of the contract, to have instituted and prosecuted suits
to prevent such infringements; and that it not only failed to do so in
good faith, but it entered into a contract with the American Grapho-
phone Company whereby it licensed that Company, in effect, to use the
subject-matter of the patents mentioned in the agreement, and thus
precluded itself from instituting suits for such infringements. Hence
the question as to whether the agreement, which it is alleged that the
defendant has broken, is an assignment of the patents therein men-
tioned, or merely a license, is immaterial.

I think that the declaration clearly alleges that the defendant has fail-
ed to institute suits which were necessary to enjoin material infringe-
ments. It alleges that the agreement was to institute any and all
suits necessary for enjoining any and all infringements, and then al-
leges that the “defendant has not performed its duty in that regard,
and has neglected to institute and prosecute such suits to prevent any
and all infringements.” This is clearly an allegation that suits were
necessary, and that the defendant has not instituted them. 1 see no
merit in the contention that the declaration is faulty because it fails
to allege that the patents mentioned in the contract do not infringe cer-
tain other patents, which, in the agreement, were stated to be owned
by the assignee or licensee. If, as alleged in the declaration, it was
agreed that suits should be instituted to prevent infringements of the .
patents assigned or licensed, it is immaterial whether those patents
infringed any others, because the agreement on behalf of the licensee
or assignee was to institute suits to prevent infringement of the
former. It is readily conceivable why the clause of the agreement
upon which this suit is based was inserted, and that a failure to per-
form it could cause the plaintiff substantial damages. These damages
- may be nominal or substantial, depending upon the proof in the
case.

As a consideration for the assignment of the patents or the granting
of licenses thereunder, as the case may be, the plaintiff and the party
to whose rights he has succeeded were to receive royalties on the num-
ber of patented articles sold by the assignee or licensee. The number
of such sales, and consequently the amount of the royalties which
the plaintiff was entitled to receive under the contract, would undoubt-
edly be affected by the extent to which the assignee or licensee main-
tained exclusive control of the right to manufacture and sell the pat-
ented articles. If he alone could place the patented article upon the
market, the sales would undoubtedly be greater than if there were a
number of other people selling the same, or a similar article. I am
persuaded that the plaintift’s damages would be limited in this respect,
and confined to what he could show, with reasonable certainty, he
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had lcst in royalties in the manner before mentioned. It therefore
by no means follows that the specification of damages mentioned in
the declaration is the proper measure. But this allegation, as well as
some others in the declaration, may be treated as surplusage, and
therefore as unbailable to the defendant on demurrer.

It is also urged that if the contract sued upon was not an assign-
ment of the patents, but merely a license, that then the requirement
thereof—that suits be brought for infringements by the licensee—is
invalid, because a licensee has no right to bring an action for infringe-
ment in his own name. Without considering other answers, which
suggest themselves, to this objection, it is sufficient to say that the
agreement provides that the plaintiff shall be joined as cocomplain-
ant.

It is also urged that the agreement merely calls for the institution
of suits, and that the declaration proceeds on the theory that the de-
fendant failed to imstitute and prosecute. 1 think this objection is
frivolous. When the parties used the word “institute,” it is entirely
clear that they intended that the suits to be instituted should be pros-
ecuted. The important grounds of demurrer are those which have
to do with the allegations of the declaration which connect the de-
fendant with the contract upon which this suit- is brought. This
contract was originally entered into between the plaintiff and another
on one side, and one Eldridge R. Johnson on the other. The defend-
ant was not a party thereto. The declaration alleges that, when the
contract was made, Johnson was engaged in promoting the organiza-
tion of the defendant corporation for the purpose of conducting the
business of manufacturing and selling, among others, the articles
covered by the patents mentioned in the agreement, and that it was
the understanding of the parties to the agreement, at the time it was
entered into, that the license was not to be exercised by Johnson per-
sonally, but was to be assumed and exercised by the defendant cor-
poration as soon as it was organized, and that thereafter, upon the
organization of the defendant, in pursuance of such understanding,
the defendant took over the said license and assumed all of the obli-
gations thereof. The agreement was in writing and under seal. There
1s no mention therein of the defendant’s proposed connection with the
contract, or of Johnson’s agency. Nor is the contract, on its face, am-
biguous, or in any way uncertain. It purports to be made between
Johnson on one side, and the plaintiff and one Jones on the other.
The averments of the declaration also make it evident that the de-
fendant corporation was not an undisclosed principal.

[1] It is insisted 6n behalf of the defendant that the averments of
the declaration just mentioned, respecting the understanding of the par-
ties, will not support an action against the defendant beciuse they call
for parol contemporaneous evidence, which would be inadmissible to
vary the written contract, and further that the allegations regarding
the assuming of the contract by the defendant will not support an ac-
tion at law against it, but that the plaintiff's remedy, if any, against the
defendant, on account of the latter’s assuming the obligations of the
contract, is in equitv. The fact that the corporation was not in ex-
istence at the time the contract was made is, I think, not material in
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view of thit later allegations of the declaration, which sufficiently in-’
dicate a ratification of the action of the agent, if agency can be shown.
The important question is whether an action can be maintained on a
sealed instrument against one not a party thereto, and who can only
be shown to be a party (that is, that the contract was made on his be-
nalf by an agent) by parol evidence. Whatever conflict there may be
in the cases regarding the right to show, by parol evidence, that one
of the parties to a written contract, not under seal, acted as an agent
vor another (whether disclosed or undisclosed as principal) for the
murpose of charging or permitting the latter to sue, there is no doubt
that such evidence cannot be received where the contract sued upon
is under seal. New Jersey Steam Navigation Co. v. Merchants Bank,
6 How. 343, 380, 12 L. Ed. 465; Whitney v. Wyman, 101 U. S. 392,
395, 25 L. Ed. 1050; Borcherling v. Katz, 37 N. J. Eq. 150; Schenck
v. bpring Lake Beach Improvement Co., 47 N. J. Eq. 43, 19 Atl. 881;
cases cited 31 Cyc. 1576 and 1658.

Nor do I perceive any reason why this question cannot be raised
and disposed of on demurrer by the party who could object to the ad-
wijssion of the evidence, when a copy of the contract is attached to
and made a part of the.declaration, as in this case, for, in such cases,
{he declaration shows, on its face, that there is no enforceable cause
of action. It has been so raised in Le Grand Co. v. Richman, 82 N.
J. Eq. 481, 91 Atl. 723, and Schenck v. Spring Lake Beach Improve-
ment Co., supra. If, therefore, there were no further averments in the
declaration upon which to connect the defendant with the obligations
of the contract, it would follow that the demurrer should be sustained.
But the declaration contains the additional allegations before men-
tioned that the defendant has assumed all of the obligations of the
contract.

[2] It.is urged, however, on behalf of the demurrant that an action
ot law cannot be maintained in a federal court by one in his own name,
against another whose obligations, if any, arise simply from the as-
suming of the contract made between the plaintiff and third person.
The decision of the Circuit Court of Appeals of the Second Circuit
in Goodyear Shoe Machinery Co. v. Dancel, 119 Fed. 692, 56 C. C.
A. 300, is cited in support of this contention. That was an action at
law to recover certain unpaid license fees alleged to be due to plain-
tiff’s intestate under a contract made hetween the latter and defend-
ant’s assignor, the defendant having agreed to assume all of the ob-
ligations of the assignor to pay such license fee. It was held that the
action was not maintainable at law, upon the theory that the effect of
the agreement between the defendant and its assignor was merely
to create the relation of principal and surety between them, but no di-
rect obligation of the defendant (the assignee) to the plaintiffs’ intes-
tate, and that “according to the decisions in Second National Bank
of St. Louis v. Grand Lodge of Free & Accepted Masons of Missouri,
98 U. S. 123 [25 L. Ed. 75], Cragin v. Lowell, 109 U. S. 194 [3 Sup.
Ct. 132, 27 L. Ed. 903], and Keller v. Ashford, 133 U. S. 610 [10 Sup.
Ct. 494, 33 L. Ed. 667], the plaintiffs could not maintain an action at
law against the defendant upon the covenant.” It was held, however,
that the plaintiff would have been entitled to enforce in equity the
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agreement of the defendant with its assignor, upon the equitable doc-
trine that a creditor may have the benefit of any obligation or security
given by the principal to the surety for the satisfaction of the debt.

It was evidently urged in that case (although not so stated in the
opinion) that by the law of New York, where the federal court in
which the action was brought was located, an action could be main-
tained at law by the plaintiffs against the defendant on such an agree-
ment, for Judge Wallace, who wrote the opinion of the court, said:

“It is hardly necessary to state that the law of the remedy is not to be
determined by the decisions of the courts of the state in which the action
was brought, and that neither the decisions of its courts nor the statutes of
New York can confer authority upon the federal courts sitting within that
state to exercise equitable jurisdictions in actions at law. State Legislatures
cannot abolish in the federal courts the distinctions in actions at law and in
equity by abolishing such distinctions in their own courts.”

Undoubtedly the general proposition thus enunciated is correct. But
if the point above mentioned regarding the law of New York was
urged in that case, I do not think that the court, in relying upon the
general rule, gave due effect to what I conceive to be the rule laid
down for such cases by the Supreme Court in Willard v. Wood, 135
U. S. 309, 313, 10 Sup. Ct. 831, 34 L. Ed. 210, Id., 164 U. S. 502, 518,
17 Sup. Ct. 176, 41 L. Ed. 531, and Union Life Ins. Co. v. Hanford,
143 U. S. 187, 190, 12 Sup. Ct. 437, 36 L. Ed. 118. Willard v. Wood
was originally an action at law brought in the District of Columbia by
an administrator of an assignee of a mortgage against the executrix
of a grantee of the mortgaged premises, who had assumed, in the con-
veyance from the mortgagor, the payment of the plaintiff’s mortgage.
The land covered by the mortgage was located, and all the instruments
were executed, in the state of New York. In discussing what law
was to be applied, Mr. Justice Gray, who delivered the opinion of the
Supreme Court, said (135 U. S. 312, 10 Sup. Ct. 832, 34 L. Ed. 210):

“Assuming that the mortgagee has acquired by the law of New York a right
to enforce such an agreement against a grantee of the mortgagor, the form
of his remedy, whether it must be in covenant or in assumpsit, at law or

in equity, is governed by the lex fori, the law of the District of- Columbia,
where the action was brought.”

It might be considered, in view of the general rule prevailing in
the federal courts regarding the distinction between actions at law
and in equity, that by this reference to the lex fori the court did not
mean that the question of whether a case such as that is to be brought
in equity or at law is to be governed by the law of the state in which
a federal court is held, but rather by the law pertaining generally to
federal courts, when that differs from the state law, were it not for the
subsequent decision in Union Life Ins. Co. v. Hanford. It was there
said by Mr. Justice Gray, referring to Willard v. Wood, that the rem-
edy of the mortgageeis to be determined by the law “of the place where
the suit is brought.” The suit in that case was brought in the Circuit
Court of the United States for the Northern District of Illinois. He
then proceeded to examine the law of Illinois, and found that under
it the mortgagee might sue at law a grantee who, by the terms of an
absolute conveyance from the mortgagor, had assumed the payment
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of the mortgage debt. Tt was then said by Mr. Justice Gray (143 U.
S. 190, 12 Sup. Ct. 438 [36 L. Ed. 118]):

“According to that view, the grantee, as soon as the mortgagee knows of
the arrangement, becomes directly and primarily liable to the mortgagee for
the debt for which the mortgagor was already liable to the latter, and the
relation of the grantee and the grantor towards the mortgagee, as well as
between themselves, is thenceforth that of principal and surety for the pay-
ment of the mortgage debt.”

It was held that, as the mortgagee had extended the time for the
grantee to pay the mortgage debt, the original mortgagors were re-
lieved from any liability on their bond; Justice Gray saying, at the
conclusion of the opinion:

“Under the law of Illinois, which governs this-case, the mortgagors were

thereby discharged from all liability on the notes, and the Circuit Court
rightfully refused to enter a deficiency decree against them.”

If it was meant by the Supreme Court, when it used in Willard v.
Wood the words “fex fori,” and in Union Ins. Co. v. Hanford “the
law of the place where the suit is brought,” that the law of the fed-
eral courts, as distinguished from the law of the state in which a fed-
eral court is held, is to govern, it is difficult to understand why it was
found necessary in the Hanford Case to ascertain what the law of
Tllinois was, and to apply that law, so far as it determined the legal
relations between the parties in that suit. It was stated in the Han-
ford Case that it was the settled law of the Supreme Court that the
grantee is not directly liable to the mortgagee at law or in equity, and
that the only remedy of the mortgagee against the grantee is by bill
in equity in the right of the mortgagor and grantor, by virtue of the
right in equity of a creditor to avail himself of any security which his
debtor holds from a third person for the payment of the debt. And
it was also said that, in view of that rule, it would be difficult to hold
that the granting of an extension of time to the grantee would release
the mortgagor, “but the case at bar does not present itself in that as-
pect.” There then followed the above-mentioned statement of the
rule regarding the law of the place where the suit is brought, and a
discussion of the law of Illinois. It thus appears that the Supreme
Court considered the law of the federal courts inapplicable, but de-
termined the rights of the parties according to the laws of the state
where the federal court, in which the suit was brought, was located.

This view of the effect of those two decisions of the Supreme Court,
and of the later one in Willard v. Wood, was entertained by the Circuit
Court of Appeals of the Seventh Circuit in Adams v. Shirk, 105 Fed.
639, 663, 44 C. C. A. 652, and in Central Electric Co. v. Sprague Elec-
tric Co., 120 Fed. 925, 57 C. C. A. 197. In the latter of these cases
it was held that an action at law might be maintained in a federal court
sitting in Illinois by a creditor of a concern directly against another
concern which had assumed the payment of the debts of the original
debtor. To the same effect is Bethlehem Iron Co. v. Hoadley, 152
Fed. 735. (C. C. D. R. 1.). See also Rea v. Barker, 135 Fed. 890.
(C. C. D. Or). In Pittsburg, C. & St. L. R. Co. v. Keokuk & H.
Bridge Co., 68 Fed. 19, 15 C. C. A. 184 (C. C. A. 7th Cir), in which
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the opinion was written by the same judge who wrote the opinion
in the Central Electric Co. Case, Union Ins. Co. v. Hanford and Wil-
lard v. Wood were examined and discussed, and it was held, while
recognizing the above-mentioned effect of those cases, that even though,
by the law of the state in which the federal court was located, an
action might be maintained at law, yet, as the subject-matter of the
action was within the cognizance of equity, the state rule was only
concurrent and could not exclude the ancient jurisdiction of equity.
The suit in that case was in equity, and it was urged that, because the
local law permitted a suit at law, the suit in equity in the federal
court would not lie.

The rule which I thus conceive to have been laid down by the Su-
preme Court, in the cases before mentioned, for suits of this kind,
is quite readily reconcilable with the general rule that the state prac-
tice will not be followed in the federal courts, so as to permit a suit
founded upon a right that is purely equitable, to be tried at law (which
is referred to in the Goodyear Shoe Machinery Case, supra). Where
the right is given to one to sue at law on a contract made between
others to which he is not a party, as where the person sued has as-
sumed the performance of an obligation due from one party to a con-
tract to the person suing, it is upon the theory that there exists a
direct liability in his own right and not in the right of another. There-
fore, if in any given state the substantive rights of the parties are so
fixed, and such rights can ordinarily and according to the course of
the common law, as where there is a direct contractual liability, be
enforced in an action at law, a federal court, in entertaining such an
action, would not be exercising purely equitable jurisdiction in an ac-
tion at law. It is not the same as a case where the state statute or
practice gives the right to enforce a purely equitable right in an ac-
tion at law.

[3] I think, therefore, that if by the law of New Jersey the plaintiff
might maintain an action af law against this defendant on its agree-
ment to assume the obligations of the contract made between the plain-

. tiff and Johnson, such an action may be maintained in this court. It
is the rule in New Jersey, settled by a long line of decisions, that in
cases of simple contracts, if one person makes a contract with another
for the benefit of a third, the latter may maintain an action ot low
upon it, although the consideration did not move from him. Joslin
v. New Jersey Car Spring Co., 36 N. J. Law, 141 (Sup. Ct.); Jordan
v. Laverty, 53 N. J. Law, 15, 20 Atl. 832 (Sup. Ct.); Styles v. Long
Co., 67 N. J. Law, 413, 417, 51 Atl. 710 (Sup. Ct.); Id., 70 N. J. Law,
301, 57 Atl. 448 (Ct. E. & A.); Holt v. United Security Life Ins. Co.,
76 N. J. Law, 585, 589, 72 Atl. 301, 21 L. R. A. (N. S.) 691 (Ct. E.
& A.); Fleming v. Reed, 77-N. J. Law, 563, 567, 72 Atl. 299 (Ct. E. &
A.); Chambers v. Philadelphia Pickling Co., 79 N. J. Law, 1, 75 Atl.
159 (Sup. Ct.), affirmed 83 N. J. Law, 543, 83 Atl. 890 (Ct. E. & A);
Collier v. De Brigard, 80 N. J. Law, 94, 77 Atl. 513 (Sup. Ct.). This
rule has been extended by statute to contracts under seal. P. 1. 1903,
p. 541, § 28.

Crowell v. Hospital of Saint Barnabas, 27 N. J. Eq. 650, which is
cited by defendant, is not opposed to this rule, but, on the other hand,



232 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

the rule was recognized, but held inapplicable, both because the con-
tract was under seal and because an agreement by the grantee to as-
sume the payment of a mortgage was held not to have been made for
the benefit of the mortgagee. See Styles v. Long Co., 67 N. J. Law,
413, 51 Atl. 710, supra. Nor do I think.this rule is opposed to the
doctrine of the Supreme Court of the United States, to be deduced
from Hendrick v. Lindsay, 93 U. S. 143, 23 L.. Ed. 855, National Bank
v. Grand Lodge, 98 U. S. 123, 25 L. Ed. 75, Savings Bank v. Ward,
100 U. S. 195, 25 L. Ed. 621, Cragin v. Lovell, 109 U. S. 194, 3 Sup.
Ct. 132, 27 L. Ed. 903, Keller v. Ashford, 133 U. S. 610, 10 Sup. Ct.
494, 33 L. Ed. 667, and German Alliance Ins. Co. v. Home Water Co.,
226 U. S. 220, 33 Sup. Ct. 32, 57 L. Ed. 195, 42 L. R. A. (N. S.) 1000.
It is not sufficient under the New Jersey rule that the plaintiff have an
indirect interest in the performance of the contract which he sues
upon and to which he is not a party, or that he may be benefited by the
performance of the contract, but he can only maintain an action when
the contract is made for his direct benefit. Styles v. Long Co., 70 N. J.
Law, 305, 57 Atl. 448. This is the doctrine, as I understand it, of the
United States Supreme Court. Its decisions recognize the right of
a third party to sue on a contract in which he is given a direct inter-
est, or which was made for his direct benefit. The divergence of
view, if any, exists rather, I think, regarding the application of the
rule than the rule itself.

The remaining question, therefore, is whether the assumption agree-
ment (which must be relied upon to entitle the plaintiff in this suit
to recover) is one which was made for the benefit of the plaintiff. The
averments of the declaration sufficiently set forth a consideration, as
between Johnson and the defendant, for the making of the contract.
Without attempting to review the cases in which it has been held that
the assumption or agreement to pay a debt 'due to the plaintiff from one
of the parties to the agreement, or all of the debts and liabilities of one
of the parties to the contract (among which class that of a plaintiff is
included), is a contract made for the benefit of such plaintiff and en-
titled him to sue thereon (a number of the New Jersey cases above:
cited so hold), and those cases which hold the contrary (among the
latter are some of the cases in the United States Supreme Court above
cited), I think it sufficient to say that the assumption agreement set
forth in the declaration in this case, taken in connection with the
other averments of the declaration, in my judgment indicates that it
was made for the sole benefit of the plaintiff in this action and en-
titles him to sue at law thereon. Of course, this view may be subject
to change when the actual proofs are submitted.

It follows, therefore, that the demurrer must be overruled, with
costs. The order shall provide that the defendant may plead within
20 days.



: DE FRIECE V, BRYANT 233

DE FRIECE v. BRYANT et al
(District Court, E. D. Kentucky. April 12, 1916.)

1. BANKRUPTCY ¢&=205—PREFERENCES—REMEDY BY TRUSTEE.

The fact that creditors of a bankrupt obtained a preference by attach-
ing in another state notes due the bankrupt and selling them under the
order of the court does not entitle the trustee in bankruptcy to recover
the notes from the purchasers, but only to recover from the creditors the
amount they received.

[Ed. Note.—TFor other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 234, 303,
Dec. Dig. ¢&=205.]

2. BANKRUPTCY ¢&=162—"PREFERENCE’—SALE BY COURT.

A sale in attachment proceedings in another state of notes given to a
bankrupt is not a “preference,” where there was no transfer by the bank-
rupt, and he did not procure or suffer the judgment to be rendered.

[Ed.. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 278-281;
Dec. Dig. &=162.

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, First and Second Series,
Preference.]

3. BANKRUPTCY ¢=2200(3)—ATTACHMENT—JUDGMENT OF SALE.

A judgment rendered by a state court, directing the sale of notes of a
bankrupt which had been attached, is void, where neither the bankrupt
nor his trustee were before the court when it was rendered, and the bank-
rupt was insolvent when the attachment suit was begun, so that the at-
tachment was void under Bankr. Act July 1, 1898, c. 541, § 67f, 30 Stat.
564 (Comp. St. 1913, § 9651).

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 296-300; Dec.
Dig. &=200(3).]

4. BANKRUPTCY €&=293(1)—JURISDICTION OF COURTS—SUIT T0 RECOVER DEBT.

Bankr. Act, § 23b, as amended by Act June 25, 1910, c. 412, § 7 (Comp.
St. 1913, § 9607), providing that sults by a trustee in bankruptey shall be
brought in the courts where the bankrupt might have brought them, un-
less by consent of the proposed defendant, except suits for the recovery
of property under the sections forbidding preferences by procuring or
suffering judgments and fraudulent conveyances, does not give the United
States courts jurisdiction over a plenary suit by the trustee to recover
a debt due the bankrupt, where the amount was insufficient to give ju-
risdiction because of diversity of citizenship.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 411; Dec.
Dig. ¢=293(1).]

5. BANKRUPTCY €&=293(1)—JURISDICTION OF COURTS—RECOVERY OF DEBT.

Bankr. Act, § 2, cl. 20.(Comp. St. 1913, § 9586), giving courts of bankrupt-
¢y ancillary jurisdiction over persons and property within their respective
territorial limits in aid of a receiver or trustee appointed in any bankrupt-
ey proceeding pending in any other court of bankruptcy, gives such ancil-
lary jurisdiction only over summary proceedings which would have been
within the jurisdiction of the court appointing the trustee if within its
territorial limits. and does not give it jurisdiction over a plenary suit by a
trustee in bankruptcy appointed in another district to recover a debt due
the bankrupt from a debtor residing there.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 411; Dec. Dig.
&»293(1).]

6. BANKRUPTCY &>293(1)—JURISDICTION OF COUBTS—INJUNCTION AGAINST
CLAIM TO PROPERTY.

A court of bankruptcy bas summnary jurisdiction to enjoin the assertion

of a claim to notes in the possession of the trustee based on a sale on at-

&=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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tachment thereof, which was void under the Bankruptcy Act, where be-
cause of such claim the debtor refused to pay the notes and the trustee
could not sell them to others, and therefore a court of another district
has ancillary jurisdiction over a suit for such injunction under Bankr,
Act, § 2, cl. 20.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. § 411; Dec.
Dig. &=293(1).1

In Equity. Suit by Frank W. De Friece, as trustee in bankruptcy,
against A, W. Bryant and others. On motion to dismiss for want
of jurisdiction. Motion overruled.

James H. Jeffries, of Pineville, Ky., for plaintiff.
Patterson & Ingram, of Pineville, Ky., for defendants.

COCHRAN, District Judge. This cause is before me on motion
to dismiss for want of jurisdiction. It is a suit in equity, and was
brought August 16, 1915. ‘The bankruptcy proceeding in which plain-
tiff was appointed trustee of the bankrupt is pending in the United
States District Court for the Western District of Virginia and is a
voluntary proceeding. It was brought May 29, 1915, adjudication
was had May 31, 1915, and plaintifi was appointed trustee June 11,
1915. 'The plaintiff and the bankrupt are citizens of Virginia, and
the defendants are citizens of Kentucky and reside within this dis-
trict.

The bill contains two paragraphs. The first alleges that the de-
fendant Bryant on October 25, 1913, executed to Grant Mason a note
for the sum of $600, payable 12 months after date, and bearing 6 per
cent. interest, as part of the purchase price of certain real estate in Bell
county, in this district, that day sold and conveyed to him by Mason;
that Mason on November 13, 1913, assigned the note to the First State
Bank of Pineville, Ky.; that the bank on December 17, 1914, as-
signed it to the bankrupt, and same came into plaintiff’s possession
upon his appointment as trustee as part of the estate of the bankrupt,
no part of which had ever been paid; and that a few days before
bringing the suit the defendant Bryant conveyed the real estate to
the defendarit Stanley. The plaintiff seeks therein a personal judg-
ment against the defendant Bryant for the amount of the note and
enforcement of the vendor’s lien to secure same, retained in the deed
by a sale of the real estate and application of its proceeds to the pay-
ment of the note.

The second paragraph alleges that on June 25, 1914, T.ee Bowman
executed to the bankrupt his nine notes for the sum of $76.50 each,
amounting in the aggregate to the sum of $688.50, each payable in
monthly installments, one after the other, the first installment June
15, 1914, and the last June 15, 1923, and bearing 6 per cent. interest,
and at the same time executed a mortgage on certain real estate in
Bell county to secure their payment; that the first eight installments
due on the first note were paid to the bankrupt, and this note subject
to these payments, and the other eight notes upon plaintiff’s appoint-
ment, also came into his possession as part of the estate of the bank-
rupt; that on June 17, 1915, a special master of the circuit court of
Bell county, acting under a judgment of that court entered June 1,
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1915, in an ordinary action brought April 26, 1915, by L.‘E. Loder
against the bankrupt attempted to sell these notes at public auction
and at the sale the defendant Bryant became the purchaser thereof;
that he was claiming to be the owner of the notes by virtue thereof
and Bowman, the obligor, because of such claim was refusing to make
any further payment on them to plaintiff; and that plaintiff was not
a party to the action, and the bankrupt, though a party, was not before
the court therein, either by service of process, actual or constructive,
or by appearance. The plaintiff seeks therein to obtain a decree that
the defendant Bryant does not own these notes and that plaintiff is the
owner thereof.

Pending the motion plaintiff tenders an amended bill, in which he
alleges that the ordinary action referred to in the second paragraph of
the bill was a consolidation of seven of such actions brought by cred-
itors of the bankrupt against it; that in each of these actions, when
brought, an attachment was sued out against the bankrupt, which was
‘thereupon levied upon the $600 note of the defendant Bryant and
the $688.50 Bowman notes, by summoning Bowman and Bryant to
answer as garnishees therein; that the appearance of the bankrupt to
the consolidated action was attempted to be entered on June 1, 1915, by
its former president, who had resigned his position as such on May
1, 1915, and who then had no authority to act for the bankrupt; that
the judgment of June 1, 1915, decreed the sale of both the Bryant
$600 note and the Bowman $688.50 notes in furtherance of the at-
tachment; that at the sale the defendant Bryant purchased his own
note, as well as the Bowman notes, the purchase price thereof being
$224 and for the Bowman notes $206; that all the notes were worth
what they called for; and that after the bringing of this suit the de-
fendant Bryant paid the purchase price of the notes to his attorney,
who was also the attorney for the plaintiff in the consolidated action,
to hold for the special master.

The plaintiff seeks therein for judgment and decree as prayed fc-
in the original bill and any other relief which it may appear that he
is entitled to. He claims therein that the effect of the proceedings in
the Bell circuit court was to give to the plaintiffs in the consolidated
actions a preference, and that, therefore, this court has jurisdiction
to grant him relief under sections 23b, 60b, and 67e of the Bankrupt
Act (Comp. St. 1913, §§ 9607, 9644, 9651). :

[1-4] The right of the plaintiff to relief at the hands of this court is
not aided by the claim that by reason of those proceedings a preference
was given to the plaintiff in the consolidated actions. If this claim
were sound, the only relief to which plaintiff would be entitled would
be to recover the proceeds of the sale in those proceedings, which is all
that it is possible to say that the plaintiffs thereby obtained, and they
are not defendants herein, and no relief is sought against them. But
the claim is not sound. The bankrupt has made no transfer of those
notes, and it did not suffer or procure the judgment made in those
progeedings to be made. That judgment is void, not only because
neither the plaintiff nor the bankrupt were before the court when it
was rendered, but because, further, if the bankrupt was insolvent.
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when those consolidated actions were brought, which would seem to
be the case, though perhaps it is not distinctly alleged, the attachments
sued out therein were rendered null and void by the bankruptcy pro-
ceedings under section 67f of the Bankruptcy Act. It is therefore es-
sential to rest the court’s jurisdiction on some other ground than this,
if it is to be maintained.

And it would seem to be clear that the court has no jurisdiction of
the case presented by the first paragraph of the bill or to grant the
relief therein sought. What it presents is a suit to recover the amount’
due the bankrupt’s estate on the $600 note of the defendant Bryant
through a personal judgment against him and a decree enforcing the
vendor’s lien to secure same. Such a suit does not come ‘within sec-
tion 23b of the Bankrupt Act, where grant of jurisdiction is to be
found, if it exists anywhere. It could not have been brought by the
bankrupt, if proceedings in bankruptcy had not been instituted, for,
though the requisite diversity of citizenship existed, the amount in
controversy between the parties was not sufficient. The defendant
has not consented to.the jurisdiction, and, if it had, his consent would
have been of no avail. Lovell v. Newman, 227 U. 8. 412, 426, 33
Sup. Ct. 375, 57 L. Ed. 577. And the suit does not come within any
of the exceptions contained in the section as it stands since the 1910
amendment.

That this court has no jurisdiction of plenary suit by the trustee
in bankruptcy against an adverse claimant, save as provided in section
23b was determined by the Supreme Court in the cases of Bardes v.
Hawarden Bank, 178 U. S. 524, 20 Sup. Ct. 1000, 44 L. Ed. 1175,
Mitchell v. McClure, 178 U. 8. 539, 20 Sup. Ct. 1000, 44 L. Ed. 1182,
and Hicks v. Knost, 178 U. S. 541, 20 Sup. Ct. 1006, 44 L. Ed. 1183,
which arose before any of the amendments to that section. That a
debtor is regarded as an adverse claimant is evidenced by the answer
which the Supreme Court gave to the first of the three questions an-
swered in the Bardes Case. That answer was:

“The provisions of the second clause of section 23 of the Bankrupt Act of
1898 control and limit the jurisdiction of all courts, including the several
District Courts of the United States, over suits brought by trustees in bank-
ruptey to recover or collect debts due from third parties, or to set aside trans-

fers of property to third parties, alleged to be fraudulent as against creditors,
including payments in money or property to preferred creditors.”

The suit involved in the case of Bush v. Elliott, 202 U. S. 477, 26
Sup. Ct. 668, 50 L. Ed. 1114, was one to collect a debt due the bank-
rupt estate. Jurisdiction of the suit by the United States Circuit Court
in which it was brought was upheld, because, if bankruptcy proceedings
had not been instituted, it might have been brought there by the bank-
rupt, in that the requisite diversity of citizenship existed between him
and the defendant and the amount in controversy was sufficient. Mr.
Justice Day said:

“The suit concerns the right to recover a money debt which is property
(Pirie v. Chicago Title & Guarantee Co., 182 U. 8. 438, 21 Sup. Ct. 906, 45 L.
Ed. 1171) and, in the sense of the law, is with an adverse claimant ‘concerning
property acquired or claimed by the trustee’ and is a controversy of which
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the Circuit Court had jurisdiction, as between the bankrupt and the claim-
ant, but for the bankruptcy proceedings.”

That the jurisdiction of a plenary suit by a trustee to recover a debt
due from the bankrupt’s estate as it stood before the amendments of
1903 and 1910 (Act Feb. 5, 1903, c. 487, 32 Stat. 797; Act June 25,
1910, c. 412, 36 Stat. 838) has been unaffected by those amendments
has been determined in the case of Harris v. First National Bank, 216
U. S. 382, 30 Sup. Ct. 296, 54 L. Ed. 528, and recognized in the case
of Lovell v. Newman, supra. I so held in the case of In re Ballou (D.
C.) 215 Fed. 810. ,

[5] But plaintiff does not undertake to rest jurisdiction of the first
paragraph of the bill on section 23b. He rests it on section 2 (20), by
_ which it i$ provided that courts of bankruptcy are invested with such
jurisdiction at law and in equity as will enable them to—

“sxercise ancillary jurisdiction over persons or property within their respec-

tive territorial limits in aid of a receiver or trustee appointed in any bank-
ruptey proceedings pending in any other court of bankruptey.”

As the first paragraph is a suit by the trustee appointed in bank-
ruptcy proceeding pending in Virginia to collect a debt due the bank-
rupt from a debtor in this district, he claims it is authorized by this
provision. This subdivision was added by the amendment of 1910.
It has been held that it is but declaratory of the law as it existed
before its enactment. Babbitt v. Dutcher, 216 U. S. 102, 30 Sup. Ct.
372, 54 1.. Ed. 402, 17 Ann. Cas. 969; In re Elkus, 216 U. S. 115, 30
Sup. Ct. 377, 54 L. Ed. 407; Lazarus'v. Prentice, 234 U. S. 263, 34
Sup. Ct. 851, 58 L. Ed. 1305. The ancillary jurisdiction exercised and
upheld in these cases was by a summary proceeding, and the right to
exercise it was limited to cases where the bankruptcy court of original
jurisdiction could have acted summarily if the persons or property
affected thereby was within its territorial jurisdiction. In Babbitt v.
Dutcher, Mr. Chief Justice Fuller, said:

“The precise question before us on the present appeal is whether in a case
in which the original court of bankruptey could act summarily. another court

of bankruptey, sitting in another district, can do so in aid of the court of
original jurisdiction.”

And in Lazarus v. Prentice, Mr. Justice Day said:

“prior to the amendment of June 25, 1910, * * * this court had held that
in cases where the bankruptcy court of original jurisdiction could itself make
a summary order for the delivery of property to the trustee or receiver the
court of ancillary jurisdiction could do so (Babbitt v. Dutcher, 216 U. S. 102,
30 Sup. Ct. 372, 54 L. Bd. 402, 17 Ann. Cas. 969), and by clause 20, added to
section 2 by the amendment of June 25, 1910, the bankruptcy courts were
specifically given ancillary jurisdiction over persons or property within their
respective territorial limits in aid of a trustee or receiver appointed by any
court of bankruptcy.” )

Here the relief sought is not by summary proceedings. It is sought
by a plenary or independent suit. This is the only way in which it is
obtainable in any court. It is not obtainable anywhere by proceedings
of a summary character. Furthermore, if the District Court of the
Western District of Virginia, in which the bankruptcy proceeding in
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which plaintiff was appointed trustee is pending, had territorial juris-
diction of this suit it would not have had ancillary jurisdiction thereof
in aid of plaintiff appointed trustee in the bankruptcy proceeding
pending therein. And what amounts to the same thing, if the bank-
ruptcy proceeding were pending here, this court would not have an-
cillary jurisdiction of this suit in aid-of plaintiff appointed trustee in
that proceeding. This being so, it is not open to claim that this court
-has ancillary jurisdiction of this suit in aid of the plaintiff appointed
trustee in the bankruptcy proceeding pending in the Western district
of Virginia. The ancillary jurisdiction intended to be conferred by
subdivision 20 of section 2, and which existed before its enactment,
can only have been such as the court of original jurisdiction would
have had if it had had territorial jurisdiction, or such as the court ap-
pealed to would have had if the bankruptcy proceeding were pending
therein, :

According to this view of the matter the ancillary jurisdiction so
conferred of proceedings of a summary character is limited to cases
in which the court in which the bankruptcy proceeding is pending could
act summarily, if it had territorial jurisdiction and of plenary or inde-
pendent suits to such as come within section 23b. Under the act of
1867 (Act March 2, 1867, c. 176, 14 Stat. 517), in the case of Lathrop
v. Drake, 91 U. S. 516, 23 L. Ed. 414, Mr. Justice Bradley said:

“Proceedings ancillary to and in aid of the proceeding in bankruptcy may
be necessary in other districts where the principal courts cannot exercise
Jjurisdiction; and it may be necessary for the assignee to institute suits in
other districts for the recovery of' assets of the bankrupt. That the courts
of such other districts may exercise such jurisdiction in such cases would

seem to be the necessary result of the general jurisdiction conferred upon
them, and is in harmony with the scope and design of the act.”

But under the act of 1867 the *‘principal courts” had essential juris-
diction of all suits by assignees in bankruptcy for the recovery of assets
of the bankrupt, and in no case was ancillary jurisdiction for the re-
covery of such assets exercised by the federal courts of other districts,
save where the principal courts would have had such jurisdiction if
they had had territorial jurisdiction.

In the case of Knauth, Nachod & Kuhne v. Latham & Co., 219 Fed.
721, 135 C. C. A. 419, suit was brought by the trustee appointed in a
bankruptcy proceeding pending in the Northern district of Alabama in
the Southern district thereof to set aside a preferential transfer. This.
was a plenary suit against an adverse claimant. It was, however, an
ancillary suit; i. e, in aid of the trustee and of the bankruptcy pro-
ceeding pending in the other district. But it came within section 23b.
Judge Maxey said therein: '

“The adjudication of bankruptey in the latter court brought the property of:

the bankrupts, wherever situated, into custodia legis, and that court thus aé-
quired the full right to administer the estate.”

And it was held therein, under the decision in the case of Lazarus
v. Prentice, supra, that a third claimant of the property sought to be
recovered had no right to intervene. It may be questioned whether the
property -there involved was in custodia legis, as it was in the posses-
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sion of an adverse claimant, and possibly the doctrine of the case of
Lazarus,v. Prentice, where the ancillary jurisdiction exercised was of a
summary character, dogs not apply where it is by a plenary or inde-
pendent suit.

The case of Breit v. Moore, 220 Fed. 97, 135 C. C. A. 573, cited and
relied on by plaintiff, was a plenary suit brought by the trustée. The
amount in controversy was $230, and there seems to have been no di-
versity of citizenship. It may be said that it was an ancillary suit, but
it was brought in the court where the bankruptcy proceeding was pend-
ing, and was to set aside a preferential transfer. It thus came within
section 23b as amended, and the right to maintain it should be based
thereon, rather than on the cases of Bardes v. Bank and Hicks v.
Knost, on which it was based.

[6] So it is that I reach the conclusion that this court is without ju-
risdiction to grant plaintiff the relief sought in the first paragraph of
his bill. How, then, is it as to the relief sought in the second para-
graph? Under its allegations plaintiff is in possession of the Bowman
notes, and the defendant Bryant is asserting an unfounded claim there-
to. Because of this claim Bowman is refusing to pay him according to
the terms of his notes; and by reason thereof, further, plaintiff no
doubt is unable to sell them advantageously, which, practically, owing
to the long time they have to run, is the only way in which they can be -
handled to the advantage of the estate. The relief sought by this para-
‘graph of the bill is a removal of the cloud on plaintiff’s title to. these
notes growing out of the claim of defendant. It presents the question
whether plaintiff was entitled to have proceeded summarily against
such defendant to have him enjoined from asserting his claim, and, if
so, also to proceed by plenary suit to obtain the same relief. If such
relief can be made the subject of summary proceedings, then the court
in which the bankruptcy proceeding is pending would have been en-
titled to so proceed if the defendant Bryant had been within its terri-
torial jurisdiction and, if so, this court has ancillary jurisdiction to
proceed against him in like manner, as he is within its territorial juris-
diction. The question, then, comes to this: Can such relief be made
the subject of a summary proceeding? It is well settled that delivery
of possession of property of the bankrupt not held by an adverse
claimant, and hence in custodia legis, to the trustee, can be enforced
by summary proceeding. White v. Schloerb, 178 U. S. 542, 20 Sup.
Ct. 1007, 44 L. Ed. 1183; Bryan v. Bernheimer, 181 U. S. 188, 21 Sup.
Ct. 557, 45 L. Ed. 814; Mueller v. Nugent, 184 U. S. 1, 22 Sup. Ct.
269, 46 1. Ed. 405; Babbitt v. Dutcher, supra; Lazarus v. Prentice,
supra. It would seem to follow from this that, in case the trustee
has possession of such property, his possession thereof can be pro-
tected from physical invasion by such proceedings. And, if so, no
reason occurs to me why it cannot in like manner be protected from
moral invasion as here; e. g., from an unfounded claim of ownership,
which prevents the trustee from handling the property of the bankrupt
advantageously, and which may be said to amount potentially to a
physical invasion. He can neither obtain payment of the notes from
the debtor nor sell them to others for their rea] value.
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'If, then, plaintiff had proceeded summarily against the defendant
Bryant as to these notes, I would have to uphold the proceeding. This
he has not done. He has proceeded against him by plenary suit. But
it was decided in the case of Whitney v. Wenman, 198 U. S. 539, 25
Sup. Ct. 778, 49 L. Ed. 1157, that where the court has the right to act
summarily in such cases as we have here it has the right to act by a
plenary suit. Mr. Justice Day there said: ’

“Nor can we perceive that it makes any difference that the jurisdiction is
not sought to be asserted in a summary proceeding, but resort is had to an ac-
tion in the nature of a plenary suit, wherein the parties can be fully heard
after the due course of equitable procedure.”

This court, therefore, has jurisdiction of the cause of action pre-
sented by the second paragraph of the bill. And, as the motion to dis-
miss for want of jurisdiction goes to the whole bill, it will have to be
overruled. The motion to file the amended bill is overruled also. It
proceeds on the wrong theory of plaintiff’s right to relief. It appears
ifrom the amended bill tendered that the defendant Bryant is claiming
his own note, as well the Bryant notes, under his purchase at the judi-
cial sale in the state court. No reason is perceived why plaintiff should

o

not be entitled to the same relief against him as to this claim as to his
claim to the Bowman notes.

Leave is granted plaintiff to file an amended bill, seeking relief as to
this note also. It should set up the proceeding in the state court fully,
as is done in the amended bill tendered, and seek specifically an injunc-
tion against defendant’s claim.

KLEIN et al. v. BEACH et al,
(District Court, S. D. New York, February 23, 1916.)

1. CoPYRIGHTS @50—CONTRACT RELATING TO DRaMATIC RIGHTS IN Cory-
RIGHTED B0OE—CONSTRUCTION—*“PRESENTATION ON THE STAGE.”

The writer of a novel, who owned all rights therein, a dramatic writ-
er, and a theatrical producer entered into a contract in 1911 by which
the novelist granted to the dramatist the exclusive right to dramatize
the book “for presentation on the stage,” and both granted to the pro-
ducer, on terms stated, the exclusive right to “produce, perform, and
represent the said play * * * on the stage,” for which it was to pay
a royalty, to be divided equally between them. The contract further pro-
vided that in case of failure of the producer to comply with its terms, or
on its termination otherwise, all rights in the play granted to it should
revert to the other two parties. Held, that the phrase “presentation on
the stage,” construed in connection with other provisions respecting pro-
duction. of the play by stock companies, stage scenery, etc., had reference
only to the production of the spoken play in theaters, and that as, at the
time the contract was made, the production of moving picture plays was
a well-known business, it was not intended that the contract should carry
the exclusive right to dramatize the novel for that purpose, but that such
right remained in the author.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Copyrights, Cent. Dig. 8§ 47, 49; Dec.
Dig. €=50.]

@&==For other cases see same fopic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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9, COPYRIGHTS &=50—CONTRACT RELATING To DRaMATIC RIGHTS IN Cory-
RIGHTED BOOXK—EFFECT OF AMENDMENT OF STATUTE.

The rights of the parties under such contract were in no way affected

by the subsequent amendment of the Copyright Law (Act March 4, 1909,

c. 820, § 5, 35 Stat. 1076) by Act Aug. 24, 1912, c. 365, 37 Stat. 488 (Comp.

St. 1913, § 9521), so as to permit the separate copyrighting of motion pic-

ture plays.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Copyrights, Cent. Dig. §§ 47, 49; Dec.
Dig. &=50.]

3. COPYRIGHTS &=50—CONTRACT RELATING To DraMaTic RIGHTS IN Cory-
RIGHTED BOoOK—CONSTRUCTION.

On the subsequent termination of the contract with the producer for its
default, all rights in the play written by the dramatist reverted to him
and the author of the book as tenants in common, and either had the

- right to license its use, subject to the obligation to account to the other
for one-half the profits.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Copyrights, Cent. Dig. §§ 47, 49; Dec.
Dig. &=50.]

In Equity. Suit by Philip Klein, as executor, and Lillian Klein, as
executrix, of the will of Charles Klein, deceased, against Rex Beach
and the Selig Polyscope Company, Incorporated. On motion to dis-
miss bill. Denied as to defendant Beach, and granted as to defendant
corporation.

This is a joint motion on behalf of the defendants to dismiss the complaint,
on the ground that it does not allege facts sufficient to constitute a cause of
action. The complaint sets forth that Charles Klein, deceased, was a dramatic
author and playwright, who had achieved great fame and had composed many
successful and notable plays and dramatic compositions; that the defendant
Rex Beach was the author of a novel entitled “The Ne'er Do Well”; that the
defendant the Selig Polyscope Company, Incorporated, is a manufacturer and
distributor of motion pictures; that on November 17, 1911, Klein and Beach
entered into a written contract, a copy of which is hereinafter set forth.

The complaint further shows that thereafter Klein devised and completed
a dramatic version of the novel, and performed all the terms of the contract
on his part to be performed; that the dramatization was produced with suc-
cess throughout the United States, was a work of great literary merit, and
of great value to the plaintiffs; that thereafter the Authors’ Producing Com-
pany failed to give 70 performances during one season, and all rights in the
Klein version reverted to Klein and Beach; that later Beach, disregarding
the rights of Klein, and in derogation thereof, made an agreement with the
defendant Selig Polyscope Company whereby he assumed to grant to said
defendant the right and license to dramatize the novel and to make and ex-
hibit cinematographic films thereof and of the dramatic composition of Klein
bearing the same name based on the novel; that the defendants, with full
knowledge of Klein’s rights, for the purpose of making cinematographic films
dramatizing the novel and to reproduce the play, gave a pantomimic repre-
sentation of the novel and play, and during that representation negative mov-
ing picture films were taken, and thereafter positive films were made for exhi-
bition from such negative film; that the defendant Selig Company has adver-
tised the films for release and booked them throughout the United States
against the protest of plaintiffs; that the film is identical with the novel, and
with the Klein play as produced by the Authors’ Producing Company, except
that it has been elaborated to make it suitable for moving picture exhibitions;
and that the film is a dramatization of the novel.

After setting forth other allegations to give the court jurisdiction and to
bring plaintiffs properly in equity, the complaint alleges that the film is being

@=oFor other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER in all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
232 F.—16
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booked throughout the United States and Canada in cheap and inferior the-
aters, to which small admission fees are charged, and that the use of the film
in moving pictures will make it impossible to secure the production of any
dramatization by living actors, either in first-class theaters or by stock or
repertoire companies, and will destroy the value of any such dramatization,
and plaintiffs’ rights therein; and that both the defendants have refused to
pay to plaintiffs any part of the profits or royalties derived from the use and
exhibition of the film based upon the novel and the dramatic composition.
Plaintiffs ask for an injunction, an accounting, the surrender of the films, and
damages.

On the argument all counsel stated that, as no questions of fact were in-
volved, they requested a decision on the whole controversy, and to that end
it was agreed that the contract between Beach and the Selig Company should
be read by the court as part of the papers on the motion to dismiss. For the
convenience of counsel, in cases of this character, I have extracted the essen-
tial features and language of both contracts: . :

Agreement Between Authors’' Producing Company, Beach, and Klein.

Agreement made * * * November 17, 1911, by * * * the Authors’
Producing Company, a domestic corporation, * * * herelnafter referred
to as the manager; Rex Beach, * * * hereinafter referred to as the nov-
elist; Charles Klein, * * * hereinafter referred to as the author, wit-
nesseth: .

Whereas, the novelist is the sole owner of the dramatic rights of a certain
original novel entitled “The Ne'er Do Well”; and

Whereas, the manager wishes to engage the services of the author to drama-
tize the said book for presentation on the stage; and

Whereas, the novelist wishes the author to make the said dramatization
of the said book (which said dramatization shall hereinafter be referred to as
“the play”); and

Whereas, the manager desires to obtain the exclusive right, liberty, and
license to produce, perform, and represent the said play in the United States
of America and the Dominion of Canada; and .

Whereas, the said novelist and author are willing to grant to the said man-
ager the exclusive rights to produce the said play in the said territory under
certain terms, provisions, and conditions, ete.

First. The novelist hereby grants to the author the sole and execlusive right
to dramatize the said book for presentation on the stage, and agrees that the
author shall receive one-half of all moneys paid as royalty for the said play,
except as provided in clause seventh.

Second. The author and the novelist hereby agree to grant, and by these
presents hereby do grant, to the manager, subject to the terms, conditions, and
limitations hereinafter expressed, the sole and exclusive license and liberty
to produce, perform, and represent the said play or dramatic composition on
the stage in the United States of America and the Dominion of Canada.

Third. The manager in consideration of such grant, hereby pays to the nov-
elist, the sum of one thousand dollara ($1,000.00) upon the signing and execu-
tion of this agreement, ete.

Fourth. The manager further agrees to pay the author and the novelist, as
royalty for the said play, * * * a sum equal to, ete.

Irifth. In case the manager shall desire after the first representation of the
said play under this contract, to represent ot produce the said play by more
than one company, it shall be at liberty to do so; and in that case each com-
pany shall be treated, for the purpose of computing the royalties hereunder,
as a separate undertaking, ete.

Sixth. It is expressly understood and agreed that neither this contract nor
the rights granted to the manager herein shall be assigned or assignable by
it, nor shall the said play be sublet by the manager without its first having
received the consent in writing, of the author and the novelist so to do.

Seventh. If the saild play is ever produced in stock theaters or by small
touring companies under other management, the royalty received from any
and all such productions shall be divided, ete.



ELEIN V. BEACH 243

Eighth. The manager expressly agrees that it will produce, exhibit, and
represent the said play only in first-class theaters and in a first-clase man-
ner, with a competent cast to be selected or approved by the author and the
novelist, and a properly qualified stage director, as all these terms are gener-
ally understood in the theatrical profession, and in a manner satisfactory to
the said author and novelist. The author shall also have full and entire con-
trol of the stage and entire choice of scene models and scenery and the sclec-
tion of all costumes, properties, and accessories for the production for the first
company. The author shall also stage the play for the production by the first
company.

Ninth. The said manager further agrees to produce the said play for a
consecutive run in an evening bill in a first-class theater on or before the 17th
day of November, 1912. And it is further agreed that, if the said play is not
produced and presented by the said manager on or before the said 17th day
of November, 1912, the said manager will return to the author all manuscripts
and parts of the said play in its possession or under its control, and further
agrees that all rights of whatsoever name, kind, or nature in and to the said
play and all rights granted by this contract shall forthwith cease and deter-
mine and shall revert to the said author and the novelist to be disposed of
as may seem best to them. * * * If the said play is then not produced on
or before the said 17th day of February, 1913, then the manager agrees forth-
with to return to the author all manuscripts and parts of the said play in its
possession or under its control, and shall lose all rights of whatsoever name,
nature, or description in and to the said play and all rights granted to him
by this contract and all rights shall revert to the author and the novelist
forthwith.

Tenth. The said manager expressly agrees to announce in appropriate type
on all * * #* advertising matter * * * that the said play is a dram-
atization by Charles Klein of Rex Beach’s novel, “The Ne'er Do Well.”

Eleventh. The sald manager agrees that no alterations, eliminations,
emendations, changes, or additions of any sort whatsoever shall be made in
the text of the said play without the consent of the author first obtained in
writing, and the said author agrees that he will make such reasonable, proper,
and necessary changes or modifications in the said play as may be mutually
considered by the author and the manager to be necessary or advisable dur-
ing rehearsals or within a reasonable time after the first production of the
said play.

Twelfth. The said manager further agrees that if, during any one theat-
rical year, * * * the said play has not been produced and presented by
it with a traveling road company for seventy (70) performances, all the rights
of the said manager in and to the said play shall cease and determine and
shall immediately revert to the said author and novelist.

Thirteenth. The author and the novelist hereby grant an option to the

manager to acquire the acting and producing rights in the said play for the
Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland and its colonies (Canada excepted),
etc.
" Fourteenth. Tf the said manager shall at any time, in any way fail to ful-
fill any of the terms and conditions in this contract contained, * * * the
said author and the novelist or their duly authorized agent, may thereupon
* » @ give notice terminating this agreement absolutely, and any and all
rights granted or assigned by the author and the novelist to the manager
herein, shall thereupon immediately cease and determine and shall thereupon
immediately revert to the author and the novelist. * * *

Tifteenth. It is further agreed that upon the termination of this agreement
for whatsoever cause, the manager will forthwith return to the author all
manuscripts and parts of the said play in its possession and under its con-
trol, together with all additions to or alterations in the same, all of which
shall always definitely belong to the said author and the novelist.

Sixteenth. It is understood that Selwyn & Co., play brokers, are the agents
who have procured the execution of this contract, and that as such agents are
entitled to receive an amount equal to, etc.: Provided, however, that if and
when the play shall be produced in stock, or by small touring companies un-



244 232 FEDERAL REPORTER

der other management, the said brokers shall be entitled to receive an amount
equal to, ete.
Agreement Between Beach and Selig Company.

Agreement made * * * March 3, 1914, * * * petween Rex Beach,
* ¥ * Thereinafter called the author, and the Selig Polyscope Company,
incorporated, * * * hereinafter called the producer, witnesseth:

Whereas, the author is the sole author and owner of all right, title, and
interest in and to a certain copyrighted novel entitled “The Ne'er Do Well”;
and .

Whereas, the producer desires to secure and to acquire from the author
the sole and exclusive right, license, and privilege to produce the said novel
“The Ne’er Do Well” as a motion picture film, and to manufacture sell, lease,
and otherwise exploit the same as such throughout all countries of the world:

Now, therefore, in consideration, etc., the author and the producer agree as
follows:

First. The author hereby grants the producer the sole and exclusive right,
license, and privilege to reproduce the novel, “The Ne’er Do Well” in motion
pictures, and to manufacture, sell, lease, and otherwise exploit films from said
reproduction.

Second. The producer agrees to pay the author, for said exclusive rights,
licenses, and privileges, one-half of all net profits from every source accru-
ing to the producer from the manufacture, sale, leasing of, or otherwise ex-
ploiting said reproduction. * * =*

Ernst & Cane, of New York City (Bernard M. L. Ernst, of New
York City, of counsel), for complainants.

Weadock & Miner, of New York City (Karl R. Miner, of New York
City, of counsel), for defendant Beach.

Nathan Burkan, of New York City, for defendant Selig Poly-
scope Co. :

MAYER, District Judge (after stating the facts as above). At the
outset, it is desirable to clear away immaterial or untenable conten-
tions.

First. The relations of the parties must be determined by the writ-
ten agreements between them, and not by those allegations of the com-
plaint which plead conclusions of law. Thus the complaint alleges inter
alia: :

“That in and by said agreement the defendant Rex Beach gave to the said
Charles Klein the sole and exclusive right to dramatize the book”

—while in the agreement are the added words “for presentation on-
the stage.” Therefore what the right was must be determined by the
contract, and not by the interpretation of the pleader.

[1,2] Second. The amendment of the Copyright Law, effective on
August 24, 1912, is irrelevant to the controversy. That amendment,
so far as here concerned, merely provided, among other things, for the
copyrighting of motion picture plays. The contract here was dated
November 17, 1911, and the contractual relations between Beach and
Klein were fixed as of that date. The subsequent agreement (with
notice, according to the complaint) between Beach and the Selig Com-
pany gains nothing, because now, under the statute, the motion picture
rights may be separately dealt with and separately copyrighted.

We thus come to the fundamental questions in the case. It may be
- assumed that in November, 1911, the time of the contract, the motion
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picture play was well known. This knowledge is judicially obtained
from the files of the court and from reported decisions, notably the
Kalem Case, 222 U. S. 55, 32 Sup. Ct. 20, 56 L. Ed. 92, Ann. Cas.
1913A, 1285; 1d., 169 Fed. 61,94 C. C. A. 429.

With the knowledge that a play might be produced on the stage with
the spoken word or exhibited on the screen, Authors’ Producing Com-
pany (the manager) was looking for a new play. Beach owned the
novel, “The Ne'er Do Well.” Klein was a playwright of recognized
ability and experience. The manager wished Klein to make a play out
of the novel and to obtain the exclusive right to produce, perform, and
represent that play on the stage in the United States and elsewhere.

Throughout, it is apparent that the manager was to produce and
present the play on what we understand as the stage as distinguished
from the screen. Vide “stock theaters;” “small touring companies;”
Klein shall have full control of “the stage” and “entire choice of scene
models and scenery and the selection of all costumes * * * for
the production for the first company”; the manager cannot make
changes “in the text” without Klein’s consent; certain arrangements
with the play brokers as to compensation, if the play is produced “in
stock or by small touring companies under other management.”

The manager, therefore, being concerned only with a play with
speaking actors, the parties whereased and agreed as follows:

“Whereas, the manager wishes to engage the services of the author to
dramatize the said book for presentation on the stage: * * *

“Pirst. The novelist hereby grants to the author the sole and exclusive
right to dramatize the said book for presentation on the stage. * * *

“Qecond. The author and the novelist hereby agree to grant and * * *
do grant to the manager * * * the sole and exclusive license and liberty
to produce, perform, and represent the said play or dramatic composition
on thc stage. * * *7

Not a word was written about motion pictures. It is argued that,
if it was intended to exclude motion pictures, such exclusion would
have been expressed. It may be urged with equal force that, if it was
intended to include them, the inclusion should have been definitely -
stated. Klein, as the complaint points out, had achieved great fame
as a dramatic author, and the product of his talent applied to the
story of the novel was what Beach, Klein, and the manager proposed
to present on the stage; but it does not follow that the contracting
parties intended that there should be no grant by Beach of the mo-
tion picture rights to any one and that only stage performances with
speaking actors could be given. By virtue of paragraph twelfth the
manager’s rights “reverted” to Beach and Klein, and under paragraph
fifteenth all manuscripts and parts of the play, with all additions and
. alterations thereafter, were to “definitely belong” to Beach and Klein.
Thus, at the commencement of this suit, Beach and Klein’s estate were
the co-owners, or, as some cases say, the tenants in common, of the
Klein play, freed from any license.

It is urged that Klein became the sole owner of the Klein dramatiza-
tion, to do with it as he pleased, obligated only to account to Beach
for profits. ‘That argument flies in the face of the intent of the agree-
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ment when read as a whole. It thus becomes necessary to determine
what the grant from Beach to Klein was.

The “exclusive right to dramatize” the novel “for presentation on
the stage” merely meant that no one. else was to be permitted to dram-
atize for the stage, but did not comprehend that Beach could not grant
the right to another independently to dramatize the novel for the
screen. Of course, “stage” is a comprehensive term. College com-
mencements, public meetings, motion picture exhibitions take place on
the physical structure called “a stage”; but “presentation on the stage”
in this contract surely means the spoken play.

It is suggested that to hold that Beach retained the motion picture
rights would violate the intent of the parties, because the motion pic-
ture would destroy or impair the commercial value of Klein's dramatic
version, and that Klein and the others could not have contemplated
such a result. I am far from satisfied that every motion picture inter-
feres with the box office receipts from the same play on the dramatic
or the operatic stage. I imagine that the motion picture “Carmen”
will not outlast the living opera.

Then it is quite understandable that a novel may be presented to a
theater audience in a way quite different from that shown to a motion
picture audience and for reasons which are obvious to those who at-
tend both. Arnold Bennett’s “Buried Alive,” when transformed into
“The Great Adventure,” was neither more nor less than a character
study of Farll and Alice Challice. No one could satisfactorily por-
tray in a picture the study which Ainley or Harding acted on the stage;
but “Buried Alive” on the screen would probably show the scene in
Westminster Abbey, omitted by the playwright.

And so it may well be, as I think was the case here, that the right to
dramatize a novel for presentation on the stage does not necessarily
carry with it all the motion picture rights. There is nothing in the re-
ported cases to lead to any other conclusion.

In the Kalem Case, supra, a contract was not being construed, but
the court was dealing with the question as to whether one without
authority could appropriate the essential features of a copyrighted
work and produce them in a motion picture. The court held that such
a production was dramatized within the meaning of the statute. No
one now questions that the moving picture may show a dramatization,
and in the case at bar the presentation on the screen is a dramatiza-
tion; but we are not dealing with definitions, but with the intent of the
parties. )

In Frohman v. Fitch, 164 App. Div. 232, 149 N. Y. Supp. 633, Fitch,
who had agreed to write and deliver a play, had sold his original work
to Frohman under a broad grant which clearly comprehended the own-
ership of Fitch’s work by Frohman for all purposes. The language
there was:

“Whereas, the said party of the first part [Fitch] agrees to write and de-
liver a play on or before January 1, 1901; and

“Whereas, the said party of the second part [Frohman] desires the exclu-
sive right to produce or to have produced the said play in the United States
of America and in Canada:

“Now, therefore, * * * the said party of the first part agrees to sell,
assign, and transfer, and hereby does sell, assign, and transfer to the said
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party of the second part the exclusive right to produce the said play in the
United States of America and in Canada, for which sale, assignment and
transfer the said party of the second part agrees to pay to the said party of
the first part or his authorized agent, as follows, * * *”

In Harper Brothers v. Klaw & Erlanger, 232 Fed. 609, decided by
Judge Hough on January 6, 1916, the agreement was made at a time
(1899) when motion picture plays were not in the contemplation of
either party, and he held, on the facts in that case, therefore, that nei-
ther party could produce motion pictures. He was considering a con-
tract made at a time when conditions were radically different from
those which existed in 1911; but, in so far as he construed the lan-
guage used in that contract (which, in substance, resembles that in the
c.as}e1 at bar), he held that the grant did not pass the motion picture
rights.

8] This case, however, differs from Harper v. Klaw in at least
one respect which becomes important. Here both Beach and Klein
became the owners of Klein’s drama, and each could then do with it
what he pleased, with the duty of accounting over. Beach could license
Klein’s dramatic version for the screen, and Klein could do the same
thing; and, of course, they each could license others to produce the
Klein play on the stage. Bat in all these instances one would be ob-
liged to account to the other. Millson v. Lawrence, 148 App. Div.
678, 133 N. Y. Supp. 293; Lalance & Grosjean Mfg. Co. v. Nat.
Enameling & Stamping Co. (C. C.) 108 Fed. 77.

As Beach, therefore, could license another either to produce an
independent dramatization for the motion pictures, or to produce the
Klein version for the motion pictures, the defendant Selig Company
was at liberty to contract with Beach, and is not concerned with the
controversy between Beach and the Klein estate. It follows, therefore,
that neither Beach nor the Selig Company can be enjoined as prayed
for.

But there is enough left in the complaint to set forth a cause of ac-
tion for an accounting (see paragraphs XXI and XXII) for profits al-
ready derived. If it appeared as a fact that the Selig production is
an independent dramatization, then, in view of what has been pointed
out, the plaintiffs would not have a cause of action; but it is alleged
(paragraph X) that Klein “originated, devised, created” a play based
upon the novel, and further (paragraph XVT) that the “said film [made
by Selig Company] * * * isidentical with the said novel * * ok
and with the said play, ** * * except that the same has been elab-
orated to make it suitable for motion picture exhibitions.” '

Of course, with a common source, two dramatizations must have
much in common; but it is alleged that Klein’s work is “‘of great lit-
erary merit, woven with keen dramatic skill and artistic finish.” And
it is well known that skill is required to select from the mass of ma-
terial in a novel, so much as may be necessary and then properly ar-
range the acts, scenes, sequence, climax, and the rest.

Whether, therefore, Klein’s dramatization has been used by the Selig
Company, or an independent motion picture has been devised from
the novel, is a question of fact, which can be determined only after a
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trial.  As it is alleged that Klein’s version has been used, the com-
plaint states a cause of action against Beach for an accounting,

For the reasons stated, the motion to dismiss made on behalf of
Beach must be denied, and that made on behalf of Selig Company must
be granted. Settle on two days’ notice.

. In re SMITH.
(District Court, N. D. New York. April 24, 1916.)

1. BANERUPTCY &=407(5)—GROUNDS FOR D1sCHARGE—FALSE STATEMENT.

A statement made by the bankrupt on a printed blank, which stated
at the beginning that it was a true and complete statement of his re-
sources and liabilities, followed by two columng of items for each, some
of which were filled in by the bankrupt and some left blank, at the bottom
of which columns was a space for the total resources and total liabilities,
which were filled in by the bankrupt, with the totals of the items listed
above, was a statement in writing that. it represented all his liabilities,
and where the value of the assets as therein stated was exaggerated, and
a number of large items of liabilities omitted, so that it showed his assets

- as nine times his liabilities, when in fact they were about the same, the
statement was materially false, within Bankr. Act July 1, 1898, c. 541,
§ 14b, 30 Stat. 550, as amended by Act June 25, 1910, c. 412, § 6, 36 Stat.
839 (Comp. St. 1913, § 9598), providing that a bankrupt shall be discharg-
ed unless he has obtained money or property on credit on a materially
false statement in writing.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptey, Cent. Dig. §§ 760, 761;
Dec. Dig. &2407(5).] .

2. BANKRUPTCY @&=2407(5)—GROUNDS FOR DiSCHARGE—FALSE STATEMENT—
“MATERIALLY FALSE.” -

To authorize denial of discharge of a bankrupt, a statement must be
“materially false,” which means more than simply erroneous or untrue,
and imports an intention to deceive; but where it appears that the bank-
rupt knowingly and intentionally omitted to disclose the greater part of
his indebtedness, the necessary consequence of which was to deceive his
creditors, the intention to deceive may be inferred.

[Ed. Note—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig. §§ 760, 761;
Dec. Dig. €=407(5).

For other definitions, see Words and Phrases, Second Series, Materially
False Statement.] )

3. BANKRUPTCY &=407(5)—~DENIAL OF DISCHARGE—GROUNDS—FALSE STATE-
MENT—DEPOSIT IN BANK.

Where a bankrupt gave a statement in writing of his 'assets and lia-
bilities, which showed the amount of money he had in the bank correct-
ly as it appeared on thé books of the bank, but he knew that he had
drawn and delivered checks thereon which had not been cashed, and
which would practically exhaust his account, his statement was false.

+ [Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptcy, Cent. Dig, §§ 760, 761;
Dec. Dig. &=407(5).]

4. BANKRUPTOY &=408(3)—DENIAL OF DISCHARGE—GROUNDS—CONCEALMENT
OF PROPERTY.

Where a bankrupt, at the time he filed hig voluntary petition, had a
small deposit in the bank, which he did not list in his schedule of assets,
and did not turn over to the trustee, but later drew out for his own use,
he concealed property from his trustee, for which he can be denied a dis-
charge, since the amount of the property concealed is not material.

[Ed. Note.—For other cases, see Bankruptey, Cent, Dig. §§ 735, 136;
Dec. Dig. €=408(3).]

@=For other cases see same topic & KEY-NUMBER 1n all Key-Numbered Digests & Indexes
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In Bankruptcy. In the matter of Benton D. Smith, bankrupt. On -
report of the special master against the discharge of the bankrupt. Re-
port approved, and discharge denied.

This is a hearing on the application of the bankrupt to set aside the
report of the special master, who reports against the discharge of the
bankrupt, on the one hand, and an application by the trustee in bank-
ruptcy and a creditor to confirm and approve such report, and, pursu-
ant to the report of the special master, refuse a discharge.

Wm. D. Tuttle, of Cortland, N. Y., for bankrupt.
Costello, Burden, Cooney & Walters, of Syracuse, N. Y. (David F.
Costello, of Syracuse, N. Y., of counsel), for trustee and creditors.

RAY, District Judge. Speciﬁcatioﬁ of objection to the discharge of
the bankrupt No. IV reads as follows:

“IV. That such application should not be granted because of the following
facts, constituting an additional ground which the undersigned charged to
be true, namely:

“A. That said bankrupt obtained property consisting of meats and provi-
sions on credit from objecting creditor, Morris & Co., upon a materially false
statement in writing made by him to said Morris & Co. for the purpose of ob-
taining credit from Morris & Co. That said statement in writing was dated
August 18, 1914, and executed and signed on that date by said bankrupt, and
delivered to Morris & Co. on that date, and in and by such statement said
bankrupt falsely and fraudulently for the purpose of obtaining credit from
Morris & Co. represented to said Morris & Co. that his merchandise on hand
cost five hundred dollars (3500), that he owned accounts all good, amounting
to eight hundred dollars (3800), that he had cash on hand in the First Nation-
al Bank of Tully, N. Y., to the amount of one hundred fifty dollars ($150), that
he owned real estate of the value of six hundred dollars ($600), that he owed
no other debts, aside from four hundred and sixty-one dollars ($461) to Morris
& Co., and that he had no liabilities except the debt owed to Morris & Co.,
amounting to four hundred and sixty-one dollars ($461), and in that said
bankrupt represented therein that the firm conducting said meat market was
composed of D. B. Smith’s estate and Benton D. Smith.

“That said statement was false and known by the bankrupt at the time of
the making thereof to be false, in that the merchandise which bankrupt had
on hand at that time did not cost to exceed three hundred dollars ($300), in
that his outstanding accounts did not amount to eight hundred dollars ($800),
in that sald bankrupt did@ not have cash on deposit in the First National Bank
of Tully amounting to one hundred and fifty dollars ($150), in that said bank-
rupt did not own real estate in which his equity was worth the sum of six
hundred dollars (3600), and in that said bankrupt had other liabilities and
owed other debts than those to Morris & Co., to wit, Armour & Co,, the es-
tate of D. B. Smith, and others, and in that the firm conducling said market
was not composed of D. B. Smith’s estate and Benton D. Smith.

«That said written statement and the representations therein made were
made by said bankrupt to objecting creditor, Mborris & Co., for the purpose of
obtaining credit from Morris & Co., and that Morrils & Co. relied upon said
statement and the representations therein made, and sold and delivered to
said bankrupt thereafter merchandise consisting of meats and provisions of
the value of one thousand dollars and upwards, upon which account there re-
mains unpaid the sum of five hundred and four dollars ($504).”

On or about the 18th day of August. 1914, the now bankrupt filled
out, signed, and delivered to the objecting creditor, Morris & Co., a
written statement as to his resources and liabilities, of which the fol-
lowing is a copy:
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. “Aug. 18, 1914.
“Messrs. Morris & Company, Syracuse, N. Y.—Gentlemen: For the pur-
pose of obtaining credit with you for merchandise which I (we) may now or
hereafter purchase of you, and for the purpose of securing an extension of
time for the payment of purchases heretofore made, I (we) make the followin
true and complete statement of my (our) resources and liabilities: .

Resources. Dollars. | Cents.

Mdse. on hand, COSt veeeverrnennnnnereinnnnennnn. esaes 500
Store fixtures ..... e eeemenee et aeaaas 1875
1 horse, present valUE ...oueevneieiininn et nrernnnnnnnns
2 wagons, present VAlUe. cvuvevnnnrriinnnenrenennennns .. 125 00
Notes, all good........ et et ettt
Accounts, all 200A...ceeeieirevnnennnnnnn.. PR 800 00
Cash on hand........covvvuvevenininnnennn. et eteeneeas . 140 00
Cash in First National Bank, Tully, N. Y...oovuvvennn... 150 00
Other personal property.........covvvenveeennn [P,
Real estate, title in name of D. B. Smith........ [
Situated Tully St., Onondaga St., Market value......... .o 600 00
Homestead title in name of . ...ovvvveervenrenevennnnnns
Situated, market value.............

Total TESOUTCES +vuvvevnueenerreeasassansonnonnes. | 4190 00

Liabilities. Dollars. | Cents.

Mdse., not due, owing to Morris & Co., Syracuse, N. Y.... 227 00
Mdse., past due, owing to Morris & Co., Syracuse, N. Y.... 234 00
Owe on notes ......... .

Chattel mOrtgage .......evvevvunnen... et
Owe to banks ..... st Ceree e s sere e
Owe on judgments .................. Ceeireea. [

Owe for wages

Mortgage on other real estate .......
All other debts .....evvvvniinnrennnnnes

. Total lHabilities ...vevievievinnenrenenrnnsennnnnnns | 461 00

“T (we) conduct a Meat Market

“I (we) keep the following books of account in my (our) business: Cash
book; McCaskey System of bills.

“The firm is composed of D. B. Smith’s estate and Benton D. Smith

“I am (we are) at present located at Tully, N. Y.

“My (our) stock and fixtures are insured for $1.000.00 in Niagara Insurance
Company; other property is insured for $1,200.00 in Niagara Insurance Com-

- pany.

“The above statement, printed and written, is true and correct in every par-
ticular, and you may rely upon it as a continuing basis for both present and
future credit dealings with me (us), unless and until I (we) hereafter from
time to time advise you in writing of any change therein at the time such
changes occur. - .
“Yours truly, Benton D. Smith,

’ “Composing the Firm of D. B. Smith & Son.
“Witnessed by: T. J. Carey.”



IN RE SMITH 251

The proof shows, and the special master finds, that this statement
was made for the purpose of obtaining credit and property on credit,
and that both credit and property were obtained thereby. The special
master also finds that the now bankrupt “knew the contents of the pa-
per, and that as filled out it showed an incomplete and false statement
of his financial condition.” The special master also finds, and the evi-
dence sustains the finding, that in his opini